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Key Information Document for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis dated: 11 February, 2025

ISSUE OF UP TO 3500 (THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR
1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 35,00,00,000/- (INDIAN
RUPEES THIRTY-FIVE CRORES ONLY) ( “NCDS”/ “DEBENTURE(S)”) COMPRISING OF (I) A BASE
ISSUE OF OF 2000 (TWO THOUSAND) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE,
REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN
RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 20,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES TWENTY
CRORES ONLY) AND (ll) A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF UP TO 1500 (ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED)
SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH
AGGREGATING TO INR 15,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES FIFTEEN CRORES ONLY) (“GREEN SHOE
OPTION”) IN A DEMATERIALISED FORM ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS (THE “ISSUE”)
(HEREINAFTER REFFERED TO AS “DEBENTURES”) BY AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE
LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) OR (“ISSUER?”).

A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS (THE “ISSUE”) (HEREINAFTER REFFERED TO AS “DEBENTURES”) BY
AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) OR (“ISSUER”).

This Key Information Document shall be read in conjunction with the General Information Document
dated August 02, 2024 bearing with Ref No. AKAR/2024-25/SEC/165.

PART A: DISCLOSURES AS PER SEBI NCS Regulations:

Please see below the disclosures as required under the terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations (as defined below):
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S. Particulars Relevant Disclosure
No.
1. | Details of Name: Beacon Trusteeship Limited
debenture trustee | Address: 5W, 5th Floor, The Metropolitan, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
for the Issue: (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400051
Logo:

BEACON

Telephone Number: 022-46060278
Email address: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in
Contact person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni

2. | Details of credit | Name: ICRA Analytics Limited
Rating Agent for | Address: 17" Floor, Plot G-1, Infinity Benchmark, Block GP, Sector V, Salt

the Issue: Lake, Kolkata, West Bengal - 700091
ICRA
ARALYTICS
Logo: T

Telephone Number: +91-22-61796300
Email address: ashwini.kumar@icraanalytics.com
Contact person: Mr. Ashwini Kumar

3. | Details of Name: Bigshare Services Private Limited
Registrar to the Address: 15t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Bldg., Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana
Issue: Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400059

ﬂ Birskare Services Pvt. Lid
Logo:

Telephone Number: 022 6263 8200

Fax number: NA

Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/
Email address: mukesh@bigshareonline.com

4. | Statutory Auditor Logo: Not Applicable

Name: Serva Associates, Chartered Accountants

Address: 011-1014, 10th Floor, R G Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,
Pitampura, Delhi - 110034

Website: www.serva.in

Email address: info@servamail.in

Telephone Number: +919999099891

Contact Person: Mr. Nitin Jain, Partner

Peer Review no.: 015024

5. | Date of Key | 11 February, 2025

Information
Document

6. | Type of Key | This Key Information Document is being issued in relation to the private
Information placement issue of Debentures.
Document

7. | The nature, | Issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand Five Hundred) senior, secured, rated,
number, price and | listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value
amount of
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Particulars

securities offered
and issue size
(base issue or
green shoe), as
may be applicable

Relevant Disclosure

of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR
35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores Only) ("Debentures")

Base Issue: 2000 (Two Thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of INR 1,00,000/-
(Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 20,00,00,000/-
(Indian Rupees Twenty Crores Only);

Green shoe option: Up to 1500 (One Thousand Five Hundred) senior,
secured, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of
the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)
(“Green Shoe Option”)

8. | The aggregate | Not Applicable
amount proposed
to be raised
through all the
stages of offers of
non-convertible
securities made
through the shelf
prospectus
(applicable only in
case of public
issuance);
9. | Issue Schedule Date of opening of the Issue: 13 February 2025
Date of closing of the Issue: 13 February 2025
Date of earliest closing of the Issue (if any): NA
Pay-in date: 14 February 2025
Allotment Date: 14 February 2025
10. | Credit Rating of | The Rating Agent has vide its letter dated 09t August 2024 and rating
the Issue rationale and its press release dated 04" July 2023 assigned a rating of “[ICRA
BBB (Stable)]” (pronounced as “ICRA triple B outlook stable”) in respect of the
Debentures. Please refer to Annexure Il of this General Information Document
for the credit rating letter and rating rationale received from the Rating Agent
assigning the credit rating abovementioned and the press release by the Rating
Agent in this respect.
Link for the press release:
https://www.icra.in/Rationale/ShowRationaleReport?1d=120808
Also, attached latest NCD revalidation letter dated 15 January 2025
11. | All  the ratings | Please refer to S.no 12 (Credit Rating of the Issue) above. No other ratings
obtained for the | have been obtained for the purposes of this Issue.
private placement
of Issue
12. | The name(s) of the | The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the

stock

where
securities
proposed

exchanges
the
are
to be

BSE Limited (“BSE”).

Please refer to Annexure VIl (In-Principle approval received from BSE) of the
General Information Document for the in-principle approval for listing obtained
from BSE) in relation to the General Information Document as issued by the
Issuer.
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Particulars

Relevant Disclosure

listed, subject to | BSE shall be the ‘Designated Stock Exchange’ for the purpose of maintenance
change of the recovery expense fund prescribed by SEBI under the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Circular, as may be amended from time to time.

13. | The details about | The following categories of investors, when specifically approached and have

eligible investors; | been identified upfront, are eligible to apply for this private placement of
Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment norms/rules and
compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant
documents along with the Application Form (“Eligible Investors”):
(a) Body Corporates;
(b) Resident Individuals;
(c) Family Offices;
(d) Non-Banking Finance Companies; and
(e)  Alternative Investment Funds.
All  potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant
regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this issue of
Debentures.
Note: Participation by potential investors in the Issue may be subject to
statutory and/or regulatory requirements applicable to them in connection with
subscription to Indian securities by such categories of persons or entities.
Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory
requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other
requirements. Applicants ought to seek independent legal and regulatory
advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

14. | Coupon rate, | In respect of the coupon rate, the coupon payment frequency, the redemption
coupon payment | date and redemption amount in respect of the Debentures, please refer to
frequency, Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key Information Document.
redemption date, | The details of Debenture Trustee are provided under S. No. 1 of this table
redemption above.
amount and details
of debenture
trustee

15. | Details about | Not applicable.
underwriting of the
issue including the
amount
undertaken to be
underwritten by
the underwriters:

16. | Electronic  Book | The Issue shall be made through the EBP platform in compliance with SEBI
Provider Platform | NCS Regulation read with Listed NCDs Master Circular for details refer to

SECTION 4 (Other Information and Application Process) of this Key
Information Document.

17. | Inclusion of a | This Issue, offer and subscription to the Debentures shall be made by the
compliance clause | Eligible Investors through the electronic book mechanism as prescribed by
in relation  to | SEBI and BSE under the EBP Guidelines (as defined below) by placing bids
electronic book | on the EBP Platform during the period of the Issue. The Eligible Investors
mechanism and | should also refer to the operational guidelines of the EBP in this respect. The
details pertaining | disclosures required pursuant to the EBP Guidelines (as defined below) are set
to the uploading | out hereinbelow:
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Particulars

the
Information
Document on the
Electronic Book
Provider Platform,
if applicable.

Key

Relevant Disclosure

Details of size of the
Issue including green
shoe option, if any

Total Issue: Issue of up to 3500 (Three
Thousand Five Hundred) senior, secured,
rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-
convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
Only) each aggregating to INR 35,00,00,000/-
(Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores Only)
("Debentures")

Base Issue: 2000 (Two Thousand) senior,
secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of
the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to
INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty
Crores Only)

Green Shoe Option: up to 1500 (One
Thousand Five Hundred) senior, secured,
rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-
convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
Only) each aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/-
(Indian Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)

Anchor Portion Details

No

Interest rate parameter

Fixed Coupon

Bid opening and closing
date

Bid opening date: 13 February 2025
Bid closing date: 13 February 2025

Minimum Bid lot

INR 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Only)
and in multiples of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Only) thereafter

Manner of bidding in the
Issue/ Bid Type

Closed

Manner of allotment in
the Issue

Uniform Yield Allotment

Manner of settlement in
the Issue

Pay-in of funds through ICCL.

The pay-in of the Application Money for the
Debentures shall be made by way of transfer
of funds from the bank account(s) of the
Eligible Investors (whose bids have been
accepted) as registered with the Electronic
Book Provider into the account of the ICCL, as
specified in this regard below.

Settlement cycle &
Deemed Date of
Allotment

T+1

(T being the day of bidding as per working day
convention of recognized stock exchanges)
Settlement of the Issue will be on 14 February
2025.
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure

Specific This issue of Debentures does not form part of non-equity regulatory capital
declaration mentioned under Chapter V of the SEBI NCS Regulations.

requested by BSE:

non-equity

regulatory capital
19. | Disclosure of filing | Given this is a private placement of non-convertible securities, there shall be
no requirement of filing the same with the Registrar of Companies pursuant to
the Section 26(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. | Reissuance of | The Issuer reserves the right to make multiple issuances under the same ISIN.
Debentures Any such issue can be made either by way of creation of a fresh ISIN or by way
of issuance under an existing ISIN at premium/par/discount as the case may
be.
Background

This Key Information Document (as defined below) is related to the issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand
Five Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face
value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Thirty-Five Crores Only) (“Debentures”) comprising of a base issue of 2000 (Two Thousand) senior,
secured, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of INR
1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty
Crores Only) and a green shoe option of up to 1500 (One Thousand Five Hundred) senior, secured, rated,
listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)
(“Green Shoe Option”) issued in a dematerialised form on a private placement basis to be issued by Akara
Capital Advisors Private Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains
relevant information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures and must be read
along with the General Information Document issued by the Issuer. The issue of the Debentures comprised
in the Issue and described under this Key Information Document has been authorised by the Issuer through
resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Issuer under Section 180(1)(a) and Section 180(1)(c) of the
Act on November 14, 2024, and the Board of Directors of the Issuer on 11 February 2025, and Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders under Section 42 of the Act dated May 10, 2023, in accordance with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to raise funds, by way of issuance of non-
convertible debentures, upon such terms and conditions as the Board may think fit for aggregate amounts
not exceeding INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Five crores Only). The present issue of Debentures
in terms of this Key Information Document is within the limits as prescribed in such relevant resolution.

THIS KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT IS NEITHER A PROSPECTUS NOR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF
A PROSPECTUS AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO THE PUBLIC GENERALLY TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR OR OTHERWISE ACQUIRE THE DEBENTURES TO BE ISSUED UNDER THE ISSUE.

THIS KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT IS PREPARED AND ISSUED IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES) REGULATIONS, 2021, ISSUED VIDE NOTIFICATION NUMBER SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2021/39 DATED 09™ AUGUST 2021, AS AMENDED AND RESTATED FROM TIME TO TIME,
READ WITH THE CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER; THE MASTER CIRCULAR FOR ISSUE AND
LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, SECURITISED DEBT INSTRUMENTS, SECURITY
RECEIPTS, MUNICIPAL DEBT SECURITIES AND COMMERCIAL PAPER ISSUED BY SECURITIES AND

»
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EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA, ISSUED VIDE CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2024/54
DATED MAY 22, 2024, AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM
APPLICATION LETTER PURSUANT TO SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 14 OF THE COMPANIES (PROSPECTUS AND ALLOTMENT OF SECURITIES) RULES, 2014 AND
PURSUANT TO SECTION 71 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 18 OF THE
COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES) RULES, 2014 FOR ISSUE OF NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS. THIS KEY INFORMATION
DOCUMENT SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT
DATED AUGUST 02, 2024.

Particulars Date

Issue Opening Date 13 February 2025
Issue Closing Date 13 February 2025
Pay in Date 14 February 2025
Deemed Date of Allotment 14 February 2025

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the BSE. The Issuer has obtained
an in-principle approval in relation to the General Information Document from the Stock Exchange on 02nd
August 2024.

The Issuer, with prior notice to the Debenture Trustee, may get the Debentures listed on other material stock
exchanges as it deems fit. The Issuer shall comply with the requirements of the listing agreement to the extent
applicable to it on a continuous basis.
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires and if not otherwise defined in the General
Information Document, the following terms shall have the meanings given below in this Key
Information Document.

Business Day

Client Protection Claim

Client Protection Laws

Conditions Precedent

Conditions
Subsequent

Debenture Trust Deed

Debenture Trustee

Debenture
Agreement

Debentures

Trustee

means any day (other than a Sunday) on which money market institutions
and scheduled commercial banks are open for general business in New
Delhi, India.

Additionally, the day on which payment of interest/redemption with respect to
debt securities falls due, it has been decided that interest / redemption
payments shall be made only on the days when the money market is
functioning in New Delhi, India.

“Business Days” shall be construed accordingly.

means any claim, proceeding or investigation by a person in respect of any
Client Protection Laws.

means any laws, rules or regulations applicable to the Issuer as a non-
banking finance company or otherwise concerning consumer protection
matters.

means the conditions precedent set out under the heading in Section 3.15
(Issue Details) of this Key Information Document.

Means the conditions subsequent set out in Section 3.15 (/ssue Details) of
this Key Information Document.

means the trust deed executed / to be executed by and between the
Debenture Trustee and the Issuer on or around the date of this Key
Information Document which will set out the terms upon which the
Debentures are being issued and shall include the representations and
warranties and the covenants to be provided by the Issuer.

Beacon Trusteeship Limited. A copy of the consent letter has been annexed
hereto in Annexure Il of this Key Information Document. The fees of the
Debenture Trustee shall be as disclosed under Annexure Il.

Further, a copy of the due diligence certificate is set out in Annexure VII of
this Key Information Document hereto.

means the agreement executed by and between the Debenture Trustee and
the Issuer for the purposes of appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act
as debenture trustee in connection with the issuance of the Debentures dated
11 February 2025 shall be annexed as Annexure XI.

Issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand Five Hundred) senior, secured, rated,
listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value
of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR
35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores Only) (“Debentures”)
comprising of:

i. a base issue of 2000 (Two Thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed,
transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value
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Deed of Hypothecation

Deemed DE(:)
Allotment

EBP Guidelines

EBP Platform/ EBP

Eligibility Criteria

of

of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to
INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty Crores Only) and

ii. agreenshoe option of up to 1500 (One Thousand Five Hundred) senior,
secured, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible
debentures of the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
Only) each aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only) (“Green Shoe Option”)

shall mean the unattested deed of hypothecation to create a first ranking,
exclusive, and continuing charge over the Hypothecated Assets, to be
executed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee on or around the
date of this Key Information Document to secure the Secured Obligations in
relation to the Debentures.

shall mean the date on which the Debentures shall have been deemed to be
allotted to the Debenture Holders being 14 February 2025.

means the requirements with respect to electronic book mechanism
prescribed in Chapter VI (Electronic Book Provider platform) of the Listed
NCDs Master Circular and the operational guidelines issued by the relevant
Electronic Book Provider, as may be restated, amended, modified or updated
from time to time.

Means web based electronic booking platform for private placement of
securities under the EBP Guidelines.

The identified receivables forming part of the Hypothecated Assets must ful-
fill the following eligibility criteria.

a. Each Receivable(s) comprising the Hypothecated Asset must be a Loan
originated by the Company and has not been purchased from the third

party.

b. The hypothecated Loans forming part of the Hypothecated Assets must
have been originated while complying with all the extant ‘know your
customer’ norms specified by the RBI;

c. The hypothecated Loans must be current and not overdue at the time of
inclusion in the Hypothecated Assets and should not have been
terminated or prepaid;

d. the Loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets are existing at the time
of selection and have not been terminated or pre-paid;

e. The Loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets shall be
unencumbered and no security interest of any kind shall exist over them
except in accordance with the Transaction Documents;

f. Loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets must be loans directly
originated by the Borrower and not loans purchased from a third party;

g. Commencing from the expiry of the portfolio origination period, the
security cover shall comprise Loans originated post the date of the
drawdown;

h. No Loans should be restructured or rescheduled;

10
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i.  Each Loan constituting the Hypothecated Assets should have been fully
disbursed;

j. Each Loan must be existing at the time of hypothecation;

k. Loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets must have been given to
individual borrowers as personal loans;

I. Loan constituting the Hypothecated Assetss must be unencumbered
(other than under the Transaction Documents) and not sold or assigned
by the Company;

m. All Loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets must be “standard” as
per RBI Guidelines.

Eligible Investors has the meaning given to it under Section 4.4 of the Key Information
Document.
Events of Default means the events of default set out in Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key

Information Document, and “Event of Default” shall be construed accordingly.

Redemption Date means the redemption date as set out in ANNEXURE IV: ILLUSTRATION
OF BOND CASH FLOWS.
Financial shall mean in relation to any Person any indebtedness of such Person for or
Indebtedness in respect of:
(a) moneys borrowed;
(b) any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance credit

facility or dematerialised equivalent;

(c) any amount raised by acceptance of vendor bill discounting facility,
receivables bill discounting or dematerialised equivalent;

(d) any amount raised pursuant to any note purchase facility or the issue
of bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or any similar instrument
including any accrued interest or redemption premium thereon;

(e) the amount of any liability in respect of any lease or hire purchase
contract which would, in accordance with the Applicable Accounting
Standards, be treated as a finance or capital lease;

(f) receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the
extent they are sold on a non-recourse basis);

(9) any amount raised under any other transaction (including any
forward sale or purchase agreement) having the commercial effect
of a borrowing, including on any other direct or indirect or secured or
unsecured recourse basis;

(h) shares which are expressed to be redeemable, or any shares or
instruments convertible into shares, or any shares or other securities,
in each case which are otherwise the subject of a put option or call
option or any form of guarantee;

(i) any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, bond,
standby or documentary letter of credit or any other instrument
issued by a bank or financial institution;

11



Key Information Document
Date: February 11, 2025

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

General Information

Document

Corporate Guarantor
Hypothecated Assets
ICRA

Interest
Dates

Payment

Interest Rate/Coupon
Rate

Issue

Issue Closing Date

Issue Opening Date

Key Information

Document

Majority Debenture

Holders

Material Adverse

Effect

() any amount of any liability under any advanced or deferred purchase
agreement if one of the primary reasons behind the entry into such
agreement is to raise finance;

any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection
against or benefit from fluctuation in any rate or price (and, when
calculating the value of any derivative transaction, only the marked
to market value shall be taken into account); and

() the amount of any liability in respect of any indemnity (without double
counting) for any of the items referred to in paragraphs (a) to (k)
above.

means the General Information Document issued by the Issuer dated 02
August 2024 for the purpose of issue of the non-convertible securities on a
private placement basis in accordance with Applicable Laws.

Not Applicable

has the meaning given to it in the Section 3.15 (Issue Details).

shall mean ICRA Limited a company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 and validly existing under the Companies Act, 2013 having corporate
identification number L74999DL1991PLC042749 and its registered office at
B-710, Statesman House 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001,
India.

means the payment dates as specified in Annexure IV of this Key
Information Document.

Fixed interest at 12.00% (twelve-point zero zero percent) per annum payable
monthly from the Deemed Date of Allotment

means the private placement of the Debentures.

13 February 2025

13 February 2025

means this key information document dated 11 February 2025
supplementing the General Information Document which sets out the terms
and conditions for the issue and offer of the Debentures by the Issuer on a
private placement basis and contains the relevant information in this respect.

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more than
51% (Fifty one percent) of the value of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of
the Debentures.

means the effect or consequence of an event, circumstance, occurrence or
condition which has caused, as on the date of determination, or could
reasonably be expected to cause a material and adverse effect on: (i) the
financial condition, business or operation of the Company which is prejudicial
to the ability of the Company to perform its obligations under the Transaction
Documents; (ii) the rights or remedies of the Debenture Holders hereunder
or under any other Transaction Documents; (iii) the financial condition,
business or operation of the Company which is prejudicial to the ability of the
Company or any guarantor(s) to perform its respective obligations under the
Transaction Documents; or (iv) the ability of the Company or any guarantor(s)
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Monthly Hypothecated
Asset Report

Net Worth

Outstanding Amounts

Outstanding Principal
Amount

Payment Default

Private Placement
Offer cum Application
Letter/PPOAL

Purpose
Rating
Rating Agent

Record Date

Redemption Date/
Final Redemption Date

Redemption Payment

Register of Beneficial
Owners

R&T Agent/Registrar

to disburse new loans or from appointing third party or in house collection
teams; or (v) the legality, validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction
Documents.

has the meaning ascribed in the Deed of Hypothecation.

has the meaning given to it in the Act.

shall mean the Coupon, Default Interest, if any, additional interest, liquidated
damages (if any) payable in relation to the Debentures, costs, indemnities,
charges, expenses, fees (including the remuneration and expenses of the
Debenture Trustee, Rating Agent and the Receiver, attorneys etc. and), all
taxes, levies, cess including stamp duty and any/all other reasonable
amounts, costs, charges due and payable by the Issuer under the
Transaction Documents.

means, at any date, the principal amount outstanding under the Debentures.

means any event, act or condition which, with notice or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute an Event of Default under paragraph (i) under the section
named "Events of Default" under Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key
Information Document.

The offer cum application letter prepared in compliance with Section 42 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

means towards the onward lending purposes by the Issuer.

ICRA BBB (Stable) assigned by the Rating Agent.

means ICRA Limited, having its registered office at B-710, Statesman House,
148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-110001, India or such other rating
agency as acceptable to the Debenture Trustee/ Debenture Holders.

The date which is 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to the Final Redemption
date or Early Redemption date or interest payment date, as the case may be,
on which the determination of the persons entitled to receive Redemption
Amount including any/ interest amount, as the case may be, in respect of the
Debentures (i.e., persons whose names are registered in the register of
Debenture Holders or NSDL or CDSL records) shall be made.

means each of the final Redemption Date and the dates on which a
Redemption Payment is required to be made as more particularly set out in
Annexure IV this Key Information Document.

means the payment of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of the Debentures
on the Redemption Dates (including the Final Redemption Date) or any other
date in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed.

means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures maintained in the
records of the Depositories.

shall mean Bigshare Services Private Limited, a company incorporated and
validly existing under the Companies Act, 2013 with corporate identification
number U99999MH1994PTC076534 and having its registered office at 1st
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Secured Obligations

SEBI Listed NCD
Master Circular or
Listed NCDs Master
Circular

SEBI Debenture
Trustee Master
Circular/ Master
Circular for Debenture

Trustee

SEBI NCS
Regulations

Listing

SEBI Listed
Debentures Circulars
and Regulations
means

SEBI Merchant Banker
Regulations

SEBI Reduction in
Denomination of Debt
Securities Circular

Security Cover

Stock Exchange
Tangible Net Worth

Tier Il Capital

Transaction
Documents

Transaction Security
WDM
Wilful Defaulter

Floor, Bharat Tin Works Bldg., Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, India

shall mean the aggregate of the Outstanding Amounts and the Redemption
Amounts.

means the circular issued by SEBI bearing the reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2024/54 dated May 22, 2024 “Master Circular
for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt
Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial
Paper’, as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to time;

means the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD3/P/CIR/2024/46 dated May 16, 2024 on "Master Circular for Debenture
Trustees", as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to
time.

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended, modified,
supplemented or restated from time to time.

means collectively, Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, the Listed NCDs
Master Circular, SEBI NCS Regulations and the LODR Regulations (to the
extent applicable).

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers)
Regulations, 1992, as amended from time to time.

means the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/94 dated July 03, 2024 on "Reduction in denomination of
debt securities and non-convertible redeemable preference shares", as
amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to time.

has the meaning given to it in the Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key
Information Document.

shall mean BSE Limited.

shall mean, with respect to any person, the amount paid up on such person’s
issued equity share capital, compulsorily convertible preference share
capital, compulsorily convertible debentures and any amount standing to the
credit of its reserves, less equity or equity-like investments. goodwill, deferred
tax assets and other intangible assets.

has the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.

The documents executed or to be executed in relation to the issuance of the
Debentures as more particularly set out in Section 3.15 (/ssue Details) of this
Key Information Document.

has the meaning given to it in the Section 3.15 (Issue Details).

Wholesale Debt Market segment of the BSE.

Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any Bank or
financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines
on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes an
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I issuer whose director or promoter is categorized as such.
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SECTION 2: DISCLAIMERS

Please refer to Section 2 (NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS) of the General Information
Document for the disclaimers in respect of the issuance of Debentures.

DISCLAIMER BY SEBI

THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY SEBI NOR DOES
SEBI GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY THIS GENERAL INFORMATION
DOCUMENT. IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT FILING OF THE ISSUE
DOCUMENT TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) SHOULD NOT IN
ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED TO MEAN THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED
OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS
PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR
OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE ISSUE DOCUMENT. THE LEAD MANAGER(S) HAS CERTIFIED
THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE ISSUE DOCUMENT ARE GENERALLY ADEQUATE
AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE REGULATIONS. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO
FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN
THE PROPOSED ISSUE.
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SECTION 3: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES AND DISCLAIMERS

31 Expenses of the issue:

Percentage Percentage

Particulars of expenses of total of total issue
expenses size
Lead Manager Fees NA NA oNA
Underwriting Commission NA NA NA
Brokerage, selling commission and upload NA NA NA
fees
Fees payable to the registrar to the issue 21,500 6.03% 0.011%
Fees payable to the legal advisors 1,15,000 32.27% 0.058%
Advertising and marketing expenses NA NA NA
Fees payable to the regulators including stock 94,825 26.61% 0.047%
exchange
Expenses incurred on printing and NA NA NA
distribution of issue stationary
Any other fees, commission or payments NA NA NA
under whatsoever nomenclature
Fees Payable to Debenture Trustee 1,25,000 35.08% 0.063%
3.2 Issue schedule

PARTICULARS DATE

Issue Opening Date 13 February 2025

Issue Closing Date 13 February 2025

Pay In Date 14 February 2025

Deemed Date of Allotment 14 February 2025

Date of earliest closing of the issue, if any | NA

3.3 Details of specific entities in relation to the current Issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures:
S. No. | Name Details
1. Legal Counsel

VERIST LAW

Verist Law

Address: The Empire Business Centre, 414 Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013, Maharashtra

Website: https://www.veristlaw.in/

Email: srishti.ojha@veristlaw.com

Telephone Number: +91 2266 907 368

Contact Person: Srishti Ojha
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Merchant banker and
Co-managers to the
issues

Not Applicable

Sponsor Bank

Not applicable as this is a private placement of non-convertible
debentures

Guarantor

Not Applicable

o

Arrangers, if any

Not Applicable

Debenture Trustee:

Name: Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Address: 5W, 5th Floor, The Metropolitan, Bandra Kurla
Complex,Bandra (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051

Logo:

BEACON

Telephone Number: 022-46060278

Email address: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in

Contact person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni

Register and Transfer
Agent

Name: Bigshare Services Private Limited

Address: 18t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Bldg., Opp. Vasant Oasis,
Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400059

ﬂ Bigskare Services Pvt. Lid
Logo:

Telephone Number: 022 6263 8200
Fax number: NA
Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/

Email address: mukesh@bigshareonline.com

Credit Rating Agency

Name: ICRA Analytics Limited
Address: 17t Floor, Plot G-1, Infinity Benchmark, Block GP,
Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata, West Bengal - 700091

[CRA

ARALYTICS
Logo: T

Telephone Number: +91-22-61796300

Email address: ashwini.kumar@icraanalytics.com

Contact person: Mr. Ashwini Kumar

Auditors

Logo: NA

Name: Serva Associates, Chartered Accountants

18




Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Address: 011-1014, 10th Floor, R G Trade Tower, Netaji
Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi - 110034

Website: www.serva.in
Email address: info@servamail.in
Telephone Number: +919999099891

Contact Person: Mr. Nitin Jain, Partner
Peer Review no.: 015024

10.

Valuation Agency Not Applicable

34

About the Issuer
Overview and a brief summary of the business activities of the issuer:
Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information Document.
Structure of the group
Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information Document.
A brief summary of the business activities of the subsidiaries of the issuer:
Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information Document.

Details of branches or units where the issuer carries on its business activities, if any
may be provided in the form of a static Quick Response (QR) code and web link.

If the issuer provides the details of branches or units in the form of a static QR code
and web link, the details of the said branches or units shall be provided to the
debenture trustee as well and kept available for inspection as specified in Section
3.14 (k) (g) of this Key Information Document. A checklist item in the ‘Security and
Covenant Monitoring System’ shall also be included for providing information about
branches or units of the issuer to the debenture trustee and confirmation of the same
by the debenture trustee.

Not Applicable

Subsidiary details:

Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information Document.
Use of proceeds (in the order of priority for which the said proceeds will be utilized):
(i) purpose of the placement; (ii) break-up of the cost of the project for which the
money is being raised; (iii) means of financing for the project; (iv) proposed

deployment status of the proceeds at each stage of the project.

Not Applicable
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3.5 Financial Information

(a)

(b)

The audited financial statements (i.e. profit and loss statement, balance sheet
and cash flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a
period of three completed years, which shall not be more than six months old
from the date of the issue document or issue opening date, as applicable. Such
financial statements shall be should be audited and certified by the statutory
auditor(s) who holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).

Please refer to ANNEXURE | (Last Audited Financial Statements) of the General
Information Document for the audited financial statements of the Issuer for a period
of March 2022, March 2023, March 2024 and limited review of unaudited financial
statements of the Issuer for a period of December 31, 2024.

However, if the Issuer being a listed REIT/listed InvIT has been in existence for a
period less than three completed years and historical financial statements of such
REIT/InvIT are not available for some portion or the entire portion of the reporting
period of three years and interim period, then the combined financial statements
need to be disclosed for the periods when such historical financial statements are
not available.

Provided that, issuers whose non-convertible securities are listed as on the date of
filing of the offer document or placement memorandum, may provide only a web-link
and a static quick response code of the audited financial statements in the offer
document or placement memorandum subject to the following conditions:

i.  Such listed issuers shall disclose a comparative key operational and financial
parameter on a standalone and consolidated basis, certified by the statutory
auditor(s) who holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the last three completed
years in the offer document.

i. The scanning of such static quick response code or clicking on the weblink,
shall display the audited financial statements for last three financial years of
such issuer on the website of the stock exchange where such data is hosted.

Not applicable

Listed issuers (whose debt securities or specified securities are listed on
recognised stock exchange(s)) in compliance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, may disclose unaudited financial information for the stub
period in the format as prescribed therein with limited review report in the
General Information Document and Key Information Document, as filed with
the stock exchanges, instead of audited financial statements for stub period,
subject to making necessary disclosures in this regard in General Information
Document and Key Information Document including risk factors.

Please refer to Annexure IX for the limited review financial statements for the period
ending Sept 30, 2024.
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(c) Issuers other than unlisted REITs / unlisted InvITs desirous of issuing debt
securities on private placement basis and who are in existence for less than
three years may disclose financial statements mentioned at (a) above for such
period of existence, subject to the following conditions:

i.  Theissue is made on the EBP platform irrespective of the issue size; and
i. Theissue is open for subscription only to Qualified Institutional Buyers.

Not applicable

(d) The above financial statements shall be accompanied with the Auditor’s
Report along with the requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

(e) Key Operational and Financial Parameters on a consolidated basis and
standalone basis in respect of the financial information provided under

clauses (a) to (c) above:

Particulars Dec-24 Sep-24 FY 2023- FY 2022- FY 2021-
(Provisional) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and 8.04 9.65 12.86 - 0.13
Equipment
Financial Assets 1,69,851.21 163711.43 1,49,460.44 | 1,40,012.91 60,844.88
Non-financial 3,758.34 4124.08 3573.14 3,338.46 2,452.53
Assets excluding
property, plant and
equipment
Total Assets 1,73,617.59 | 1,67,845.16 1,53,046.44 | 1,43,351.37 63,297.54
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative - 0 86.11
financial
instruments
-Trade Payables 1,158.69 1077.82 1,128.28 513.66 243.58
-Debt Securities 26,550.74 22297.00 17,390.17 32,482.13 6,000.00
-Borrowings (other 73,036.95 73814.68 70,132.31 66,236.50 27,741.99
than Debt
Securities)
-Subordinated 0
liabilities
-Other financial 1,324.21 1293.35 1,446.57 1,265.83 921.09
liabilities
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Non-Financial

Liabilities

-Current tax 2,867.50 2786.13 3,033.32 1,062.39 173.13

liabilities (net)

-Provisions 614.97 931.78 552.83 360.67 122.37

-Deferred tax 0 290.38 -

liabilities (net)

-Other non-

financial liabilities

Equity (Equity 68,064.53 65645.39 59,276.85 41,139.81 28,095.38

Share Capital and

Other Equity)

Total Liabilities 1,73,617.59 167846.16 1,53,046.43 | 1,43,351.37 63,297.54

and Equity

Revenue from 53,697.56 35539.02 78,463.04 21,315.26 4,825.54

operations

Other Income 2,435.20 1539.048 2,229.45 377.04 117.71

Total Income 56,132.76 37078.07 80,692.48 21,692.30 4,943.25

Total Expense 48,553.77 29276.79 73,491.71 17,710.61 4,147.50

Profit after tax for 7,578.99 5613.07 6,882.13 2,587.40 648.57

the year

Other -11.29 2.260 -11.74 3.05 7.18

Comprehensive

income

Total 7,567.70 5610.81 6,870.39 2,590.45 655.75

Comprehensive

Income

Earnings per 2.40 1.78 24 1.1 0.63

equity share

(Basic)

Earnings per 2.40 1.78 24 1.1 0.63

equity share

(Diluted)

Cash Flow Dec 24 Sep 24 Mar 24 Mar 23 Mar 22
Provisional | Audited Audited Audited Audited

Net cash from / NA NA 34,920.26 -45,772.02 | -34,980.45

used in (-)

operating activities

Net cash from / NA NA 739.78 6,128.02 -1,912.71

used in (-)

investing activities
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Net cash from /
used in ()
financing activities

NA

NA

-60,585.63

62,983.54

41,922.29

Net
increase/decrease
(-) in cash and
cash equivalents

NA

NA

-24,925.59

23,339.54

5,029.14

Cash and cash
equivalents as per
Cash Flow
Statement as at
year end

NA

NA

3,786.25

28,997.50

5,657.97

Additional
Information

Net worth

68,064.53

65645.39

55,384.77

39,586.45

27,470.83

Cash and cash
equivalents

8,127.44

10710.64

2,116.15

28,997.50

5,657.97

Loans

1,60,379.26

141836.72

1,42,052.21

1,06,942.56

51,516.28

Loans (Principal
Amount)

1,50,379.26

147664.37

1,42,052.21

1,06,942.56

51,516.28

Total Debts to
Total Assets

57.36%

57.26%

57.19%

68.86%

53.31%

Interest Income

42,040.21

27882.34

64,146.60

18,673.64

4,821.76

Interest Expense

10,625.41

7095.28

14,985.09

7,623.09

2,109.55

Impairment on
Financial
Instruments

27,212.50

17177.98

42,568.19

4,718.57

105.43

Bad Debts to
Loans

% Stage 3 Loans
on Loans (Principal
Amount)

4.38%

4.46%

4.98%

93,903.90

% Net Stage 3
Loans on Loans
(Principal Amount)

2.17%

2.48%

2.27%

Tier | Capital
Adequacy Ratio
(%)

32.11%

33.24%

30.40%

33.92%

43.29%

Tier Il Capital
Adequacy Ratio

(%)

1.25%

1.25%

1.25%

(INR in lakhs)

(f) Details of any other contingent liabilities of the issuer based on the last audited
financial statements including amount and nature of liability. As Given Below.
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Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information
Document.

(g) The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer
along with details of the counterparty (viz. name and nature of the
counterparty, whether a subsidiary, joint venture entity, group company etc.)
on behalf of whom it has been issued

Not Applicable

3.6 Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company:

Before the issue 1.43
After the issue 1.46

Note- Net worth figure has been taken as on December 31, 2024 end.
Borrowings figure has been taken as on date.

Calculations
Prior to issue, debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as follows:

Debt 975.28
Equity 680.64
Debt/Equity 143

Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as follows:

Debt 995.28
Equity 680.64
Debt/Equity 1.46
3.7 Where the Issuer is a non-banking finance company or housing finance company, the

following disclosures on Asset Liability Management (ALM) shall be provided for the
latest audited financials:

Details with regard to lending done out of the issue proceeds of earlier

issuances of debt securities (whether public issue or private placement) by
NBFC including details regarding the following

(a) Lending Policy: Should contain overview of origination, risk management,
monitoring and collections:

Please refer to the lending policy set out in Annexure X.

(b) Classification of Loans given to associate or entities related to Board, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior management, promoters, etc.:

Not Applicable
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(c) Classification of loans according to type of loans, denomination of loan
outstanding by loan to value, sectors, denomination of loans outstanding by
ticket size, geographical classification of borrowers, maturity profile etc.:

Please refer to paragraph (J) below of this table below.

(d) Aggregated exposure to the top 20 borrowers with respect to the
concentration of advances, exposures to be disclosed in the manner as
prescribed by RBI in its stipulations on Corporate Governance for NBFCs or
HFCs, from time to time;

As on Sep 30, 2024 — INR 173.52 Lakhs

(e) Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing assets (NPA) in
accordance with RBI stipulations:

Please refer to paragraph (K) of this table below

B. Details of borrowings made by NBFC

(a) A portfolio summary with regard to industries/ sectors to which borrowings
have been made:

Please refer to paragraph (J) in this table below including sub-paragraph (c)
therein.

(b) NPA exposures of the Issuer for the last three financial years (both gross
and net exposures) and provisioning made for the same as per the last

audited financial statements of the Issuer:

Please refer to paragraph (K) of this table below.

(c) Quantum and percentage of secured vis-a-vis unsecured borrowings made;
and
Type of Borrowings Outstanding as at December %
31, 2024 (INR) (in Crore)
Secured Borrowings 981.29 99.36%
Unsecured Borrowings 6.33 0.64%
Total 987.62 100.00%

C. Details of change in shareholding

(a) Any change in promoters’ holdings during the preceding financial year
beyond the threshold, as prescribed by RBI:

Nil

. Disclosure of Assets Under Management

|
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(a) Segment wise breakup:

Please refer to sub-paragraph (c) of paragraph (J) in this table below.
(b) Type of Loans

Please refer to sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph (J) in this table below.

E Details of borrowers

(a) Geographical location wise

Please refer to sub-paragraph (e) of paragraph (J) in this table below.

F. Details of Gross NPA

(a) Segment wise:
Please refer to sub-paragraph (c) of paragraph (K) in this table below.

G. Details of Assets and Liabilities

(a) Residual maturity profile wise into several bucket:

Please refer to paragraph (L) in this table below.

Additional details of loans made by Company where it is a housing finance

company

Given that the Issuer is not a housing finance company, this is not applicable.

Disclosure of latest ALM statements to stock exchange

Please refer to the ALM statements set out in Annexure XI.

J Classification of loans according to

(a) Type of | Details of types of loans

Loans: Types of loans As at December 31,
2024 (INR) (in
Crore)
1 Secured 0
2 Unsecured
- | On book assets under management 1,534.10
(on-book AUM)
- | Off book assets under management 143.53
(off-book AUM)
- | Total assets under management 1,677.63
(Total AUM)AM
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*Information required at borrower level (and not by loan account as
customer may have multiple loan accounts); "Issuer is also required to
disclose off balance sheet items.

(b) Denomin | Details of LTV

ation of

loans Sl. No. LTV (at the time of origination) Percentage of

outstandi AUM

ng by 1 Upto 40% NA

loan-to- 2 40-50% NA

value: 3 50-60% NA
4 60-70% NA
5 70-80% NA
6 80-90% NA
7 >90% NA

Total NA
(c) Sector Details of sectoral exposure
Exposure

Sl. No. Segment-wise break-up of AUM Percentage of
AUM
1 Retail
A Mortgages (home loans and loans | Not Applicable
against property)
B Gold loans Not Applicable
C Vehicle finance Not Applicable
D MFI Not Applicable
E MSME Not Applicable
F Capital market funding (loans against | Not Applicable
shares, margin funding)
G Others 100%
2 Wholesale Not Applicable
A Infrastructure Not Applicable
B Real estate (including builder loans) | Not Applicable
C Promoter funding Not Applicable
D Any other sector (as applicable) Not Applicable
E Others Not Applicable
Total Not Applicable

(d) Denomin

ation of
loans
outstandi
ng by
ticket
size*:

Details of outstanding loans category wise

Ticket size (at the time of

Percentage of

origination) AUM
1 Up to Rs. 1 lakh 65.55%
2 Rs. 1-5 lakh 34.45%
3 Rs. 5-10 lakh Not Applicable
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4 Rs. 10 - 25 lakh Not Applicable
5 Rs. 25 - 50 lakh Not Applicable
6 Rs. 50 lakh — 1 crore Not Applicable
7 Rs. 1 -5 crore Not Applicable
8 Rs. 5 - 25 crore Not Applicable
9 Rs. 25 - 100 crore Not Applicable
10 >Rs. 100 crore Not Applicable
Total 100%

* Information required at the borrower level (and not by loan account as a
customer may have multiple loan accounts);

(e) Geograp | Top 5 states borrower wise

hical

- Sl. No. Top 5 states Percentage of AUM

classifica

tion of 1 Maharashtra 11.72%

:_""°‘”e’ 2 | Uttar Pradesh 8.88%

3 Karnataka 8.00%

4 Tamil Nadu 7.24%

5 Gujarat 7.86%

Total 43.71%

Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing assets (NPA) in

accordance with RBI stipulations

(a) Movement | [Fyi—g—" gross NPA* Rs. crore
of Gross

NPA Opening gross NPA 73.23
- Additions during the year 240.16
- Reductions during the year 246.40
Closing balance of gross NPA 66.99

*Please indicate the gross NPA recognition policy (Day’s Past Due):
180 days

(b) Zlfovement Movement of provisions for NPA Rs. crore

provisions| | Opening balance
for NPA

- Provisions made during the year
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- Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions
Closing balance
(c) Sc.egment Sl. No. Segment-wise gross NPA Gross NPA (%)
wise gross
NPA 1 Retail
A Mortgages (home loans and loans Not Applicable
against property)
B Gold loans Not Applicable
C Vehicle finance Not Applicable
D MFI Not Applicable
E MSME Not Applicable
F Capital market funding (loans against Not Applicable
shares, margin funding)
G Others 4.38%
2 Wholesale
A Infrastructure Not Applicable
B Real estate (including builder loans) Not Applicable
C Promoter funding Not Applicable
D Any other sector (as applicable) Not Applicable
E Others Not Applicable
Total Not Applicable

Residual maturity profile of assets and liabilities (in line with the RBI format):

Residual (as per Audited Financial as on Dec 31, 2024) INR (in Crore)
maturity Categ Up >1 >2 >3 >6 >1

profile of mon mon mon

assets and ths ths ths

liabilities -2 -3 -6

mon mon mon
ths ths ths

Deposit

Advan
ces 303 | 107. | 105. | 273. | 432. | 397 | 0.5 1,62
.61 95 31 42 34 .46 2 0.62

Invest
ments - - - - - - - - -
Borrow
ings 26. |30.1 | 236 | 61.1 | 137. | 152 | 10. 441.
44 0 6 9 62 .32 | 00 32

FCA*

FCL*
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- - - -~ [ 241.]306 | - | - | 548
93 | .20 13

*FCA — Foreign Currency Assets; FCL — Foreign Currency Liabilities.

3.8 A brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

(@)

Details of share capital;

Details of Share Capital as on last quarter ended on December 31, 2024 is given
below:

Amount (INR)

Share Capital (Lakhs)
Authorised

Equity Share Capital [40,000]
Preference [0]
TOTAL [40,000]

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Equity Shares [31,599.40]
Preference Shares [0]
TOTAL [31,599.40]

(b)

(e)

(f)

Changes in Issuer’s capital structure;

Change in the capital structure as on last quarter ended on December 31, 2024, for
the preceding three financial years and current financial year : No Change

Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information
Document

Equity Share Capital of the Company;

Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information
Document.

Details of of any Acquisition or Amalgamation;

Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information
Document.

Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction;

Please refer to Section 5 (Regulatory Disclosures) of the General Information
Document.

Details of the shareholding of the Company;
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Details of the shareholding of the Company as at the latest quarter end, i.e.,
December 31, 2024, as per the format specified under the listing regulations: -

Sr. Name of the Shareholders Total No. of No. of Total Shareholding

No Equity shares in as % of total number
Shares demat form of equity shares.

1 Morus Technologies Pte Ltd 31,59,93,898 | 31,59,93,898 99.99%

3.9

(9) Details of the shareholding of the Company;

The list of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on the latest quarter
ended December 31, 2024;

Total Shareholding

Total No. of | No. of
Sr. . . |as % of total
Name of the Shareholders Equity shares in .
No number of equity
Shares demat form
shares.
1 Morus Technologies Pte Ltd | 315993898 | 315993898 99.99%

Shruti Aggarwal

0,
2 (on Behalf of Morus 100 100 0.01%

Technologies Pte Ltd)

DETAILS OF THE BORROWING OF THE ISSUER

(a) Details of Outstanding Secured Loan Facilities (as on December 31, 2024):
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Name of | Type of | Amount | Principa | Repaym | Security | Credit Asset
lender Facility | Sanctio | I ent date Rating, | Classifi

ned (in | Amount |/ if cation

Rs outstan | Schedul applicab

Lakhs) ding (in | e le

Rs.
Lakhs)
Ambit Finvest | Term 31-Jan- 115% NA Standard
Pvt Ltd-TL4 Loan 13.50 1.77 25
Ambit Finvest | Term 07-Mar- 115% NA Standard
Pvt Ltd-TL4 T2 | Loan 13.50 1.22 25
Ambit Finvest | Term 31-Aug- | 120% NA Standard
Pvt Ltd-TL5 Loan 12.00 9.16 25
Apollo Finvest | Term 22-Mar- | 117% NA Standard
India Ltd TL-1 Loan 5.00 1.32 25
AU Small | Bank 30-Jul- 110% NA Standard
Finance Bank- | Term 20.00 13.33 25
TL6 Loan
Grow Money | Term 10-Jan- 110% NA Standard
Capital Pvt | Loan 10.00 0.44 25
Ltd-TL5-T2
Grow Money | Term 16-Dec- | 110% NA Standard
Capital Pvt | Loan 10.00 5.00 25
Ltd-TL6-T1
Hinduja Term 30-Mar- | 110% NA Standard
Leyland Loan 15.00 2.08 25
Finance Ltd-
TL3
ICICI Bank | Bank 30-Jun- 125% NA Standard
Ltd-TL1 Term 10.00 2.50 25
Loan
ICICI Bank | Bank 29-Aug- | 125% NA Standard
Ltd-TL2 Term 5.40 4.50 26
Loan

Indian Bank 27-Sep- | 125% NA Standard
Overseas Term 15.00 13.13 26
Bank Loan TL- | Loan
1
MAS Financial | Term 22-Oct- 110% NA Standard
Service  Ltd- | Loan 7.50 6.88 26
TL26
MAS Financial | Term 22-Oct- 110% NA Standard
Service  Ltd- | Loan 7.50 6.88 26
TL27
MAS Financial | Term 05-Jan- 110% NA Standard
Service  Ltd- | Loan 7.50 7.50 27
TL-28
MAS Financial | Term 25-Mar- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 5.00 0.63 25
TL13
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MAS Financial | Term 25-Mar- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 5.00 0.63 25

TL14

MAS Financial | Term 25-Mar- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 5.00 0.63 25

TL15

MAS Financial | Term 25-Jun- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 7.50 1.88 25

TL16

MAS Financial | Term 25-Jun- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 7.50 1.88 25

TL17

MAS Financial | Term 05-Aug- | 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 10.00 3.33 25

TL18

MAS Financial | Term 31-Oct- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 10.00 4.58 25

TL19

MAS Financial | Term 31-Jan- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 5.00 2.92 26

TL20

MAS Financial | Term 18-Mar- | 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 5.00 3.13 26

TL-21

MAS Financial | Term 22-Apr- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 10.00 6.67 26

TL-22

MAS Financial | Term 30-Apr- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 7.50 5.31 26

TL-23

MAS Financial | Term 29-Jul- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 10.00 8.33 26

TL-24

MAS Financial | Term 29-Jul- 110% NA Standard
Services Ltd- | Loan 7.50 6.25 26

TL-25

MAS Financial | PTC 17-Feb- | 110% A (SO) Standard
Services_PTC 13.72 10.44 26

Moneywise Term 28-Jun- 110% NA Standard
Financial Loan 10.00 2.00 25

Services  Pvt

Ltd-TL-4

Moneywise Term 30-Nov- | 110% NA Standard
Financial Loan 10.00 3.67 25

Services  Pvt

Ltd-TL-4B

Morus ECB 25-Aug- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 79.77 79.77 25

Pte Ltd-1
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Morus ECB 25-Sep- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 41.78 41.78 27
Pte Ltd-10
Morus ECB 27-Dec- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 44 .44 44.44 27
Pte Ltd-11
Morus ECB 15-Sep- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 79.47 79.47 25
Pte Ltd-2
Morus ECB 30-Dec- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 82.69 82.69 25
Pte Ltd-3
Morus ECB 02-Nov- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 41.60 41.60 26
Pte Ltd-4
Morus ECB 02-Nov- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 24.93 2493 26
Pte Ltd-5
Morus ECB 08-Jan- 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 24 .91 2491 27
Pte Ltd-6
Morus ECB 22-Mar- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 41.64 41.64 27
Pte Ltd-7
Morus ECB 07-Jul- 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 41.69 41.69 27
Pte Ltd-8
Morus ECB 02-Sep- | 117.50% | NA Standard
Technologies 26.00 26.00 27
Pte Ltd-9
Northern Arc | Term 30-Jul- 110% NA Standard
Capital Ltd TL- | Loan 10.00 6.85 25
10
State Bank of | Bank 30-Sep- | 115% NA Standard
Mauritius-TL1 | Term 15.00 11.25 25

Loan
Suryoday Bank 28-Apr- 110% NA Standard
Bank TL-1 Term 10.00 5.20 25

Loan
Suryoday Bank 05-Jan- 110% NA Standard
Bank TL-2 Term 10.00 10.00 26

Loan
Tata  Capital | Term 30-May- | 120% NA Standard
Financial Loan 10.00 6.66 25
Services Ltd-
TL3
Western Term 01-Apr- 110% NA Standard
Capital Loan 9.00 4.50 25
Advisors  Pvt
Ltd-TL7
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Western Term
Capital Loan
Advisors  Pvt
Ltd-TL8

3.00

1.50

01-Apr-
25

110%

NA

Standard

(b)

Details of Outstanding Unsecured Loan Facilities (as on December 31, 2024);

Name of lender Type of | Amount Principal Repaymen | Credit
facility Sanctione | Amount t date or | Rating, if
d (in Rs. | outstandin | Schedule applicable
Lakhs) g
(in Rs.
Lakhs)
Positive  Moves India ICD 3.00 3.00 10-Dec-25 NA
Consulting Pvt. Ltd-TL-15
Fusion Corporate ICD 4.00 2.67 25-Aug-25 NA
Solutions Pvt. Ltd-TL6
Positive  Moves India ICD 10.00 3.33 25-Jan-25 NA
Consulting Pvt. Ltd-TL-14

(c)

Details of Outstanding Non-Convertible Securities (as on December 31, 2024);

Seri | ISIN Ten | Coup | Amou | Date of | Redempt | Cred | Secured | Securi
es of or on nt Allotm | ion Date | it / ty
NCS ent Rati | Unsecur
ng ed
1 INEOBXPO7 | 24 14.00 | 25.00 | 31-Dec- | 31-Dec- ICRA | Secured | 115%
274 % 24 26 BBB
Stabl
e
2 INEO8XPO7 | 18 10.01 | 50.00 | 17-Oct- | 17-Apr-26 | ICRA | Secured | 110%
266 % 24 BBB
Stabl
e
3 INEOBXPO7 | 17 12.50 | 10.00 19-Feb- ICRA | Secured | 110%
241 % 08-Oct- | 26 BBB
24 Stabl
e
4 INEO8XPO7 | 18 10.01 | 50.00 | 22-Aug- | 14-Feb- ICRA | Secured | 110%
258 % 24 26 BBB
Stabl
e
5 INEO8XPO7 | 18 12.50 | 6.00 19-Aug- | 19-Feb- ICRA | Secured | 110%
241 % 24 26 BBB
Stabl
e
6 INEO8XPO7 | 18 10.01 | 30.00 | 15-dul- | 14-Jan- ICRA | Secured | 110%
233 % 24 26 BBB
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Stabl
e
7 INEO8BXPO7 | 18 10.01 | 40.00 | 21-dun- | 21-Dec- ICRA | Secured | 110%
233 % 24 25 BBB
Stabl
e
8 INEO8XPO7 | 30 11.90 | 20.00 | 03-Jun- | 30-Nov- ICRA | Secured | 110%
217 % 24 26 BBB
Stabl
e
9 INEO8XPO7 | 66 12.00 | 10.00 | 03-Jun- | 30-Nov- ICRA | Secured | 110%
225 % 24 29 BBB
Stabl
e
10 INEO8XPO7 | 13 12.00 | 5.00 22- 20-May- ICRA | Secured | 110%
209 % May-24 | 25 BBB
Stabl
e
11 INEO8XPO7 | 12 13.00 | 5.00 22-Apr- | 22-Apr-25 | ICRA | Secured | 110%
191 % 24 BBB
Stabl
e
12 INEO8XPO7 | 15 11.50 | 20.00 | 08-Dec- | 08-Mar- ICRA | Secured | 110%
175 % 23 25 BBB
Stabl
e
13 INEO8BXPO7 | 18 10.01 | 40.00 | 24-Jul- | 21-Jan- ICRA | Secured | 110%
159 % 23 25 BBB
Stabl
e
14 INEO8BXPO7 | 18 10.01 | 20.00 | 09-Aug- | 12-Jan- ICRA | Secured | 110%
159 % 23 25 BBB
Stabl
e
15 INEO8XPO7 | 24 14.00 | 25.00 | NA 31-Mar- ICRA | Secured | 110%
100 % 25 BBB
Stabl
e
(d) Details of Outstanding commercial papers as on the preceding quarter (as on
December 31, 2024): - Nil
(e) List of top 10 holders of non-convertible securities in terms of value (as on
December 31, 2024);
Sr. No | Name of Holders Category | Face value of | Holding as a % of
of holder | holding total outstanding

non-convertible
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securities of the
issuer
1 S K FINANCE LIMITED Pvt Ltd 1,00,000 22.2%
2 Trifecta Venture Debt Fund AIF 1,00,000 9.4%
1
3 MAS FINANCIAL Pvt Ltd 1,00,000 71%
SERVICES LTD
4 HARITA SRINIVASAN Individual 1,00,000 5.6%
PRIVATE LIMITED
5 VIVRITI EMERGING AIF 1,00,000 4.5%
CORPORATE BOND FUND
6 PACE FINANCIAL Pvt Ltd 1,00,000 2.9%
INVESTMENT ADVISER
PRIVATE LIMITED
7 INCRED WEALTH AND Pvt Ltd 1,00,000 1.9%
INVESTMENT SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED
8 PACE FINANCIAL TRESOR | Puvt Ltd 1,00,000 1.1%
PRIVATE LIMITED
9 CREDAVENUE Pvt Ltd 1,00,000 1.0%
SECURITIES PRIVATE
LIMITED
10 BHAVESH GUPTA Individual 10,000 0.9%
() List of top 10 holders of commercial papers in terms of value (in cumulative
basis) (as on December 31, 2024); -
Nil
(9) Details of the bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing (if any, including
hybrid debt like Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), Optionally
Convertible Debentures/ Preference Shares) from financial institutions or
financial creditors.
Name of | Type of | Amount Principal Redemptio | Credi | Secured / | Securit
Party (in | Facility / | Sanctione | Amount n Date t Unsecure |y
case of | Instrume | d/Issue outstandin Ratin | d
facility)/ nt g g
Name of
Instrume
nt
N.A.

(h)

The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer
along with name of the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, joint venture
entity, group company, etc.) on behalf of whom it has been issued, contingent
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liability including debt service reserve account guarantees/ any put option etc.
Details of any outstanding borrowing taken / debt securities issued for
consideration other than cash. This information shall be disclosed whether
such borrowing / debt securities have been taken / issued: (i) in whole or part,
(ii) at a premium or discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option or not:

NIL

3.10 Consent of directors, auditors, bankers to issue, solicitors or advocates to the issue,
legal advisors to the issue, lead managers to the issue, Registrar to the Issue, and
lenders (if required, as per the terms of the agreement) and experts.

Parties Consent

Directors Please refer Annexure V: Board Resolution in respect of the
resolutions passed at the meeting of the board of directors of
the Issuer and at the meeting of working committee of the
board of directors of the Issuer.

Auditors As the Debentures will be issued by way of private placement
to identified investors in accordance with the process
prescribed by SEBI, other than audited financials as set out
in Annexure IX: Financial Statements no auditor’s report is
being obtained in respect of this issue of Debentures, the
Issuer believes that no specific consent from the lenders of
the Issuer is required.

Bankers As the Debentures will be issued by way of private placement
to identified investors in accordance with the process
prescribed by SEBI, no bankers have been appointed in
respect of such issue of Debentures

Debenture Trustee Copy of the Debenture Trustee consent letter has been set
out in Annexure Il of this Key Information Document

Solicitors / Advocates Not applicable

Solicitors / Advocates/ | The company has appointed the legal counsel to the issue
Legal Advisors vide board resolution. Please refer to Annexure V: Board
Resolution of this Key Information Document.

Registrar Copy of the consent letter of the registrar and transfer agent
has been set out in Annexure VIII of this Key Information
Document

Lenders of the Issuer The Issuer believes that no specific consent from the lenders

of the Issuer is required.

Experts Consent of the experts as mentioned above has been
obtained to the extent applicable.

3.11  The names of the debenture trustees(s), a statement to the effect that the debenture
trustee has consented to its appointment along with a copy of the agreement executed
by the debenture trustee with the issuer in accordance with regulation 13 of the
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Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 made
accessible through a web-link or a static quick response code displayed in the issue
document.

Beacon trusteeship Limited has been appointed as Debenture Trustee for the proposed
Issue. The Debenture Trustee has given their consent to the Issuer for its appointment under
the Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Issue And Listing Of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended up to date, and a copy of the consent letter is
enclosed as Annexure Il to this Key Information Document. The Company will enter into a
Debenture Trustee Agreement/ Debenture Trust Deed, inter-alga, specifying the powers,
authorities and obligations of the Company and the Debenture Trustee in respect of the
Debenture. The Debenture Trustee Agreement is enclosed as Annexure Xl to this Key
Information Document.

The Debenture Holders shall, by signing the Application Form and without any further act or
deed, be deemed to have irrevocably given their consent to and authorized the Debenture
Trustee or any of their Agents or authorized officials to do, inter cilia, all such acts, deeds
and things necessary in respect of or relating to the security to be created for securing the
Debentures being offered in terms of the Key Information Document. All rights and remedies
under the Debenture Trust Deed / Debenture Trustee Agreement and/or other security
documents shall rest in and be exercised by the Debenture Trustee without having it referred
to the Debenture holders. Any payment made by the Company to the Debenture Trustee on
behalf of the Debenture holder(s) shall discharge the Company to that extent to the
Debenture holder(s). No Debenture holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the
Company unless the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to proceed, fails to do so.

Company reserves the rights to appoint any other SEBI registered Trustee.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document /
letter with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document
does not contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee
and receipt of payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be
disclosed in the General Information Document.

Not Applicable

Disclosure of Cash flow with date of interest/dividend/ redemption payment as per day
count convention

(a) The day count convention for dates on which the payments in relation to the
non-convertible securities which need to be made:

Coupon and all other charges shall accrue based on actual/actual day count
convention in accordance with Chapter Il (Day count convention, disclosure of cash
flows and other disclosures in the offer document) of the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/ 2024/54 dated May 22, 2024 on "Master Circular for
issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments,
Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper", as may be
amended and modified from time to time.

(b) Procedure and time schedule for allotment and issue of securities should be
disclosed;
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(@)

(b)

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(c)

The issue schedule for the issue of the Debentures as provided in Section 3.2 (/ssue
Schedule).

Please also refer as provided in Section 4 of this Key Information Document.

Cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities shall be mentioned
in the Key Information Document, by way of an illustration:

The cashflows emanating from the Debentures, by way of an illustration, are
set out in Annexure IV of this Key Information Document.

Other details:

Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve (“DRR”) - relevant legislations and
applicability:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company hereby agrees and undertakes that, if required under Applicable Law,
it will create a debenture redemption reserve ("DRR") in accordance with the
provisions of the Act (and the rules and regulations made thereunder) and the
guidelines issued by the relevant Governmental Authorities.

If any guidelines are formulated (or modified or revised) by any Governmental
Authority in respect of creation of the DRR prior to the Final Settlement Date, then
the Company shall comply with such guidelines and shall do all deeds, acts and
things as may be required by the Debenture Trustee in respect of the creation and
maintenance of the DRR.

Where applicable, the Company shall submit to the Debenture Trustee a certificate
duly certified by a chartered accountant certifying that the Company has transferred
the required amount to the DRR at the end of each Financial Year.

In addition to the above, to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Company
shall, in any Financial Year, in respect of any amounts of the Non-Convertible
Securities maturing in such Financial Year, invest or deposit amounts up to such
thresholds as may be prescribed by Applicable Law and in such form and manner
as prescribed therein and within the time periods prescribed therein.

Issue / instrument specific regulations - relevant details (Companies Act, Reserve
Bank of India guidelines etc.):

1)

The Debentures are governed by and will be construed in accordance with the Indian
Law. The Issuer, the Debentures and Issuer’s obligations under the Debentures shall,
at all times, be subject to the directions of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Securities &
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Stock Exchanges, Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws and regulations from time to time.

® Q0o

the Companies Act, 2013;

the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable and in force);

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;

the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014;

the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014;
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the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

the Depositories Act, 1996;

the SEBI NCS Regulations, as amended from time to time;

the SEBI LODR Regulations, as amended from time to time;

the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular, as amended from time to time;

the Listed Master Circular, as amended from time to time;

the SEBI Merchant Banker Regulations, as amended from time to time;

the SEBI Reduction in Denomination of Debt Securities Circular;

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations,
1993, as amended from time to time; and

all other relevant laws (including rules, regulations, clarifications, notifications,
directives, circulars as may be issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India,
the Reserve Bank of India and any statutory, regulatory, judicial, quasi-judicial
authority).

S3—xAT T ga ™

o

Over and above, the said debentures shall be subject to the term and conditions as contained
in the General Information Document/ Key Information Document, application form and the
Debenture Trust Deed / Trustee Agreement.

Default in payment:

In case of payment default, the Company agrees to pay an additional interest at the rate of
2.00% (two-point zero percent) per annum over and above the applicable Interest Rate on
the Outstanding Principal Amount in addition to any other charges payable to the Debenture
Holders from the date of the occurrence of the payment default until such payment default is
cured or the final redemption amount is paid (whichever is earlier).

Delay in listing:

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read together with
the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued on a private
placement basis prescribed in Chapter VIl (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities
issued on a private placement basis) of the SEBI Master Circular, the Issuer confirms that in
the event there is any delay in listing a of the Non-Convertible Securities beyond (T+3)
working days, wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date, the Company will (i) pay
to the Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the Interest
Rate, from the date of allotment of the Non-Convertible Securities until the listing of the Non-
Convertible Securities is completed; and (ii) be permitted to utilise the issue proceeds of its
2 (two) subsequent privately placed issuances of securities only after receiving final listing
approval from the stock exchange(s).

Delay in allotment of securities:

(i) The Issuer shall ensure that the Non-Convertible Securities are allotted to the
respective Debenture Holders and are credited into the demat accounts of the
relevant Debenture Holders within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing
Timelines Requirements.

(i) If the Issuer fails to allot the Non-Convertible Securities to the Applicants within 60
(sixty) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Application Monies ("Allotment
Period"), it shall repay the Application Monies to the Applicants within 15 (fifteen)
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calendar days from the expiry of the Allotment Period ("Repayment Period").

(iii) If the Issuer fails to repay the Application Monies within the Repayment Period, then
Issuer shall be liable to repay the Application Monies along with interest at the
applicable Interest Rate or 12% (twelve percent) per annum, whichever is higher,
from the expiry of the Allotment Period.

Issue details:
Please refer to Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key Information Document
Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 4 of this Key Information
Document.

Disclosure prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 but not contained in this schedule, if any:

All disclosures under Form No. PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 have been set out in Section 5.

Project details: gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project;
deadlines for completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if
any), schedule of implementation of the project: Not Applicable

The Issuer hereby undertakes that the assets on which the charge or security has been
created to meet the hundred percent security cover or higher security cover is free
from any encumbrances and in case the assets are encumbered, the permissions or
consent to create any further charge on the assets has been obtained from the existing
creditors to whom the assets are charged, prior to creation of the charge.

For security related details please refer to Section 3.15 of this Key Information Document.
The Issuer further undertakes that the charge created is equal to 1.1x of the security cover
and is free of encumbrances.

The issue document shall include the following other matters and reports, namely:

(a) If the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt securities/
non-convertible redeemable preference shares are or is to be applied directly or
indirectly:

(1) in the purchase of any business; or

(2) in the purchase of an interest in any business and by reason of that
purchase, or anything to be done in consequence thereof, or in connection
therewith, the company shall become entitled to an interest in either the
capital or profits and losses or both, in such business exceeding fifty per
cent. thereof, a report made by a chartered accountant (who shall be named
in the issue document) upon —
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1. the profits or losses of the business for each of the three financial years
immediately preceding the date of the issue of the issue document; and

2. the assets and liabilities of the business as on the latest date to which
the accounts of the business were made up, being a date not more than
one hundred and twenty days before the date of the issue of the issue
document.

Not Applicable

(b) In purchase or acquisition of any immoveable property including indirect
acquisition of immoveable property for which advances have been paid to third
parties, disclosures regarding:

(1)
(2)

()

(4)

the names, addresses, descriptions and occupations of the vendors;

the amount paid or payable in cash, to the vendor and where there is more
than one vendor, or the company is a sub-purchaser, the amount so paid or
payable to each vendor, specifying separately the amount, if any, paid or
payable for goodwill;

the nature of the title or interest in such property proposed to be acquired
by the company; and

the particulars of every transaction relating to the property completed within
the two preceding years, in which any vendor of the property or any person
who is or was at the time of the transaction, a promoter or a director or
proposed director of the company, had any interest, direct or indirect,
specifying the date of the transaction and the name of such promoter,
director or proposed director and stating the amount payable by or to such
vendor, promoter, director or proposed director in respect of the
transaction:

Provided that if the number of vendors is more than five, then the
disclosures as required above shall be on an aggregated basis, specifying
the immoveable property being acquired on a contiguous basis with mention
of the location/total area and the number of vendors from whom it is being
acquired and the aggregate value being paid. Details of minimum amount,
the maximum amount and the average amount paid/ payable should also be
disclosed for each immovable property.

Provided that the disclosures specified in sub-clauses (i) to (iv) above shall
be provided for the top five vendors on the basis of value viz. sale
consideration payable to the vendors.

Provided further that for the remaining vendors, such details may be
provided on an aggregated basis in the offer document, specifying number
of vendors from whom it is being acquired and the aggregate value being
paid; and the detailed disclosures as specified in sub-clauses (i) to (iv) above
may be provided by way of static QR code and web link. If the issuer provides
the said details in the form of a static QR code and web link, the same shall
be provided to the debenture trustee as well and kept available for inspection
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(c) If:
(1)

(2)

as specified in Section 3.14 (k) (g) of this Key Information Document. A
checklist item in the ‘Security and Covenant Monitoring System’ shall also
be included for providing the detailed disclosures, as specified in sub-
clauses (i) to (iv) above, to the debenture trustee and confirmation of the
same by the debenture trustee.

Not Applicable

the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt
securities/non-convertible redeemable preference shares are or are to be
applied directly or indirectly and in any manner resulting in the acquisition
by the company of shares in any other body corporate; and

by reason of that acquisition or anything to be done in consequence thereof
or in connection therewith, that body corporate shall become a subsidiary
of the company, a report shall be made by a Chartered Accountant (who shall
be named in the issue document) upon —

1. the profits or losses of the other body corporate for each of the three
financial years immediately preceding the issue of the issue document;
and

2. the assets and liabilities of the other body corporate as on the latest
date to which its accounts were made up.

Not Applicable

(d) The said report shall:

(1)

(2)

indicate how the profits or losses of the other body corporate dealt with by
the report would, in respect of the shares to be acquired, have concerned
members of the issuer company and what allowance would have been
required to be made, in relation to assets and liabilities so dealt with for the
holders of the balance shares, if the issuer company had at all material times
held the shares proposed to be acquired; and

where the other body corporate has subsidiaries, deal with the profits or
losses and the assets and liabilities of the body corporate and its

subsidiaries in the manner as provided in paragraph (c) (ii) above.

Not Applicable

(e) The broad lending and borrowing policy including summary of the key terms
and conditions of the term loans such as re-scheduling, prepayment, penalty,
default; and where such lending or borrowing is between the issuer and its
subsidiaries or associates, matters relating to terms and conditions of the term
loans including rescheduling, prepayment, penalty, default shall be disclosed.

Please refer to Annexure X: Lending Policy
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(f)

The aggregate number of securities of the issuer company and its subsidiary
companies purchased or sold by the promoter group, and by the directors of the
company which is a promoter of the issuer company, and by the directors of the
issuer company and their relatives, within six months immediately preceding the
date of filing the issue document with the Registrar of Companies, shall be
disclosed.

Not Applicable

(g) The matters relating to:

(1) Material contracts:

S. No. | Nature of Contract

1) Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.

2) Board Resolution dated 11 February 2025 authorizing the issue of Debentures offered
under the terms of this Key Information Document.

3) Shareholder Resolution under Section 180 (1) (a) and Section 180 (1) (c) dated 14 Nov
2024 authorizing the borrowing by the Company and the creation of security.

4) Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

5) Credit rating letter from the Rating Agency dated 15 January 2025.

6) Letter from Debenture Trustee dated 11 February 2025 giving its consent to act as
Debenture Trustee. ("Consent Letter").

7) Letter for Register and Transfer Agent dated 06 February 2025.

8) Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

9) Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
Transfer Agent and the NSDL/CDSL dated June 18, 2019.

10) | Debenture Trustee Agreement dated 11 February 2025 executed between the Issuer and
the Debenture Trustee.

11) | Debenture Trust Deed to be executed on or around the date of this Key Information
Document between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

12) | Deed of Hypothecation to be executed on or around the date of this Key Information
Document between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

(2) Time and place at which the contracts together with documents will be
available for inspection from the date of issue document until the date of
closing of subscription list.

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may
be inspected at the registered office of the Company between on 10.00 am to 4.00
pm on Business Days.

(h) Reference to the relevant page number of the audit report which sets out the

(i)

details of the related party transactions entered during the three financial years
immediately preceding the issue of issue document.

Please refer to Chapter C- Related Party Transaction, Page 105 of the General
Information Document.

The summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in
the three financial years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue
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1)

(k)

document, and of their impact on the financial statements and financial position
of the company, and the corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the
company for each of the said reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks.

Not Applicable.

The details of: any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted
under the securities laws or Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) or any previous
companies law; prosecutions filed, if any (whether pending or not); and fines
imposed or offences compounded, in the three years immediately preceding the
year of issue of issue document in the case of the issuer being a company and
all of its subsidiaries.

Not Applicable
The details of acts of material frauds committed against the issuer in the
preceding three financial years and current financial year, if any, and actions

taken by the issuer.

Not Applicable

U] Listing and Monitoring Requirements:

(a)

(b)

(c)

MONITORING

The Company will provide all such assistance to the Debenture Trustee as may be
required by it, to carry out the necessary due diligence and monitor the security cover
in the manner as may be specified by SEBI from time to time. In this regard, in
accordance with the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, the Company
undertakes and agrees to provide all relevant documents/ information, as applicable,
to enable the Debenture Trustee to submit the following reports/ certifications to BSE
in accordance with the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee:

RECOVERY EXPENSE FUND

The Company hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall, within the time period
prescribed under the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, establish, maintain
and utilize the Recovery Expense Fund in such manner/ mode as is prescribed
under the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, to enable the Debenture Trustee
to take prompt action in relation to the enforcement/legal proceedings under the
Transaction Documents.

The Company shall deposit cash or cash equivalents including bank guarantees
towards the contribution to Recovery Expense Fund with the designated stock
exchange and submit relevant documents evidencing the same to the Debenture
Trustee from time to time.

The Company shall ensure that any bank guarantees provided in respect of the
Recovery Expense Fund remain valid for a period of 6 (six) months following the
maturity date of the Debentures. The Company shall keep the bank guarantees in
force and renew the bank guarantees at least 7 (seven) working days before its
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(d)

(e)

iv.

(f)

expiry, failing which the designated stock exchange may invoke such bank
guarantee.

On the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Debenture Trustee shall obtain the
consent of Debenture Holders for enforcement/legal proceedings and shall inform
the designated stock exchange of such occurrence and the obtaining of any
consent in respect thereof (if any). The amount lying in the Recovery Expense
Fund may be released to the Debenture Trustee within such time period and such
manner as may be prescribed under the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee.
The Debenture Trustee shall keep a proper account of all expenses incurred out
of the funds received from Recovery Expense Fund towards enforcement/legal
proceedings under the Transaction Documents.

The amounts in the Recovery Expense Fund shall be refunded to the Company on
repayment/redemption of the Debentures, following which a "no objection
certificate" shall be issued by the Debenture Trustee(s) to the designated stock
exchange. The Debenture Trustee shall ensure that there is no default on any other
listed debt securities of the Company before issuing such "no objection certificate".

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE LODR REGULATIONS

The Company agrees, declares and covenants with the Debenture Trustee that it will
comply with all relevant requirements prescribed under the LODR Regulations
applicable to it (including without limitation, Chapter IV of the LODR Regulations (to
the extent applicable) and Chapter V of the LODR Regulations (to the extent
applicable)).

DUE DILIGENCE

The Company acknowledges, understands, and confirms that:

(i) the Debenture Trustee shall carry out due diligence on continuous basis
to ensure compliance by the Company, with the provisions of the Act, the
LODR Regulations, the Debt Listing Regulations, the Debenture Trustees
Regulations, the listing agreement of the stock exchange(s) where the
Debentures are listed, the Transaction Documents, and any other
regulations issued by SEBI pertaining to the Issue;

(ii) for the purposes of carrying out the due diligence as required in terms of
the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, the Debenture Trustee, either
through itself or its agents, advisors, consultants, shall have the power to
examine the books of account of the Company and to have the Company's
Hypothecated Assets inspected by its officers and/or external auditors,
valuers, consultants, lawyers, technical experts, management consultants
appointed by the Debenture Trustee; and

(iii) the Debenture Trustee may at any time through its authorized
representatives and agents, inspect books of account, records, registers
of Company and the trust property (as set out in the Debenture Trust Deed/
this Key Information Document) to the extent necessary for discharging its
obligations. The Company shall provide full and unimpeded access to the
records, registers and books of accounts in relation to the Hypothecated
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Assets and facilitate in the inspection and due diligence process. Any fees,
costs expenses incurred in conducting such inspection/due diligence
process shall be fully borne by the Company. In the event, any fees, costs
expenses are borne by the Debenture Trustee, the above shall be
reimbursed forthwith by the Company upon request.

(g) The Company shall submit documents/ information as the Debenture Trustee may
require to conduct continuous and periodical due diligence and monitoring of the
Transaction Security or the assets on which security interest/ charge is created,
which shall inter alia, include:

(i) periodical status/ performance reports from the Company within seven
days of the relevant board meeting of the Company or within 45 (forty-five)
days of the respective quarter, whichever is earlier;

(ii) details with respect to defaults, if any, with regard to payment of interest or
redemption of Debentures;

(iii) details with respect to the implementation of the conditions regarding
creation of the Transaction Security for the Debentures, debenture
redemption reserve if applicable and Recovery Expense Fund;

(iv) details with respect to the Hypothecated Assets of the Company and of the
guarantors (to the extent applicable) to ensure that they are sufficient to
discharge the interest and principal amount at all times and that such
Hypothecated Assets are free from any other encumbrances except those
which are specifically agreed to by the Debenture Holders;

(v) reports on the utilization of funds raised by the issue of Debentures;
(vi) details with respect to r redemption of the Debentures;

(vii) (to the extent applicable) details with respect to dispatch of the debenture
certificates and interest warrants, credit of the debentures in the demat
account of the Debenture Holders and payment of amounts upon
redemption of Debentures to the Debenture Holders due to them within the
stipulated time period in accordance with the applicable Law;

(viii) (to the extent applicable) reports from the lead bank regarding the progress
of the project relating to the proceeds of the Issue;

(ix) details regarding monitoring of utilisation of funds raised in the issue of the
Debentures;
(x) (to the extent applicable) certificate from the statutory auditors of the

Company (i) in respect of utilisation of funds during the implementation
period of the project relating to the proceeds of the Issue, and (ii) in the
case of Debentures issued for financing working capital, at the end of each
accounting year; and

(xi) such other documents or information as may be required by the Debenture
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(h)

V.

(i)

()

(k)

(1)

(m)

Trustee in accordance with the applicable Law.

Without prejudice to any other provision of the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key
Information Document and the other Transaction Documents, the Company shall:

(i) provide such documents/information and assistance to the Debenture
Trustee as may be required by the Debenture Trustee to carry out the
necessary due diligence and monitor the security cover on a quarterly
basis in the manner as may be specified by SEBI from time to time;

(i) to the extent applicable, submit a certificate from the statutory auditor on
a quarterly basis, regarding the maintenance of security cover in
accordance with the terms of the Disclosure Documents and the other
Transaction Documents including compliance with the covenants of the
Disclosure Documents and the other Transaction Documents within
timelines as specified under SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars and
Regulations, or such other circulars issued by SEBI from time to time;

(iii) comply with all requirements under the Master Circular for Debenture
Trustee, and provide all documents/information as may be required in
accordance with the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee.

OTHERS

The Company shall, at all times until the secured obligations have been duly
discharged, maintain a bank account no. 50200017946230, IFSC HDFC0000485
with HDFC Bank Ltd (“Account Bank”) from which it proposes to pay the
redemption amount. The Company agrees and acknowledges that they shall also
inform the Debenture Trustee within 1 (one) working day of any change in the
Account Bank details.

The Company further acknowledges, agrees, that the Debenture Trustee is
authorised to seek redemption payment related details and information from the
Account Bank in terms of the extant SEBI regulations. Further, in case of change
of Account bank, the Debenture Trustee shall accept such change only upon
submission of the duly acknowledged and accepted pre-authorisation letter and
duly accepted consent letter from the successor /new account bank.

The Company covenants with the Debenture Trustee that it shall comply with all
its obligations under the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document
and pay and repay all the monies payable by the Company (including any
applicable default interest, fees and costs and expenses) to the Debenture Trustee
and the Debenture Holder(s) pursuant to the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed/
this Key Information Document.

The Company shall ensure due compliance and adherence to the Master Circular
for Debenture Trustee in letter and spirit.

To the extent applicable and required in terms of the Master Circular for Debenture

Trustee, the Debenture Trustee shall execute an "inter creditor agreement” in the
manner prescribed under the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee.
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(n) To the extent required/ applicable, the Company shall provide intimation to the
Debenture Trustee regarding (i) any default in timely payment of interest or
redemption or both in respect of the non-convertible debt securities issued by the
Company, and (ii) all covenants of the issue (including side letters, event of default
provisions/ clauses etc.).

(o) The Company shall promptly disclose and furnish to the Debenture Trustee, all
documents/ information about or in relation to the Company or the Debentures, as
requested by the Debenture Trustee to fulfil its obligations hereunder or to comply
with any applicable Law, including in relation to filing of its reports/ certification to
stock exchange within the prescribed timelines.

(p) The Company and the Debenture Trustee hereby agree and covenant to comply
with the requirements prescribed under the Master Circular for Debenture Trustee
in respect of the Debentures and the transactions contemplated in the Transaction
Documents.

3.15 Issue Details applicable for this issuance of the Debentures under this Key Information
Document.

Security Name 12.00% Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited 2028

(Name of the non-convertible
securities  which includes
Coupon / dividend, Issuer
Name and maturity year)

Issuer Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Type of Instrument Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures.

Nature of Instrument | Secured

(Secured or Unsecured)

Seniority (Senior or | Senior
subordinated)

Eligible Investors Please refer Section 4.4 (Eligible Investors).

Listing (name of stock | BSE
Exchange(s) where it will be
listed and timeline for listing)

Rating of Instrument "ICRA BBB" (Outlook: Stable) issued by ICRA
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Issue size

Total Issue: Issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand Five
Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-
Five Crores Only) ("Debentures")

Base Issue: 2000 (Two Thousand) senior, secured, rated,
listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures
of the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
Only) each aggregating to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Twenty Crores Only)

Green Shoe Option: up to 1500 (One Thousand Five
Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only)

Minimum Subscription

INR 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Only) and in multiples
of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) thereafter

Option to retain
oversubscription (Amount)

NIL

Objects of the Issue /
Purpose for which there is
requirement of funds

The proceeds of the issue will be utilized toward ongoing
lending operations of the Company.

In case the issuer is a NBFC
and the objects of the issue
entail loan to any entity who
is a ‘group company’ then
disclosures shall be made in
the prescribed format:

Not Applicable.

Details of the utilization of the
Proceeds

The proceeds raised from the Issue will be used solely for the
Purpose.

The Company shall not use the proceeds of the Issue
towards:

(a)

any capital market instrument such as equity and
equity linked instruments or any other capital market
related activities

(b)
(c)
(d)

any real estate activity or land acquisition;
any speculative purposes;

any purpose, that is not eligible for the providing of
financing by banks to non-banking financial companies
for bank finance to non-banking financial companies,
or, which results in a breach of the RBIl's master
circular no. DOR.CRE.REC.N0.77/21.04.172/2024-25
dated April 24, 2024 on "Bank Finance to Non-Banking
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Financial Companies (NBFCs)"; or

(e) in contravention of any guidelines, rules or regulations
of the RBI applicable to non-banking financial
companies including any activities which are prohibited
under applicable law.

PROVIDED HOWEVER, the Company shall be entitled to
temporarily invest the funds raised by the Issue in liquid
mutual funds and deposits held with scheduled commercial
banks.

Coupon Rate

Fixed interest at 12.00% (Twelve-point zero zero Percent)
per annum payable monthly from the Deemed Date of
Allotment

Step Up / Step Down Coupon
Rate

In the event, credit rating of the Company is downgraded
from the current rating of “ICRA BBB (Stable)” during the
Tenor of the Debentures, the Interest Rate shall increase by
25 bps for each downgrade from the current rating of the
Company (“Step Up Coupon Rate”). Such increased rate of
interest shall be applicable from the date of such downgrade
(“Step Up”) until such event is cured, on the outstanding
principal amount and accrued interest of the Debentures.

In the event the credit rating of the Company is downgraded
from the current rating of “ICRA BBB (Stable)” by two notches
below its current rating during the Tenor of the Debentures,
Debenture Holders shall have a right of call for Accelerated
Redemption of the Debentures.

For the purpose of this clause, if the issue is rated by more
than one agency, then the lowest of the ratings shall be
considered.

Coupon Payment Frequency

Monthly

Coupon Payment Dates

14-03-2025
14-04-2025
14-05-2025
14-06-2025
14-07-2025
14-08-2025
14-09-2025
14-10-2025
14-11-2025
14-12-2025
14-01-2026
14-02-2026
14-03-2026
14-04-2026
14-05-2026
14-06-2026
14-07-2026
14-08-2026
14-09-2026

52




Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

14-10-2026
14-11-2026
14-12-2026
14-01-2027
14-02-2027
14-03-2027
14-04-2027
14-05-2027
14-06-2027
14-07-2027
14-08-2027
14-09-2027
14-10-2027
14-11-2027
14-12-2027
14-01-2028
14-02-2028
14-03-2028
14-04-2028
14-05-2028
14-06-2028
14-07-2028
14-08-2028

Coupon Type (Fixed, floating | Fixed
or other structure)

Coupon Reset Process | Not Applicable
(including rates, spread,
effective date, interest rate
cap and floor etc.)

Day Count Basis (Actual /| Actual / Actual.

Actual) The Coupon (if any) shall be computed on the basis of actual

number of days elapsed in a year, for this purpose a year
shall comprise of a period of 365 (Three Hundred and Sixty-
Five) days.

In case of a leap year, if 29" February of the relevant leap
year falls during the Tenor of the Debentures, then the
number of days shall be reckoned as 366 (Three Hundred
and Sixty-Six) days for the one-year period.

Interest on Application | Interest at the Interest Rate applicable to respective series of
Monies Debentures subject to deduction of income tax under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, as applicable) will be
paid to the applicants on the application money for the
Debentures for the period starting from and including the date
of realization of application money in Issuer's Designated
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Bank Account up to one day prior to the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

Where Pay-in Date and Deemed date of Allotment are the
same, no interest on Application money is to be paid.

Default Interest Rate

Payment Default

In case of payment default, the Company agrees to pay an
additional interest at the rate of 2.00% (two-point zero zero
percent) per annum over and above the applicable Interest
Rate on the Outstanding Principal Amount in addition to any
other charges payable to the Debenture Holders from the
date of the occurrence of the payment default until such
payment default is cured or the final redemption amount is
paid (whichever is earlier).

Breach of Covenants/Event of Default

In case of breach of any of the covenants including Event of
Default under the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key
Information Document the Company shall pay an additional
interest at 2% p.a. (two-point zero zero percent) over the
Interest Rate for the period of default in addition to any other
charges incurred by Debenture Holders on actual basis in
case of default in the performance of any of the
covenants/Events of Default.

Delay in execution of Debenture Trust Deed

In case the Company fails to execute this Deed on or before
the Deemed Date of Allotment of Debentures, and that in
case of delay in execution of this Deed, the Company will pay
additional interest of 2% (Two percent) per annum over the
Coupon, over and above the agreed Coupon Rate, till the
execution of the Debenture Trust Deed.

Delay in Security Creation

Issuer shall pay a penal interest of 2.0% (Two Percent) p.a.
over the Interest Rate on the Outstanding Principal Amount
in case there is any delay in the creation, registration and
perfection of the security over the Hypothecated Assets
within in 30 (thirty) days from the date of execution of
Hypothecation Agreement;

Delay in filing modification of charge with respect to
Hypothecated Assets

Issuer shall pay a penal interest of 2.0% (Two Percent) p.a.
over the Interest Rate in the event of failure to file
modification of charges within 7 (seven) days from the date
of Replacement of Hypothecated Assets/ providing additional
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security/providing cash collateral or any modification as
required under applicable Law.

Delay in listing

In accordance with the SEBI NCS Listing Regulations read
together with the Listed NCDs Master Circular, the Company
confirms that in the event there is any delay in listing of the
Debentures beyond 3 (Three) trading days from the date of
closure of the issue for the Debentures, the Company (i) will
pay to the Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one
percent) per annum over the Interest Rate for the period of
delay from the Deemed Date of Allotment until the listing of
the Debentures is completed.

Tenor

42 (forty-two) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Redemption Date / Maturity
Date

August 14, 2028

Redemption Amount

The Debentures will be redeemed at par.

Early Redemption Notice

Not Applicable

Redemption Premium/ | Not Applicable
Discount
Issue Price At par

Discount at which security is
issued and the effective yield
as a result of such discount

Not Applicable

Premium / Discount at which
security is redeemed and the
effective yield as a result of
such premium / discount

Not Applicable

Put Date

At the end of two years from the deemed date of allotment
being February 14, 2027

Put Price At par

Call Date Not Applicable

Call Price Not Applicable

Put Notification Time | 21 days prior to Put option date i.e. at the end of two years
(Timelines by which the | from the deemed date of allotment

investor need to intimate

Issuer before exercising the
put)

Call Notification Time
(Timelines by which the
Issuer need to intimate

Not Applicable
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investor before exercising the
call)

Face Value

INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only)

Minimum Application and in
multiples of thereafter

INR 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Only) and in multiples
of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) thereafter

Issue Timing
1) Issue Opening Date
2) Issue Closing Date

3) Date of earliest closing
of the Issue if any

4) Pay-in Date

13 February 2025
13 February 2025
NA

14 February 2025
14 February 2025

5) Deemed Date of
Allotment

Settlement mode of the | RTGS

Instrument

Depositories

NSDL and CDSL

Disclosure of Interest /
Dividend / Redemption Dates

As set out in Annexure IV

Record Date

means the 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to the relevant
Payment Date

All covenants of the issue
(including side

letters, accelerated payment
clause, etc.)

Side Letter: NIL

Accelerated payment: Any early redemption or prepayment
by Issuer is subject to applicable Law and subject to approval
of the Majority Debenture Holders, please refer to ‘Early
Redemption’, ‘Accelerated Redemption’ set out below in this
Section 3.15.

Covenants of the Issue:
Affirmative Covenants

Please refer to Section
Document.

4.1 (a) of this Key Information

Negative Covenants

Please refer to Section
Document.

4.1 (b) of this Key Information

Reporting Covenants

Please refer to Section 4.1 (c) of this
Document.

Key Information

Financial Covenants

Please refer to Section
Document.

4.1 (d) of this Key Information
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Description regarding
Security (where applicable)
including type of security
(movable / immovable /
tangible etc.), type of charge
(pledge / hypothecation /
mortgage etc.), date of
creation of security / likely
date of creation of security,
minimum  security  cover,
revaluation, replacement of
security, interest to the
debenture holder over and
above the coupon rate as
specified in the Debenture
Trust Deed and disclosed in
the information document.

The amounts outstanding under the Debentures shall be
secured:

on a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge basis
by way of hypothecation in favour of the Debenture
Trustee for the benefit of the Debenture Holders over
Identified Receivables of the Issuer that fulfil the eligibility
criteria set out here below under the heading ‘Eligibility
Criteria’ (“Hypothecated Assets”), with the prescribed
Security Cover on or prior to the Deemed Date of
Allotment;

Issuer shall ensure creation, registration and perfection
of the security over the Hypothecated Assets by way of
filing CHG-9 with the regulatory authorities within 30
(thirty) calendar days from the execution of
Hypothecation Agreement;

The Outstanding Principal Amount, shall be secured by
(to the satisfaction of the Debenture Holders) by a first
ranking and exclusive charge of 1.20x (one decimal two
zero times) cover over the Hypothecated Assets which
are free from any encumbrances/charge/lien;

The Issuer shall on a monthly basis hypothecate
additional loans and/or replace such loans constituting
the Hypothecated Assets that do not comply with the
prescribed Eligibility Criteria, with loans that meet the
Eligibility Criteria set out below to the Debenture Trustee
such that the principal amounts outstanding under the
loans constituting the Hypothecated Assets shall not be
less than 1.20x (one decimal two zero times) of the
aggregate amount of principal outstanding under the
Debentures. Any additional loans added pursuant to the
above to secure the Debentures shall be considered as
part of the Hypothecated Assets.

The Issue shall replace any ineligible Receivables
(beyond 90 dpd) with fresh receivables. Such change of
receivables shall be affected within 15 (fifteen) business
days after the month end of the Receivables becoming
ineligible.

In the event of the Security Cover with respect to
Hypothecated Assets falling below the stipulated cover,
the Issuer shall, not later than 15 (fifteen) Business Days
after the occurrence of such event, create security over
additional performing loans that fulfil the prescribed
Eligibility Criteria.

Additional Security:
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e The Issuer shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee 2 duly
filled undated cheques in favour of Debenture Trustee for
the entire Issue size.

Transaction Documents

Including but not limited to the following documents:

1. Debenture Trust Deed

2. General information Document/Key Information
Document/PAS-4

3. Debenture Trustee Agreement;

4. Deed of Hypothecation;

5. Term Sheet;

6. Board and Shareholders Resolution authorising the Issue;
and

Any other documentation as may be desired by the
Debenture Trustee and mutually agreed with Issuer

Conditions  Precedent
Disbursement

to

i. A certified true copy of the constitutional documents of
the Company (being its Memorandum and Articles of
Association and Certificate of Incorporation) shall have
been submitted to the Debenture Trustee.

ii. All corporate approvals from the Board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company, if applicable, shall have
been received for the issuance of the Debentures and
the execution, delivery and performance by the
Company of the Transaction Documents in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014,
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014 and other rules prescribed.;

iii. Execution of the Transaction Documents, in a form and
manner satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee shall have
taken place;

iv. Rating of the Debentures being completed and the rating
agency having provided a minimum rating of ‘BBB’ for
the Debentures and the rating letter issued by the Rating
Agency being in a form and manner satisfactory to the
Debenture Trustee;

v. Due execution of the Depository Agreements by, inter-
alia, the Depository and the Company;

vi. Due execution of the Tripartite Agreement by, inter-alia,
the Registrar and Transfer Agent, Depository and the
Company;
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Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

The Company shall have submitted to the Debenture
Trustee, a copy of the in-principle approval provided by
the BSE in respect of the listing of the Debentures.

The Company shall have received consent from the
Debenture Trustee to act as the debenture trustee for the
issue of Debentures;

The Company shall have submitted to the Debenture
Trustee, all required documents for the purpose of
satisfying its respective KYC requirements;

Due Diligence Certificate in the format designated by the
Debenture Holder in relation to Hypothecated Assets;

Certificate from a chartered accountant confirming that
there is no encumbrance on the Hypothecated Assets;

Security creation in accordance with the Operational
guidelines for ‘Security and Covenant Monitoring’ using
Distributed Ledger Technology (DLT) dated March 29,
2022;

The Company shall have submitted to the Debenture
Trustee, its audited account statements for the most
recent financial year or financial half-year.

The Issuer shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee 2 duly
filled undated cheques in favour of Debenture Trustee for
the entire Issue size.

Conditions Subsequent to
Disbursement

Company shall fulfil each of the following conditions within
the stipulated timelines:

the Company shall make the application for listing of the
Debentures and obtain listing of the Debentures within
the time period prescribed under SEBI NCS Listing
Regulations and Circulars;

File return of allotment in Form PAS — 3, along with a
complete list of allottees and containing the prescribed
particulars, filed with the relevant Registrar of
Companies within 2 (two) calendar days of the Deemed
Date of Allotment of the Debentures;

Confirmation and details of the depository accounts of
the Debenture Holders with the Depositories confirming
that such account has been credited with the relevant
Debentures as soon as possible but in event within 2
(two) calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment;
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Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Provide record of private placement offers maintained
by the Company, including the offer of the Debentures,
in Form PAS - 5, on the Deemed Date of Allotment;

Provide evidence that the security shall have been
perfected in a form and manner acceptable to the
Debenture Trustee and the Form CHG-9 in respect of
creation of hypothecation over the Hypothecated Assets
has been filed with the relevant Registrar of Companies
within 30 (thirty) calendar days from the date of
execution of Hypothecation Agreement;

Provide a copy of the certificate of registration of charge
issued by the relevant Registrar of Companies in
connection with the security created under the
Hypothecation Agreement within 1 (one) Business Day
of the receipt thereof by the Company;

Provide a certificate from statutory auditor, certifying (i)
the actual utilisation of the Debentures; and (ii) that the
Debentures have been used towards the Purpose; and
provide supporting documents to be provided to the
Debenture Trustee within 45 (forty five) calendar days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

The Company will provide all information and assistance
that the Debenture Trustee may require, to enable it to
file the prescribed Form | with CERSAI within the time
period prescribed under the Hypothecation Agreement.

comply with applicable provisions of SEBI NCS Listing
Regulations and Circulars and the Companies Act 2013
(as applicable) for issuance of Debentures.

Events of Default (including
manner of voting /conditions
of joining Inter Creditor
Agreement)

Please refer to Section 4.2 of the Key Information Document.

Creation of recovery expense
fund

Details and purpose of the recovery expense fund

1)

The Issuer shall create and maintain the Recovery
Expense Fund up to the amounts prescribed under the
SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular, in accordance with
and within the timelines prescribed in the Chapter IV of
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular. The Issuer
proposing to list debt securities shall deposit an
amount equal to 0.01% of the Tranche issue size of the
Secured Debentures subject to maximum of INR
25,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs only)
per issuer towards the recovery expense fund with the
‘Designated Stock Exchange’, pursuant to the SEBI
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3)

Debenture Trustees Circular, as may be amended from
time to time.

The Recovery Expense Fund shall be created to
enable the Debenture Trustee to take prompt action in
relation to the enforcement of the Security in
accordance with the Transaction Documents.

The amounts in the Recovery Expense Fund shall be
utilised in the manner as may be prescribed by the
Debenture Holders by a Special Resolution duly
passed at the meeting of the Debenture Holders held
in accordance with the provisions set out in the
Transaction Documents.

On the occurrence of an Event of Default, if the
Security is proposed to be enforced, the Debenture
Trustee shall follow the procedure set out in the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular for utilisation of the
Recovery Expense Fund.

Conditions for breach of
covenants (as Specified in
Debenture Trust Deed)

Please refer to Section 4 of the Key Information Document.

Provisions related to Cross
Default Clause

Please refer to Section 4.3 of the Key Information Document.

Role and Responsibilities of
Debenture Trustee

In addition to the other powers conferred on the Debenture
Trustee and provisions for their protection and not by way of
limitation or derogation of anything contained in the
Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document or of
any statute limiting the liability of the Debenture Trustee, IT
IS EXPRESSLY DECLARED as follows:

the Debenture Trustee may, in relation to these
presents, act on the opinion or advice of or any
information obtained from any solicitor, counsel,
advocate, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, qualified
accountant or other expert whether obtained by the
Company or by the Debenture Trustee or otherwise;

the Debenture Trustee shall be the attorney of the
Company and shall have the right to execute, sign and
do any deeds, documents, assurances, acts and things
in the name and on behalf of the Company, which shall
in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee be necessary or
expedient that the Company should execute, sign and
do for the purpose of carrying out any of the trusts or
obligations declared or imposed upon the Debenture
Trustee;

the Debenture Trustee is not permitted to release /
exclude any part of the Hypothecated Assets
temporarily or permanently from the security created /
to be created for the Debentures except in accordance
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vi.

Vii.

viii.

with a Majority Resolution;

subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way
of Majority Resolution passed at a meeting of
Debenture Holders held for determining the liability of
the Debenture Trustee, the Debenture Trustee shall, as
regards all trusts, powers, authorities and discretions,
have absolute and uncontrolled discretion as to the
exercise thereof and to the mode and time of exercise
thereof and in the absence of any fraud, gross
negligence, willful misconduct or breach of trust shall
not be responsible for any loss, costs, charges,
expenses or inconvenience that may result from the
exercise or non-exercise thereof and in particular they
shall not be bound to act at the request or direction of
the Debenture Holders under any provisions of these
presents unless sufficient monies shall have been
provided or provision to the satisfaction of the
Debenture Trustee made for providing the same and the
Debenture Trustee are indemnified to their satisfaction
against all further costs, charges, expenses and liability
which may be incurred in complying with such request
or direction;

with a view to facilitating any dealing under any
provisions of these presents the Debenture Trustee
shall have full power to consent (where such consent is
required) to a specified transaction or class of
transactions conditionally;

the Debenture Trustee shall not be responsible for the
monies paid by Applicants for the Debentures;

without prejudice to the rights to indemnity by Law given
to the Debenture Trustee, the Debenture Trustee and
every receiver, attorney, manager, agent or other
person appointed by them shall, subject to the
provisions of the Act, be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company in respect of all liabilities and expenses
incurred by them or him in the execution or purported
execution of the powers and trusts thereof and against
all actions, proceedings, costs, claims and demands in
respect of any matter or thing done or omitted and the
Debenture Trustee may retain and pay out of any
monies in their hands the amount of any liabilities and
expenses necessary to effect such indemnity and also
remuneration of the Debenture Trustee as herein
provided or otherwise howsoever arising out of or in
connection with these presents or the issue of the
Debentures;

the Debenture Trustee shall have full power to
determine all questions and doubts arising in relation to
any of the provisions hereof and every such
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Xi.

determination bonafide made (whether or not the same
shall relate wholly or partially to the acts or proceedings
of the Debenture Trustee) in the absence of any fraud,
gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach of trust,
shall be conclusive and binding upon all persons
interested hereunder;

subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way
of Majority Resolution passed at a meeting of
Debenture Holders held for determining the liability of
the Debenture Trustee, the Debenture Trustee shall not
be liable for anything whatsoever except any fraud,
gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach of trust
by the Debenture Trustee;

subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way
of Majority Resolution passed at a meeting of
Debenture Holders held for determining the liability of
the Debenture Trustee, the Debenture Trustee, except
for any fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct or
breach of trust, shall not be liable for any default,
omission or delay in performing or exercising any of the
powers or trusts herein expressed or contained or any
of them or in enforcing the covenants herein contained
or any of them or in giving notice to any person or
persons of the execution hereof or in taking any other
steps which may be necessary, expedient or desirable
or for any loss or injury which may be occasioned by
reason thereof unless the Debenture Trustee shall have
been previously requested by notice in writing to
perform, exercise or do any of such steps as aforesaid
given in writing by the Majority Debenture Holder(s) or
by a Majority Resolution duly passed at a meeting of the
Debenture Holders and the Debenture Trustee shall not
be bound to perform, exercise or do any such acts,
powers or things or to take any such steps unless and
until sufficient moneys shall have been provided or
provision to the satisfaction of the Debenture Trustee
made for providing the same by or on behalf of the
Debenture Holders or some of them in order to provide
for any costs, charges and expenses which the
Debenture Trustee may incur or may have to pay in
connection with the same and the Debenture Trustee
are indemnified to their satisfaction against all further
costs, charges, expenses and liabilities which may be
incurred in complying with such request;

notwithstanding any contained to the contrary in the
Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document,
the Debenture Trustee shall before taking any action on
behalf of the Debenture Holders or providing any
consent on behalf of the Debenture Holders, obtain the
written consent of the Majority Debenture Holders;
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xii. the Debenture Trustee shall forward to the Debenture
Holders copies of any information, documents from the
Company pursuant to the Debenture Trust Deed/ this
Key Information Document within 2 (two) Business
Days of receiving the same from the Company; and

xiii. The Debenture Trustee shall take all reasonable steps
to realise the monies due to the Trust.

xiv. The Debenture Trustee shall have the right to rely on
notices, communications, advertisement, website
information of Issuer and any other related party with
respect to issue etc.

PROVIDED THAT nothing contained in this Clause shall
exempt the Debenture Trustee or any receiver, attorney,
manager, agent or other person appointed by the Debenture
Trustee from or indemnify them against any liability for
breach of trust nor any liability which by virtue of any rule or
Law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any
negligence, default or breach of trust which they may be
guilty of in relation to their duties hereunder.

Risk factors pertaining to the
issue

Please refer to Section 3 (Risk Factors) of the General
Information Document

Governing Law

The Debentures and documentation will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of India and the
parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in
New Delhi, India.

Notwithstanding anything stated earlier, the Debenture
Trustee has the right to commence proceedings before any
other court or forum in India.

Additional Disclosures (Delay
in Listing)

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read
together with the requirements in respect of the timelines for
listing of debt securities issued on a private placement basis
prescribed in Chapter VIl (Standardization of timelines for
listing of securities issued on a private placement basis) of
the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2024/54
dated May 22, 2024 on "Master Circular for issue and listing
of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments,
Security  Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and
Commercial Paper" (as amended and modified from time to
time), the Issuer confirms that In the event there is any delay
in listing of the Non-Convertible Securities beyond the Listing
Period, the Issuer will pay to the Debenture Holders, penal
interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the Interest
Rate, from the date of allotment the Non-Convertible
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Securities until the listing of the Non-Convertible Securities is
completed.

Buy Back

Issuer can buy back Debentures subject to applicable Law
and as per the Transaction documents.

Early Redemption

Subject to applicable Law the Issuer will have the option to
prepay the Debentures, as per applicable Laws, by providing
30 (thirty) calendar days prior notice to the Debenture
Trustee and paying an Early Redemption Premium of 2%
over and above the Interest Rate on the outstanding principal
amount and accrued interest, if any.

Accelerated Redemption
Events

shall mean the occurrence of any one or more of the following
events:

i.  Breach of any of the covenants as mentioned under the
Transaction Documents;

i. Inthe event of rating of the Company being downgraded
to ICRA BB+ Stable, i.e. two notches below its current
rating;

iii. In case the accelerated redemption clause is triggered
in any other debentures outstanding under any other
ISIN and or in any other borrowing outstanding.

Accelerated Redemption

The Debenture Holder(s) individually shall have the option to
require the Issuer to redeem the debentures (“Accelerated
Redemption") on happening of any of the Accelerated
Redemption Events. Upon the exercise of the Accelerated
Redemption by the Debenture Holder(s), the Debenture
Trustee shall issue a notice to the Issuer for redemption of all
amounts outstanding in relation to such debentures as on the
date of exercise of the ‘Accelerated Redemption’ option
(“Accelerated Redemption Notice”).

the Company shall make payment of all the Outstanding
Amounts to such accounts as may be prescribed by the
Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders within the
exercise period of at least 3 (three) Business Days
commencing on the expiry of a period of 21 (twenty one) days
following the providing of the Accelerated Redemption Notice
and expiring on the expiry of a period of 30 (thirty) calendar
days from the providing of the Accelerated Redemption
Notice wherein it is mutually agreed between the Parties that
such payment shall be made on the last day of the
aforementioned exercise period.

Cure Period

Cure Period for Financial Covenants means 60 calendar
days from the date of commencement of breach.

Cure Period for Negative Covenants means 60 calendar
days from the date of commencement of breach.

Cure Period for Reporting Covenants means 60 calendar
days from the date of commencement of breach.
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Cure Period for Other Covenants means 60 calendar days
from the date of commencement of breach.

Reissuance of Debentures The Issuer reserves the right to make multiple issuances

under the same ISIN. Any such issue can be made either by
way of creation of a fresh ISIN or by way of issuance under
an existing ISIN at premium/par/discount as the case may be.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Note:

The Issuer shall submit all duly completed documents to the BSE, SEBI, ROC or any
other Governmental Authority, as are required under Applicable Law and procure
permission for listing of the Debentures from the Stock Exchange within (T+3)
working days, wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date ("Listing
Period").

The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures continue to be listed on the wholesale
debt market segment of the BSE.

In the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures beyond (T+3) working
days, wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date, the Issuer will pay to
the Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the
Interest Rate, from the date of allotment of the Debentures until the listing of the
Debentures is completed.

If there is any change in Coupon Rate pursuant to any event including lapse of
certain time period or downgrade in rating, then such new Coupon Rate and events
which lead to such change should be disclosed.

The list of documents which has been executed in connection with the issue and
subscription of debt securities shall be annexed.

While the debt securities are secured to the tune of 120% of the principal and interest
amount or as per the terms of offer document/ General Information Document/ key
Information Document, in favour of Debenture Trustee, it is the duty of the Debenture
Trustee to monitor that the security is maintained.

The Issuer shall provide granular disclosures in this Key Information Document, with
regards to the “Object of the Issue” including the percentage of the issue proceeds
earmarked for each of the “object of the issue”.

The proceeds of the issue will be utilized toward ongoing lending operations of the
Company.

Debt securities shall be considered as secured only if the charged asset is registered
with Sub-registrar and Registrar of Companies or CERSAI or Depository etc., as
applicable, or is independently verifiable by the debenture trustee.

Before making the application for listing of debt securities, the Issuer shall create
charge as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed/ General Information Document/
Key Information Document, in favour of the debenture trustee and also execute
debenture trust deed (DTD) with the Debenture trustee. The Stock Exchange(s) shall
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list the debt securities only upon receipt of a due diligence certificate as per format
specified in NCS Listing Regulations from debenture trustee confirming creation of
charge and execution of the Debenture Trust Deed. The charge created by Issuer
shall be registered with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies, CERSAI, Depository
etc., as applicable, within 30 days of creation of such charge. In case the charge is
not registered anywhere or is not independently verifiable, then the same shall be
considered a breach of covenants/ terms of the issue by the Issuer.

7. Future Borrowings

The Company shall be entitled to borrow or raise loans or create encumbrances or
avail financial assistance in whatever form, and also issue promissory notes or
debentures or other securities, without the consent of, or intimation to the Debenture
Holders or the Debenture Trustee in this connection. However, no such borrowings
will have the benefit of the security interest created over the Hypothecated Assets
and granted to the Debenture Trustee and Debenture Holders under the Transaction
Documents. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Clause, the Company shall
continue to comply with the financial covenants set forth in the Debenture Trust
Deed.

8. Force Majeure

In the event of a Force Majeure occurrence, all Financial Covenants and other
covenants stipulated in this Key Information Documents and the other Trasnaction
Documents shall be rendered temporarily ineffective from the date the Force Majeure
event commences until such time as the event subsides and normal conditions
resume. During this period, the Issuer shall not be deemed in breach of any
obligations, nor liable for any failure or delay in performing any terms of this Key
Information Documents and the other Trasnaction Documents caused by the Force
Majeure event. The Issuer shall promptly notify the other party of the occurrence and
cessation of the Force Majeure event and shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate the
impact of the event on the performance of their obligations. Upon the subsidence of
the Force Majeure event, the parties shall resume performance of their respective
obligations under this Key Information Documents and the other Trasnaction
Documents.
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SECTION 4: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND KEY TERMS

41 COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER:

({)] AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS
a. Utilization of the issue proceeds

The Company shall utilize the proceeds of this issue in accordance with
applicable Laws and regulations and as provided in the Debenture Trust
Deed/ this Key Information Document.

b. Amendment of Articles of Association

Issuer has amended and incorporated provisions in their Articles of
Association, authorizing the Debenture Trustee to appoint a nominee
director on the board of directors of the Company as per Clause 15 (1)(e) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustee)
Regulations, 1993 and Rule 18(3) (e) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 as specified SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars and
Regulations;

c. Notice of winding up or other legal process

Company shall promptly inform the Debenture Trustee if it has notice of any
application for winding up having been made or any statutory notice of
winding up under the provisions of the Act or any other notice under any
other statute relating to winding up or otherwise of any suit or other legal
process intended to be filed or initiated against the Company;

d. Loss or damage by uncovered risks

Company shall promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any material loss
or significant damage which the Company may suffer due to any force
majeure circumstances or act of God, such as earthquake, flood, tempest or
typhoon, etc. against which the Company may not have insured its
properties;

e. Costs and expenses

Company shall pay all costs, charges and expenses in any way incurred by
the Debenture Trustee towards protection of Debenture Holders' interests,
including traveling and other allowances and such taxes, duties, costs,
charges and expenses in connection with or relating to the Debentures
subject to such expenses, costs or charges being approved in writing by the
Company before they are incurred and shall not include any foreign travel
costs;

f. Payment of Rents, etc
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Company shall punctually pay all rents, royalties, taxes, rates, levies,
cesses, assessments, impositions and outgoings, governmental, municipal
or otherwise imposed upon or payable by the Company as and when the
same shall become payable and when required by the Debenture Trustee
produce the receipts of such payment and also punctually pay and discharge
all debts and obligations and liabilities which may have priority over the
Debentures and observe, perform and comply with all covenants and
obligations which ought to be observed and performed by the Company
under the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document;

g. Preserve corporate status; authorisations

Company shall

i. diligently preserve and maintain its corporate existence and status
and all rights, contracts privileges, franchises and concessions now
held or hereafter acquired by it in the conduct of its business and
comply with each and every term of the said franchises and
concessions and all acts, authorizations, consents, permissions,
rules, regulations, orders and directions of any legislative, executive,
administrative or judicial body applicable to its Assets or any part
thereof PROVIDED THAT the Company may contest in good faith
the validity of any such acts, rules, regulations, orders and directions
and pending the determination of such contest may postpone
compliance therewith if the rights enforceable under the Debentures
are not thereby materially endangered or impaired. The Company
will not do or voluntarily suffer or permit to be done any act or thing
whereby its right to transact its business might or could be
terminated or whereby payment of the principal of or interest on the
Debentures might or would be hindered or delayed; and

ii. conduct its business with due diligence and efficiency and in
accordance with sound technical, managerial and financial
standards and business practices with qualified and experienced
management and personnel;

iii. promptly obtain all consents and authorizations as maybe
necessary for performing its obligations in relation to the issue of the
Debentures;

h. Pay stamp duty

Company shall pay all such stamp duty (including any additional stamp
duty), other duties, taxes, charges and penalties, if and when the Company
may be required to pay according to the applicable state laws and in the
event of the Company failing to pay such stamp duty, other duties, taxes and
penalties as aforesaid, the Debenture Trustee will be at liberty (but shall not
be bound) to pay the same and the Company shall reimburse the same to
the Debenture Trustee on demand;
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i Furnish information to Debenture trustee

Company shall give to the Debenture Trustee or its nominee(s)/ agent(s)
such information/copies of relevant extracts as they shall require as to all
matters relating to the business of the Company or any part thereof and to
investigate the affairs thereof and the Company shall allow the Debenture
Trustee to make such examination and investigation as and when felt
necessary and shall furnish him with all such information as they may require
and shall pay all reasonable costs, charges and expenses incidental to such
examination and investigation;

j Grievance

Promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress the grievances, if any, of
the Debenture Holders. The Company further undertakes that it shall
promptly comply with the suggestions and directions that may be given in
this regard, from time to time, by the Debenture Trustee and shall advise the
Debenture Trustee periodically of the compliance;

k. Specific Information to be provided to the Debenture Trustee

Company shall inform and provide the Debenture Trustee with applicable
documents in respect of the following:

i. notice of any Event of Default or potential Event of Default, each as
listed in Section 4.2 of this Key Information Document;

ii. periodic review of the ratings obtained by the Company by the credit
rating agencies and any revision in the rating as per the listing
agreement entered into with the stock exchange (if the Debentures
are listed);

iii. details of any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings,
etc. including those that are required to be disclosed to the stock
exchange under the listing agreement entered into with the stock (if
the Debentures are listed);

iv. any and all information required to be provided to the Debenture
Holders under the listing agreement that may be entered into
between the Company and the BSE; and

v. the declaration or distribution of dividend;

l. Comply with Investor Education and Protection Fund requirements
Company shall comply with the provisions of the Act relating to transfer of
unclaimed/ unpaid amounts of interest on Debentures and redemption of
Debentures to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), if applicable
to it;

m. Further assurances
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Company shall

execute and/or do, at their own expense, all such deeds,
assurances, documents, instruments, acts, matters and things, in
such form and otherwise as the Debenture Trustee may reasonably
or by Law require or consider necessary in relation to enforcing or
exercising any of the rights and authorities of the Debenture
Trustee;

furnish to the Debenture Trustee details of all grievances received
from the Debenture Holders and the steps taken by the Company to
redress the same. At the request of any Debenture Holder, the
Debenture Trustee shall, by notice to the Company call upon the
Company to take appropriate steps to redress such grievance and
the Company shall comply with the instructions of the Debenture
Trustee issued in this regard;

obtain, comply with the terms of and do all that is necessary to
maintain in full force and effect all authorisations necessary to
enable it to lawfully enter into and perform its obligations under the
Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document or to ensure
the legality, validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence in
India of the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document;

comply with:

all Laws, rules, regulations and guidelines (including but not limited
to environmental, social and taxation related Laws), as applicable in
respect of the Debentures and obtain such regulatory approvals as
may be required from time to time

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustee)
Regulations, 1993 as in force from time to time, in so far as they are
applicable to the Debentures and furnish to the Debenture Trustee
such data, information, statements and reports as may be deemed
necessary by the Debenture Trustee in order to enable them to
comply with the provisions of Regulation 15 thereof in performance
of their duties in accordance therewith to the extent applicable to the
Debentures;

the provisions of the Act in relation to the issue of the Debentures;

Comply with any monitoring and/or calls from Debenture Trustee on
a quarterly basis;

In the event of failure by the Issuer to meet standards with respect
to collection quality, management, governance, internal systems
and processes, and data integrity, as may be required by the
Debenture Holder. The Debenture Trustee shall be authorised by
the Debenture Holders to conduct such discretionary audits on its
behalf.
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procure that the Debentures are rated and continued to be rated
until the redemption of the Debentures; and

The Company shall ensure that, at time of making any payment of
interest or repayment of the principal amount of the Debentures in
full or in part, the Company shall do so in the manner that is most
tax efficient for the Debenture Holders (including withholding tax
benefit) but without, in any way, requiring the Company to incur any
additional costs, expenses or taxes and the Company shall avail of
all the benefits available under any treaty applicable to the Company
and/or the Debenture Holders.

n. Security

The Company hereby further agrees, declares and covenants with the
Debenture Trustee as follows:

the Debentures shall be secured by charge on the Hypothecated
Assets in favour of the Debenture Trustee for the benefit of the
Debenture Holders;

that all the Hypothecated Assets that shall be charged to the
Debenture Trustee under the Hypothecation Agreement shall
always be kept distinguishable and held as the exclusive property of
the Company specifically appropriated to this security and be dealt
with only under the directions of the Debenture Trustee. The
Company shall not create any charge, lien or other encumbrance
upon or over the same or any part thereof except in favour of the
Debenture Trustee nor suffer any such charge, lien or other
encumbrance or any part thereof nor do or allow anything that may
prejudice this security and the Debenture Trustee shall be at liberty
to incur all costs and expenses as may be necessary to preserve
this security and to maintain the same undiminished and claim
reimbursement thereof;

shall, on the First Security Cover Determination Date and at all times
thereafter, ensure that the Security Cover Ratio with respect to the
Hypothecated Assets is maintained and towards this end, it shall on
or before each Monthly Security Cover Determination Date, Top-up
the Hypothecated Assets with additional Receivables and/or
Replace any Receivables constituting the Hypothecated Assets in
accordance with the Hypothecation Agreement so as to ensure that
Security Cover Ratio is maintained at all times from the First Security
Cover Determination Date until the redemption of the Debentures in
full and perfect the first ranking and exclusive charge of the
Debenture Trustee over such modified Hypothecated Assets by
filing Form CHG-9 with the concerned ROC and the required filing
with the CERSAI in relation thereto as soon as practicable;

shall, on the First Security Cover Determination Date and every
Monthly Security Cover Reporting Date, as also whenever required
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by the Debenture Trustee, give full particulars to the Debenture
Trustee of all the Hypothecated Assets from time to time and shall
furnish and verify all statements, reports (including Monitoring
Reports as prescribed in the Hypothecation Agreement), returns,
certificates and information from time to time and as required by the
Debenture Trustee and furnish and execute all necessary
documents to give effect to the Hypothecated Assets;

v. the security interest created on the Hypothecated Assets shall be a
continuing security as described in the Hypothecation Agreement;

vi. the Hypothecated Assets shall satisfy the Eligibility Criteria set out
in Section 1;

vii. nothing contained herein shall prejudice the rights or remedies of
the Debenture Trustee and/ or the Debenture Holders in respect of
any present or future security, guarantee obligation or decree for
any Financial Indebtedness or liability of the Company to the
Debenture Trustee and/ or the Debenture Holders; and

viii. the Debenture Holders shall have a beneficial interest in the
Hypothecated Assets of the Company which have been charged to
the Debenture Trustee to the extent of the Outstanding Principal
Amounts of the Debentures under the Debenture Trust Deed/ this
Key Information Document;

o. Filings

The Company shall file with the BSE such information as required under
Chapter V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, Operating Circular and NCS Regulations.

p. Amounts to be reimbursed to the Debenture Trustee

Company shall, forthwith upon demand by the Debenture Trustee,
reimburse to the Debenture Trustee all amounts paid by the Debenture
Trustee to reasonably protect the Hypothecated Assets and such amounts
shall be deemed to be secured by the Hypothecated Assets;

g. Delay in Security Creation

Company shall in the event of any delay in the creation of first ranking and
exclusive charge over the Hypothecated Assets within the timelines
stipulated in the Hypothecation Agreement or in the event the Security Cover
Ratio is not met on or prior to the First Security Cover Determination Date,
the Company will, at the option of the Debenture Holders, either:

i. refund the Application Money as set out in Section 3.15 of this Key
Information Document, to the Debenture Holders; or

ii. pay tothe Debenture Holders additional interest at Default Interest
Rate on the Outstanding Principal Amounts from the Deemed Date
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of Allotment till the creation of first ranking and exclusive charge over
the Hypothecated Assets pursuant to the terms of the Hypothecation
Agreement such that the Security Cover Ratio is met.

r. Books of Account

Company shall maintain proper books of account as required by the Act and
therein make true and proper entries of all dealings and transactions of and
in relation to the Hypothecated Assets and the business of the Company and
keep such books of account and all other books, registers and other
documents relating to the affairs of the Company at its registered office or,
where permitted by Law, at other place or places where the books of account
and documents of a similar nature may be kept. The Company will ensure
that all entries in the same relating to the Hypothecated Assets and the
business of the Company shall at all reasonable times be open for inspection
of the Debenture Trustee and such person or persons as the Debenture
Trustee shall, from time to time, in writing for the purpose, appoint.

s. Material Adverse Effect

Company shall promptly inform the Debenture Trustee in writing of the
occurrence of any, or the occurrence of any event that is likely to have a,
Material Adverse Effect, together with explanation of the reasons thereof;

t. Insurance

Company shall maintain requisite insurances on and in relation to its
business and assets with insurance companies against those risks and to
the extent as is usual for companies carrying on the same or substantially
similar business and any other insurances as may be required by Law and
ensure that all premiums are paid on time and other obligations of the
Company under the insurance policies are duly complied with;

u. Corporate Governance

i. the Company shall maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance in accordance with the NBFC Master Directions;

i. the Company shall at all times comply with the NBFC Master
Directions.

V. General

i. the Company shall perform all of its obligations under the terms of
the Transactions Documents and maintain in full force and effect
each of the Transaction Documents;

i. the Company shall promptly pay and discharge all its financial
obligations and regularly make all payments due and payable by the
Company, including but not limited to taxes and also such payment
due and payable under or in respect of the Issue or any documents
executed in connection there with;
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iii. the Company shall give the Debenture Trustee any information,
relating to the business, property, affairs of the Company, that
impacts the interests of the Debenture Holders;

iv. the Company shall comply with the ‘Guidelines on Fair Practices
Code for Non-Banking Financial Companies’ as prescribed by the
RBI from time to time; and

v. the Company shall obtain, comply with and maintain all necessary
licenses / authorisations; and

vi. the Company shall at all times act and proceed in relation to its
affairs and business in compliance with applicable Law.

w. Access
Company shall permit the Debenture Trustee (and the Debenture holders)
and/or accountants or other professional advisers and contractors appointed
by the Debenture Trustee access at all reasonable times and on reasonable

notice of the Company to:

i. check the management of the funds made available through
subscription to the Debentures;

ii. inspect and take copies and extracts from the books, accounts and
records of the Company;

iii. visit and inspect the premises of the Company; and

iv. meet and discuss matters with senior management employees of
the Company.

X. Conditions Subsequent

Company shall comply with the conditions stipulated in Section 3.15
(Conditions Subsequent) of this Key Information Document.

y. Financial Covenants

Company shall comply with the financial covenants stipulated in Section
3.1(d) of this Key Information Document.

z. Issue Terms and Conditions

At all times during the term of these presents comply with each of the Issue
Terms and Conditions.

aa. Internal Controls
Company shall maintain appropriate internal controls for the purpose of (i)

preventing fraud on monies lent by the Company; and (ii) preventing money
being used for money laundering or illegal purposes.
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(I

bb. Borrowing from Promoter

Except for any external commercial borrowings provided by the Promoters
of the Issuer, any credit / loan provided by the Promoter of the Issuer shall
rank subordinated / subservient to this Issue.

If the Issuer avails any other credit facility guaranteed by the Mr. Tushar
Aggarwal/ Ms Shruti Aggarwal during the Tenor, then the Issuer shall cause
Mr. Tushar Aggarwal/ Ms Shruti Aggarwal to provide a guarantee to the
Debenture Trustee to the extent of outstanding obligations under this Issue.

cc. Information to Debenture Trustee

The Company shall promptly provide all assistance, documents and
information to the Debenture Trustee as may be required by it to enable the
Debenture Trustee to fulfill its obligations as laid out under SEBI Listed
Debentures Circulars and Regulation.

NEGATIVE COVENANTS

The Issuer shall take the prior written permission from the Majority Debenture
Holder(s) / Debenture Trustee for the following. However, The Debenture Trustee
may approve any application for consent in respect of the below matters, if
Debenture Holders' representing more than 50% (fifty percent) of the outstanding
principal amounts of the Debentures provide their consent, within a period of 3
(three) Business Days from the date of receipt of such request/notification from the
Debenture Trustee, else the application for consent will be deemed as approved.

The Debenture Trustee may approve any application for consent in respect of the
above matters, if Debenture Holders' representing more than 25% (twenty five
percent) of the outstanding principal amounts of the Debentures do not vote against
granting consent in respect of any such application for consent, within a period of 7
(seven) Business Days from the date of receipt of such request/natification from the
Debenture Trustee. Provided that any consent asked by the Issuer for any of the
above-mentioned activities shall be given by the Debenture Holders within a period
of 7 (seven) Business Days post which the Debenture Holders shall have to be
deemed to have given its consent. However, the deemed consent as stated herein
is not applicable on an Event of Default by the Issuer.

a. Change of business;
Issuer shall not change the general nature of its business from that which is
permitted by the RBI nor undertake any new major new business outside
financial services or any diversification of its business outside financial
services.

b. Change in constitutional documents
Change or make any alteration to its Constitutional Documents, where such

amendment would have a Material Adverse Effect. The above does not
apply to any changes to effect an increase in authorized share capital and
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any changes to the articles of association to reflect the terms of any equity
infusion or strategic sale.

c. Change in Promoters/ Shareholding

i. Mr. Tushar Aggarwal ceases to remain on the board of the Issuer and
ceases to hold an executive position in the Company.

ii. The Promoter shall not collectively or individually transfer or encumber
the shares of the Company held by them respectively without the prior
written consent of the Debenture Holder(s). Without prejudice to the
above, any change in the stake of the Promoter below the existing level
set out in the following table shall require prior written consent of the
Maijority Debenture Holder(s):

Category Shareholding Type Shareholding to be
maintained throughout the
Tenor of the NCD

Promoter Basic 75%

d. Dividend

Declare or pay any dividend or make any distributions on its share capital
(other than dividends or distributions payable on shares of the Company),
unless:

i. the proposed payment or distribution is out of net income of the current
Financial Year (excluding any amount resulting from the revaluation of
any of the Company's assets);

ii. no Event of Default has occurred and is then continuing, or could occur
or is reasonably likely to occur, as a result of such payment or
declaration of any dividend or distribution and after giving effect to any
such action;

iii. the Company is in compliance with the financial covenants set forth in
Section 3.1(d) of this Key Information Document; and

iv. the company has paid or made satisfactory provision for the payment of
the installments of principal and interest due on the Debentures.

e. Merger, consolidation, etc.

Undertake or permit any merger, acquisition, restructuring, amalgamation
over and above 10% (ten per cent) of the Net worth of the Company in a
financial year; other than as set out in this clause, the Company shall not,
enter into any ftransaction of merger, de-merger, consolidation, re-
organization, scheme of arrangement or compromise with its creditors or
shareholders or effect any scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction;
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f. Associates, Subsidiaries, and Joint Ventures

Dispose of, acquire or incorporate any associates (as defined in the Act),
subsidiary (as defined in the Act) or joint ventures.

g. Acquisition

Acquire, without the prior written consent of the Majority Debenture Holders,
any company, business or undertaking if the amount of the acquisition cost,
whether paid by cash or otherwise.

h. Buy Back

The Company will not purchase or redeem any of its issued shares except
equity shares allotted under ESOP scheme of the Company or reduce its
share capital.

i Joint Venture
Without the prior written consent of the Majority Debenture Holders:

i. acquire (or agree to acquire) any shares, stocks, securities or other
interest in any joint venture; or

ii. transfer any assets or lend to or guarantee or indemnify or give security
for the obligations of a joint venture (or agree to transfer, lend,
guarantee, indemnify or give security for the obligations of a joint
venture).

j Loans and Guarantees
The Company shall not:

i. extend aloan to any single individual or entity amounting to greater than
1% (one percent) of its Tangible Net Worth; or

ii. undertake to guarantee the liabilities of any individual or entity, other
than for co-lending and securitization transactions; or

iii. directly or indirectly lend to any its Promoters (as defined in the Act) or
any Related Parties) which exceeds 10% (ten percent) of net worth of
the Company.

k. Arm's length basis; No profit sharing arrangements

The Company shall not, without the prior written consent of the Majority
Debenture Holders:

i. enter into any transaction with any person or enter into or continue
business relations with its shareholders, employees, affiliate(s), holding
company(ies), and/or subsidiary(ies) except on proper commercial
terms negotiated on an arm's length basis;
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ii. enterinto or establish any partnership, profit sharing, royalty agreement
or other similar other arrangement whereby the Company's income or
profits are, or might be, shared with any other person; or

iii. enter into any management contract or similar arrangement whereby its
business or operations are managed by any other person; or

iv. enter into or perform any transaction other than in its ordinary course of
business.

Immunity

Claim any immunity or limitation of liability against any payment obligations
arising towards the Debenture Holders. Claim for itself or its assets immunity
from any suit, execution, attachment (whether in aid of execution, before
judgment or otherwise) or other legal process in any jurisdiction

m. Liabilities

Incur, create, assume, or allow any Financial Indebtedness that ranks prior
to the Debentures or subordinates the Debentures.

n. Change of control

The Company will not permit a change of Control during the tenor of the
Debentures.

o. Disposal of Assets

Sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of in any manner whatsoever any
material Assets/business/division that has the effect of exiting the business
or re-structuring of the existing business of the Company, other than any
securitization/portfolio sale of assets undertaken by the Company in its
ordinary course of business.

Company shall not dispose of its assets or compromise with any of its
creditors without the prior written consent of the Debenture Holder(s), except

in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of the
Company's business and upon fair and reasonable terms;

p. Management Control

Any change in management Control of the Company. Any dilution of control
over Board composition, other than appointment of independent directors.

qg. Compromise or Settlement
Enter into compromise or arrangement or settlement with any of its creditors
(secured and unsecured) that would prejudicially affect the interest of the

Debenture Holders.

r. Anti-money laundering
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Permit any of the Debenture proceeds to be used to fund any form of violent
political activity, terrorists or terrorist organizations, nor any money
laundering process or scheme to disguise illegally obtained funds, nor any
other criminal activity including arms sales, drug trafficking, robbery, fraud
or racketeering.

S. Related Party Transactions

Without prior written intimation to the debenture trustee, the Issuer shall not
enter into or perform any transaction(s) with a related party other than in the
ordinary course of business.

Without affecting the above clause, the Issuer shall not, save and except in
case of ordinary course of business, without the prior written consent of the
Debenture Trustee (i) enter into any transaction(s) (other than as mentioned
in above clause) whereby the overall outstanding amount owed to the Issuer
under the said transaction(s) exceeds 10% (Ten percent) of its net worth, (ii)
whereby the overall expense incurred through such transaction(s) other than
as mentioned in above clause) during any financial year exceeds 10% (Ten
percent) of its net profit, or (iii) provide any guarantee for any indebtedness
of a related party. The Debenture Trustee shall be granted access to any
additional information that it deems necessary to monitor and evaluate this
covenant. For the purposes of this clause, the terms 'net worth' and 'related
party' shall respectively have the meaning ascribed to them in sections 2
(57) and 2 (76) of the Companies Act, 2013 (and the Rules framed
thereunder).

The Debenture Trustee may approve any application for consent in respect
of the above matters, if Debenture Holders' representing more than 50%
(fifty percent) of the outstanding principal amounts of the Debentures provide
their consent, within a period of 7 (seven) Business Days from the date of
receipt of such request/notification from the Debenture Trustee.

t. Financial Year

Company shall not change its financial year-end from 31st March (or such
other date as may be approved by Majority Debenture Holders) without the
prior written consent of the Debenture Trustee.

u. Others

Without prejudice to anything stated herein the Company shall not permit
sale/ transfer/ disposal of (i) equity shares of the Company, or (ii)
instruments that are compulsorily and mandatorily convertible into equity
shares of the Company, by the Promoter(s) and/ or (i) permit the
Promoter(s) to exit from management activities in relation to the Company

(1) REPORTING COVENANTS
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a.

Company shall provide or cause to be provided to the Debenture Trustee (and to the
Debenture Holders if so requested), and Portfolio Reviewer in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee, each of the following items:

Monthly Reports

As soon as available and in any event within 30 (thirty) calendar days after the end
of each monthly provide:

i. Details of Identified Receivables including book debts/receivables
statement, debtor summary, in a format acceptable to the Debenture
Holder(s);

Quarterly Reports

As soon as available and in any event within 45 (forty-five) calendar days after the
end of each quarterly reporting period of the Company, the quarterly reporting
required and in form and substance satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee and the
Debenture Holders. Such reporting will include information detailing:

i.  Financials and other operational metrics as per the requirement and format
agreed with the Debenture Holders, from time to time including but not
limited to capital structure, financial information, latest shareholding, CRAR
calculations, latest borrowing profile, detailed business projections, portfolio
cuts, DPD data, vintage data, operations data, collections efficiency,
prepayments, write-off, related party transactions & o/s balances, RBI
Returns, Top 20 borrower. The above data, whatever applicable, shall also
be shared for the parent or holding company, if applicable;

ii. the shareholding structure and composition of the board of directors in the
Company;

iii. Certificate from statutory auditor within 30 (thirty) calendar days of end of
each quarter confirming Company’s compliance with the Financial

Covenants;

iv. the Company shall submit progress performance reports to the Debenture
Holder(s) on a Quarterly basis in the format to be specified from time to time;

v. Details of Quarterly ALM (asset liability mismatch) of the Issuer;

vi. The Company shall furnish quarterly report to the Debenture Trustee within
45 (forty-five) days from the end of the relevant quarter or 7 (seven) days of
the board meeting, whichever is earlier containing the following particulars:
a) Updated list of the names and addresses of the Debenture Holders.

b) Details of the Interest due, but unpaid and reasons thereof.
c) The number and nature of grievances received from the Debenture

Holders and (A) resolved by the Company (B) unresolved by the
Company and the reasons for the same.
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C.

e.

d) A statement that the Hypothecated Assets is sufficient to discharge the
claims of the Debenture Holders as and when they become due.

vii. As soon as available and in any event within 30 (thirty) calendar days of the
succeeding month after the end of each quarterly reporting period of the
Company, the Company shall furnish book debt certificate and hypothecated
pool certify by an independent chartered accountant, with the confirmation
that all of the Loan receivables hypothecated to the Debenture Trustee are
meeting Security Cover criteria;

Half Yearly Reports —

Half yearly financial results, certificate from the independent chartered
accountant/authorised signatory of the Issuer giving the value of receivables/book
debts including compliance with the covenants of the Disclosure Document.

Annual Reports

As soon as available, and in any event within 180 (one hundred and eighty) calendar
days after the end of each Financial Year of the Company, the annual reporting
required and in form and substance satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee and the
Debenture Holders. Such reporting will include information detailing:

i. certified copies of its audited consolidated and non-consolidated (if any)
financial statements for its most recently completed fiscal year, prepared in
accordance with Indian GAAP including its balance sheet, income statement
and statement of cash flow. All such information shall be complete and
correct in all material respects and fairly represents the financial condition,
results of operation and changes in cash flow of the Company as of the date
thereof;

ii. Certificate from an independent chartered accountant conforming
compliance with the Financial Covenants based on audited financial
statement;

iii. Certificate signed by an statutory auditors shall be furnished on an annual
basis by the Issuer, certifying that the receivables created out of the issuance
are hypothecated to the Debenture Holder(s) and Debenture Holder(s) has
exclusive first charge on the receivables created out of the issuance and the
Security Cover of 1.20x. Such certificate should contain, amongst other
details, details of receivables (i.e. loan ID, location, amount sanctioned,
amount outstanding, overdue status) hypothecated to Debenture Holder(s).

Event Based Reports

i. The Company shall provide/cause to be provided information to the
Debenture Trustee (and to the Debenture Holders, if so requested) as soon
as practicable, and in any event within 10 Ten) Business Days from the
occurrence of such event:
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a. the Company obtains or reasonably should have obtained actual
knowledge thereof, notice of the occurrence of any event or circumstance
that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect;

b. the Company obtains or reasonably should have obtained actual
knowledge thereof, notice of any dispute, litigation, investigation or other
proceeding affecting the Company or its property or operations, which, if
adversely determined, could result in a Material Adverse Effect;

c. the Company obtains actual knowledge thereof, notice of the occurrence
of any Event of Default or potential Event of Default, specifying the nature
of such event and any steps the Company is taking and proposes to take
to remedy the same;

d. the Company makes any prepayment or receives a notice of any
prepayment of any Financial Indebtedness of the Company as a result of
event of default;

e. Any dispute, litigation, investigation, or other proceeding against the
Company which has a Material Adverse Effect;

f.  Any Event of Default, and any steps taken/ proposed to remedy the same;
g. Change in shareholding structure;
h. the Company alters its Constitutional Documents; and
i. any notice of any application for winding up having been made or receipt
of any statutory notice of winding up under the provisions of the Act or any
other notice under any other law or otherwise of any suit or legal process
intended to be filed and affecting the title to the property of the Company.
i. Any exercising of put option wherever applicable by any debt holder shall be
intimated within 15 (Fifteen) Business Days of such action to the Debenture

Trustee and Debenture Trustee shall have similar rights on the aforesaid debt.

f. Disclosures under listing regulations

The Company disclose all such information to the Debenture Trustee under
applicable laws and shall file with the BSE all such information as required under
SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars and Regulations including all disclosures as set
out in Clause 2.14 (l) of this Key Information Document.

(V) FINANCIAL COVENANTS

The Company shall comply with each of the following financial covenants at all times
until the redemption of all outstanding Debentures:

a) Total Debt/Tangible networth ratio to be within 4x

b) Maintenance of minimum capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 20.00% or
regulatory minimum requirement as prescribed by RBI, whichever is higher

c) Gross NPA to Total AUM not more than 7%

d) Net NPA to Total AUM not more than 5%
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e)

f)

9)

h)

Earnings: After-tax Net Income (excluding extraordinary income) to remain
positive. The said covenant to be tested on quarterly and on Annual basis.
There shall not be any negative mismatches on cumulative basis in any of
the buckets till the next one year of ALM statement after incorporating all the
liabilities of the Issuer incorporating Put Options/ Reset Options etc. (in any
form). The asset will include all the unencumbered Cash and Cash
equivalent maturing across all the buckets of the ALM as part of the opening
asset balance. Unutilized bank lines, undisbursed committed sanctions of
the company and cash credit limits shall not be taken into account while
testing the same

Issuer shall not prepay any loans or redeem NCDs; voluntarily or
mandatorily before its stated maturity (subject to pre-agreed call options and
put options) such that it leads to a negative mismatch on cumulative basis
in any of the buckets of ALM statement up to the residual Tenor of the
Debenture after incorporating all the liabilities of the Issuer including Put
Options/interest reset on liabilities. Unutilized bank lines shall not be taken
into account while testing the same.

Any other additional covenant as may be mutually agreed and shall form a
part of the transaction documents.

Definitions
a. “CAR’refers to Capital Adequacy Ratio, for the purpose of calculation of CAR:

First loss credit enhancements provided by the issuer on securitization
shall be reduced from Tier | capital and Tier Il capital [without any ceiling]
Credit Enhancements provided by the issuer on loans originated in behalf
of the other institutions shall be reduced from Tier | and Tier Il capital
without any ceiling The deduction shall be at 50% from Tier | capital and
50% from Tier Il capital

It is also clarified that in computing the amount od subordinated debt shall
be subject to discounting ass prescribed by the RBI

b. “Net NPA” means Gross Non- Performing Assets — Total Provision held
c. “Tier | Capital” shall have the meaning given to it in the NBFC Master

Di

rections

d. “Tier Il Capital” shall have the meaning given to it in the NBFC Master

Di

rections

e. “Total Debt” is the sum of all the liabilities of the issuer which includes short-
term borrowing and long-term borrowing

f. “Tangible Net Worth” means, with respect to any person, the amount paid up
on such person’s issued equity share capital compulsorily convertible
instruments and any amount standing up to the credit of its reserves , less
equity and equity like investments, goodwill, deferred tax assets, and other
intangible assets.

All cove

nants would be tested on quarterly basis i.e. as on 31 March, 30 June, 30

Sept and 31 Dec every year, starting from March 31, 2025 on standalone balance
sheet till the redemption of the Debentures. The covenants shall be certified by the
statutory auditor of the Company within 45 (Forty-Five) calendar days from the end

of each

reporting quarter.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT
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a. Payment Defaults

The Company does not pay on the Due Date any amount payable pursuant to the
Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document and the Debentures
(including but not limited to penal interest, if any) at the place at and in the currency
in which it is expressed to be payable.

b. Insolvency / Inability to Pay Debts / Distress

i. The Company is unable or admits inability to pay its debts as they fall due,
suspends making payments on any of its debts or, by reason of actual or
anticipated financial difficulties, commences negotiations with one or more
of its creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its Financial Indebtedness.

ii. The Company is (or deemed by Law or a court to be) insolvent or bankrupt
or unable to pay its debts or stops or suspends payments of all its debts,
makes a general assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for
benefit of the relevant creditors in respect of any such debts or a moratorium
is agreed or declared in respect of or affecting all the debts of the Company.

iii. Any distress, attachment, execution or other legal process is levied,
enforced or sued out on or against any material part of the property, assets,
or revenues of the Company and is not discharged or quashed or stayed
within 15 (fifteen) days.

c. Charge over Hypothecated Assets

The Company creates or attempts to create any charge on the Hypothecated Assets
or any part thereof, in addition to the charge created pursuant to the Hypothecation
Agreement without the consent of the Majority Debenture Holders.

d. Business

The Company without obtaining the prior consent of the Majority Debenture Holders
ceases to carry on its business or gives notice of its intention to do so. Any revocation
of operating licenses of the Company issued by the Reserve Bank of India and/ or
the Securities and Exchange Board of India which would impact the business of the
Company;

Any failure by the Company to meet standards with respect to management,
governance, and data integrity, as may be required by the Investor as per RBI
regulations

e. Security in Jeopardy

i. In the opinion of the Debenture Trustee the Hypothecated Assets is in
jeopardy;

ii. If, the security provided pursuant to the Hypothecation Agreement

depreciates in value to such an extent that in the reasonable opinion of the
Trustee further security should be given and on advising the Company to
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that effect such security has not been given to the Debenture Trustee to their
satisfaction;

ii. If, without the prior written approval of the Debenture Trustee, the
Hypothecated Assets or any part thereof is transferred, assigned, charged,
encumbered or alienated but no prior approval shall require for the
replacement of assets comprising the Hypothecated Assets with other
similar assets; or

iv. the value of the Hypothecated Assets is insufficient to maintain the Security
Cover Ratio and Company fails to maintain the minimum-Security Cover
Ratio specified in the Hypothecation Agreement within the stipulated
timelines in the Hypothecation Agreement.

f. Misrepresentation

Any representation or warranty made by the Company in any Transaction Document
or in any certificate, financial statement or other document delivered to the
Debenture Trustee/Debenture Holders by the Company shall prove to have been
incorrect, false or misleading when made or deemed made.

g. Material Adverse Change

There shall have occurred a change in the business, operations, property, Assets,
liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise) or prospects of the Company since the
date hereof that has resulted in a Material Adverse Effect and such Material Adverse
Effect has not been remedied or rectified for a period of 30 (Thirty) Business Days.

If one or more legal or governmental proceedings have been initiated and admitted
by the competent court of law against the Company or any claims are made against
the Company, which in the opinion of the Majority Debenture Holder(s), may impair
the Company’s ability to perform its obligations undertaken in terms of the
Transaction Documents or which has a Material Adverse Effect;

h. Liquidation or Dissolution of the Company / Appointment of Receiver or
Liquidator

i. Any corporate action, legal proceedings or other procedure or step is taken
in relation to:

A. the suspension of payments, a moratorium of any Indebtedness, winding-
up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation, restructuring of borrowing
(by way of voluntary arrangement, scheme of arrangement or otherwise) of
the Company or its Affiliate;

B. acomposition, compromise, assignment or arrangement with any creditor of
the Company or its Affiliate;

C. the appointment of a liquidator, receiver, administrative receiver,

administrator, compulsory manager or other similar officer in respect of the
Company or its Affiliate; or
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D. the Company or its Affiliate, in respect of any reference or enquiry or
proceedings commenced, before the National Companies Law Tribunal or
under any mechanism or prescription of the RBI in respect of
resolution/restructuring of stressed assets (including without limitation,
under the RBI's circular no. DBR.No.BP.BC.45/21.04.048/2018-19 dated
June 7, 2019 on "Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets"
(as amended or modified or restated from time to time));

E. the commencement of an insolvency resolution process under the (Indian)
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (to the extent applicable) or under
any other applicable Law, in respect of the Company or its Affiliate; or

F. enforcement of any security over any Assets of the Company or its Affiliate.
Any other event occurs or proceeding instituted under any applicable Law
that would have an effect analogous to any of the events listed in sub-
Clauses (A) to (F) above.

G. An order is made or an effective resolution passed for the winding up or
dissolution, judicial management or administration of the Company, or the
Company ceases to carry on all of its business or operations, except for the
purpose of and followed by a reconstruction, amalgamation, re-organization,
merger or consolidation on terms approved by Majority Resolution of
Debenture Holders.

i. Cross Default
The Company

(i) defaults in any payment of any Financial Indebtedness beyond the period of
grace, if any, provided in the instrument or agreement under which such
Financial Indebtedness was created;

(i) defaults in the observance or performance of any agreement or condition
relating to any Financial Indebtedness or contained in any instrument or
agreement evidencing, securing or relating thereto or any other event shall
occur or condition exist, the effect of which default or other event or condition
is to cause or to permit the holder or holders of such Financial Indebtedness
to cause (determined without regard to whether any notice is required) any
such Financial Indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity; or

(iii) any Financial Indebtedness of the Company shall be declared to be due and
payable, or required to be prepaid other than by a regularly scheduled
required prepayment, prior to the stated maturity thereof.

(iv) Cross default of the Company (including where the Company has made a
payment default in relation to any of its financial indebtedness or there has
been acceleration of payment due to any covenant breach for any of its
financial indebtedness) or any securitisation exposures being downgraded;

j. Creditors' Process
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i. All or a material part of the undertaking, Assets, rights or revenues of the
Company are condemned, seized, nationalised, expropriated or
compulsorily acquired, or shall have assumed custody or control of the
business or operations of the Company, or shall have taken any action for
the dissolution of the Company, or any action that would prevent the
Company, their member, or their officers from carrying on their business or
operations or a substantial part thereof, by or under the authority of any
Government or any Government Authority.

i. The Company does not inform the Debenture Trustee of one or more of the
other creditors of the Company accelerating the payment obligations on the
grounds of a material adverse change (howsoever described) or a material
adverse effect (howsoever described) in the financial, operational or
regulatory conditions governing the Company.

iii. The Company has voluntarily or involuntarily becomes the subject of
proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws and such proceedings
have been admitted by a competent court or the Company is voluntarily or
involuntarily dissolved.

iv. The Company is adjudged insolvent or takes advantage of any law for the
relief of insolvent debtors.

v. Any restructuring of borrowing arrangement;

vi. Any expropriation, attachment, sequestration, distress or execution affects
any assets of the Company which has a Material Adverse Effect on their
ability to comply with its payment obligations under the Transaction
Documents in the opinion of the Majority Debenture Holders/Debenture
Trustee.

k. Judgments Defaults

One or more judgments or decrees entered against the Company involving a liability
individually or in the aggregate, exceeding 5% (five percent) of the Total Assets of
the Company PROVIDED THAT such judgments or decrees are either final and non-
appealable or have not been vacated, discharged or stayed pending appeal for any
period of 30 (thirty) consecutive calendar days.

I Transaction Documents

i. The Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key Information Document or any other
Transaction Document in whole or in part, are terminated or cease to be
effective or cease to be a legally valid, binding and enforceable obligation of
the Company.

ii. Inthe opinion of the Debenture Trustee, any of the Transaction Documents
fails to provide the security interest, rights, title, remedies, power or
privileges intended to be created thereby (including the priority intended to
be created thereby), or such security interests do not have the priority
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contemplated under the Transaction Documents, or the security interest
created thereunder become unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable.

m. Unlawfulness

Itis or becomes unlawful for the Company to perform any of its obligations under the
Transaction Documents and/or any obligation or obligations of the Company under
any Transaction Document are not or cease to be valid, binding or enforceable.

n. Repudiation

The Company repudiates any of the Transaction Documents, or evidences an
intention to repudiate any of the Transaction Documents.

o. Reporting Covenants

The failure to comply with any reasonably monitoring and/or servicing requests from
Debenture Holders, including its monthly, quarterly, annual and event-based
reporting requirements as required under the reporting covenants prescribed in
Section 3.1(c) of this Key Information Document in the event the same is not
remedied within the cure period provided in the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key
Information Document.

p. Government Intervention

i. Any step is taken by Governmental Authority or agency or any other
competent authority, with a view to the seizure, compulsory acquisition,
expropriation or nationalisation of all or (in the opinion of the Debenture
Trustee) a material part of the assets of the Company which is material to
the Company;

i. Any Governmental Authority having assumed custody or control of the
business or operations of the Company or having taken any action for the
dissolution of the Company or any action that would prevent the Company
or its officers from carrying on its business or operations thereof; or

iii. The Company's organizational or legal status, or any license or franchise is
revoked or suspended by any Governmental Authority or authority after the
Company has exhausted all remedies and appeals relating thereto.

g. Cessation

The Company ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the main business it is
currently engaged in.

r. Alteration in Constitutional Documents

The Company, without the previous consent in writing of the Debenture
Trustee/Majority Debenture Holders, makes or attempts to make any alteration in the
provisions of its Constitutional Documents where (i) such change affect the interests
of the Debenture Holder(s) and (ii) the Company refuses or neglects to or is unable
to rescind such alteration.
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s. Non-compliance with judicial order

The Company fails to comply with or fulfil any judicial order passed against it
provided however that such order shall not include any order against which appeal
is available or for which an appeal is pending.

t. Erosion of Net Worth

The Debenture Holders' assessment from quarterly or annual financial reporting from
the company, or at any time certified by an accountant of a firm or chartered
accountant appointed by the Debenture Trustee (which the Debenture Trustee is
entitled and hereby authorized to do so at any time), that the net worth (as defined
in the Act) of the Company has eroded by 50% or more.

u. Merger

The rearrangement or consolidation or amalgamation with or merger with or into, or
receiving of all or substantially all the assets or obligations of, another entity, or any
action for reorganisation of capital without the prior written consent of the Debenture
Trustee.

V. Sale, disposal

Sale, transfer, or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company's Assets
other than in the normal course of business of the Company.

w. Third party

A default or Event of Default occurs on account of a breach of representation or
breach of an information covenant under the terms of any other agreement involving
borrowed money or the extension of credit or any other Financial Indebtedness under
which the Company may be obligated as a borrower or guarantor (provided the same
is not remedied within the cure period provided under such agreements)and
pursuant to which the Company is called upon to and makes a prepayment to a 3rd
party without the prior written consent of the Debenture Holder. Such consent shall
not be unreasonably delayed or withheld by the Debenture Holders.

X. Revocation of license
Revocation of operating licenses or other authorisations of the Company

y. Wilful default
Any Promoters or directors or key management personnel of the Company is/are
declared as wilful defaulter by any competent authority or accused of, charged with,
arrested or convicted a criminal offence involving moral turpitude, any act of fraud,
misrepresentation, negligence and default, dishonesty or which otherwise impinges
on the integrity of the promoter/s and/or director, including any accusations, charges

and/or convictions of any offence relating to bribery.

z. Breach of Covenants
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aa.

a. Any breach of financial covenants stipulated in Section 3.1(d) of this Key
Information Document and such breach is not remedied within the Cure
Period for Financial Covenants (if capable of remedy).

b. Any breach of negative covenants mentioned in Section 3.1(b) of this Key
Information Document such breach is not remedied within the Cure Period
for Negative Covenants (if capable of remedy).

c. Any breach of reporting covenants mentioned in Section 3.1(c) of this Key
Information Document and such breach is not remedied within the Cure

Period for Reporting Covenants (if capable of remedy).

d. Any breach of other covenants as stated in the Transaction Documents and
the same is not cured within the Cure Period for Other Covenants.

Failure to report event of default and other obligations

Failure to certify/confirm the non-occurrence of any Event of Default in the manner
prescribed in the Transaction Document;

CONSEQUENCES OF AN EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

If one or more of the events specified in Section 3.2 of this Key Information Document occur(s),
the Debenture Trustee may, in its discretion, that is, without requiring any consent or
confirmation of the Company, and upon request in writing of Majority Debenture Holders or by a
Maijority Resolution duly passed at the meeting of the Debenture Holders held in accordance
with the provisions set out in Clause 6 (Provisions for the meetings of the Debenture Holders)
hereto by a notice in writing to the Company initiate the following course of action:

a.

require the Company to mandatorily redeem the Debentures and repay the principal
amount on the Debentures, along with accrued but unpaid interest, and other costs,
charges and expenses incurred under or in connection with the Debenture Trust Deed/
this Key Information Document and other Transaction Documents;

declare all or any part of the Debentures to be immediately (or on such dates as the
Debenture Trustee may specify) due and payable, whereupon it shall become so due
and payable;

enforce any security created pursuant to the Hypothecation Agreement in accordance
with its terms, as may be set out herein or therein, towards repayment of the
Debentures;

appoint any independent agency to inspect and examine the working of the Company
and give a report to Debenture Holders/ the Debenture Trustee. The Company shall
give full co-operation and provide necessary assistance to such agency and bear all
costs and expenses of the examination including the professional fees and travelling
and other expenses;

to appoint a nominee director as per the SEBI (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993
on the board of directors of the Company or to appoint an observer to all meetings of
the board of directors of the Company,

take necessary action of either enforcing the security or entering into the Inter Creditor
Agreement or take any other action as decided in the meeting of Debenture Holder(s)
based on the decision of the Debenture Holder(s) with Majority Debenture Holders,
including the decision of formation of a committee of the Debenture Holder(s) to
participate in the inter creditor agreement or to enforce the Security or as may be
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decided in the meeting of Debenture Holder(s). Such a committee, if decided to be
formed, may comprise of the designated members representing the interest of the ISIN
level Debenture Holder(s) under the Debentures and be responsible to take decisions
which shall be binding on the specific ISIN level Debenture Holder(s) relating to inter
creditor agreement matters, or in relation to enforcement of the Security, or take any
other action as may be decided by the Debenture Holder(s), from time to time. The
Debenture Trustee(s) may in accordance with the decision of the Debenture Holder(s),
sign the ICA and consider the resolution plan, if any, on behalf of the Debenture
Holder(s)/ Beneficial Owners in accordance with the requirements under the extant RBI
guidelines, SEBI circulars, guidelines and other applicable Laws.

g. take all such other action expressly permitted under the Debenture Trust Deed/ this Key
Information Document or in the other Transaction Documents or permitted under the
Law including invocation of guarantee (if applicable); and

h. Entering into, and the performance of any obligations under any inter-creditor
agreement (pursuant to the RBI's circular no. DBR.No.BP.BC.45/21.04.048/2018-19
dated June 7, 2019 on "Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets", as
amended, modified or restated from time to time) or any resolution plan shall be subject
to the terms of the relevant circular issued by SEBI related to defaults (including without
limitation, the resolution plan being finalised within the time period prescribed in any
such circular/law.

i. exercise such other rights as the Debenture Trustee may deem fit under applicable Law
to protect the interest of the Debenture Holders.

*This Key Information Document shall be treated as a Transaction Document and should be read
with other Transaction Documents.

92



Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

SECTION 4: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Non-Convertible Securities being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the
Act, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Key Information
Document, Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the
Transaction Documents.

41 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be entitled
to transfer the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The
Debenture(s) shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Act and other applicable laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred
subject to and in accordance with the rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL and CDSL and the
relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any other applicable laws and rules notified in respect
thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities are completed prior to the
Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be paid/redemption will be made to the
person, whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holders maintained by the R&T Agent as
on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where the transfer formalities have not been
completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need to be settled with the
transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for transfer of securities held in
dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form.
The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the buyer’'s DP account to his DP.

4.2 Non-Convertible Securities held in Dematerialised Form

The Non-Convertible Securities shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the
part of the Non-Convertible Securities Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption
proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on
the list of beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The names would be as per the R&T Agent's
records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Non-Convertible Securities
will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name
and account number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T
Agent to the Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation
by EFT/RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

4.3 Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange,
share or part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the
Issuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus,
agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates
nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

4.4 Non-Convertible Securities Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than
those available to them under the Act. The Non-Convertible Securities shall not confer upon the
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Debenture Holders the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of
the shareholders of the Issuer.

4.5 Modification of Non-Convertible Securities

The Debenture Trustee and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the General Information
Document which, in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or
is to correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Non-Convertible Securities shall require approval
by the Majority Debenture Holders.

4.6 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to
accept or reject any application for subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities, in part or in full,
without assigning any reason thereof.

4.7 Notices

Any notice in respect of the Non-Convertible Securities may be served by the Issuer upon the
Debenture Trustee/Debenture Holders in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

4.8 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Non-Convertible Securities by
completing the Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the
instructions contained therein. The minimum number of Non-Convertible Securities that can be
applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the Application Form. No application can be
made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be duly completed in all respects and
applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the applicant’s
bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the applicant. This is required
for the applicant's own safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or
redemptions warrants.

4.9 Application Procedure through EBP Bid Process as per EBP Guidelines:

a. Inorder to be able to bid under the BSE EBP Platform, Eligible Investors must have provided
the requisite documents (including but not limited to know your customer) in accordance with
the EBP Guidelines or applicable law. The Company is entitled at any time to require an Eligible
Investor to provide any know your customer or other documents as may be required to be
maintained by it or delivered to a third party by it in accordance with applicable laws.

All Eligible Investors are required to register themselves as a one-time exercise (if not already
registered) with the BSE EBP Platform for participating in electronic book building mechanism.

Eligible Investors should refer the operating guidelines for issuance of debt securities on private
placement basis through an electronic book mechanism as available on the website of BSE.

Eligible Investors will also have to complete the mandatory know your customer verification
process. Eligible Investors should refer to the EBP Guidelines in this respect.
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The details of the Issue shall be entered on the BSE EBP Platform by the Company at least 2
(two) Business Days prior to the Issue Opening Date, in accordance with the EBP Guidelines.

The Issue will be open for bidding for the duration of the bidding window that would be
communicated through the Issuer’s bidding announcement on the BSE EBP Platform, at least
1 (one) Business Day before the start of the Issue Opening Date.

Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current EBP Guidelines on issuance of securities on
private placement basis through an EBP mechanism, are as follows:

Modification of Bid: Eligible Investors may note that modification of bid is allowed during the
bidding period or window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period or window,
revision of bid is only allowed for upward revision of the bid amount placed or to improve the
coupon or yield by the Eligible Investor.

Cancellation of Bid: Eligible Investors may note that cancellation of bid is allowed during the
bidding period or window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period or window, no
cancellation of bids is permitted.

Multiple Bids: Bidders are permitted to place multiple bids on the BSE EBP Platform in line with
the BSE EBP Guidelines and the EBP Guidelines.

Manner of bidding: The Issue will be through closed bidding on the BSE EBP platform in line
with the BSE EBP Guidelines and the EBP Guidelines.

Manner of allotment: The allotment will be done on uniform yield basis in line with the BSE EBP
Guidelines and the EBP Guidelines.

Manner of settlement: Settlement of the Issue will be done through online transfer and the
account details are given in the section on Payment Mechanism of this General Information
Document.

Settlement cycle: The process of pay-in of funds by investors and pay-out to Company will be
done on T+2 trading day, where T is the Issue Closing Date.

Offer or Issue of executed offer letters cum application forms to successful Eligible Investors.
The offer letters cum application forms along with the Application Form will be issued to the
successful Eligible Investors, who are required to complete and submit the Application form to
the Company in order to accept the offer of Debentures.

No person other than the successful Eligible Investors to whom the offer letters cum application
forms has been issued by the Company may apply for the issue through the offer letters cum
application forms received from a person other than those specifically addressed will be invalid.
However, Eligible Investors should refer to the EBP Guidelines as prevailing on the date of the
bid.

The final subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities shall be made by the Eligible Investors
through the electronic book mechanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Guidelines by
placing bids on the electronic book platform during the Issue period. In case the Eligible Investors
are not registered on the EBP Platform, they will have to register themselves as investor on the
said platform (as a one-time exercise) and also complete the mandatory KYC verification
process. The Eligible Investors should also refer to the operational guidelines of the EBP in this
respect. The disclosures required pursuant to the EBP Guidelines are set out hereinbelow:

Details of size of the | Total Issue: Issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand Five
Issue including green | Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
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shoe option, if any redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five
Crores Only) ("Debentures")

Base Issue: 2000 (Two Thousand) senior, secured, rated,
listed, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of
the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
Only) each aggregating to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Twenty Crores Only)

Green Shoe Option: up to 1500 (One Thousand Five
Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only)

Anchor Portion Details NIL

Interest rate parameter Fixed Coupon

Bid opening and closing | Bid opening date: 13 February 2025

date Bid closing date: 13 February 2025

Minimum Bid lot INR 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Only) and in multiples
of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) thereafter

Manner of bidding in the

Issue/ Bid Type Closed

Manner of allotment in | Uniform Yield Allotment

the Issue

Manner of settlement in | Pay-in of funds through ICCL.

the Issue The pay-in of the Application Money for the Debentures shall

be made by way of transfer of funds from the bank account(s)
of the Eligible Investors (whose bids have been accepted) as
registered with the Electronic Book Provider into the account
of the ICCL, as specified in this regard below.

Settlement cycle & | T+1

Deemed Date of | (T being the day of bidding as per working day convention of
Allotment recognized stock exchanges)

Settlement of the Issue will be on 14 February 2025.

71 Process flow of settlement:

The Eligible Investors whose bids have been accepted by the Issuer and to whom a signed copy of
this General Information Document along with the PPOA have been issued by the Issuer and who
have submitted/shall submit the Application Form ("Successful Bidders"), shall make the payments
in respect of the Application Money in respect of the Debentures towards the allocation made to them,
into the bank account of the ICCL, the details of which are as set out below:

Name of Bank HDFC BANK

IFSC Code HDFC0000060

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.
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IFSC Code ICIC0000106

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD
Name of Bank YES BANK

IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

The pay-in of the Application Money by the Successful Bidders will be made only from the bank
account(s), which have been provided / updated by them in the EBP system. Any amount received
from third party accounts or from accounts not specified in the EBP system will be refunded and no
allotment will be made against such payments. Upon the transfer of funds into the aforesaid account
of ICCL and the Issuer confirming its decision to proceed with the allotment of the Debentures in
favour of the Successful Bidders to the ICCL, the R&T Agent and the EBP and initiating the requisite
corporate action for allotment of Debentures and credit of the demat letter of allotment into the
relevant demat account of the Successful Bidders through the R&T Agent, the R&T Agent shall
provide corporate action file along with all requisite documents to the relevant Depositories by 12:00
hours and also intimate the EBP of the aforesaid actions. Upon the Depositories confirming the
allotment of the Debentures and the credit of the Debentures into the demat account of the Successful
Bidders to EBP, the subscription monies in respect of the Debentures from the aforesaid account of
ICCL shall be released into the Issuer’s bank account, the details of which are as set out below:

Beneficiary Name | AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS P L OUTWARD A/C

Bank Account No. | 433305000397

IFSC Code ICIC0004333

Bank Name ICICI Bank Limited

Branch Address Block- B, Vatika First India Place, MG Road, Gurugram- 122001

It must be noted that all funds pay-in obligations need to be fulfilled in totality. Partial fund receipt
against any given obligation will be treated as a default and debarment penalties will be applicable
as specified by the EBP Requirements and other Applicable Law.

Basis of Allocation or Allotment: Allocation shall be made as approved by the Company in accordance
with applicable NCS Listing Regulations, Operations Guidelines, and applicable laws. Post
completion of bidding process, the Company will upload the provisional allocation on the BSE EBP
Platform. Post receipt of details of the successful Eligible Investors, the Company will upload the final
allocation file on the BSE EBP Platform.

Payment Mechanism: Payment of subscription money for the Debentures should be made by the
successful Eligible Investor as notified by the Company. Successful Eligible Investors should do the
funds pay-in to the account.

Successful Eligible Investors should ensure to make payment of the subscription amount for the
Debentures from their same bank account which is updated by them in the BSE EBP Platform while
placing the bids. In case of mismatch in the bank account details between BSE EBP Platform and
the bank account from which payment is done by the successful bidder, the payment would be
returned.

Note: In case of failure of any successful bidders to complete the subscription amount payments by
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the Pay-in Time or the funds are not received in the Designated Bank Account by the Pay-in Time for
any reason whatsoever, the bid will be liable to be rejected and the Company shall not be liable to
issue the Debentures to such successful bidders.

Settlement Process: Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Company or the Registrar and Transfer
Agent on behalf of the Company shall instruct the Depositories on the Pay-in Date, and the
Depositories shall accordingly credit the allocated Debentures to the demat account of the successful
Eligible Investor. The Company shall give the instruction to the Registrar and Transfer Agent for
crediting the Debentures by 12:00 noon on the Pay-In Date. The Registrar shall provide corporate
action file along with all requisite documents to Depositories by 12:00 noon on the Pay-In Date. On
the Pay-In Date, the Depositories shall confirm to effect the transfer of Debentures in the demat
account(s) of the successful Eligible Investors post-allocation disclosures by the EBP. Upon final
allocation by the Issuer, the Company shall disclose the Issue Size, coupon rate, ISIN, number of
successful bidders, category of the successful bidder(s), etc., in accordance with the EBP Guidelines.

The EBP shall upload such data, as provided by the Issuer, on its website to make it available to the
public. Deemed Date of Allotment Interest on Debentures shall accrue to the Debenture Holder(s)
from and including the Deemed Date of Allotment. All benefits relating to the Debentures will be
available to the investor(s) from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The actual allotment of Debentures
may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date of Allotment. The Company reserves the right
to modify allotment date or Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole and absolute discretion without any
notice. In case if the issue closing date is changed, the Deemed Date of Allotment may also be
changed by the Company at its sole and absolute discretion.

Withdrawal of Issue: The Company may, at its discretion, withdraw the issue process on the
conditions set out under the EBP Guidelines. Provided that the Company shall accept or withdraw
the issue on the BSE EBP Platform within 1 (one) hour of the closing of the bidding window, and not
later than 6 pm on the Issue Closing Date. However, Eligible Investors should refer to the EBP
Guidelines as prevailing on the date of the bid. If the Company has withdrawn the Issue, and the
cutoff yield of the Issue is higher that the estimated cutoff yield disclosed to the BSE EBP Platform,
the estimated cut off yield shall be mandatorily disclosed by the BSE EBP Platform to the Eligible
Investors. The expression ‘estimated cut off yield’ means yield so estimated by the Company, prior
to opening of issue on the BSE EBP Platform. The disclosure of estimated cut off yield by BSE EBP
Platform to the Eligible Investors, pursuant to closure of the issue, shall be at the discretion of the
Company.

7.2 Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the
General Information Document during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue
Closing Date (both dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule
including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons. The Issue
will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the
Issue Schedule, and the procedure will be subject to the EBP Guidelines.

410 Fictitious Applications

Al fictitious applications will be rejected.

4.11 Basis of Allotment

98



Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any
application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason. In case of over subscription, allotment
shall be made on a "price time priority basis" in accordance with the EBP Guidelines. The investors
will be required to remit the funds in the account of the ICCL as well as submit the duly completed
Application Form along with other necessary documents to the Issuer by the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

412  Eligible Investors

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached and have been identified upfront,
are eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective
investment norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant
documents along with the Application Form (“Eligible Investors”):

1. Any non-QIB including:
a) Individuals except Politically Exposed Person;
) Hindu Undivided Family;
) Trust;
d) Limited Liability Partnerships;
) Partnership Firm(s);
f)  Portfolio Managers registered with SEBI;
g) Association of Persons;
h) Companies and Bodies Corporate including Public Sector Undertakings;
i)  Commercial Banks;
j)  Regional Rural Banks;
k) Financial Institutions;
I)  Insurance Companies;
m) Mutual Funds;
n) FPls /Flls, /sub-accounts of Flls;
o) NBFCs;
p) Any other investor eligible to invest in these Debentures;

O

2. Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) as defined under Regulation 2 (ss) of SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to
them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

413  Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP’s of NSDL and
CDSL prior to making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number
and DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Non-

Convertible Securities in Electronic/Dematerialised Form”.

(c) Non-Convertible Securities allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s
respective beneficiary account(s) with the DP.
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(d) For subscribing to the Non-Convertible Securities, names in the Application Form should be
identical to those appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the
names should necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details
maintained with the DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue.

() If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of Non-
Convertible Securities in Electronic/Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be
deemed to be an incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the
sole discretion of the Issuer.

(9) For allotment of Non-Convertible Securities, the address, nomination details and other details
of the applicant as registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the
applicant. The applicant is therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic
details given in the Application Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information
is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the losses, if any.

(h) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record
Date. In case of those Non-Convertible Securities for which the beneficial owner is not
identified in the records of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in
abeyance the payment of the redemption amount or other benefits, until such time that the
beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the
redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

414 Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with CDSL and NSDL for issue and holding of
Debenture in dematerialised form.

415 List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record
Date. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

416  Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with
the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax
exemption certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of
the completed Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority
should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es)
as may be specified by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a
certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along
with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making
the application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.
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Names and specimen signatures of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the
submission of the completed Application Form.

417  Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be
made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the
SEBI and such applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application
made by the asset management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the
scheme for which the application has been made.

The Application Forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of:

(a) SEBI registration certificate
(b) Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions
(c) Specimen signature of authorized signatories

418 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable:

(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
(b) Resolution authorising investment

(c) Certified true copy of the Power of Attorney to custodian

(d) Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(e) SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

(f) Copy of PAN card

(9) Application Form (including EFT/RTGS details)

419 Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant
and the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of
redemption amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through
cheque/EFT/RTGS.

420 Succession

In the event of winding up of a Debenture Holder (being a company), the Issuer will recognise the
legal representative as having title to the Debenture(s). The Issuer shall not be bound to recognize

such legal representative as having title to the Debenture(s), unless they obtains legal representation,
from a court in India having jurisdiction over the matter.

101



Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such legal
representation, in order to recognise any person as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the
name of the concerned Debenture Holder on the production of sufficient documentary proof and an
indemnity.

421 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheque(s) demand draft(s), EFT/RTGS as set out in the
Application Form.

4.22  Effect of Holidays

(a) If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a day which is
not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the
succeeding Business Day.

(b) If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal Amounts are payable falls on a day
which is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on
the preceding Business Day.

(c) If the Final Redemption Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the payment of any
amounts in respect of any interest and the Outstanding Principal Amounts to be made shall
be made on the preceding Business Day.

4.23 Tax Deduction at Source

(a) All payments to be made by the Company to the Debenture Holders under the Transaction
Documents shall be made free and clear of and without any Tax Deduction unless the
Company is required to make a Tax Deduction pursuant to Applicable Law.

(b) The Company shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax Deduction (or
that there is any change in the rate or the basis of a Tax Deduction) notify the Debenture
Trustee accordingly.

(c) If the Company is required to make a Tax Deduction, it shall make that Tax Deduction and
any payment required in connection with that Tax Deduction within the time allowed and in
the minimum amount required by Applicable Law.

(d) Within the earlier of (A) 60 (sixty) days of making either a Tax Deduction or any payment
required in connection with that Tax Deduction or (B) 60 (sixty) days of each Due Date, the
Company shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Debenture Trustee that the Tax Deduction has been made or (as applicable) any appropriate
payment paid to the relevant taxing authority.

4.24 Letters of Allotment

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read together with the requirements in
respect of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed
in Chapter VIl (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities issued on a private placement
basis) of the SEBI Master Circular, the Issuer shall ensure that the Non-Convertible Securities are
credited into the demat accounts of the Debenture Holders of the Non-Convertible Securities within
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2 (two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.
4.25 Deemed Date of Allotment

Deemed Date of Allotment All the benefits under the Debentures, including but not limited to the
payment of Coupon, will accrue to the Investor from the deemed date of allotment. The deemed date
of allotment for the Issue is 14 February 2025.

All benefits related to the Debentures will be available to the Debenture Holders from the Deemed
Date of Allotment. The actual allotment of the Debentures may take place on a date other than the
Deemed Date of Allotment. The Company reserves the right to keep multiple allotment
date(s)/Deemed date(s) of Allotment at its sole and absolute discretion without any notice to the
Debenture holders. In case the Issue Closing Date is revised, the Deemed Date of Allotment may
also be revised by the Company at its sole and absolute discretion.

426 Record Date
Record Date shall be 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to the relevant Payment Date
427 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be
dispatched within 7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of
the application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the
R&T Agent shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys
to the extent of such excess, if any.

4.28 Interest on Application Monies

Not applicable

4.29 Pan Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income Tax
Act, 1961, on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application forms
without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

4.30 Redemption

The face value of the Debentures shall be redeemed at par, on the Redemption Date. The
Debentures will not carry any obligation, for interest or otherwise, after the Redemption Date. The
Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Redemption Amount by the Issuer on
the Final Redemption Date to the registered Debenture Holders whose name appear in the
Debenture Register on the Record Date. Such payment will be a legal discharge of the liability of the

Issuer towards the Debenture Holders.

4.31 Payment on Redemption
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Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)redemption warrant(s)/demand
draft(s)/credit through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record
Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer
on maturity to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture
Holder(s) on the Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL and CDSL
and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL and CDSL will be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of
the Issuer shall stand extinguished.

4.32 Payment of Coupon

Coupon for each of the Coupon periods shall be computed on an actual/actual days a year basis on
the principal outstanding on the Debentures at the Coupon Rate.If the Coupon period from start date
to end date includes February 29, then interest shall be paid on the basis of (end date-start date)/366.

4.33  Eligibility to come out with the Issue

The Issuer or the Person in control of the Issuer, or its promoter, has not been restrained or prohibited
any Governmental Authority from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities and such
direction or order is in force.

4.34 Registration and Government approvals

The Issuer can undertake the activities proposed by it in view of the present approvals and no further
approval from any Governmental Authority(ies) is required by it to undertake the proposed activities
save and except those approvals which may be required to be taken in the normal course of business
from time to time.

4.35  Authority for the Issue

This present private placement of Debentures is being made pursuant to the resolution passed by
the board of directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 02, 2024 and shareholders of
the Company at its meeting held on 10" May 2023. A copy of the board resolution and shareholders
resolution is attached hereto as Annexure X and Annexure Xl respectively.

4.36 Date of Allotment

All benefits relating to Debentures will be available to the Investors from the Deemed Date of
Allotment. The actual allotment of Debentures may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date
of Allotment. In case if the issue closing date of Debentures is changed (pre-poned/ postponed), the
Deemed Date of Allotment of Debentures may also be changed (pre-poned/ postponed) by the Issuer
at its sole and absolute discretion.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this General Information Document has
been specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all
respects, is liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents
provided above is only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents /
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authorizations / information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not
bound to, revert to any investor for any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject
an application as it deems fit. Provisions in respect of investment by investors falling in the categories
mentioned above are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to
invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is required to
check and comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc. governing or regulating their
investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible
for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or
confirm the same.

105



Key Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: February 11, 2025 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)
SECTION 5: FORM NO. PAS-4

(Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(3) of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014)

Note: This Form No PAS-4 is prepared in accordance with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014.

ISSUE OF UP TO 3500 (THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED,
LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE FACE
VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR
35,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES THIRTY-FIVE CRORES ONLY) ( “NCDS”/ “DEBENTURE(S)”)
COMPRISING OF (I) A BASE ISSUE OF A BASE ISSUE OF 2000 (TWO THOUSAND) SENIOR,
SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY)
EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 20,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES TWENTY CRORES ONLY) AND
(I) A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF UP TO 1500 (ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR,
SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY)
EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 15,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES FIFTEEN CRORES ONLY)
(“GREEN SHOE OPTION”), IN A DEMATERIALISED FORM ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS
(THE “ISSUE”) (HEREINAFTER REFFERED TO AS “DEBENTURES”) BY AKARA CAPITAL
ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”’) OR (“ISSUER”).

5.1 General Information:

(a) Name, address, website, if any, and other contact details of the Company,
indicating both registered office and the corporate office:

Issuer / Company: Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited (the "lssuer" or
"Company" or " Akara Capital ")

Registered Office: 60, Second Floor, Arjun Nagar, Kotla Mubarak Pur, New
Delhi - 110003, India

Corporate Office: Unit Nos. 1801, 1805, 1806A, 1806B, 1807A, 1807B and
1815, 18" Floor, Magnum Global Park — 2, Golf Course
Road Extension Road, Sector — 58, Gurugram — 122011,

Haryana
Telephone No.: 9643309883
Website: www.stashfin.com
Fax: NA
Contact Person: Shruti Aggarwal
Email: accounts@stashfin.com
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(b)

(d)

Date of Incorporation of the Company:
11/02/2016

Business carried on by the Company and its subsidiaries with the details of
branches or units, if any;

Incorporated in 2016, Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited (ACAPL) is a Delhi
based Non deposit taking NBFC (ND-NBFC) registered with RBI effective 2017.
ACAPL is promoted by Morus Technologies Pte. Limited. ACAPL is engaged in
lending customized personal loan products ranging from Rs.0.01 lacs to Rs.5 lacs,
primarily to salaried customer segment. The company is originating and disbursing
loans through ‘Stashfin’, a platform developed and operated along with a group
company, EQX Analytics Private Limited (EAPL).

Branch details:

As of the date of this Key Information Document, the Company has one branch.
The Company has its Corporate Office/Branch Office at Unit Nos. 1801, 1805,
1806A, 1806B, 1807A, 1807B and 1815, 18" Floor, Magnum Global Park — 2, Golf
Course Road Extension Road, Sector — 58, Gurugram — 122011, Haryana.

Subsidiary details:

As of the date of this Key Information Document, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries.

Brief particulars of the management of the Company:

Designation Profile
1. Tushar Aggarwal Managing Over 16 years of work
Director experience in Investment

Banking and Private Equity in
India and United States.
Previous work experience at
Goldman Sachs, Lehman
Brothers and General Atlantic
and Everstone. CFA Charter
holder. Graduate of Wharton
Business School and Stony
Brook University.

2. Shruti Aggarwal Director Over 16 years of experience in
financial services and
entrepreneurship. Previous work
experience in Investment
Banking with Merrill Lynch in
New York and PWC in India.
Graduate of Columbia University
and SRCC.
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3. Radhakrishnan Independent | Almost four decades of Banking
Ramchandra lyer Director Experience.
4. Vijuy Ronjan Independent | 36 years of banking experience
Director in the Indian banking industry.
5. Vijay Jasuja Independent | 41 years of BFSI experience in
Director leadership  positions  across
Indian and overseas market.

(e)

Name, addresses, Director Identification Number (DIN) and occupations of the

directors:
S. No. Name Designation DIN Address Occupation
Tushar Managing 6 A/2, Raj Narain Road, | Service
! Aggarwal | Director 01587360 Civil Lines, Delhi-110054
Shruti . 6 A/2, Raj Narain Road, | Service
2| Aggarwal | Director 08867269 | iyl Lines, Delhi-110054
Radhakris 4B, Swami Vivekanand | Service
hnan Independent CHS, Azad Nagar Road
3 Ramacha | Director 01309312 3, Andheri West, Mumbai
ndra lyer - 400058
Viiu Independent R-145, Ground Floor | Service
4 Réﬂ’.’an Direstor 09345384 | Greater Kailash, Part 1
J Delhi-110048
A-204, Paras Emperor, | Consultant,
Vijay Independent Bawadia Kalan, Bhopal | Credit Card
5 Jasuja Director 07924822 University, Bhopal, M.P.-
462026

5.2

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS:

Please refer to Section 3 of the General Information Document.

5.3

RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

Please refer to Section 3 of the General Information Document.

5.4

and present status, in repayment of:

(@)
(b)
(c)

Statutory Dues: Nil

Debentures and interest thereon: Nil

Deposits and interest thereon: Nil

Details of defaults, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default,
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(d) Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon: Nil

Name, designation, address and phone number, email ID of the nodal / compliance
officer of the Company, if any, for the private placement offer process:

Name of
NOd.a|/C0mp Designation Corporate Phone No. Email ID
liance Address
officer

Mr. Simarjeet | Compliance 18" Floor, +91- simarjeet.singh@sta

Singh Officer Magnum Global 9015676297 | shfin.com
Part, Sector 58,
Gurgaon,
Haryana

Any default in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the
rules made thereunder:

NIL

Particulars of the Offer:

Financial position of the Company for | As set out in Section 4 of the General Information
the last 3 (three) financial years Document

Date of passing of Board Resolution Board resolution dated 11 February 2025.

A copy of which is attached in Annexure V hereto.

Date of passing of resolution in the | Shareholders resolutions under Section 42 of the
general meeting, authorizing the offer | Companies Act, 2013 dated November 14, 2024.
of securities

A copy of which is attached in Annexure VI hereto

Kind of securities offered (i.e. whether
share or debenture) and class of
security; the total number of shares or
other securities to be issued

Total Issue: Issue of up to 3500 (Three Thousand
Five Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed,
transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures
of the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
One Lakh Only) each aggregating to INR
35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores
Only) ("Debentures")

Base Issue: 2000 (Two Thousand) senior, secured,
rated, listed, transferable, redeemable non-
convertible debentures of the face value of INR
1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Only) each
aggregating to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Twenty Crores Only)

Green Shoe Option: up to 1500 (One Thousand Five
Hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face
value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh
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Only) each aggregating to INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)

Price at which the security is being
offered, including premium if any,
along with justification of the price

The Debentures are being offered at par.

Name and address of the valuer who
performed valuation of the security
offered, and basis on which the price
has been arrived at along with report
of the registered valuer

Not applicable.

The class or classes of persons to
whom the allotment is proposed to be
made

Please refer to ‘Eligible Investors’ under Section 4.4 of
this Key Information Document.

Intention of promoters, directors or
key managerial personnel to subscribe
to the offer (applicable in case they
intend to subscribe to the offer) [Not
required in case of issue of non-
convertible debentures]

Not Applicable.

The proposed time within which the
allotment shall be completed

The Debentures will be deemed to be allotted on 14
February 2025 (“Deemed Date of Allotment”), and
the Company will ensure that the Debentures are
credited into the demat accounts of the holders of the
Debentures (“Debenture Holders”) within 1 (one)
Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment,
each in accordance with the debenture trust deed
(“Debenture Trust Deed”) to be entered into between
the Company and the debenture trustee (“Debenture
Trustee”).

In any case, the period within which the Debentures
will be allotted will not exceed the maximum period of
60 (sixty) days from the date of receipt of application
money, as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

The names of the proposed allottees
and the percentage of post private
placement capital that may be held by
them [Not applicable in case of issue
of non-convertible debentures]

Not Applicable.

The change in control, if any, in the
company that would occur
consequent to the private placement

Not Applicable

The number of persons to whom
allotment on preferential basis /
private placement / rights issue has

As set out in Chapter D of the General Information
Document
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already been made during the year, in
terms of securities as well as price

The justification for the allotment
proposed to be made for consideration

other than cash together with
valuation report of the registered
valuer

Not applicable

Amount, which the Company intends
to raise by way of proposed offer of
securities

Please refer to the respective KID

Terms of raising of securities:

Duration, if

42 (forty two) months from the

applicable: Deemed Date of Allotment
Rate ()l 12.00% (Twelve-point zero zero
NG @NI@ Percent) per annum payable
Coupon: monthly
Cheque(s)/ demand draft/
electronic clearing services
(ECS)/credit through RTGS

system/funds transfer. Wherein the
subscription amounts on the
Debentures issued by the Issuer
should be paid into the account
details set out in Section 5.2
(Process flow of settlement) of this
Key Information Document.

Mode of
Payment

cheque(s) / electronic clearing
services (ECS)/credit  through
RTGS system/funds transfer

Mode of
Repayment

Proposed time schedule for which the
Issue/Offer Letter is valid

Issue Open Date: 13 February 2025

Issue Close Date: 13 February 2025

Pay-in Date: 14 February 2025

Deemed Date of Allotment: 14 February 2025

Purpose and objects of the Issue/Offer

Please refer section named “Ultilization of the Issue
Proceeds” in Section 3.15 (Issue Details) of this Key
Information Document

Contribution being made by the
promoters or directors either as part of
the offer or separately in furtherance
of such objects

NIL

Principal terms of assets charged as
security, if applicable

The amounts outstanding under the Debentures shall

be secured:

e on a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge
basis by way of hypothecation in favour of the
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Additional Security:

Debenture Trustee for the benefit of the
Debenture Holders over Identified Receivables of
the Issuer that fulfil the eligibility criteria set out
here below under the heading ‘Eligibility Criteria’
(“Hypothecated Assets”), with the prescribed
Security Cover on or prior to the Deemed Date of
Allotment;

Issuer shall ensure creation, registration and
perfection of the security over the Hypothecated
Assets by way of filing CHG-9 with the regulatory
authorities within 30 (thirty) calendar days from
the execution of Hypothecation Agreement;

The Outstanding Principal Amount, shall be
secured by (to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Holders) by a first ranking and exclusive charge of
1.20x (one decimal two zero times) cover over the
Hypothecated Assets which are free from any
encumbrances/charge/lien;

The Issuer shall on a monthly basis hypothecate
additional loans and/or replace such loans
constituting the Hypothecated Assets that do not
comply with the prescribed Eligibility Criteria, with
loans that meet the Eligibility Criteria set out below
to the Debenture Trustee such that the principal
amounts outstanding under the loans constituting
the Hypothecated Assets shall not be less than
1.20x (one decimal two zero times) of the
aggregate amount of principal outstanding under
the Debentures. Any additional loans added
pursuant to the above to secure the Debentures
shall be considered as part of the Hypothecated
Assets.

The Issue shall replace any ineligible Receivables
(beyond 90 dpd) with fresh receivables. Such
change of receivables shall be affected within 15
(fifteen) business days after the month end of the
Receivables becoming ineligible.

In the event of the Security Cover with respect to
Hypothecated Assets falling below the stipulated
cover, the Issuer shall, not later than 15 (fifteen)
Business Days after the occurrence of such event,
create security over additional performing loans
that fulfil the prescribed Eligibility Criteria.
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e The Issuer shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee
2 duly filled undated cheques in favour of
Debenture Trustee for the entire Issue size.

The details of significant and material | NIL
orders passed by the Regulators,
Courts and Tribunals impacting the
going concern status of the Company

and its future operations

The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the Company in the following format:

Pre-issue Post-issue
No. of Percentage No. of Percentage
shares (%) of shares (%) of
held shareholding held shareholding

A Promoters’ holding
Indian

1 Individual 100 0.00003% | 100 0.00003%
Bodies Corporate NIL NIL NIL NIL
Sub-total

31,59,93,898 99.99% | 31,59,93,898 99.99%

Sub-total (A) 31,59,93,998 100% 31,59,93,998 100%

B Non-promoters’ holding

1 Institutional Investors NIL NIL NIL NIL

2 Non-Institutional NIL NIL NIL NIL
Investors
Private Corporate NIL NIL NIL NIL
Bodies
Directors and relatives | NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indian public NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others (including Non- | NIL NIL NIL NIL
resident Indians)
Sub-total (B) NIL NIL NIL NIL
GRAND TOTAL 31,59,93,998 100 31,59,93,998 100

5.8 Mode of payment for subscription:
o Cheque
o Demand Draft
o Other Banking Channels
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5.9 Disclosure with regard to interest of directors, litigation, etc:

Any financial or other material | Nil
interest of the directors, promoters
or key managerial personnel in the
offer/ Issue and the effect of such
interest in so far as it is different
from the interests of other persons

Details of any litigation or legal | Nil
action pending or taken by any
Ministry or Department of the
Government or a statutory
authority against any promoter of
the Company during the last 3
(three) years immediately
preceding the year of the issue of
this private placement offer cum
application letter and any direction
issued by such Ministry or
Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation
or legal action shall be disclosed

Remuneration of directors (during

the current year and last 3 (three) . Fiscal Fiscal Eiscaly JEtscal
\ . Director FY 23- FY 22- FY FY
financial years)
24 23 21-22 20-21
Shruti 0.37cr 0.33Cr 0.47 1.32
Aggarwal Crore | Crore
Radhakrishnan | 0.13cr 0.15Cr | 0.075 0.01
Ramchandra Crore | Crore
lyer
Vijuy Ronjan 0.13cr 0.1425 NIL NIL
Cr
Vijay Jasuja 0.13cr 0.09 Cr NIL NIL

Related party transactions entered | As set out in Chapter C of the General Information
during the preceding 3 (three) | Document

financial years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this
private placement offer cum
application letter and current
financial year with regard to loans
made or, guarantees given or
securities provided

Summary of reservations or | Nil
qualifications or adverse remarks
of auditors in the last 5 (five)
financial years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this
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private placement offer cum
application letter and of their
impact on the financial statements
and financial position of the
Company and the corrective steps
taken and proposed to be taken by
the Company for each of the said
reservations or qualifications or
adverse remark

Details of any inquiry, inspections
or investigations initiated or
conducted under the securities
law or Companies Act or any
previous company law in the last 3
(three) years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of
this private placement offer cum
application letter in the case of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries
and if there were any prosecutions
filed (whether pending or not) fines
imposed, compounding of
offences in the last 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the year of
this private placement offer cum
application letter and if so, section-
wise details thereof for the
Company and all of its subsidiaries

Nil

5.10

Financial Position of the Company:

The capital structure of the company in the following manner in a tabular form:

The authorized,
issued, subscribed
and paid up capital

(number of
securities,
description and

aggregate nominal
value)

Aggregate
Share Capital Nominal
Value
Authorised
Authorised Capital Rs. 400 Cr
Equity Share Capital
40 Crore Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each Rs. 400 Cr
Preference Share Capital
NIL NIL
TOTAL Rs. 400 Cr
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Capital
31,59,93,998 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each Rs. 315.99 Cr
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Preference
Share Capital

NIL

NIL

TOTAL

Rs. 315.99 Cr.

Offer

Size of the Present

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Paid-up Capital:

a. After the offer:

a. Not applicable as each Debenture is a non-convertible debt
instrument which is being issued at face value.

a. Before the offer:

b. After the offer:

a. Rs. 150.95crcr as at 31 Dec 2024

b. Rs 150.95cr cr as at 31 Dec 2024

b. After the
conversion of | b. Not applicable as each Debenture is a non-convertible debt
convertible instrument which is being issued at face value.
instruments  (if
applicable)
Share Premium
Account:

Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer in a tabular form, indicating therein with
regard to each allotment, the date of allotment, the number of shares allotted, the face
value of the shares allotted, the price and the form of consideration:
Names of | Date of No. of Form of Price Face Premiun Total
Allottees | Allotment Shares Considerat per Valu Considerat
allotted ion share e ion
in Rs.

1 | Morus o8t 1,55,67, Cash| 13| 10 3 R0,23,75,199
Technolog | September, 323
ies Pte 2020
Ltd.

2 Morus 03rd 1,11,94, Cash| 13| 10 3| 14,55,23,5
Technolog | February, 118 34
ies Pte 2021
Ltd.

3 Morus 21st August,| 71,47,94 Cash| 13| 10 3| 9,29,23,27
Technolog | 2021 4 2
ies Pte
Ltd.

4 Morus 24t 2,26,13, Cash| 13| 10 3| 29,39,69,1
Technolog | September, 009 17
ies Pte 2021
Ltd.
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5 Morus 29t 56,96,03 Cash| 13| 10 7,40,48,50
Technolog | September, 9 7
ies Pte 2021
Ltd.

6 | Morus 22nd 1,16,19, Cash| 13| 10 15,10,58,4
Technolog | October, 883 79
ies Pte 2021
Ltd.

7 | Morus 02nd 1,72,56, Cash| 13| 10 22,43,40,5
Technolog | November, 962 06
ies Pte 2021
Ltd.

8 | Morus 25t 1,14,37, Cash| 13| 10 14,86,87,0
Technolog | November 463 19
ies Pte , 2021
Ltd.

9 | Morus Q7th 4323923 Cash| 13| 10 5,62,10,99
Technolog | December 9
ies Pte , 2021
Ltd.

10 | Morus 23 2908729 Cash| 13| 10 3,78,13,47
Technolog | December 7
ies Pte , 2021
Ltd.

11 | Morus 25t 1414993 Cash| 13| 10 18,39,49,1
Technolog | January,2 1 03
ies Pte 022
Ltd.

12 | Morus 11t 2010427 Cash| 13| 10 26,13,55,5
Technolog | February, 0 10
ies Pte 2022
Ltd.

13 | Morus 24t 1732592 Cash| 13| 10 22,52,36,9
Technolog | February, 2 86
ies Pte 2022
Ltd.

14 | Morus 22nd 1753734 Cash| 13| 10 22,79,85,4
Technolog | March, 1 33
ies Pte 2022
Ltd.
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15 | Morus 11t May, 58,66,80 Cash| 13| 10 3| 7,62,68,46
Technolog | 2022 5 5
ies Pte
Ltd

16 | Morus 27 May, 59,66,03 Cash| 13| 10 3| 7,75,58,44
Technolog | 2022 4 2
ies Pte
Ltd

17 | Morus 20" June, 592 Cash| 13| 10 3 7,696
Technolog | 2022
ies Pte
Ltd

18 | Morus 03 1,48,11, Cash| 16| 10 6| 23,69,834
Technolog | August, 463 08
ies Pte 2022
Ltd

19 | Morus oeth 3,27,23, Cash| 20| 10 10 | 65,44,78,3
Technolog | March, 918 60
ies Pte 2023
Ltd

20 | Morus 11t July, 2,05,89, Cash 20 10 10| 41,17,98,3
Technolog | 2023 917 40
ies Pte
Ltd

21 | Morus 2gth 41,44,75 Cash| 20| 10 10 | 8,28,95,00
Technolog | February 0 0
ies Pte 2024
Ltd

22 | Morus 15t March | 2,07,00, Cash 20 10 10 | 41,40,00,0
Technolog | 2024 000 00
ies Pte
Ltd

The number and price at | Nil
which each of
allotments were made
by the Company in the
last 1 (one) year
preceding the date of
this placement offer
cum application letter
separately indicating
the allotments made for
consideration other
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than cash and details of
the consideration in
each case

Profits of the Company,
before and after making
provision for tax, for the
3 (three) financial years
immediately preceding
the date of circulation of
this private placement
offer cum application
letter.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Profit before tax | 72.01 crores | 39.82 Crores 7.66 Crores
Profit after tax 68.82 crore 25.87 Crores 6.48 Crores

Dividends declared by
the Company in respect
of the said 3 (three)
financial years; interest
coverage ratio for last
three years (cash profit
after tax plus interest
paid/interest paid)

Ratio

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Dividend Declared NIL NIL NIL
Interest Coverage 1.59 1.45

A summary of the
financial position of the
Company as in the 3
(three) audited balance
sheets immediately
preceding the date of
circulation of this
private placement offer
cum application letter

As set out in Chapter A of the General Information Document

Audited Cash Flow
Statement for the 3
(three) years

immediately preceding
the date of circulation of
this private placement
offer cum application
letter

As set out in Chapter B of the General Information Document

Any change in
accounting policies
during the last 3 (three)
years and their effect on

the profits and the
reserves of the
Company

Nil
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PART B
FORM NO PAS-4

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER LETTER
(To be filled by the applicant)

Sr. No. Particulars First Holder Second Holder

1 Name

Father's Name

Complete Address (including
Flat/ House Number, Street,
Locality, Pin Code)

Phone Number, if any

Email ID, if any
PAN Number

Bank Account Details

0| N[O b

Number of Non- Convertible
Debentures subscribed

9 Total value of Non- Convertible
Debentures subscribed

10 Tick whichever is applicable: -

(@) The applicant is not required to
obtain Government approval
under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt
Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to
subscription of shares.

(b) The applicant is required to
obtain Government approval
under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt
Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to
subscription of shares and the
same has been obtained, and is
enclosed herewith

Signature of the Subscriber
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DECLARATION (To be provided by the Directors)

A. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made hereunder;

B. The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply
that payment of dividend or interest or repayment of preference shares or debentures, if
applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government; and

C. The monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this Key Information Document.

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Issuer vide resolution number 5 dated 11 February
2025, to sign this Key Information Document and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters
incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this Key Information Document and in the attachments thereto is true, correct
and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this Key Information Document has
been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters
subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly
and legibly attached to this Key Information Document.

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issued by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Key Information
Document is contrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws, as the case may be. The information contained in this Key Information Document is
as applicable to privately placed debt securities and subject to the information available with the
Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in this Key Information Document is consistent with
disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in
the past.

For AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

SH RUTI Digitally signed by
SHRUTI AGGARWAL SIMARJE Digitally signed by
AGGARWAL ?S.ﬁegé‘;szsilf SIMARJEET SINGH
" ET SINGH 258
Authorised Signatory Authorised Signatory
Name: Shruti Aggarwal Name: Simarjeet Singh
Title: Director Title: Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Date: 11 February 2025
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SECTION 6: DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS
The Company and the persons authorised by the Company, confirm and attest that:

A. the Issuer is in compliance with the provisions of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder;

B. the compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules does not imply that payment of
dividend or interest or repayment of non-convertible securities, if applicable, is guaranteed
by the Central Government;

C. the monies received under the Issue shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this General Information Document; and

D. whatever is stated in this General Information Document and in the attachments thereto is
true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this General
Information Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records
maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
of Association.

E. It is hereby declared that this General Information Document contains full disclosures in
accordance with the NCS Regulations, as amended from time to time, the LODR
Regulations, as amended from time to time and the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder.

F. The Issuer undertakes and confirms that this General Information Document does not omit
disclosure of any material fact which may make the statements made therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they are made, misleading. The General Information Document
also does not contain any false or misleading statement.

G. The Issuer confirms that the Permanent Account Number, Aadhaar Number, Driving License
Number, Bank Account Number(s), Passport Number and personal addresses of the
promoters of the Issuer and Permanent Account Number of the directors of the Issuer have
been submitted to the stock exchange(s) on which the non-convertible securities are
proposed to be listed, at the time of filing of the General Information Document.

H. the contents of the document have been perused by the Board of Directors, and the final and
ultimate responsibility of the contents mentioned herein shall also lie with the Board of
Directors; and

. The Issuer accepts no responsibility for the statements made otherwise than in this General
Information Document or in any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and
that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own
risk.

General Risk

Investment in non-convertible securities is risky and investors should not invest any funds
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to purchase such securities.

in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments.
Investors are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully
before investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on
their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of
investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section 3 of this General
Information Document. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of
all risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor’s decision

Confidentiality

The information and data contained herein is submitted to each recipient of this General Information
Document on a strictly private and confidential basis. By accepting a copy of this General Information
Document, each recipient agrees that neither it nor any of its employees or advisors will use the
information contained herein for any purpose other than evaluating the specific transactions

described herein or will divulge to any other party any such information.

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number 5 dated 11 February
2025 to sign this General Information Document and declare that all the requirements of Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this General Information

Document and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly

and legibly attached to this form.

For AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Digitally signed by
SH RUT' SHRUTI AGGARWAL

AGGARWA|_ Date: 2025.02.17

16:21:43 +05'30'

Authorised Signatory
Name: Shruti Aggarwal
Title: Director

Date: 11 February 2025

For AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Digitally signed by

SIMARJ E SIMARJEET SINGH
Date: 2025.02.17

ET Sl NG H 16:23:12 +05'30'

Authorised Signatory

Mr. Simarjeet Singh
Title: Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Date: 11 February 2025
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ANNEXURE I: RATING LETTER, RATING RATIONALE AND DETAILED PRESS RELEASE
FROM THE RATING AGENT

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE II: CONSENT LETTER AND ENGAGEMENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE
TRUSTEE

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE lll: APPLICATION FORM

AKARA CAPITAL ADVSIORS PRIVATE LIMITED
A private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013
Date of Incorporation: 11t February, 2016
Registered Office: 60, Second Floor, Arjun Nagar, Kotla Mubarak Pur, New Delhi - 110003
Telephone No.: 9643309883
Website: www.akaracap.com

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. LT T T T T T T T ]

ISSUE OF UP TO 3500 (THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED,
LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE
FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING
TO INR 35,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES THIRTY-FIVE CRORES ONLY) ( “NCDS”/
“DEBENTURE(S)”) COMPRISING OF (I) A BASE ISSUE OF A BASE ISSUE OF 2000 (TWO
THOUSAND) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES
ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 20,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES TWENTY
CRORES ONLY) AND (II) A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF UP TO 1500 (ONE THOUSAND FIVE
HUNDRED) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES
ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 15,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES FIFTEEN
CRORES ONLY) (“GREEN SHOE OPTION”), IN A DEMATERIALISED FORM ON A PRIVATE
PLACEMENT BASIS (THE “ISSUE”) (HEREINAFTER REFFERED TO AS “DEBENTURES”)
BY AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) OR (“ISSUER?”).

Dear Sir / Madam,

I AM/ WE ARE ( ) COMPANY () OTHERS ( ) SPECIFY

We have read and understood the terms and conditions of the Key Information Document dated

("Key Information Document”) read along with the General Information Document
dated ("General Information Document”) for the issue of Debentures on a
private placement basis including the Risk Factors described in the General Information Document
issued by the Issuer and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We bind ourselves
to these terms and conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We request you
to please place our name(s) on the Register of Debenture Holders, on allotment of the Debentures
to us.

I/ We bind myself/ourselves to the terms and conditions as contained in the Key Information
Document and General Information Document. I/we note that the Company is entitled in its absolute
discretion, to accept or reject this application in whole, or in part, without assigning any reason
whatsoever.

(PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE FILLING THIS FORM)

All capitalised terms used in this Application Form which are not defined shall have the meaning
attributed to them in the Key Information Document and General Information Document.
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DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures: In words: -only
Amount INR /-In words Indian Rupees : Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

Cheque / Demand Draft / RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) INR /- (In words) Only

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET
CITY
PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s Signature:

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised
form. Details of my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL/CDSL

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME

DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
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NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft /
Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS /
NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the General Information Document is
provided by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer, and
other intermediaries and their agents and advisors associated with this Issue. We confirm that we
have for the purpose of investing in these Debentures carried out our own due diligence and made
our own decisions with respect to investment in these Debentures and have not relied on any
representations made by anyone other than the Issuer, if any.

We understand that: i) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) we must ensure that the sequence
of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Depository Participant, iii) if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also
not in the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository
Participant or if the Debentures cannot be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason
whatsoever, the Company shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the
Debentures in physical form.

Applicant’s
Signature
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note : Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP

| (To be filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. T ]

Received from

‘ Address
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Cheque/Draft/UTR # Drawn on for
INR on account of application of Debenture
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INSTRUCTIONS
1. Application form must be completed in full, IN ENGLISH.
2. Signatures must be made in English or in any of the Indian languages. Thumb Impressions

must be attested by an authorized official of the Bank or by a Magistrate/Notary Public under
his/her official seal.

3. Application form, duly completed in all respects, must be submitted with the respective
Collecting Bankers. The payment is required to be made to the following account of ICCL by
way of an electronic transfer, in accordance with the terms of the EBP Guidelines:

INDIAN  CLEARING | INDIAN CLEARING | INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATION CORPORATION CORPORATION
Beneficiary Name LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED
Account Number ICCLEB ICCLEB ICCLEB
IFSC Code HDFC0000060 ICIC0000106 YESBOCMSNOC
Mode RTGS/NEFT RTGS/NEFT RTGS/NEFT

The Company undertakes that the application money deposited in the above-mentioned bank
account shall not be utilized for any purpose other than:

a) for adjustment against allotment of securities; or
b) for the repayment of monies where the company is unable to allot securities.
4. Receipt of applicants will be acknowledged by the Company in the “Acknowledgement Slip”

appearing below the application form. No separate receipt will be issued.

5. All applicants should mention their Permanent Account No. or their GIR No. allotted under
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Tax Circle/Ward/District. In case where neither the
PAN nor the GIR No. has been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should be mentioned in the
application form in the space provided. Income Tax as applicable will be deducted at source
at the time of payment of interest including interest payable on application money.

6. The application would be accepted as per the terms of the manner outlined in the transaction
documents for the private placement.
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ANNEXURE IV: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

The cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities according to the day count convention
(Actual/ Actual) shall be mentioned in the Key Information Document, by way of an illustration.

For the purpose of standardization, if the coupon/ dividend payment date of the non- convertible
securities falls on a Sunday or a holiday, the coupon payment shall be made on the next working
day. However, the dates of the future payments would continue to be as per the schedule originally
stipulated in the offer document. If the maturity date of the debt securities, falls on a Sunday or a
holiday, the redemption proceeds shall be paid on the previous working day. In order to ensure
consistency, a uniform methodology shall be followed for calculation of interest/ dividend payments
in the case of leap year. If a leap year (i.e. February 29) falls during the tenor of a security, then the
number of days shall be reckoned as 366 days (Actual/ Actual day count convention) for the entire
year, irrespective of whether the interest/ dividend is payable annually, half yearly, quarterly or
monthly.

A sample illustration is given below:

Name of the issuer Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Face Value (per security) INR 1,00,000/- each

Issue date / Date of allotment Deemed Date of Allotment: 14 February 2025

Date of redemption 14 August 2028

Tenor 42 (forty-two) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Coupon Rate 12.00% (Twelve-point zero zero Percent) per annum payable
monthly from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Frequency of the interest/ [\¥leliiial)%
dividend payment (with specified
dates)

Day Count Convention Actual/Actual

Sr Date No of days | Principal per Interest per Total Payments
No Debenture Debenture per Debenture
14-02-2025 1,00,000 -1,00,000.00

1 14-03-2025 28.00 920.55 920.55

2 14-04-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18

3 14-05-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30

4 14-06-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18

5 14-07-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30

6 14-08-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18

7 14-09-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18

8 14-10-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30

9 14-11-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
10 14-12-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30

11 14-01-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
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12 14-02-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
13 14-03-2026 28.00 920.55 920.55
14 14-04-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
15 14-05-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
16 14-06-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
17 14-07-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
18 14-08-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
19 14-09-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
20 14-10-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
21 14-11-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
22 14-12-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
23 14-01-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
24 14-02-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
25 14-03-2027 28.00 920.55 920.55
26 14-04-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
27 14-05-2027 30.00 986.30 986.30
28 14-06-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
29 14-07-2027 30.00 986.30 986.30
30 14-08-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
31 14-09-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
32 14-10-2027 30.00 986.30 986.30
33 14-11-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
34 14-12-2027 30.00 986.30 986.30
35 14-01-2028 31.00 1,016.39 1,016.39
36 14-02-2028 31.00 50,000.00 1,016.39 51,016.39
37 14-03-2028 29.00 475.41 475.41
38 14-04-2028 31.00 508.20 508.20
39 14-05-2028 30.00 491.80 491.80
40 14-06-2028 31.00 508.20 508.20
41 14-07-2028 30.00 491.80 491.80
42 14-08-2028 31.00 50,000.00 508.20 50,508.20
If Put Option is Exercised
Sr No Date No of days Principal Interest Total Payments
14-02-2025 1,00,000 -1,00,000.00
1 14-03-2025 28.00 920.55 920.55
2 14-04-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
3 14-05-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30
4 14-06-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
5 14-07-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30
6 14-08-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
7 14-09-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
8 14-10-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30
9 14-11-2025 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
10 14-12-2025 30.00 986.30 986.30
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11 14-01-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
12 14-02-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
13 14-03-2026 28.00 920.55 920.55
14 14-04-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
15 14-05-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
16 14-06-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
17 14-07-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
18 14-08-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
19 14-09-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
20 14-10-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
21 14-11-2026 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
22 14-12-2026 30.00 986.30 986.30
23 14-01-2027 31.00 1,019.18 1,019.18
24 14-02-2027 31.00 1,00,000 1,019.18 1,01,019.18
Note

The Issuer requested to note that the above cash flow is only illustrative in nature, The deemed date
of allotment, Coupon rate, redemption date and frequency of the interest payment shall vary in nature
and aforesaid dates may be modified upon receipt of consent/ permission from existing lender, in
case of early redemption of any principle repayment as per the provisions of early redemption option
in Debenture Trust Deed, the above cash flow may be changed accordingly.
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ANNEXURE V: BOARD RESOLUTION

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE VI: SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTION

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE VII: DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATES

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE VIII: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE IX: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Attached Separately)
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ANNEXURE X: LENDING POLICY

(the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE XI: ALM STATEMENTS AS ON DEC 31, 2024

Category >1 >2 >3 >6 >1 >3 >5 Total
months months | months months years years years
-2 -3 -6 -1 -3 -5
months months | months year yeas years
Deposit
Advances
303.61 | 107.95 | 105.31 | 273.42 | 432.34 | 397.46 | 0.52 - 1,620.62
Investments
Borrowings
26.44 | 30.10 23.66 61.19 137.62 | 152.32 | 10.00 | - 441.32
FCA*
FCL*
- - - - 241.93 | 306.20 - - 548.13
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ANNEXURE XII: DEBENTURE TRUSTEE AGREEMENT

[e]
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

UNDERTAKING

The Chief General Manager
Listing Operations,

BSE Limited,

20™ Floor, P. J. Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,

Mumbai — 400 001.

Dear Sir,

We Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited hereby undertake that the contents of the disclosure
documents (GID & KID) have been perused by the Board of Directors for issuance of up to 3500
(Three Thousand Five Hundred) Fully Paid, Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Taxable, Transferable,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures having a face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One
Lakh Only) each, for cash, aggregating up to INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crore
Only) (“Debentures”), in line with the SEBI (NCS) (SECOND AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS,
2024, effective September 17, 2024.

For M/S Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Digitally signed by ai i
SHRUTI SHRUTI AGGARWAL SIMARJE gy signec by
AGGARWAL T osso ET SINGH %2020
Shruti Aggarwal Simarjeet Singh
Director CS & Compliance Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11-02-2025

60, SECOND FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR, KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, NEW DELHI - 110003
CIN: U74110DL2016PTC290970 Email ID - cofficer@akaracap.com (M) 9643309883
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ICRA/Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited/15012025/1
Date: January 15, 2025

Ms. Shruti Aggarwal

Director

Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Unit Nos.1801-1805, 18th Floor, Magnum Global Park 2
Golf Course Extension Road, Sector 58,

Gurgaon —122011

Dear Ma’am,
Re: ICRA’s Credit Rating for below mentioned Instruments of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Please refer to your email requesting ICRA Limited to revalidate the rating for the captioned programme.

We confirm that the following rating of the instrument rated by ICRA and communicated to you vide our letter dated August 09,
2024 stands valid.

Rated Amount N
Instrument Rating
(Rs. crore)

Non-convertible debentures 367.50 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
*yet to be placed Rs. 226.50 crore as on December 31, 2024

The other terms and conditions for the rating of the captioned instrument shall remain the same as were communicated vide our
letter dated August 09, 2024 (Ref No: ICRA/Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited/09082024/1).

The rating, as aforesaid, however, should not be treated as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold long term debt/non-convertible
debenture to be issued by you.

In line with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD-3/P/CIR/2024/160 dated November 18, 2024, issuers are encouraged to
utilize the penny-drop verification service as provided by banks. This measure is intended to prevent payment failures when
disbursing principal and/or interest to respective investors or debenture holders.

Penny-drop verification serves as an efficient method for confirming the bank account details of persons designated to receive
payments. Once an account has been verified through this facility, it can be used for subsequent transactions related to interest
and principal payments, thereby ensuring successful remittance and avoiding failure.

We look forward to further strengthening our existing relationship and assure you of our best services.

With kind regards,
Yours sincerely,
For ICRA Limited
AN I L Digitally signed
by ANIL GUPTA
Date: 2025.01.15
G U PTA 17:34:54 +05'30'
Anil Gupta
Senior Vice President

anilg.icraindia.com

1 Complete definitions of the ratings assigned are available at www.icra.in.

Building No. 8, 2nd Floor, Tower A Tel.: +91.124 .4545300 Website: www.icra.in
DLF Cyber City, Phase II CIN: L749999DL1991PLC042749 Email: info@icraindia.com
Gurugram - 122002, Haryana Helpdesk: +91 9354738909

Registered Office: B-710, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi 110001. Tel.: +91.11.23357940-41
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August 09, 2024

Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited: Ratings reaffirmed

Summary of rating action

Previous Rated Amount Current Rated Amount . .
Instrument* Rating Action
(Rs. crore) (Rs. crore)
Non-convertible debentures 376.5 376.5 [ICRA]IBBB (Stable); reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 0.0 600.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable); assigned
. [ICRAIBBB (Stable); reaffirmed and
Non-convertible debentures 89.5 0.0 .
withdrawn
Long-term fund based — Term loan 125.0 0.0 -
[ICRA]BBB  (Stable); reaffirmed/
Long-term fund based - others 0.0 200.0 .
assigned for the enhanced amount
Long-term fund-based term loan 15.0 15.0 [ICRAIBBB+(CE) (Stable); reaffirmed
Commercial paper 80.0 80.0 [ICRA]JA3+; reaffirmed
Total 686.0 1,271.5

*Instrument details are provided in Annexure |

Rating without explicit credit enhancement [ICRA]BBB

Note: The (CE) suffix mentioned alongside the (provisional) rating symbol indicates that the rated instrument/facility is to be backed by some form of explicit
credit enhancement. This rating is specific to the rated instrument/facility, its terms and structure and does not represent ICRA’s opinion on the general credit
quality of the entity concerned. The above table also captures ICRA’s opinion on (a) the rating if the pending actions/documents are not completed, and (b)
the rating without factoring in the proposed explicit credit enhancement

Rationale

For the [ICRA]BBB (Stable)/ [ICRA]A3+ rating

To arrive at Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited’s (ACAPL) ratings, ICRA has taken a consolidated view of the credit profiles
of ACAPL and its Group company, EQX Analytics Private Limited (EQXAPL), owing to their business linkages, common
management and shared infrastructure. ACAPL provides unsecured personal loans of up to Rs. 5 lakh (average ticket size of
~Rs. 53,000) to salaried individuals through the Group’s technology platform and has a pan-India presence. The Group’s in-
house technology platform, known as StashFin, is a part of EQXAPL and is currently used by ACAPL and its co-lending partners.
ACAPL and EQXAPL are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of Morus Technologies Pte. Ltd (MTPL), the Singapore-based holding
company, which is backed by foreign investors like Blowfish Ventures, Divine Blessing Investments, Altara Ventures, Positive
Moves Consulting, Fasanara Capital, Tencent Group, Uncorrelated Ventures etc.

The ratings factor in ACAPL’s adequate capitalisation profile for the current scale of operations with a consolidated net worth
of Rs. 688 crore (standalone net worth of Rs. 648 crore) and consolidated managed gearing of 1.6x! as on June 30, 2024 (Rs.
637 crore and 2.0x, respectively, as on March 31, 2024, on consolidated basis). The consolidated reported gearing, adjusted
for the first loss default guarantee (FLDG) commitments from the net worth, stood at 1.3x as on June 30, 2024. The Group’s
capitalisation has been supported by regular capital raising with the most recent (about Rs. 91 crore) in FY2024. The ratings
also consider ACAPL’s granular retail portfolio, comprising small-ticket loans to individuals. The scale of operations, however,
remains small with assets under management (AUM) of Rs. 1,767 crore as on June 30, 2024 (Rs. 1,839 crore as on March 31,
2024).

The ratings are constrained by the Group’s modest profitability indicators? due to the high operating and credit costs. The
operating expenses, on a consolidated basis, declined to 9.6% in Q1 FY2025 (12.2% in FY2024) because of share-based

1 Managed gearing = (On-balance sheet borrowing + Off-book portfolio)/ Net worth. Reported gearing, on a consolidated basis,was 1.2x as
on June 30, 2024
2 Profitability ratios mentioned in relation to average managed assets
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payments (which are non-cash in nature) and the Group being in the expansion phase, nevertheless remain high. Credit costs
also remained high despite moderating to 11.6% in Q1 FY2025 from 20.3% in FY2024. At the same time, the net interest margin
(NIM) stayed high at 23.3% in Q1 FY2025 (24.7% in FY2024) because of lower gearing, supporting the overall profitability. The
Group reported a net profit on a consolidated basis, for the first time since inception, in FY2024. While Its return on managed
assets (ROMA) and return on net worth (RONW) improved to 7.1% and 21.6%, respectively, in Q1 FY2025 (1.4% and 5.1%,
respectively, in FY2024), the sustainability of the return indicators is yet to be established.

The ratings also factor in the inherent vulnerability associated with the Group’s portfolio, given the unsecured nature of the
loans. Nevertheless, the asset quality indicators have remained range-bound so far with 90+ days past due (dpd) of 2.7% as on
June 30, 2024 (2.5% as on March 31, 2024). Credit costs, in relation to disbursements, stood at 7.2% in Q1 FY2025 (8.0% in
FY2024), reflecting the riskiness in the portfolio and indicating that the risk-adjusted returns in the segment can be adequate
once the operating efficiency improves. Further, the regulatory landscape for fintech lenders is currently evolving; thus, the
impact of regulations on the company’s business operations would be monitorable. Overall, ACAPL's ability to scale up the
business profitably while maintaining prudent capitalisation and controlling the asset quality would be a key monitorable.

ICRA has reaffirmed and withdrawn the rating assigned to the Rs. 89.50-crore non-convertible debentures (NCDs) as no
amount is outstanding against the same, in accordance with ICRA’s policy on the withdrawal of credit ratings.

For the [ICRA]BBB+(CE) (Stable) rating

ICRA has reaffirmed the rating for ACAPL’s Rs. 15-crore bank line programme as tabulated above. The rating is based on the
strength of an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee provided by Northern Arc Capital Limited (NACL; rated [ICRA]JAA-
(Stable)/[ICRAJAL+).

Adequacy of credit enhancement

ICRA has assessed the attributes of the partial guarantee issued by NACL in favour of the said instrument. While the guarantee
is legally enforceable, irrevocable, unconditional, covers the entire tenor of the rated facility, and has a well-defined invocation
and payment mechanism, it does not cover the entire rated amount. The guarantee is 29.00% of the initial loan amount,
guaranteeing the repayment of the principal and the payment of the interest amount in relation to the facility for six months.
NACL has waived off all the suretyship rights available under the law. However, the credit enhancement provided in the
guarantee shall cease to be available to the lender if any modification is done to the terms of the facility, without NACL’s prior
approval, and if the same adversely impacts NACL’s obligations.

Taking cognisance of the above credit enhancement, ICRA had assigned a rating of [ICRA]|BBB+(CE) (Stable) to the said facility
against the unsupported rating of [ICRA]BBB (and in relation to the guarantor’s rating of [ICRA]JAA- (Stable)/[ICRA]JA1+). Any
change in the ratings of the guarantor or in the unsupported rating of ACAPL would have a bearing on the rating of the aforesaid
facility as well.

Salient covenants of the rated facility

e The tenure of the facility is 24 months with equated monthly interest and principal repayment.

e The guaranteed amount shall remain stable in absolute terms till it is reset. It can be reduced subject to the
confirmation/affirmation of the rating agency.

e In addition to the partial guarantee, the borrower will maintain a pool of loan receivables, which would be at least
1.10x the outstanding amount of the facility. If ACAPL’s senior secured long-term rating is downgraded below BBB or
the rating of the facility is downgraded below BBB (CE) or any financial covenant is breached and the same is not
cured within 90 days of the financial quarter in which the breach happened, then ACAPL shall make weekly
repayments and shall transfer the collections from the pool to the Collection and Payment Account on a weekly basis.

e The security cover shall be met only with pool receivables that do not have any principal, interest, additional interest,
fee or any other expected payments overdue. For this purpose, ACAPL shall, with the consent of the lender, replace
any pool receivables that have one or more instalments of principal, interest, additional interest, fee or any other
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expected payments overdue for more than 90 (ninety) days with performing loans that meet the eligibility criteria.
Such replacement shall be done on or before the 15th of any calendar month.

e ACAPL shall report/file such list of pool contracts with the concerned Registrar of Companies (ROC) and the Central
Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India in relation thereto as soon as practicable
and no later than 30 (thirty) days.

Key rating drivers and their description

Credit strengths

Adequate capitalisation profile for current scale of operations; committed capital support from parent — The ACAPL Group’s
capitalisation profile is adequate for the current scale of operations with a consolidated net worth of Rs. 688 crore and a
managed gearing of 1.6x (standalone net worth of Rs. 648 crore, managed gearing of 1.7x and a capital-to-risk weighted assets
ratio (CRAR) of 34.9%) as on June 30, 2024, supported by regular capital raises from the parent. Most recently, the company
raised about Rs. 91 crore in FY2024 from its parent.

Given the growth plans, the leverage is expected to increase from the current levels and ACAPL would need equity infusions
from its parent over the medium term to maintain prudent capitalisation levels (managed gearing of less than 3x). In this
regard, the parent, MTPL, had a net worth of about Rs. 930 crore with free cash of about Rs. 164 crore as on March 31, 2024,
which can be infused as equity in ACAPL as and when required. In ICRA’s opinion, prudent capitalisation is one of the key
mitigants against the credit risk associated with the Group’s business. In addition to capital support, the company has
sanctioned limits from Fasanara Capital through existing investors in the form of external commercial borrowings (ECBs), which
would support the business growth going forward as well.

Granular portfolio; demonstrated ability to grow the business — ACAPL’s portfolio is granular, comprising small-ticket loans
to individuals with an average ticket size of about Rs. 53,000 spread across 2.8 million customers. About 6% of the AUM
consisted of very small-ticket loans of less than Rs. 10,000 while the balance comprised loans of up to Rs. 5 lakh as on June 30,
2024. The short tenure of the loans (1-36 months) also supports the company’s liquidity profile. ACAPL has demonstrated the
ability to scale up the business with the AUM increasing at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 84% to Rs. 1,839 crore
as on March 31, 2024 from Rs. 160 crore as on March 31, 2020. The growth rate, however, moderated in FY2024 to 25% and
is expected to be relatively lower in the current fiscal as well owing to the tightening of the underwriting standards and the
company’s more calibrated approach, given the overall concerns regarding small-ticket unsecured loans.

For the [ICRA]BBB+(CE) (Stable) rating

Presence of partial guarantee for credit-enhanced term loan of Rs. 15 crore — The Rs. 15-crore term loan is credit enhanced
by an unconditional, irrevocable and payable on demand guarantee from NACL (partial credit guarantee (PCG) provider),
amounting to 29.00% of the initial loan amount, guaranteeing the repayment of the principal and the payment of interest
amounts in relation to the facility.

Credit challenges

Small scale of operations; ability to raise funds in a timely manner critical for growth — ACAPL’s AUM growth moderated to
25% in FY2024 from 162% in FY2023 because of faster amortisation with the reduction in the average tenor and the
introduction of the free credit period product in the previous year. There was a sharp increase in disbursements to Rs. 5,075
crore in FY2024 from Rs. 2,860 crore in FY2023. However, the AUM growth moderated to 25% in FY2024 with AUM growing
to Rs. 1,839 crore as on March 31, 2024 from Rs. 1,466 as on March 31, 2023 because of the short tenor of the product, As on
June 30, 2024, the AUM shrunk by 16% (annualised basis) to Rs. 1,767 crore because of the calibrated approach adopted by
the company. This was also due to the short tenure of the loans and hence faster amortisation. Though the company has a
pan-India presence in terms of its borrowers, the scale of operations remains small.
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ICRA believes that achieving economies of scale would remain pivotal for the Group to attain net profitability on a sustained
basis. Therefore, its ability to raise further funds (both debt and equity) in a timely manner will be critical for growth. ICRA
notes that ACAPL has sanctioned ECB lines of ~Rs. 600 crore from Fasanara Capital through existing investors, of which Rs. 375
crore has already been disbursed, in addition to free cash of about Rs. 161 crore at MTPL as on June 30, 2024, which is expected
to be infused as equity or debt, when required.

Modest profitability on consolidated basis, albeit improving; sustainability of profitability yet to be established — ACAPL
reported modest profitability during FY2021-FY2023 with average RoMAS3 of 1.1% on a standalone basis. On a consolidated
basis, the Group had reported losses till FY2023 due to the high operating and credit costs. However, with the increased scale
of operations over the past three years and some changes in the product features, the company reported a net profit on a
consolidated basis in FY2024 for the first time since inception.

The NIMs improved to 24.7% in FY2024 from 16.6% in FY2023, on a consolidated basis (audited financials for ACAPL and
provisional financials for EQXAPL) because of higher fee income and lower gearing. At the same time, other operating income
improved sharply to 9.3% in FY2024 from 2.9% in FY2023, driven by higher transaction fees during the year. The operating
expenses remained elevated at 12.2% in FY2024 (consolidated basis; 13.5% in FY2023) due to the share-based payments (which
are non-cash in nature) and the Group being in the expansion phase and investing in strengthening its teams and technology
platforms. The credit costs increased sharply to 20.3% in FY2024 from 9.0% in FY2023 due to changes in the write-off policy as
well as the higher provision cover. Overall, ACAPL reported a net profit, on a consolidated basis, for the first time since
inception in FY2024 with RoMA and RoNW of 1.4% and 5.1%, respectively.

NIMs remained high at 23.3% in Q1 FY2025, on a consolidated basis, supported by lower gearing while other operating income
stood at 8.2%. Operating expenses declined to 9.6% in Q1 FY2025 due to limited incremental business and sustained low
employee base while the credit costs moderated to 11.6% with the improvement in delinquencies. While the profitability
improved in Q1 FY2025 with RoMA and RoNW of 7.1% and 21.6%, respectively, the sustenance of the same with the
improvement in the scale and control over the asset quality remains a monitorable.

Moderate asset quality indicators — The inherent riskiness in ACAPL’s portfolio remains high due to the unsecured nature of
the loans. The company’s gross non-performing advances (GNPAs; recognised on 90+ dpd basis) stood at 4.1% as on June 30,
2024 (4.0% as on March 31, 2024) compared to 6.7% as on March 31, 2023. GNPAs, including write-offs/FLDG expenses on a
consolidated basis, remained high at 16.4% (annualised basis) of the overall AUM as on June 30, 2024 (20.1% as on March 31,
2024) compared to 11.2% as on March 31, 2023. The 90+ dpd in relation to overall AUM stood at 2.7% as of June 30, 2024
(2.5% as on March 31, 2024).

Given the high churn nature of loan book, the underwriting quality is not fully reflected by the credit cost in relation to AUM.
In this regard, the credit costs, in relation to disbursements, stood at 7.2% in Q1 FY2025 (8.0% in FY2024), reflecting the
riskiness in the portfolio and indicating that risk-adjusted returns in the segment can be adequate once the operating efficiency
improves. The cumulative credit costs, in relation to cumulative disbursements since FY2018, stood at 1.8% (on annualised
basis) in Q1 FY2025 (4.1% in FY2024). The company’s ability to control slippages, manage fraud risk and maintain good credit
underwriting standards would be a key rating monitorable, going forward.

Liquidity position: Adequate

For the [ICRA]BBB (Stable)/ [ICRA]A3+ rating

ACAPL’s liquidity position is adequate with no negative cumulative mismatches in the asset-liability maturity (ALM) statement,
as on June 30, 2024, owing to the short tenure of the loan book. As per the ALM profile as on June 30, 2024, the expected
inflow from advances in the next one year stood at Rs. 1,136 crore, which is sufficient to cover the debt repayment of Rs. 330
crore during this period. Further, the company’s cash and bank balance stood at ~Rs. 41 crore as on June 30, 2024. Additionally,

3 Profitability ratios are given in relation to average managed assets. All figures and ratios as per ICRA’s nomenclature/ definitions/
calculations
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MTPL (the parent company) had free cash of about Rs. 161 crore as on June 30, 2024, which can be infused in ACAPL as and
when required.

As on June 30, 2024, the Group’s (ACAPL+EQXAPL) overall borrowing mix consisted of ECBs (47%), loans from non-banking
financial companies (NBFCs)/financial institutions (Fls; 23%), NCDs (22%), commercial paper (CP; 3%), loans from banks (2%),
inter-corporate deposits (ICDs; 1%) and others (2%).

For the [ICRA]BBB+(CE) (Stable) rating
Adequate liquidity is available for the rated term loan in the form of a PCG from NACL and the security pool. The PCG as well
as the collections from the security pool can be utilised for meeting the scheduled payouts, if required.

For support provider (NACL)

As of March 31, 2024, NACL had positive mismatches across all the buckets of the structural liquidity statement. The average
tenor of the loan/investment portfolio is 18-24 months. On the other hand, it has secured a sizeable portion of its borrowings
from longer-tenor loans (average tenor of ~3 years) while only 13% of the total borrowings was from short-term sources
including CP, cash credit and working capital demand loans as of March 2024. As of March 2024, term loans, working capital
facilities from banks and Fls, NCDs (including sub-debt), ECBs, CP and pass-through certificates (PTCs) accounted for 66%, 7%,
11%, 8%, 5% and 3%, respectively, of the total borrowings. NACL had cash and liquid investments of Rs. 1,042.0 crore and
undrawn credit lines of Rs. 1,405.0 crore as on April 30, 2024, against repayment obligations of Rs. 3,099.0 crore during May
2024 to October 2024. The monthly collection efficiency remained robust throughout FY2024.

Rating sensitivities

For the [ICRA]BBB (Stable)/ [ICRA]A3+ rating

Positive factors — An increase in the scale of operations along with an improvement in the profitability indicators, while
maintaining good asset quality and a prudent capitalisation structure on a sustained basis, could lead to a rating upgrade.
Negative factors — A decline in the scale of operations or a deterioration in the asset quality indicators, resulting in pressure
on the profitability indicators, could lead to a rating downgrade.

For the [ICRA]BBB+(CE) (Stable) rating

The rating assigned to the Rs. 15-crore term loan programme would remain sensitive to any movement in the ratings or outlook

of ACAPL and NACL.

Analytical approach

Analytical Approach Comments

ICRA’s rating methodology for non-banking finance companies
Applicable rating methodologies Rating methodology for partially guaranteed debt
Policy on withdrawal of credit ratings

Parent/Group support Not applicable
Consolidation; ICRA has considered the consolidated financials of ACAPL and its Group
Consolidation/Standalone company — EQXAPL, owing to their business linkages, common management and shared
infrastructure.

About the company

ACAPL is a Delhi-based non-deposit taking NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) since 2016. It started
operations in 2017. The company primarily provides unsecured short-term personal loans to salaried individuals through web
and mobile platforms. ACAPL is currently owned by MTPL, a Singapore-based neobanking start-up backed by investors like
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Blowfish Ventures, Divine Blessing Investments, Altara Ventures, Positive Moves Consulting, Fasanara Capital, Tencent Group,
Uncorrelated Ventures etc.

ACAPL is a 100% subsidiary of MTPL (holding company incorporated in Singapore). The Group has another wholly-owned
subsidiary, EQX Analytics Private Limited (EQXAPL), which houses the technology platform known as StashFin and sources
leads. The technology platform is used by ACAPL and other co-lenders for lending to customers.

On a consolidated basis (ACAPL+EQXAPL), the Group reported a profit after tax (PAT) of Rs. 27 crore® in FY2024 on a total
managed asset base of Rs. 2,059 crore as on March 31, 2024 compared to a net loss of Rs. 55 crore in FY2023 on a total
managed asset base of Rs. 1,967 crore as on March 31, 2023. The Group’s consolidated net worth stood at Rs. 637 crore with
a managed gearing of 2.0x as on March 31, 2024 compared with Rs. 425 crore and 3.3x, respectively, as on March 31, 2023.
The Group reported a PAT of Rs. 36 crore® in Q1 FY2025 on a total managed asset base of Rs. 1,978 crore as on June 30, 2024.
The net worth was Rs. 688 crore with a managed gearing of 1.6x as on June 30, 2024.

On a standalone basis, ACAPL reported a PAT of Rs. 69 crore in FY2024 on a total managed asset base of Rs. 1,996 crore as on
March 31, 2024 compared to a PAT of Rs. 8 crore in FY2023 on a total managed asset base of Rs. 1,871 crore as on March 31,
2023. The net worth stood at Rs. 593 crore with a managed gearing of 2.1x as on March 31, 2024 compared with Rs. 411 crore
and 3.3x, respectively, as on March 31, 2023. The GNPA and net NPA (NNPA), as a percentage of the overall AUM, stood at
4.0% and 1.8%, respectively, as on March 31, 2024 compared with 6.7% and 5.7%, respectively, as on March 31, 2023. It
reported a PAT of Rs. 50 crore’ in Q1 FY2025 on a total managed asset base of Rs. 1,920 crore as on June 30, 2024. ACAPL had
a net worth of Rs. 648 crore with a managed gearing of 1.7x as on June 30, 2024. The company’s GNPA and NNPA, as a
percentage of the overall AUM, stood at 4.1% and 1.9%, respectively, as on June 30, 2024.

Key financial indicators (consolidated)

ACAPL+EQXAPL FY2022/Mar-22 FY2023/Mar-23 FY2024/Mar-24 Q1 FY2025/Jun-24

Audited (ACAPL)/

Audited Audited Provisional (EQXAPL) Provisional
Total income 155 341 834 192
Profit after tax (10) (55) 27 36
Total managed assets 730 1,967 2,059 1,978
Return on average managed assets -2.2% -4.1% 1.4% 7.1%
Managed gearing (times) 14 33 2.0 1.6
Gross NPA (% of overall AUM) 0.0% 6.7% 4.0% 4.1%

Source: Company, ICRA Research; All ratios as per ICRA’s calculations; Amount in Rs. crore

Key financial indicators (standalone)

ACAPL (standalone) FY2022/Mar-22 FY2023/Mar-23 FY2024/Mar-24 Q1 FY2025/Jun-24

Audited Audited Audited Provisional
Total income 48 216 784 183
Profit after tax 6 8 69 50
Total managed assets 672 1,871 1,996 1,920
Return on average managed assets 1.6% 0.6% 3.6% 10.2%
Managed gearing (times) 1.3 3.3 2.1 1.7
Gross NPA (% of overall AUM) 0.0% 6.7% 4.0% 4.1%
CRAR 43.3% 29.0% 31.7% 34.9%

Source: Company, ICRA Research; All ratios as per ICRA’s calculations; Amount in Rs. crore

Northern Arc Capital Limited (support provider)

4 Consolidated PAT adjusting for non-cash share-based payments stood at Rs. 99 crore in FY2024.

5 Consolidated PAT adjusting for non-cash share-based payments stood at Rs. 53 crore in Q1 FY2025.
6 Standalone PAT adjusting for non-cash share-based payments stood at Rs. 91 crore in FY2024.

7 Standalone PAT adjusting for non-cash share-based payments stood at Rs. 55 crore in Q1 FY2025.
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Northern Arc Capital is a systemically important NBFC. It acts as a platform in the financial services sector with the objective
of catering to the diverse credit requirements of underserved households and businesses by providing access to debt finance.
This is done either through direct lending and investments or by providing syndication and structuring services. The company
commenced its business by targeting microfinance institutions (MFlIs) and has diversified into other sectors including micro,
small, and medium enterprise (MSME) finance, vehicle finance (includes commercial vehicle and two-wheeler finance),
consumer finance, affordable housing finance and agricultural supply chain finance. Further, over the years, NACL has steadily
diversified across products, geographies, and borrower segments. Nimbus, NACL’s proprietary technology system, forms the
backbone of its growth as a platform and enables the scaling up of business operations with execution and functional efficiency
and data analytics.

As of March 2024, on a fully-diluted basis, 360 One Special Opportunities Fund was the largest shareholder with a stake of
25.6% in NACL, followed by Leapfrog Financial Inclusion India Il Limited (22.5%), Augusta Investments Il Pte Ltd (19.5%), Eight
Roads Investments (Mauritius) (I1) Limited (10.2%), Dvara Trust (7.5%), Accion (5.8%), SMBC (5.3%) and others (3.6%).

Status of non-cooperation with previous CRA: Not applicable

Any other information: None
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Rating history for past three years

Current (FY2025) Chronology of rating history for the past 3 years

] FY2025 FY2024 FY2023 FY2022

Rating
Rating Rating

Amount
Type Rated (Rs [09-AUG-2024 Rating
Crore)

Long term-term [ICRA]BBB+(CE)  10-MAY- [ICRA]BBB+(CE) __ , . [ICRA]|BBB o [ICRAIBBB - [ICRA]BBB-
loan-fund based 15.00 (Stable) 2024 (Stable) P5-APR-2023 (Stable) p3-0CT-2022 (Stable) 03-DEC-2021 (Stable)
Provisional
10-MAY- [ICRA]BBB [ICRA]BBB 11-MAR-  [ICRA]BBB-
2024 (Stable) 05-APR-2023 [ICRA]BBB+(CE) 20-OCT-2022 (Stable) 2022 (Stable)
(Stable)
] ] o [ICRA]BBB+(CE) [ICRA]BBB ] ]
04-JUL-2023 (Stable) 20-DEC-2022 (Stable)
[ICRA]BBB
04-JUL-2023 (Stable)
) ] 10-AUG-  [ICRA]BBB+(CE) ) ) ]
2023 (Stable)
] ] 10-AUG- [ICRA]BBB ] ] ] ]
2023 (Stable)
Long term-
others-fund 200.00 [I(CS':;])?SB - - - - - - - -
based
Long term-term 10-MAY-  [ICRA]BBB+(CE) [ICRA]|BBB [ICRAIBBB [ICRA]BBB-
loan-fund based 0.00 2024 (Stable) 05-APR-2023 (Stable) p3-0CT-2022 (Stable) 09-DEC-2021 (Stable)
Provisional
10-MAY- [ICRA]BBB [ICRA]BBB 11-MAR-  [ICRA]BBB-
2004 (Stable) 05-APR-2023 [ICRA]BBB+(CE) 20-OCT-2022 (Stable) 5022 (Stable)
(Stable)
] ] i [ICRA]BBB+(CE) [ICRA]BBB ) )
04-JUL-2023 (Stable) 20-DEC-2022 (stable)
[ICRA]BBB
04-JUL-2023 (Stable)
) . 10-AUG-  [ICRA]BBB+(CE) ) ) ) )
2023 (Stable)
] ] 10-AUG- [ICRA]BBB ] ] ] ]
2023 (Stable)
Commercial 10-MAY- 11-MAR-
paper 80.00 [ICRA]A3+ 2024 [ICRAJA3+ 05-APR-2023 [ICRA]JA3+ 03-0CT-2022 | [ICRAJA3+ 2022 [ICRA]JA3
- - 04-JUL-2023 [ICRAJA3+ 20-0CT-2022 | [ICRAJA3+ - -
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- - 10-AUG- [ICRAJA3+  20-OCT-2022 | [ICRA]JA3+ - -
2023
- - - - 20-DEC-2022 | [ICRA]JA3+ - -
- - 04-JUL-2023 “g:aAt]feE;B 20-0CT-2022 ['gj&?jB - -
- B R eocam TR
- - - - 20-DEC-2022 ['(CS"::[])?EB)B - -
- - 04-JUL-2023 ['(CS'::t]f:;B 20-0CT-2022 “éﬁ:\t]f;'g - -
- Gae o o PR
- - - - 20-DEC-2022 ['(CS':QE)?GB)B - -
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LT — Long term, ST — Short term; * As on June 30, 2024

Complexity level of the rated instruments

Instrument Complexity Indicator
Long-term fund-based term loans Simple
Non-convertible debentures Very Simple
Commercial paper Very Simple

The Complexity Indicator refers to the ease with which the returns associated with the rated instrument could be estimated. It does not indicate the risk related to the timely
payments on the instrument, which is rather indicated by the instrument's credit rating. It also does not indicate the complexity associated with analysing an entity's financial,
business, industry risks or complexity related to the structural, transactional or legal aspects. Details on the complexity levels of the instruments are available on ICRA’s
website: Click Here
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Annexure |: Instrument details (as on June 30, 2024)

Amount Rated Current Rating

Date of Issuance / Coupon

Instrument Name Maturity Date

Sanction Rate (Rs. crore) and Outlook
[ICRA]|BBB
INEOSXP07118  NCD May-04-2023 11.0500%  May-11-2024 49.50 (Stable);
withdrawn
[ICRA]BBB
INEO8XP07050 NCD Dec-28-2022 11.7500% Jun-28-2024 30.00 (Stable);
withdrawn
[ICRA]BBB
INEO8XP07126 NCD May-15-2023 12.0000%  Jun-30-2024 10.00 (Stable);
withdrawn
INEO8XP07142 NCD Jun-07-2023 11.5000% Oct-31-2024 30.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07092 NCD Nov-29-2022 14.0000% Dec-31-2024 75.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07134 NCD Apr-23-2023 14.0000% Dec-01-2024 30.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07159 NCD Jun-16-2023 10.0100% Jan-21-2025 20.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07159 NCD Jul-28-2023 10.0100% Jan-21-2025 20.1 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07175 NCD Nov-12-2023 11.5000% Feb-28-2025 20.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07100 NCD Mar-14-2023 14.0000% Mar-31-2025 25.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07191 NCD Apr-19-2024 13.0000% Apr-24-2025 5.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07209 NCD May-10-2024 12.0000% Jun-21-2025 5.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07233 NCD Jun-21-2024 10.0100%  Dec-21-2025 70.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07217 NCD May-31-2024 11.9000% Dec-03-2026 20.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
INEO8XP07225 NCD May-31-2024 12.0000% Dec-03-2029 10.0 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA NCDA NA NA NA 646.4 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA Bank line—1 NA NA NA 5.00 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA Bank line — 2 NA NA NA 2.08 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA Bank line -3 NA NA NA 3.15 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA Bank line -4 NA NA NA 9.24 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA Bank line -5 NA NA NA 20.00 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
NA ST s NA NA NA 160.53 [ICRA]BBB (Stable)
others A
NA Term loan -3 Mar-29-2023 12.00% Mar-30-2025 5.41 [ICRAIBBB+(CE)

(Stable)

Long-term fund-based [ICRA]BBB+(CE)

NA NA NA NA 9.59

termioans (Stable)
INEO8XP14072 Commercial paper Jun-26-2024 15.4500%  Aug-26-2024 12.5 [ICRAJA3+
INEO8XP14064 Commercial paper Jun-26-2024 15.5500% Sep-26-2024 12.5 [ICRAJA3+
NA Commercial paper” NA NA NA 55.00 [ICRAJA3+

Kource: Company, ICRA Research; * Yet to be placed/Proposed

Please click here to view details of lender-wise facilities rated by ICRA

Annexure ll: List of entities considered for consolidated analysis

Company Name Ownership Consolidation Approach
Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited Rated entity Full consolidation
EQX Analytics Private Limited Group company with same parent Full consolidation
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ANALYST CONTACTS
Karthik Srinivasan A M Karthik
+91 22 6114 3444 +91 44 4596 4308
karthiks@icraindia.com a.karthik@icraindia.com
Manushree Saggar Rajat Kher
+91 124 4545 316 +91 124 4545 833
manushrees@icraindia.com rajat.kher@icraindia.com
Mishi Yadav

+91 124 4545 320
mishi.yadav@icraindia.com

RELATIONSHIP CONTACT

L. Shivakumar
+91 22 6114 3406
shivakumar@icraindia.com

MEDIA AND PUBLIC RELATIONS CONTACT

Ms. Naznin Prodhani

Tel: 491 124 4545 860
communications@icraindia.com

Helpline for business queries
+91-9354738909 (open Monday to Friday, from 9:30 am to 6 pm)

info@icraindia.com

About ICRA Limited:

ICRA Limited was set up in 1991 by leading financial/investment institutions, commercial banks and financial services
companies as an independent and professional investment Information and Credit Rating Agency.

Today, ICRA and its subsidiaries together form the ICRA Group of Companies (Group ICRA). ICRA is a Public Limited Company,
with its shares listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange. The international Credit Rating Agency
Moody’s Investors Service is ICRA’s largest shareholder.

For more information, visit www.icra.in
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taken to ensure that the information herein is true, such information is provided ‘as is” without any warranty of any kind, and ICRA in particular, makes no
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68394/CL/M UM /24-25/DEB/577
Date: February 11,2025

Akara Capital AdvisorsPrivate Limited
60,3rd Floor,

Arjun Nagar,

Kotla, Mubarakpur,

New Delhi-110003, Delhi

INDIA

Kind Attn: Ms. Shruti Aggarwal (Director)

Sub: Consent Letter to act as Debenture Trustee for Secured Listed Non-Convertible Debentur es aggr egating
upto Rs. 20.00 Crores (+ GSO Rs. 15.00 Crores)

Dear Mam,

Thisiswith reference to our discussion regarding appointment of Beacon Trusteeship Limited as Debenture Trustee
for Secured Listed Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 20.00 Crores (+ GSO Rs. 15.00 Crores)

In thisregards it would indeed be our pleasure to be associated with your esteemed organization as Debenture
Trustee. In this connection, we confirm our acceptance to act as Debenture Trustee for the same.

We are also agreeable for inclusion of our name as trustees in the Company's offer document/disclosure document/
listing application/any other document to be filed with the Stock Exchange(s) or any other authority as required.

Looking forward to along and fruitful association with your esteemed organization.

Yours faithfully Accepted
For Beacon Trusteeship Limited For Akara Capital AdvisorsPrivate Limited

Bhagyashree K orpade Authorised Signatory

Relationship Manager
Mumbai, February 11,2025
Authorised Signatory

BEACON TRUSTEESHIPLTD.
Regd & Corporate Office : 5W, 5th Floor, The Metropolitan, E-Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051
CIN: L74999MH2015PL C271288
Phone : 022 - 46060278 | Email : contact@beacontrustee.co.in | Website : www.beacontrustee.co.in



AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING NO. 14/2024-
25 OF AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON TUESDAY, 11™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2025
AT 11:00 A.M. AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT MAGNUM GLOBAL PARK,
18TH FLOOR, GOLF COURSE EXTENTION, SECTOR — 58, GURUGRAM - 122011, HARYANA

ISSUANCE OF 3,500 SECURED, LISTED, RATED, TAXABLE, TRANSFERRABLE REDEEMABLE, NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AMOUNTING TO INR 35 CRORES TO ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71, 179 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force (the "Act"), all applicable
regulations, directions, guidelines, circulars and notifications of the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") or
any other regulatory authority, whether in India or abroad, and in accordance with the Memorandum
of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to such approvals, consents,
permissions and sanctions as may be required from any statutory or regulatory authority, the approval
of the Board be and is hereby accorded for:

(a) Issuance of 3,500 (Three Thousand Five Hundred) Secured, Listed, Rated, Taxable,
Transferable, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“Debentures”) denominated in
Indian Rupees ("INR"), each having a face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakhs
only) aggregating to primary issuance of INR 20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crores Only
— 2000 debentures) and Green Shoe option of INR 15,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crores
Only — 1500 debentures) or such other number of debentures, face value and amount as may
be determined ("Debentures") for a period of up to 42 Months from the deemed date of
allotment or such other maturity period (subject to applicable law) as may be agreed, on a
private placement basis to eligible categories of investors as identified in the Key Information
document that shall have applied for subscribing to the Debentures (being the identified
persons for the purposes of Section 42 of the Act) ("Investors") for raising debt for on-
lending/disbursement by the Company in the form of loans to its clients/borrowers of the
Company and for such other purposes as may be agreed with the Investors, and

(b) collateralizing/supporting the amounts to be raised pursuant to the issue of the Debentures
together with all interest and other charges thereon (up to such limits and security cover and
within such timelines as may be agreed) by one or more of the following (i) hypothecation of
certain identified book debts/loan receivables (and/or other assets) of the Company and such
other security or contractual comfort as may be required in terms of the issuance of the
Debentures (the "Security/Collateral")”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director or Mr. Pushkar Bhola — VP, Debt Capital
Markets or Mr. Ashish Jha — AVP, Debt Capital Market of the Company be and is hereby severally
authorized to do such acts, deeds and things as they deem necessary or desirable in connection with
the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures, including, without limitation the following:

(a) seeking, if required, any approval, consent or waiver from any/all concerned governmental
and regulatory authorities, and/or any other approvals, consent or waivers that may be
required in connection with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures;

(b) executing the term sheet in relation to the Debentures;

(c) negotiating, approving and deciding the terms of the issue of the Debentures and all other
related matters;

60, THIRD FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR, KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, NEW DELHI - 110003
CIN: U74110DL2016PTC290970 Email ID - cofficer@akaracap.com (M) 9643309883
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

(d)

(e)

(g)

(h)

(i)
(i)

(k)
(1)

finalizing the terms and conditions of the appointment of an arranger, a debenture trustee, a
registrar and transfer agent, a credit rating agency, a legal counsel, the depository(ies) and
such other intermediaries including their successors and their agents, as may be required in
relation to the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures;

finalizing the terms of the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures;

to request guarantor (if any) to issue the Corporate Guarantee and execute all agreements,
documents, power of attorneys, deeds and writings in relation to the same including the deed
of guarantee in favour of the debenture trustee or any other entity as required by the
Investors, if any;

entering into arrangements with the depository(ies) in connection with the issue, offer and
allotment of Debentures in dematerialized form;

entering into the listing agreement with the Stock exchange(s);
obtaining ISIN;

creating and perfecting the Security/Collateral as required in accordance with the terms of
the Transaction Documents (as defined below) in relation to the issue, offer and allotment of
the Debentures;

finalizing the deemed date of allotment of the Debentures;

negotiating, executing, filing and delivering any documents, instruments, deeds,
amendments, papers, applications, notices or letters as may be required in connection with
the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures and dealing with regulatory authorities in
connection with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures including but not limited to
the RBI, SEBI (if so required), the relevant registrar of companies, the Central Registry of
Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or
any depository(ies), and such other authorities as may be required;

signing and/or dispatching all documents and notices to be signed and/or dispatched by the
Company under or in connection with the Transaction Documents;

to take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required, necessary,
expedient or desirable for giving effect to the Transaction Documents, the transactions
contemplated therein, including without limitation, to approve, negotiate, finalise, sign,
execute, ratify, amend, supplement and/or issue the following, including any amendments,
modifications, supplements, restatements or novation’s thereto (now or in the future):

(i) the Key Information Document (“KID”) for the issue, offer and allotment of the
Debentures;
(ii) the debenture trust deed, the debenture trustee agreement, the deed of

hypothecation, and any other documents required for the creation of security interest
over the Company's Book Debts, or the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures
(including any powers of attorney in connection thereto), and any other document in
relation thereto ((i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the "Transaction
Documents");

(iii) any other documents required for the purposes of the issue, offer and allotment of
the Debentures and the transactions contemplated thereby, including but not limited
to letters of undertaking, declarations, agreements, reports; and

60, THIRD FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR, KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, NEW DELHI - 110003
CIN: U74110DL2016PTC290970 Email ID - cofficer@akaracap.com (M) 9643309883
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

(iv) any other document designated as a Transaction Document by the debenture
trustee/holders of the Debentures.

(o) do all act necessary for the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures in accordance with
the terms set out in the Key Information Document Memorandum (“KID”) and the Transaction
Documents; and

(p) to generally do any other act or deed, to negotiate and execute any documents, applications,
agreements, undertakings, deeds, affidavits, declarations and certificates in relation to the
issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures and the transactions contemplated thereby, and
to give such directions as it deems fit or as may be necessary or desirable in relation to the
issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to get itself and the Debentures
admitted to the National Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India) Limited
as may be required and to execute or ratify the necessary agreement(s) with those depositories and
the registrar and transfer agent and any other agreements, undertakings or other writings required
for the issue of the Debentures in the dematerialized form and the Authorized Person be and are
hereby severally authorized to negotiate, finalize and execute or ratify the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director and/or the Company Secretary of the
Company, be and is hereby severally authorised to take all necessary steps relating to the creation,
perfection and registration of charges and also to sign and submit the necessary forms with the
relevant registrar of companies, the Stock Exchange Board of India, the Central Registry of
Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or the
depository(ies), and/or any other relevant governmental authorities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby approves and ratifies all such acts, deeds and actions
taken by the Company till date for the purpose of the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director and/or the Company Secretary of the
Company, be and is hereby severally authorized to record the name of the holders of the Debentures
in the register of debenture holders and to undertake such other acts, deeds and things as may be
required to give effect to the issuance and allotment of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director and/or the Company Secretary of the
Company be and is hereby severally authorized to pay all stamp duty required to be paid for the issue,
offer and allotment of the Debentures in accordance with the laws of India and procure the stamped
documents from the relevant governmental authorities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director of the Company or Mr. Pushkar Bhola -VP,
Debt Capital Markets or Mr. Ashish Jha — AVP, Debt Capital Market be and are hereby severally
authorized to approve and finalize, sign, execute and deliver the Transaction Documents and such
other agreements, deeds, undertakings, indemnities and documents as may be required, or any of
them in connection with the Debentures to be issued by the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director of the Company or Mr. Pushkar Bhola — VP,
Debt Capital Markets or Mr. Ashish Jha — AVP, Debt Capital Market, be and are hereby severally
authorized to register or lodge for registration upon execution documents, letter(s) of undertakings,
declarations, and agreements and other papers or documents as may be required in relation to any of
the above with any registering authority or any governmental authority competent in that behalf.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon receipt of subscription money, the Management Operation
Committee of the Board take all necessary steps for allotment of the securities.

60, THIRD FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR, KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, NEW DELHI - 110003
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, Director be and is hereby severally authorized to
delegate the powers to any other employee/representative/agent as may be deemed necessary to do
such acts and execute such documents as may be required in connection with any of the matters
relating to the issue of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true copies by any
Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be furnished to such persons as may be deemed
necessary.

Certified True Copy

For Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

SHRUT' Digitally signed

by SHRUTI
AGGARW A AGGARWAL

Date: 2025.02.11
L 12:27:40 +05'30'

Shruti Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 06867269

Date: 11* February, 2025
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED HELD
ON THURSDAY, 14™ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2024 AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY SITUATED AT 18™ FLOOR, MAGNUM GLOBAL PARK 2, GOLF COURSE ROAD
EXTENSION, SECTOR-58, GURGAON - 122011

To approve the limit of Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures(‘NCDs’) up to INR 1000 Crores

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession to the previous members resolution passed on 10" May, 2023 and
pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(the "Act") read together with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014,
including any modification, amendment, substitution or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force and
the provisions of the memorandum of association and the articles of association of the Company, the
approval and consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the board of directors
of the Company (the "Board") to issue, and to make offer(s) and/or invitation(s) to eligible persons to
subscribe to, non-convertible debentures ((a) listed or unlisted, (b) senior secured, (¢) senior unsecured, (d)
unsecured, (e) subordinated, (f) any others (as may be determined)) (including market linked debentures)
("NCDs"), on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches, provided that the outstanding amounts of
all such NCDs at any time during the period shall not exceed INR 1000 Crores (Indian Rupees One Thousand
Crores only).”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to arrange, settle
and determine the terms and conditions (including without limitation, interest, repayment, security or
otherwise) as it may think fit of such NCDs, and to do all such acts, deeds, and things, and to execute all
such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to these resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorised to issue a certified true copy of this resolution to the concerned authorities as and when
required.”

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

FOR M/S. Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Digitally signed by
SH RUTI SHRUTI AGGARWAL
Date: 2024.11.19
AGGARWA 16:07:52 +05'30"
Shruti Aggarwal
Director

DIN: 06867269
Address: 6A/2, Raj Narayan Road
Civil Lines, North Delhi — 110054, Delhi

Date: 18" November 2024
Place: New Delhi
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Feburavy OB, 2025
Ta,

Lompany Secretary

AKARA CAPITAL ADYISORS PRIVATE URITED
CRC-2, 15T FLOOR, KHASRA HO_ 337,
WIEHRAULI-GURGADN RD,

SULTANPUR, HEW DELH-1 110030,

sub: Rated, Listed, Senlor, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferrable Non-Convertible
Dabentures [("NCDs” or “Debentures”). :

Deaar SirfMadam,

We, the undersigned, hereby consent te act as Registrar te the Proposed issue of 3,500
{Three Thousand Five Hundered) fully paid, listed, rated, senior, secured, redeemable,
taxable, transferable, non-convertible debentures of the nominal value of INR 1,00,000/-
{Indian Rupess One Lakh Only) each, (“Debentures” ) denominated in Indian Rupees ("INR'), and
b our name being inserted as Registrar to the offer in the letter of offer and other
dueyments filed with statuory autharities,

LCIN U999 MH19MP T 0534

Reged OVlice B=27, Amea Indliestrial Estare, Sakivihzr Road, SakiMaka. Aadlsets [B), Musrbai - 2004072, India
Corprrate Office: LIfce Me 362, odh Floon Pinnacks Busmess Fark, Mexl 1o ahare Cendre, Mahakab Caves Boad, Andbweci (East) Mumoai- 400093,
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

60, SECOND FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, DELHI

CIN : U74110DL2016PTC290970

Statement of standalone unaudited financial results for the six months period ended September 30, 2024

(X in lakhs except otherwise stated)

Quarter ended Year ended March 31,
Particulars September 30, 2024 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ASSETS
Financials Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,710.64 2,116.15
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6,784.09 1,670.11
Receivable
(I) Trade receivable - -
(II) Other receivable 1,097.26 664.09
Loans 1,41,836.72 1,42,052.21
Investments - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 27.82
Other financials assets 3,282.72 2,957.89
Total Financial Assets 1,63,739.26 1,49,460.44
Non-Financials Assets
Current tax assets (net) - -
Deffered tax assets (net) 2,872.40 2,609.29
Property, Plant & Equipment
Right to use assets 9.65 12.86
Intangible assets under Development 27.60 12.50
Intangible assets 745.69 872.15
Other non-financial assets 451.56 79.20
Total Non-Financials Assets 4,106.91 3,586.00
Total Assets 1,67,846.16 1,53,046.43
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financials liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments - 86.11
Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 55.51 70.51

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises 1,022.31 1,057.77
Debt securities 22,297.00 17,390.17
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 73,814.68 70,132.31
Other financials liabilities 1,293.36 1,446.57
Total Financial Liabilities 98,482.86 90,183.44
Non-financial liabilities
Deffered tax Liabilities (net) - -
Current tax Liabilities (net) 2,786.13 3,033.32
Provisions 931.78 552.83
Other non-financial liabilities - -
Total Non-financial liabilities 3,717.91 3,586.15
Equity
Equity share capital 31,599.40 31,599.40
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity 34,045.99 27,677.45
Total equity 65,645.39 59,276.85
Total liabilities and equity 1,67,846.16 1,53,046.43

Place : Delhi
Date: 14-11-2024

S H R UTI 2;?5:?\’/\;&“9d by SHRUTI
AGGARWAL ?;;?;;PZ411.14|6:01:2|
Shruti Aggarwal

Director
DIN: 06867269

Digitally signed by

TUSHAR TUSHAR AGGARWAL
AGGARWAL S heesees
Tushar Aggarwal
Managing Director
& CEO

DIN: 01587360



AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

60, SECOND FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, DELHI

CIN : U74110DL2016PTC290970

dited fi

ial results for the six months period ended September 30, 2024

(% in lakhs except otherwise stated)

Quarter ended Half year ended Year ended
Particulars September 30, 2024 June 30, 2024 September 30, Sep ber 30, September 30, March 31, 2024
(Unaudited) (Uuaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) | 2024 (Unaudited) | 2023 (Unaudited) (Audited)
Revenue from operations
Interest income 13,702.16 14,180.18 15,455.67 27,882.34 33,991.92 64,146.60
Fees and commission income 3,608.14 3,936.37 4,615.14 7,544.51 7,420.77 14,316.44
Net gain on fair value changes 107.64 4.53 112.17
Net gain/(loss) on de-recognition of financial instruments under
amortised cost category
(I) |Total revenue from operations 17,417.94 18,121.08 20,070.81 35,539.02 41,412.70 78,463.04
(II) |Other income 860.23 678.82 28.46 1,539.05 39.84 2,229.45
(II) | Total income (I+IT) 18,278.17 18,799.90 20,099.26 37,078.07 41,452.53 80,692.48
Expenses
Finance costs 3,886.67 3,208.61 3,901.02 7,095.28 7,188.78 14,985.09
Net loss on fair value changes - - - 86.11
Impairment on financial instruments 10,175.94 7,002.03 20,083.50 17,177.98 30,153.77 42,568.19
Employee benefit expenses 858.72 772.82 935.59 1,631.54 1,231.10 3,529.98
Depreciation and amortization 78.18 77.12 116.95 155.30 219.36 1,047.07
Other expenses 1,621.30 1,583.31 2,245.63 3,204.61 7,680.02 11,264.10
(IV) [Total expenses 16,620.82 12,643.90 27,282.70 29,264.72 46,473.03 73,480.54
(V) |Profit before tax (III-IV) 1,657.35 6,156.00 (7,183.43) 7,813.35 (5,020.49) 7,211.95
(VI) | Tax expense
(1) Current tax 783.00 1,671.53 (2,313.47) 2,454.53 389.82 3,218.31
(2) Tax related to earlier years - 11.17
(3) Deferred tax (183.54) (79.57) 390.82 (263.12) (3,493.07) (2,899.67)
Total tax expense 599.46 1,591.95 (1,922.65) 2,191.41 (3,103.25) 329.82
(VI) [Profit for the period (V-VI) 1,057.90 4,564.04 (5,260.78) 5,621.94 (1,917.25) 6,882.13
(VIID)|Other comprehensive income / (expenses)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (12.07) (3.02) (2.16) (15.09) (5.73) (15.68)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 3.04 0.76 0.54 3.80 1.44 3.95
loss
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) (9.03) (2.26) (1.62) (11.29) (4.29) (11.74)
(IX) |Total comprehensive income for the year/period (VII+VIII) 1,048.86 4,561.78 (5,262.40) 5,610.64 (1,921.53) 6,870.39
(comprising  profit/(less) and  other  comprehensive
income/(expenses) for the year/period)
(X) |Earnings per equity share #
Basic (%) 0.33 1.44 (1.81) 1.78 (0.69) 2.40
Diluted () 0.33 1.44 (1.88) 1.78 (0.68) 2.40
SHRUTI oyt by s TUSHAR Dottty s
AGGARWAL ~ Bezoiisess AGGARWAL  Socivaenn
Place : Delhi Shruti Aggarwal Tushar Aggarwal
Date: 14-11-2024 Director Managing Director

DIN: 06867269

& CEO

DIN: 01587360



Notes:

2)

3)

3)

4)

5)

0)

7

The Company is a systemically important non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (‘NBFC’) as defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act,
1934.

The financial results for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, have been reviewed by the audit committee and approved by the board of directors at its meeting held on 14-11-
2024. The report is being filed with the BSE limited.

The above financial results have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended and the Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS’’) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) read with relevant rules issued
thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/applicable.

Pursuant to the RBI circular dated February 15, 2022, the Company has implemented necessary system in place to align its definition of default for loan assets with the guidelines
stipulated in RBI circular dated November 12, 2021 - "Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances- Clarifications" (the
"RBI circular") for regulatory reporting, as applicable. The financial results for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, are prepared in accordance with the applicable Ind-AS
guidelines and the RBI Circular dated March 13, 2020 — “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards”.

There is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments' in respect of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the secured listed Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are
secured by first and exclusive charge on receivables of the Company by way of hypothecation to the extent of minimum 100% and above as per the terms of issue.

Disclosures in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 is
attached as Annexure I to these financial results.
The previous period's / year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified/Restated, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period's / year's classification / disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
TUSHAR i ademma

AGGARWAL Date:20241114

16:05:30 405'30°

Tushar Aggarwal
Place : Delhi Managing Director & CEO
Date : 14-11-2024 DIN : 01587360
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Annexure I:

Additional Disclosures pursuant to Regulation 52(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as at
September 30, 2024 with respect to listed debentures of the Company issued on a private placement basis.

S No Particulars For the period ended
September 30, 2024
(a) Debt — Equity Ratio (Debt Securities + Borrowings other than debt securities + Subordinated debts) / (Net 1.58
worth)
(b) Net worth (Share Capital + Reserves & Surplus - Deferred Revenue Expenditure- Intangible Assets- Deferred 60,775.20
Tax Assets) (2 in lakh)
(c) Net profit after tax (% in lakh) 5,621.94
(d) Total debts to total assets (Debt Securities + Borrowings other than debt securities + Subordinated debts) / 0.57
(Total assets)
(e) Net profit margin (%) (Net profit after tax / Revenue from Operations) 15.82%
(f) Earnings per share
(i) Basic (%) 1.78
(i) Diluted (%) 1.78
(g) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.13
(h) Interest Service Coverage Ratio 2.55
(i) Outstanding Redeemable Preference Shares NA
(1)) Debenture Redemption Reserve NA
(k) Current Ratio NA
) Long Term Debt to Working Capital NA
(m) Bad Debt to Amount Receivable NA
(n) Current liability Ratio NA
(0) Debtors Turnover Ratio NA
(p) Inventory Turnover Ratio NA
q Operating Margin (%) NA
(r) Other Regulatory Ratios
(a)Financial Assets to Total Assets (Total Financial Assets/ Total Assets) 97.55%
(b) Financial Income to Total Income (Total Financial Income/Total Income) 100.00%
(c ) Capital Tier 1 (Net Owned Funds) 60,775.20,
(d ) Capital Tier II (General provisions and loss reserves including Provision for Standard Assets (to the 2,286.38
extent not attributable to actual diminution in value or identifiable potential loss in any specific asset and
are available to meet unexpected losses, to the extent of 1.25% of RWA)
(e) Total Risk Weighted Assets 1,82,910.39]
() Capital Adequacy Ratio 34.48%
(g) As per RBI asset classification norms
Gross NPA (%) (Gross NPA/Gross Loans) 5.11%
Net NPA (%) (Net NPA/ (Gross Loans-Impairment Allowance) 2.60%
Provision Coverage Ratio (Impairment Allowance of stage 3 Loans/ Gross Stage 3 Loans) 52.82%

The following ratios are not applicable to the company as it is an NBFC:

Current Ratio, Current Liability Ratio, Debt Service Coverage Ratio, Interest Service Coverage Ratio, Long-Term Debts to Working Capital Ratio, Bad Debts to Accounts
Receivable Ratio, Debtors Turnover, Inventory Turnover and Operating Profit Margin

Capital Redemption Reserve/Debenture Redemption Reserve is not applicable to the company

In the calculation of Net Owned Funds(NOF), Deferred Revenue Expenditure includes Unamortised Borrowing Cost

NPA Calculatiions are stated based on stage 3 loans.



AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
60, SECOND FLOOR, ARJUN NAGAR KOTLA MUBARAKPUR, DELHI
CIN : U74110DL2016PTC290970

of dfi results for the six months period ended September 30, 2023

(X in lakhs except otherwise stated)

Particulars

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Profit before tax

Non cash adjustment to reconcile (Loss)/Profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest received on FD
Profit on sale of mutual funds
Gain or Loss on Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
Impairment allowance of trade receivables
Provision for doubtful advances
Security deposits carried at amortised cost
Finance Cost
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash
On Others
Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes
‘Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in loans
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Receivables
Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase / (decrease) in Contract liabilites
Increase / (decrease) in Other Financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in Other Non Financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities (A)

B Cash flow from investing activities:
(Purchase) / sale of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds / (investment) in mutual funds

Payment for Purchase of property, plant and equipment,
Profit on sale of mutual funds

Interest received on FD

Cash advances and loans made to other parties

Inflow from Sale of Invesment

Payment of dividend

Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)
C Cash flow from financing activities:
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Finance costs paid
Increase in Share Capital
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

D Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

=

Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period
Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the period (D+E)

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Cash & cash equivalents as at the ending of the period
Total cash and cash equivalents

Place : Delhi
Date : 14-11-2024

16:04:01 +05'30"

Shruti Aggarwal

Director
DIN: 06867269

As at As at |
Se":i,"‘be:_g’ 0, 2024 September 30, 2023(Unaudited)
7,813.35 (5,020.49)
7,813.35 (5,020.49)
155.30 219.36
(97.09) (183.60)
- (1.89)
(11.29) (4.29)
7,095.28 3,901.02
(1,744.00) 974.14
13,211.55 (115.75)
3,294.07
215.49 (34,069.12)
(352.66) (2,288.16)
(372.36) 115.68
(433.17) (565.32)
(50.46) 983.28
8,188.80 8,654.30
378.95 286.18
20,786.13 (23,704.83)
20,786.13 (23,704.83)
114.57 (114.99)
ible assets and I ibles under devel
1.89
(97.09) 183.60
82.04
17.48 152.54
(7,095.28) (3,901.02)
- 2,665.93
(7,095.28) (1,235.09)
13,708.33 (24,787.38)
3,786.25 29.,408.06
17,494.58 4,620.68
17,494.73 4,620.68
17,494.73 4,620.68
SHRUTI St TUSHAR i
AGGARWAL Pate: 20241114 AGGARWAL 220241114 160549

Tushar Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 01587360



Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financials assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6A 1,697.59 2,116.15
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6B 2,554.89 1,670.11
Receivable 7
(1) Trade receivable - -
(I1) Other receivable 1,142.35 664.09
Loans 8 1,40,600.69 1,42,052.21
Investments 9 - -
Other financials assets 10 1,928.72 2,957.89
1,47,924.24 1,49,460.44
Non-financials assets
Current tax assets (net) - -
Deffered tax assets (net) 13 2,688.86 2,609.29
Intangible assets 1 806.35 872.15
Intangible assets under Development 1 22.21 12.50
Fixed Assets 1 11.26 12.86
Other non-financial assets 12 310.88 79.20
3.839.56 3,586.00
Total assets 1,51,763.80 1,53,046.43
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financials liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments 14 80.87 86.11
Trade Payables 15
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 55.51 70.51
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 1,281.72 1,057.77
and small enterprises
Debt securities 16 17,748.30 17,390.17
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 61,932.51 70,132.31
Other financials liabilities 17 1,328.37 1,446.57
82,427.28 90,183.44
Non-financial liabilities
Deffered tax Liabilities (net) 31 - -
Current tax Liabilities (net) 18 4,203.80 3,033.32
Provisions 19 891.27 552.83
Other non-financial liabilities 20 - -
5,095.07 3,586.15
Equity
Equity share capital 21 31,599.40 31,599.40
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity 22 32,642.05 27,677.45
Total equity 64,241.45 59,276.85
Total liabilities and equity 1,51,763.80 1,53,046.43

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Serva and Associates
Firm Registration No:
Chartered Accountants

Name of Partner
Partner
Membership number:

Place: New Delhi

TUSHAR AGGARWAL
Managing Director
DIN: 01587360

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Akara Capital Advisors Pvt Ltd

SHRUTI AGGARWAL

DIN: 06867269



Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

Interest income 23 14,801.28 64,146.60

Fees Income 24 3,315.27 14,316.44

Net loss on fair value changes 27 4.53 -

Total revenue from operations 18,121.08 78,463.04

Other income 25 678.82 2,229.45

Total income 18,799.90 80,692.48

Expenses

Finance costs 26 3,208.61 14,985.09

Net loss on fair value changes 27 - 86.11

Impairment on financial instruments 28 7,002.03 42,568.19

Employee benefits expenses 29 772.82 3,529.98

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1 77.12 1,047.07

Other expenses 30 1,583.31 11,275.27

Total expenses 12,643.90 73,491.71

Profit Before Tax 6,156.00 7,200.78

Tax expense:

Current tax 1,671.53 3,218.31
Pertaining to profit for the current period - -
Pertaining to profit for the current period - -

Deferred tax (79.57) (2,899.67)

Total tax expense 1,591.95 318.65

Profit for the period 4,564.04 6,882.13

Other comprehensive income

(A) (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain of defined benefit plan 3.02 (15.68)
(i) Income tax impact on above (0.76) 3.95

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (A+B) 2.26 (11.74)

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,561.78 6,870.39

Earnings per equity share 31

Basic (Rs.) 1.44 2.40

Diluted (Rs.) 1.44 2.39

Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Serva and Associates

Firm Registration No:
Chartered Accountants

Name of Partner
Partner
Membership number:

Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Akara Capital Advisors Pvt Ltd

TUSHAR AGGARWAL SHRUTI AGGARWAL
Managing Director Director
DIN: 01587360 DIN: 06867269



Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 6: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

6A. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Balance with banks
In current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than three months

6B. Bank balance other than above

0.30 0.30
1,631.79 1,774.74
65.49 341.11
1,697.59 2,116.15

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Fixed Deposit with Bank

Balance with banks to the extent held as margin mangin or security deposit
against the borrowings, guarantees, other commitments
Total

Note 7: Receivable

17.93 17.93
2,5636.96 1,652.18
2,554.89 1,670.11

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

(I) Trade receivable
(1) Other receivable
Total

Note 8: Loans

1,142.35

664.09

1,142.35

664.09

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Loans in India

Public sector

Others

Total Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Add: Accrued Interest

Less: Impairment loss allowance on Accrued Interest
Less: Unmortized Processing Fees

Total Net

Note 9: Investments

1,46,467.93

1,47,128.75

1,46,467.93 1,47,128.75
10,290.19 9,749.78
4,849.97 5,104.43
427.02 431.19
1,40,600.69 1,42,052.21

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Investment in Equity PTC

Total

Investments outside India
Investments in India

Total

Note 10: Other financial assets

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good(Head) - PTC
Colletral to lenders

Advance to supplier

Other Financial Asset

TDS receivable

Total

Note 12: Other non-financial assets

35.26 45.34
77.70 28.36
1,815.76 2,884.18
1,928.72 2,957.89

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Prepaid expenses
Total

310.88

79.20

310.88

79.20




Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 13: Deffered tax assets (net)

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Deffered Tax Assets

Total

Note 14: Derivative Financial Instruments

2,688.86

2,609.29

2,688.86

2,609.29

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Hedge Marked to market Loss

Total

Note 15: Trade Payables

80.87

86.11

80.87

86.11

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

Total

Note 16: Borrowings
Debts Securites

55.51 70.51
1,281.72 1,057.77
1,337.23 1,128.28

Particulars June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
Borrowings 17,838.13 17,469.92
Borrowings Revaluation Reserve - -
Total Gross 17,838.13 17,469.92
Add: Interest Payable 26.40 36.49
Less: Unamortised Borrowing Cost 116.23 116.23
Total 17,748.30 17,390.17

Other than Debts Securites

Particulars June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
Borrowings 61,148.50 69,245.26
Borrowings Revaluation Reserve 862.00 787.52
Lease Liability 12.22 13.73
Total Gross 62,022.72 70,046.51
Add: Interest Payable 438.66 367.71
Less: Unamortised Borrowing Cost 528.87 281.90
61,932.51 70,132.31

Note 17: Other financial liabilities

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Expense payable

CSR Reserve Fund

Amount to be disbursed-pending disbursal
Security deposit from Partner
Collection from customers
TDS payable

GST payable

Salary payable

Due to Colenders

PF payable

Payable under PTC

ESI payable

Total

Note 18: Current tax Liabilities (net)

20.68 38.80
41.29 -
144.66 154.09
109.35 109.35
211.91 166.37
202.65 307.98
145.93 362.76
126.33 103.52
318.45 197.46
7.10 6.24
1,328.37 1,446.57




Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Provision for Income Tax

Total

Note 19: Provisions

4,203.80

3,033.32

4,203.80

3,033.32

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits
-Leave encashment
-Gratuity

Provision for Other Expenses

Total

Note 20: Other non-financial liabilities

29.14 22.20
48.34 44.99
813.78 485.64
891.27 552.83

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Unaccured Income
Total

Note 21: Equity Share Capital

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2022

Authorized shares
40,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 40,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
Total authorized shares capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

315993998 (March 31, 2024: 315993998) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

Note 22: Other equity

40,000.00 40,000.00
40,000.00 40,000.00
31,599.40 31,599.40
31,599.40 31,599.40

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Share premium

Opening Balance

Add: Premium on issue of share capital
Less: Share issue expenses

Total (A)

Statutory reserve under Section 45IA
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer to statutory reserve
Total (B)

Retained earnings (accumulated losses)
Opening Balance

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Transfer to statutory reserve

Total (C)

Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year
Other Equity from Parent (D)

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year
Other Equity from Parent (E)
Grand Total (A+B+C+D)

Note 23: Interest Income

15,095.27 10,551.80
- 4,543.47
15,095.27 15,095.27
2231.77 855.34
912.81 1,376.43
3,144.58 2,231.77
4,315.92 (1,189.79)
4561.78 6,882.13
(912.81) (1,376.43)
7,964.89 4,315.92
(1.51) 10.23
2.26 (11.74)

0.75 (1.51)
6,036.00 3,856.32
400.57 2,179.69
6,436.57 6,036.00
32,642.05 27,677.45

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024




Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024

(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on term loans
Interest Income on deposits with banks

Total

Note 24: Fee and commission Income

14,765.77 63,924.82
35.52 221.78
14,801.28 64,146.60

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Fees Income
Total
Note 25: Other Income

3,315.27

14,316.44

3,315.27

14,316.44

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Bad Debts recovery
Other income
Total

Note 26: Finance Cost

673.60 2,187.48
5.22 41.97
678.82 2,229.45

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

On financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost:
Interest on borrowings
Forex loss
Other borrowing Cost

Total

Note 27: Net loss/Gain on fair value changes

2,666.52 12,392.73
74.48 789.34
467.62 1,803.01
3,208.61 14,985.09

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Loss on Fair Value Changes

Total

Note 27: Net loss/Gain on fair value changes

86.11

86.11

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Gain on Fair Value Changes

Total

Note 28: Impairment on financial instruments

4.53

4.53

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Loan assets and EIS receivable
Bad Debts

Total

Note 29: Employee benefits expenses

536.24 5,435.54
6,465.80 37,132.65
7,002.03 42,568.19

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Salaries and wages

361.99

1,307.47



Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended Jun 30, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Contribution to provident and other funds 10.27 42.83

Share Based Payments 400.57 2,179.69

Staff welfare expenses - -
Total 772.82 3,529.98

Note 30: Other expenses

Particulars June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
Audit fees 7.50 14.50
Bank charges 23.48 122.23
Lead Generation Cost 381.85 6,401.30
Filling Fees 11.19 112.72
Legal and Professional Fees 36.91 169.79
Rent 3.75 14.33
Bank statement analysis expenses 4.79 33.27
Commission 15.00 307.40
Directors sitting fees 11.25 38.63
Interest & penalty on statutory payments - 11.55
Travelling Expenses 6.65 26.09
Annual & subscription fees 1.00 4.22
GST Input Expensed Off 276.31 998.29
Technologies expense 0.02 0.31
Office expense 12.68 49.91
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.16 2.15
Data Access Charges 224.88 939.96
Collection and recovery expense 524.60 1,963.65
CSR Expense 41.29 63.47
Insurance expenses - 1.52
Total 1,583.31 11275.27

Note 31: Earning per share

Basic earning per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of share outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Particulars

June 30, 2024

March 31, 2024

Following reflects the net profit and weighted average equity shares data used in EPS computation:

Basic

Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Basic EPS (in Nos.) 31,59,93,998 28,68,02,513
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS 4,564.04 6,882.13
Basic earning per share (in Rs.) 1.44 2.40
Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares of computation of Diluted EPS (in Nos.) 31,59,93,998 28,68,02,513
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 4,564.04 6,882.13
Diluted earning per share (in Rs.) 1.44 2.39
Nominal/Face value of equity share (in Rs.) 10 10



Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Fixed Assets

(Amount in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 11: Intangibles

Particulars Software Software CWIP ROU Assest Total
Cost:

At April 1, 2024 872.15 12.50 12.86 897.51
Additions 9.71 9.71 - 19.43
Write offs - - -
At Jun 30, 2024 881.86 22.21 12.86 916.94
Additions - -
At Jun 30, 2024 881.86 22.21 12.86 916.94

Accumulative amortisation:
At April 1, 2024 - -
Charge for the year 75.51 - 1.61 77.12

Reversal for the year - - -
At Jun 30, 2024 75.51 - 1.61 7712
Charge for the year 75.51 -
At Jun 30, 2024 75.51 - 1.61 7712

Net book value

At April 1, 2024 872.15 12.50 12.86 897.51
At Jun 30, 2024 806.35 22.21 11.26 839.82
At Jun 30, 2024 806.35 22.21 11.26 839.82

Note 11: Intangible assets under Development
Intangible assets under Development as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 12.50 Lakhs (Jun 30, 2024- Rs. 22.21)
S H RUTI Digitally signed by
SHRUTI AGGARWAL

Date: 2024.09.10
AGGARWA 16:33:39 +05'30'
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of M/s Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of “M/s Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited”
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income),its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report
and describe the process how our audit addressed the matter.

We have fulfilled the responsibility described in the Auditors’ responsibility for the audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report including in relation of this matter. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures, design to respond to our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial
Statements. The result of our audit procedure including the procedures performed the matter to addressed below,
provide the bases of our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statement.

Head Office: 1011-1014, 10™ Floor, RG Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Delhi 110034 Ph: +91-11-42502244, 3562

Email: info@servamail.in Website: www.serva.in



SERVA ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Impairment of financial assets (Expected
Credit Losses)

(Refer Note no. 55.1 (A) to the Financial Statements
read with accounting policy No.4(xii) - ‘Financial
Instruments’ and 4 (xiii)- ‘Impairment of Financial
Assets’)

Financing is principal business of the Company and
disclosure of Loan assets at fair value considering the
provision for loss due to impairment is most significant.

The Company has recorded an impairment loss
allowance of Rs. 5,435.54 Lakhs as at 31 March 2024 in
its statement of profit and loss.

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance for
loan losses are determined using expected credit loss
(ECL) model. The estimation of impairment loss
allowance on financial instruments involves significant
judgement and estimates. The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management judgement and
therefore increased levels of audit focus in the
Company’s estimation of ECLs are:

Data inputs - The application of ECL model requires
several data inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data that has been
used to create assumptions in the model.

Model estimations - Inherently judgmental models are
used to estimate ECL which involves determining
Exposures at Default (“EAD”), Probabilities of Default
(“PD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”). The PD and the
LGD are the key drivers of estimation complexity in the
ECL and as a result are considered one of the most
significant judgmental aspects of the Company’s
modelling approach.

The underlying forecasts and assumptions used in the
estimates of impairment loss allowance are subject to
uncertainties which are often outside the control of the
Company. Given the size of loan portfolio relative to the

We have obtained an understanding of the guidelines
as specified in Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”,
various regulatory updates, guidance of ICAl and
internal instructions and procedures of the Company
in respect of the ECL and adopted the following audit
procedures:

Our key audit procedures included:

e Performed walkthroughs to identify the key
systems, applications and controls used in
the impairment loss allowance processes.
We tested the relevant manual (Including
spreadsheet controls), general IT and
application controls over key systems used in
the impairment loss allowance process on
sample basis.

e Evaluation and testing of the key internal
control mechanisms with respect to the loan
assets monitoring, assessment of the loan
impairment including testing of relevant data
quality, and review of the real data entered.

e Tested the arithmetic accuracy of

computation of ECL provisions performed by

the company in spreadsheets.

e Recoveries in the loan assets are verified to
ascertain level of stress thereon and impact
allowance in

on impairment financial

statements.

e Assessed the disclosures made in relation to
the ECL allowance to confirm compliance
with the Ind AS provisions.

The company avails services of third party for
evaluation of ECL Components and such party
was changed during the year. The calculations
in the study for impairment allowance carried

«
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balance sheet and the impact of impairment allowance
on the financial statements, we have considered this as
a key audit matter.

out by third party are relied upon by us and
test checks are carried out for the same. The
data shared with the third party is verified by
us for correctness of material components
being submitted. Our audit

procedure in the same are limited in view of
not sharing certain parameters and software
used for study of such data being considered
confidential by such third party.

We also compared ECL with the provisioning
as required by the applicable directions of the
Reserve Bank of India

and adequacy of
allowance accordingly.

ensured impairment

2. Fair valuation of Derivative Financial

Instruments

(Refer Note No. 40 to the Financial Statement read with
accounting policy No. 4(xii)- ‘Financial Instruments’.)

To mitigate the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk and interest rate, non-Rupee cash flows
are monitored and derivative contracts are entered for
hedging purpose. The derivatives are measured at fair
value as per Ind AS 109.

Gain/Loss on the derivative is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit and loss as provided
by Ind AS. The magnitude of such transactions is
significant as per the operations of the company. In
view of facts of the matter we have identified it as a key
audit matter.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at
conclusion regarding reasonableness of the
disclosures and accounting for derivatives include the
following:

Discussing and understanding management’s
perception and studying policy of the company for risk
management.

Verification of fair value of derivative in terms of Ind AS
109, testing the accuracy and completeness of
derivative transactions.

Evaluation of management’s key internal controls over
classification, valuation, and valuation models of
derivative instruments.

Obtained details of the financial derivative contract as
outstanding/pending for settlement as on 31 March,
2024.

Verification of underlying assumptions in estimating
the fair valuation arrived at for those financial
derivative contracts.

Reviewed the appropriateness and adequacy of
disclosures by the management as required in terms
of Ind AS 109.

«
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

The management is also responsible for effective implementation of the requirements prescribed by Rule 3(1) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 i.e., every company which uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of

account, should use only such accounting software which has the following features:

e Records an audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of
account along with the date when such changes were made; and

e Ensuring that audit trail is not disabled.

e Accounting software may be hosted and maintained in India or outside India whose backup should be accessible in
India at all the times and such backup of accounts should be maintained on servers physically located in India.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Assess and comment on company’s compliance with implementation Audit trail under Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e Evaluate that the company maintain back-up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode that should be accessible in India at all the times. Also, the Company create backup of
accounts on servers physically located in India on a daily basis. This is as per the amended Rule 3 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

1. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to
the company since the company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion the books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company so far it appears from
our examination of those books.;

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), the statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

e. Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting; and

g. With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company as detailed in Note No 51 to the Standalone Financial Statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024.

(ii) The company had not entered into any long term contracts except one hedging contract as on 31st
March 2024. The company has also accounted for such loss on derivative financial instruments in the
books as on 31st March 2024.

(iii) There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to Investor Education and & Protection Fund
by the company during the year ended 31st March 2024.

(iv)

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
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disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31st March 2024.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances/matters mentioned below,
the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2023, has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Nature of exception noted Details of exception

Instances of accounting software | The accounting software used for maintenance of
for maintaining books of account | accounting records of the Company inadvertently did not
which did not have a feature of | have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
recording audit trail (edit log) | enabled at the database level for accounting software Tally
facility. to log any direct data changes.

For Serva Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000272N

*®
/{%M;
Surendar K. Jain

(Partner)

Membership Number: 016520

Date: 29" May 2024

UDIN: 2401 6520BKEFEP9429
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure Ato the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Akara Capital Advisors Private
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:-

(i)
(a)
A. The company does not possess any property, plant or equipment except right-of-use (ROU) assets as on
31 March 2024. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets including
intangible assets under development.

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification of relevant details of right-of-use (ROU) assets. In
accordance with these relevant details of right-of-use (ROU) assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Since the company is not in the possession of any immovable property, hence the provision of para (i) (c) are
not applicable

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Intangibles or right-of-use (ROU) assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder.

(i)
(a) Asthe Company does not possess any Inventory therefore Para (ii)(a) is not applicable.

(b) That the company has sanctioned a working capital limit (WCDL) of INR 2,500.00 lakhs from financial
institution on the basis of security of current assets i.e., book debts of the company and corporate
guarantee by the holding company on 10™ July 2023. Apart from the above there was a WCDL which was
there since 01-04-2023 of INR 2,500.00 lakhs. Quarterly Returns/Statements, in respect of book debts have
been filed by the company with the financial institution.

(iii)

(a)Since, the principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence, clause (iii)(a)(A) and (iii)(a)(B) are
not applicable.

(b)Since the company has not made any investments, provided any guarantees, security, loans or advances to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties hence clause (iii)(b) is not applicable.
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii

a.

(vii

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(c) Since the company has not made any investments, provided any guarantees, security, loans or advances to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties hence clause (iii)(c) is not applicable.

(d)Since the company has not made any investments, provided any guarantees, security, loans or advances to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties hence clause (iii)(d) is not applicable.

(e) Since, the principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence, clause (iii)(e) is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, hence clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments made and guarantee provided as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and
section 186 of the Act in respect of security provided by it.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013.Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the maintenance of cost records
has not been prescribed for the company by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have
been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding
at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause
(a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The company has paid an amount of Rs 3.33 lakhs on account of TDS and 0.03 lakhs on account of interest
which was overlooked during filing of Income Tax Return for AY 2023-24. The same was not payable on account
of any dispute.

i) According to the information and explanations given to us. there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

«
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(ix)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) That no instance or information has come on our records in context to the Company been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized the
money obtained by way of loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have prima facie been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, and on overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the company, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligation of its Associate or Subsidiary or Joint Venture.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/Fully or partially or
optionally convertible Debentures during the year under audit and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)
(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation, made to us by the
management of the Company no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Hence reporting
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xiii) Based on audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to financial statements, as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards.(Ind As 24), Related party disclosures specified in companies (Indian accounting
standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed in section 133 of the act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has constituted an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)

(@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system which is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the provisions of section 138 of
the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date
for the period under audit.

(xv) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and accordingly
reporting under clause (xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)
(a) The company is required to hold Certificate of Registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934, and they hold a Certificate of Registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934 vide certificate no. RBI Reg No. NBFC LC N- 14.03354 / 16/01/2017.

(b) The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence the company has conducted all Activities with a valid
Certificate.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, during the year, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence clause (xvi) (c) is not applicable.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as immediately preceding
financial year

(xviii)There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into consideration the
issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.
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(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

SERVA ASSOCIATES

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end
of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable is respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under the
report.

For Serva Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000272N

oS

<«

ol

Surendar K. Jain

(Partner)

Membership Number: 016520

Date: 29'" May 2024
UDIN:24016520BKEFEP9429
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Akara Capital Advisors Private
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Serva Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 000272N
oce—

Surendar K. Jain

(Partner)

Membership Number: 016520

Date: 29" May 2024

UDIN: 24016520BKEFEP9429
Place: New Delhi
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Akara Capital Advisors Private Umited
Motes bo the Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AR amount In As. In Lakhs, unless stated othirwiss)
13 Dbl Sescurities

At amortised cost

Mg pk farch 31,  As at March 31,

2074 2023
Spcuped *
Hon-tonveriible debentures 1745982 12,300 B0
Tl gross () 1716952 33,3003.60
Add: Acorued fetereit 1549 17153
Lews2 Unasmoritied Barrowing Cost J]_]E‘.HJ
Tolal Met (A} 17,390.17 32,482.13
Debt securives In India 12, 350.17 3248213
Dbt wocurites nurslde India = L
Total () 17,330.17 32,432.13

* Spcured against erclsive charge by way of hypothecation al lending ook recaivshles of the Company.

13.1 Detailly of dabt socuritioe:
Nedepmabde Moi-Convertibile Debantuigd - Sécunsd

Prbwaiely placed:

Privabely placad debardures sre secursd by pacusve charge an laan receivables of the compary. During the year ended
Warch 31, 2024, the Cormpany hes reised s 20,450 Lskhs |March 33, 3023 As 31,900 Lakba) worln of redecrnabie non-
convertiblia debentares thiough privale e . The Company has uiilised e whole of ihe alorementionsd net proceeds
tawarcs the obgects af the ivsue as steled in the respective term sheals

13,2 Terms of repayment of Oebt Secunties Dutstanding

Dol CF As ar Manch 31, Az at Manch 31,

Mo, (4 Debentures Face Value (R Inderest (X) Redemption 2034 021
Usted MiDs
30 10, 00,000 11.75% 28.06-2014 S0 5001 H3
Ap0a 1.{lﬂ-.III-:I'.'I 11.50% 3112004 1.500.00 L
200 100000 11.50% I8-05-2015 L0000 -
4000 LOE000 10.01% 1012005 1hhE.&T
1800 1,00000 11 0a% F1-12-2004 3B 00 180000
a450 100000 11.05% 114052014 1,237.50 -
B850 00,000 1355% 26-03-2024 - 6, ) )
Sibitetal {A} 7,864.17 11, 100000
Linlisted MCDs
2700 1,00000 1305% 18042003 4500 2250000
400 30000,000 L4 000R% 04-12- 004 1,524,805 380560
750 000,000 {4 i 123024 3,.314.29 7500000
250 A0000,000 £4 00 33-D3-H015 1,500.00 2,500 0
3000 L0000 14 01-12-2004 1,332.23 i
500 500,000 13.50% 30-11-20124 1,333.33 -
1000 L00000 §1095% A0-05-1024 250,00
40000 IO 1317 03-07-F23 * A0 0o
200 1000 000 14.55% 16-03-2004 . 2, 000,00
30000 D000 E1.04% 0a8-11-2023 . 2, 25000
Subictal (8] 8,605.75 11.105.60
17,460,593 32.500.60
— —
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A Brerosings (Otker Than Dbl Seouilies)

Akara Capltal Adyisers Privele Limbed

Motas to the Firancisl Statemiats lor 1h yoar ended March ¥, 2024
| A mmeuet in M. In Lalohs, undess stated othemaise)

& amort zad cost &z gt Maech 13, 3038 B af March 31, 3009
Seiured
Teems Losas
Frnm Firancial bisisoiions A5ATEAL 33,117,85
Fraorn Ranka AEHTES 4BEEET
lifes Conparats Dapasits 134846 1,98%.20
WL = 150000
Pocsign Loah
Fram Holding Comipany 3550071 24.193.1%
Unsacured
Commergial Peps
Feduti AUF I,
Lease Lishility 1573
Todw! gross (4] 5925859 __B&aa7.04
Adil; Aeeiusd Inlered ECE 2200 pELE
Acdd; dowrosd Inleres on Tems Loant 14351 14735
fidd; Besmdain s fava luation Resone TRRE -
Lest: Lingrtised Boricssing Coak L ERL] [522.BE)
Tqm| Mat [A) 013331 E5,TI6 &0
Boivdwirgs i inda FLEIRGT AL B8 42
Barrawirgs autskds indla IRFILIS 14,308 04
Total B) 03130 .1 56.50

Dzl Thave e no del el 45 o balanoe dheet take in reosymuet ol Son owing and interas therecn,
Corperats Guaranies : Datporste Sumrames of Re 67,301 02 Lakhs have been provided by group companiss ol Alara Capital fdhvaces Prvite Limitad
ba variou |enden on the Pailities avaled from Them o hanalf af Atara Cagilel Bdviscry Progald Limiled a5 on 31-08-2024
Endl Usai Tha Company bas felen Beacwngs from e, NARCS, e B pnclal msinaios and ubSeec them or (he speuilc purnpeus Tor witvch Ehiey

Wil Lo 25 3 the Balirc# fhad] faa,

The lnaek are SEcured gami s dharge oy way ol ypulbecstaon of [Endng ook recesabia: ol (ke Company,

T boans frem Hﬂl....“rllrrmu:l Inienei from (he cange & 350K o 14005 ard fenge ant 8 el o0 2 yoard along with morihly fedivmest

prag ST

«Spa0e inrerdlonally el blank.
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Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Wotes to the Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024
[AIl amount Im Rs. In Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

14,1 Terms of rapaymant of long term barrowings (Other Than Debt Sacurities] outstanding

Rate Tenure installments Balance as on Balance as on
31-0%-2024 31-03-2023

Flxed <1 Year 1 2,000.00 2.627.35
2 T43.52 20082
3 1,B1B.64 2,9659:81
4 1,083.02 52080
5 3,668.33 2,283.57
i 1.ETE.65 :
7 1,296.55 126,53
2 - 18348
| 1,600.00 £
i 421,51 .
11 - 1,503.69
12 LBE1.27 4.57E.0]
1-2 Years 1 24,193.19
2 111.04
i 12h.33
4 133.32 158,45
6 351,38
? 856,31
13 94 80
2-3Years 1 13,307 .67 .
-4 Years 1 24,193.19
Floating <1 Year 1 13549 .
2 105,01
3 - BE3.50
4 1.219.45 873.07
= 2,418.00 LE0.25
3 375,00 484,73
d 101,67
3 1,058.25 1,060,251
g 3,881.25 7.213.74
10 2 466,67
13 92215 1,329.17
12 181883 4 65087
1-X Years 1 31.17 134,49
E| 187.50
4 166.87 400,00
5 Z0&.33
& 375.00
i 333,33 1,055,320
| 1,256.10
17 11817
12 250.00 750.00
Total £0.24536  £6,467.00
“Spate intentionally left blank-
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Valued Shareholders and Stakeholders,

| am delighted to extend my warm greetings to you as | present our annual report for the financial year
2022-23. This year has been nothing short of extraordinary for all of us at Akara Capital Advisors Private
Limited (ACAPL). It is with immense pride that | share our accomplishments and the journey we have

undertaken.

Despite the challenges posed by ever-changing market dynamics, we have not only remained resilient
but have also achieved remarkable growth. Our unwavering belief in our vision, coupled with our
commitment to innovation, has been the driving force behind our success. | extend my heartfelt
gratitude to our clients, partners, team members and stakeholders who have been integral to our

journey.

In the face of uncertainties, we have steered our ship through uncharted waters, adapting and thriving.
This has been possible due to our unyielding dedication to our customers, an unrelenting pursuit of
growth and maintaining operational excellence. Our teams have been the pillars of this success, working

tirelessly in their respective domains.

| extend a warm welcome to the newest additions to the Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited (ACAPL)
family. Their expertise has enriched our capabilities, ensuring that we remain at the forefront of

innovation and customer-centric solutions.

Our growth story has been remarkable over the past year. We have expanded our team by over 23
members, reinforcing our leadership team to propel us into the next phase of growth. Our investments

in technology, platforms and training underscore our commitment to nurturing our teams' capabilities.

Our commitment to elevating value creation is vividly mirrored in our performance throughout the fiscal
year 2022-23. While our total revenue stood at INR 216.92 crores, our PBT reached INR 39.81
crores. Amidst the prevailing headwinds, our GNPA and NNPA for the year settled at 2.97% and 2.23%

respectively.

We maintained a standalone debt-to-equity ratio of 2.39 and our interest income from loans surged by
287%. A robust performance was showcased through disbursing 17,13,148 number of personal loans
totaling INR 2075.54 crores. This stands testament to our resilience, growth, and unwavering dedication
in the demanding landscape eventually helping us raise a capital of nearly INR 1200 crores to serve our

customers.



As we navigated the challenges posed by the economy, we recognized our duty to the larger community
by extending unwavering support to our clients, suppliers and vendors. The pandemic has reshaped
how we work and our working model. We recognize the importance of work-life harmony, providing
our people with avenues to achieve their full potential while maintaining their well-being across all

aspects of life.

On behalf of the board, | extend my heartfelt appreciation to our employees for their relentless
dedication and unwavering enthusiasm in embracing the ambitious path we have charted for our
company. | also extend my gratitude to our management team, whose collaborative efforts and hard

work have fortified our strong foundation.

To our esteemed shareholders, your unwavering trust in our leadership and financial trajectory is deeply
valued. With unwavering commitment from the board and management, | am confident about the

continued success and future growth of our company.

Sincerely,

Tushar Aggarwal

Managing Director & CEO,

Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited (ACAPL)



NOTICE OF 7™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 7*" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2023
AT 11:30 A.M. AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT CRC-2, 1ST FLOOR, KHASRA
NO. 337, MEHRAULI-GURGAON RD, SULTANPUR, DELHI 110030 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS (S)

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of the Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year ended on 31%* March,
2023:

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements containing the Balance Sheet as at 31°* March
2023 and the Profit and Loss Account for the financial year ended on that date along with Notes &
Schedules appended thereto together with the Boards’ Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon and in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, the Financial
Statements containing the Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2023 and the Profit and Loss Account ended
on that date along with Note & Schedules appended thereto for the Financial Year ended 31t March
2023 together with the Boards’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon be and are hereby received,
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s Serva
Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (Firm Registration Number: 000272N) be and are hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of three consecutive years from the
conclusion of this 07™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion of the 08th AGM to be held
in the year 2026, at such remuneration plus out of-pocket expenses and applicable taxes etc., as may
be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To approve the Alteration in the Articles of Association

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies Rules, 2014, including any other modification(s) thereto
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded for alteration in the following clause of the Articles of Association of the company.”

The following Article 34 (d) be inserted after the existing Article 34 (c)



(i) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Articles, the Board shall have the power, on receipt of
the nomination by the debenture trustee to appoint a Nominee Director on the Board of the Company,
in the following circumstances:

I. 2 (two) consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture holders; or
Il . default in creation of security; or
Il. default in redemption of the debentures.

The Debenture Trustee may have the right to remove such Nominee Director so appointed and also in
the case of death or resignation or vacancy for any reasons whatsoever in the Nominee Director/s so
appointed, at any time appoint any other person as Nominee Director. Such appointment or removal
shall be made in writing to the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shruti Aggarwal, director, of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to do sign and file requisite forms along with such other documents as may be required, with Registrar
of the Companies and to do all such acts as may be necessary and expedient to give effect to the above
resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/-
Shruti Aggarwal
(Director)
DIN: 06867269
6A/2, Raj Narain Road,
Civil Lines, New Delhi — 110054
Date: 24" August, 2023



NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY, OR, WHERE
THAT IS ALLOWED, ONE OR MORE PROXIES, TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF,
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2. The proxies to be effective should be deposited at the registered office of the company not
later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3. Apersoncan act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or shareholder.

4. Members are requested to bring their copy of Attendance Slip, duly completed and signed, to
the meeting.

5. Members are requested to bring the copy of Annual Report to the AGM.

6. The route map to the AGM venue is annexed to the notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

ITEM NO. 2

RBI has issued guidelines for appointment of Statutory Auditors of Non Deposit taking Systemically
Important NBFC with asset size of more than INR 1000 Crore vide its Circular on No.
Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April, 2021.

These guidelines are effective from FY 2021-2022. As per the Circular, NBFCs that meet the given criteria
cannot have an Audit Firm or an Auditor as its Statutory Auditor for more than a term of Three Years.

The Asset size of our Company has crossed INR 1000 Crore in March, 2023. Therefore, the said circular
is applicable to us. As a matter of fact, Suri & Sudhir have given their resignation from their position as
Statutory Director. The Company have received consent letter from M/s Serva Associates to act as the
statutory auditor of the Company for conducting the Audit for the FY 2023-26 and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors have accepted appointment letter
from M/s Serva Associates.

The Board accordingly recommends the ordinary resolution set out at Item No 2 of this notice for
approval of the members.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice



ITEM NO. 3

Pursuant to SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/POD1/P/CIR/2023/112 dated 4th July 2023 regarding the
appointment of a director nominated by the Debenture Trustee in terms of clause(e) of sub-regulation
(1) of regulation 15 of the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993the Company is therefore
required to alter its AOA by inserting Article 35 (d) after the existing Article 35 (c).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, alteration of articles requires
approval of the members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution at a general meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolutions as set out in Item no 3
accompanying notice for approval of the members.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Iltem No. 3 of the Notice



ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF AGM:

AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office: CRC-2, 1st Floor, Khasra No. 337 Mehrauli-Gurgaon Rd, Sultanpur New Delhi - 110030
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Dear Members,

Your Director’s take pleasure in presenting the Directors’ report on the business and operations of the

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Company along with summarized financials for the financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Financial Results:

The Company’s financial performance for the financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below:

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,
2023 (in Lakhs)

For the year ended March 31,
2022 (in Lakhs)

Total Income 21,692.30 4,943.25
Expenditure 17,710.61 4,147.50
Profit/(Loss) before tax 3,981.69 795.75
Less: Tax Expenses &

Deferred Tax 1,394.29 117.48
Profit /(Loss) for the year 2.587.40 648.57

after taxation

2. Information of State of the Company’s Affairs:

Your Company was incorporated on 11" February, 2016 with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi. The
Company is engaged in the activities of Finance and is registered with Reserve Bank of India as an NBFC,
the status of the Company changed to NBFC-ND-SI as it has crossed the asset size of Rs. 500/- Crores as
per the audited financials dated 31st March, 2022.

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, your Company earned a revenue of INR 21,692.30 (In
Lakhs) and incurred expenditure of INR 17,710.61 (In Lakhs). However, during the previous financial year
ended March 31, 2022, your Company earned INR 4,943.25 (In Lakhs) and incurred an aggregate
expenditure of INR 4,147.50 (In Lakhs).

For the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company made net profit of INR 25,87,40,000 (Twenty-
Five Crores Eighty-Seven Lakhs Forty Thousand Only) and the year ended 31 March, 2022 the company
made net profit of INR 6,48,57,000 (Six Crores Forty-Eight Lakhs Fifty-Seven Thousand Only).

3. Share Capital:

Share capital of the Company is INR 400,00,00,000/- divided into 40,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/-
each. The Paid-up share capital of the Company is INR 2,70,55,93,310/- divided into 27,05,59,331 equity
shares of INR 10/- each as on 315 March 2023. During the financial year 2022-23, the paid up capital of
the company has been changed and the company obtained the necessary RBI approval.

Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Morus Technologies Pte. Ltd.
Further, the company has no subsidiary or joint ventures or associate companies.
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a. Sweat Equity shares:
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year under review.

b. Issue of further Share Capital:
The Company has issued 59,36,88,12 equity Shares of INR 10 each during the Financial Year
under review and has issued 59,36,88,12 equity shares of INR 10 each to M/s. Morus
Technologies PTE LTD through Rights Issue.

c. Buy back of Shares:
During the year under review, the Company has not made any offer to buy back its shares.

Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures

During the financial year under review, your Company has raised Rs. 289 Crores through issuance of
Secured, Rated, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”) on private placement basis, both
Listed and Unlisted

Your Company, being a Non-banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with RBI is exempted from the
requirement of creating a Debenture Redemption Reserve (“DRR”) on privately placed debentures as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2023. Therefore, DRR has not been created by your Company.

Your Company has appointed below mentioned as the Debenture Trustees for the issuance of NCDs:

1. Vardhman Trusteeship Private Limited

2. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

3. Mitcon Credentia Trusteeship Services Ltd.
4. Axis Trustee Services Limited

5. Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Credit Ratings

Considering the operational and financial performance of your Company, its rating has been assigned
and reaffirmed to BBB Stable by ICRA Limited during the financial year under review.

3.Dividend:
Although the Company has earned profit, the Board of Directors of your Company, after considering
holistically the relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any

dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

4. Transfer to Reserves:

During the financial year the Company has carried forward Profit & Loss balance of INR 2,587.40 (In
Lakhs) to surplus during the year and in accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 the company has transferred to statutory Reserve 20% profit after tax i.e. an
amount of INR 659.62 (In Lakhs)
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5. Change in the nature of business, if any:

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during financial year under review.

6. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year and the date of the report:

There have been no material changes and/or commitments occurred subsequent to the close of the
financial year of the Company to which the balance sheet relates i.e., March 31, 2023 and up to the date
of signing of this report, which might affect the financial position of the Company.

7. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There has been no order, whatsoever, passed or issued by any regulators, courts or tribunals, which
might affect the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

8. Risk Management Policy, development and its implementation:

The Company’s Risk Management Policy with a robust supporting risk management framework facilitates
identification and assessment of new risks and review of presently identified risks. The process is based
on identified risks and the risk events or factors which require regular assessment and quick response.
Based on the probability & impact of the risk, the requisite controls and action plans have been designed
and implemented. The Key Risk Indicators have been identified to measure the adequacy, effectiveness
and efficiency of these, controls and action plans.

9. Internal Control Systems:

The Company’s internal control systems are geared towards ensuring adequate internal controls
commensurate with the size and needs of the business, with the objective of efficient conduct of
operations through adherence to the Company’s policies, identifying areas of improvement, evaluating
the reliability of Financial Statements, ensuring compliances with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets from unauthorized use.

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; and

e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

12



11. Public Deposits:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

12. Statutory Auditors:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, M/s Suri & Sudhir, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 000601N), Delhi were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 years starting from 01/04/2022 to
31/03/2027 in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in 2022.

Board’s explanation and Comments on Auditors report: The Notes on Accounts read with the Auditors
Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not require any further comments or explanations as the
Auditor’s Report given by auditors of the Company doesn’t contain any qualification, reservation, or
adverse remarks.

The Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 does not refer about
any fraud.

Pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI for appointment of Statutory Auditors of Non Deposit taking
Systemically Important NBFC with asset size of more than INR 1000 Crore vide its Circular on No.
Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April, 2021, NBFCs that meet the given
criteria cannot have an Audit Firm or an Auditor as its Statutory Auditor for more than a term of Three
Years.

Since the Asset size of your Company has crossed INR 1000 Crore in March, 2023 the said circular is
applicable and as a matter of fact, Suri & Sudhir have given their resignation from their position as
Statutory Director. The Company have received consent letter from M/s Serva Associates to act as the
statutory auditor of the Company for conducting the Audit for the FY 2023-26 and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors have accepted appointment letter
from M/s Serva Associates.

13. Cost Auditor:

As per the Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions of maintenance of cost records are
not applicable on the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

14.Secretarial Auditor:

The Company was not required to appoint any Secretarial Auditor in terms of the applicable provisions
of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed there under during the period
under review. Therefore, no secretarial audit report is required to be obtained.

15.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and
outgo:

The disclosure under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 relating to foregoing matters are as follows.

a. Conservation of Energy:

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to conservation
of Energy and technology absorption in the above rules are not applicable.

13



b. Technology Absorption:
The Company is not involved in any activity relating to technology absorption.

c. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo: (in INR)
The Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo during the year was as follows:

Particulars 2022-23 (in lakhs) 2021-22 (in lakhs)
Foreign Exchange Income - -
Foreign Exchange Expenditure 1022.21 -

16. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The provisions pertaining to the Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) in terms of the section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are
applicable on the Company since the Company has crossed the limit of Net Profit of Rs. 5 crores for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022.

In pursuit of this a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee had been formed by the Company
which oversees the activities relating to activities supporting the social and environmental causes. The
committee consists of following members

Sno. | Name Designation

1. Shruti Aggarwal Director

2. Tushar Aggarwal Director

3. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra lyer | Independent Director

The Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021.

During the year Two (2) CSR Meetings were held on 16 Day of November 2022 and 13™ February,
2023.The CSR Report is enclosed as Annexure Il

17. Extract of the Annual Return:

MCA vide Notification dated 05.03.2021 (effective from same date) has substituted Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration), Rules, 2014 and have done away with the requirement of filing the
Extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9 but the same has been uploaded on the website of the
Company www.akaracap.com.

18. Contracts or Arrangements made with Related Parties Referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section 188
of the Act

The Company had entered into the related party transactions and these took place at arm’s length basis
in the ordinary course of business. The Contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined
under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in Annexure -l and is attached to this
Report.
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19. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

The Company has not entered into any transaction of or given, whether within the prescribed limit or
beyond the limit, any loan, guarantee or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, no disclosure is required to be made by the Company in this regard.

21. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 17 times. The intervening
gap between any two board meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Articles of Association (‘AoA’) of the Company. Proper quorum was present at all the Board
meetings held. The Board meetings held during the year are mentioned below

S. No.

Date of the Board

No. of Directors required to attend

No. of Directors attended

Meeting

the BM

the BM

27 April 2022

04t May 2022

11t May 2022

27t May 2022

23" June 2022

27t July 2022

17" August 2022

29t September 2022
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22. Annual General Meeting/ Extra-Ordinary General Meeting:

During the financial year 2022-23, following are the details of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”):

Sr.No |Type of| Date of Total Number of [ Number of Members
Meeting AGM/ EGM Members present
1. AGM 17t August 2022 2 2
2. EGM 30th April, 2022 2 2
3. EGM 06th July, 2022 2 2
4, EGM 29" September 2022 2 2
5. EGM 20" October 2022 2 2
6. EGM 24™ November 2022 2 2
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23. Committees of the Board

i. Audit Committee
The Board has constituted Audit Committee which consists of Mr. Tushar Aggarwal (Managing Director),
Ms. Shruti Aggarwal (Director), Mr. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra lyer (Independent Director), Mr. Vijuy

Ronjan (Independent Director), Mr. Vijay Jasuja (Independent Director)

The constituted Audit Committee meets the requirements as prescribed under Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include overseeing financial reporting
process, reviewing the financial statements and recommending appointment of Auditors.

During the year 3 (Three) Audit Committee Meetings were held.

Sr. | Date of Meeting Total Number of [ Number of
No Members Members present
16" November, 2022 5 5
. | 16" December, 2022 5 5
3. | 13th February, 2023 5 5

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee which consists Mr. Tushar
Aggarwal (Managing Director), Ms. Shruti Aggarwal (Director), Mr. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra lyer
(Independent Director), Mr. Vijuy Ronjan (Independent Director), Mr. Vijay Jasuja (Independent
Director) as its members.

The constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the requirements as prescribed
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee’s scope of work includes identifying the persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance, deciding on remuneration and policy
matters related to remunerations of Directors and laying guidelines for remuneration package or
compensation

The Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy relating to the appointment and
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

During the year (one) Nomination and Remuneration Meeting was held

Sr. | Date of Meeting Total Number of | Number of
No Members Members present
1. | 16" December, 2022 5 5

iii Management and Operations Committee

The Board has constituted Management and Operations Committee which comprises of Mr. Tushar
Aggarwal (Managing Director) and Ms. Shruti Aggarwal (Director) as its members.
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During the year (13) MOCB Meetings were held

Sr. | Date of Meeting Total Number of | Number of
No Members Members present
1. | 28" September, 2022 2 2
2. | 27" October 2022 2 2
3. | 16" November 2022 2 2
4. | 21°* November 2022 2 2
5. | 27" December 2022 2 2
6. | 29'" December 2023 2 2
7. | 2" January 2023 2 2
8. | 25" January 2023 2 2
9. | 1°tFebruary 2023 2 2
10. | 2" March 2023 2 2
11. | 6" March 2023 2 2
12. | 20" March 2023 2 2
13. | 30" March 2023 2 2
24.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Board of Directors as on 31 March, 2023
The following directors are holding office:
Sr. | DIN Name Designation Date of
No. Appointment
1 01587360 | Mr. Tushar Aggarwal Managing Director 11/02/2016
2 06867269 | Ms. Shruti Aggarwal Director 11/02/2016
3 01309312 | Mr. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra | Independent 03/02/2021
lyer Director
4 09345384 | Mr. Vijuy Ronjan Independent 24/02/2022
Director
5 07924822 | Mr. Vijay Jasuja Independent 17/08/2022
Director
Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. PAN Name Designation Date of
No. Appointment
1 01587360 Mr. Tushar | Managing Director 11/02/2016
Aggarwal
2 AKAPT9620P Sonia  Rakesh | Company Secretary 03/08/2022
Thakur

25.Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year, Mr. Satish Chandra Sinha (Director) of the company has resigned from his designation
on 17% August, 2022 and Mr. Tushar Aggarwal was appointed as the Managing Directors w.e.f 17t
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August, 2022. Further, Ms. Paveet resigned from the position of Company Secretary on 01 August, 2022
and Ms. Sonia Thakur was appointed as Company Secretary on 03" August, 2022.

26.Managerial Remuneration:

The Company being a private limited company, provisions of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

27.Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has in place Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) as prescribed under POSH has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment and comprises of below members:

e Ms. Shruti Aggarwal- Director
e Mr. Varun Chhabra- Vice President, Internal Audit
e Ms. Dhamija — External Member
e Mr. Sanjeev Walia — AVP, IT
e Ms. Kanika Sikka — Legal - Senior Manager
Following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed-off during the financial
year ended March 31, 2023:
a. No. of Complaints received: Nil
b. No. of Complaints disposed-off: Nil

c. No. of cases pending: Nil

28.Compliance with Secretarial Standard

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

During the year under review the Company have complied all the secretarial standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

29. Declaration of Independent Directors

The provisions of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to
our Company. However, the Company has appointed Mr. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra lyer, Mr. Vijuy
Ronjan and Mr. Vijay Jasuja as the Independent Director of the Company and the required declarations
have been obtained from them.

30. Annual Evaluation of the Board, Committees and Individual Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(2) and Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules made thereunder and Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, Nomination and
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Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors have carried out annual performance evaluation of
the Board, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

As the ultimate responsibility for sound governance and prudential management of a Company lies with
its Board, it is imperative that the Board remains continually energized, proactive and effective. The
Companies Act, 2013 not only mandates evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors, but also
at the same time requires the evaluation to be formal, regular and transparent.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board evaluated the performance of individual
Director(s) on the Board excluding the Director being evaluated, the Board as a whole, Chairperson of
the Board and all of its Committees based on the evaluation criteria of the Company defined under
Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

It was further acknowledged that every individual Member and Committee of the Board contribute their
best in the overall growth of the organization and the Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with
the evaluation process.

31. Company’s Policy relating to Directors Appointment, Payment of Remuneration and Discharge of
their Duties

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company. However, the Company has devised the policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

32.Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

33.Disclosure of Composition of Audit Committee and Providing Vigil Mechanism

The company has constituted the Audit Committee and adopted the policy as per the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2013.

34.Particulars of Employees

During the year none of the employees are in receipt of remuneration of more than INR One Crore and
Two Lakhs, or employed for the part of the year under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

35.Adequacy of Internal Financial Control

The details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statement as mentioned in Annexure B of Auditor Report with respect to section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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36.Registration as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial Institution
(Non-Deposit taking). In terms of provisions of Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, the Company is categorized as
a ""Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company". The Company has not
accepted public deposits during the year under review. The company is fulfilling all requirement as per
the guidelines issued by RBI.

37. Change of status from NBFC-ND-NSI to NBFC-ND-SI

The Company crossed the asset size of Rs. 500/- Crores as per the provisional financials dated 31st
March, 2022 and thus, as per the Master Circular DNBR (PD) CC.N0.055/03.10.119 /2015-16 dated July
01, 2015 and Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFC Circular DNBR (PD) CC. No. 002/03.10.001/2014-
15 dated November 10, 2014 that defines the criteria for NBFC-ND-SI as follows:

“A non-deposit taking NBFC with an asset size of less than Rs. 500 crore as on balance sheet date might
subsequently add on assets before the next balance sheet date due to several reasons including business
expansion plan. It is clarified that once an NBFC reaches an asset size of Rs. 500 crore or above, it shall
come under the regulatory requirement for NBFCs-ND-SI as stated above, despite not having such assets
as on the date of last balance sheet. Therefore, it is advised that all such non-deposit taking NBFCs may
comply with RBI regulations issued to NBFC-ND-SI from time to time, as and when they attain an asset
size of Rs. 500 crore, irrespective of the date on which such size is attained.”

Thus, henceforth our company be deemed as NBFC-ND-SI.

38. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Master Direction issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”) and a detailed analysis of the Company’s performance is discussed in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report, as Annexure lIl.

39. General

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions/events on these items during the year under review:

- Thereis no application made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the FY 2022-23.

- The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at

the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not applicable.
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The Directors wish to express their gratitude to the business associates, customers, bankers and agencies
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By the Orders of Board of Directors
For Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Tushar Aggarwal Shruti Aggarwal

(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN: 01587360 DIN: 06867269

Add: 6A/2, Raj Narain Road, Add: 6A/2, Raj Narain Road,
Civil Lines, New Delhi — 110054 Civil Lines, New Delhi - 110054

Date: 14" August, 2023
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure |

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NA

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188:

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)
Name(s) of the | nature of | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of | Date(s) Amoun
related party relationship | contracts/arrang | the the contracts or | of t paid
ements/transacti | contracts / | arrangements or | approva | as
ons arrangemen | transactions | by the | advanc
ts/transacti | including the | Board, if | es, if
ons value (in lakhs), if | any any
any
Morus Technologies | Holding 1. lssue and Continuous >936.88 - -
allotment of
Pte. Ltd Company .
equity share
capital
2. Foreign Loan
received from 24193.19
Holding
Company
(ECB)
3. Interest
Payment on 798.27
Foreign Loan
4.  Amount
received for
Expense 10.60
Reimburseme
nt incurred in
PF
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EQX Analytics Private
Limited

Fellow
subsidiary
company

1. Lead
Generation
Expenses

2. Loan
Disbursement
s and
Collections
through
Intermediary

3.  Employee
costs and
reimburseme
nts-Infra
Sharing
Expenses
Payable

4.  Employee
costs and
reimburseme
nts-Infra
Sharing
Expenses Paid

Continuous

3103.38

4486.88

33.61

18.54

Titanium Fortune

Financial Services

Private Limited

Fellow
subsidiary
company

1. Loan Given

2. Loan
Payment
Received
Back

3. Interest
Income on
Loan Given

4. Loan Taken
5. Loan Repaid

6. Interest
Payment on
Loan Given

Continuous

9833.6

9833.6

324

1348

1348

10.8

Stash Payments
Private Limited

Common
Control
(Strike  off
Status as on
date)

Reimbursement
of Expenses

10.32

Tushar Aggarwal

Managing
director

Continuous
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Shruti Aggarwal Director Managerial Continuous 33.6875 --
remuneration
Reimburseme
nt of
9.60
Expenses
Satish Chandra Sinha | Director Director - 1.50 --
Sitting
Other
Professional
0.75
Fees
Radhakrishnan Independen Directors Continuous 15 -
Ramachandra lyer t Director sitting  fees
Reimburseme
nt of
0.03
Expenses
Vijay Jasuja Independen Directors Continuous 9 -
t  director sitting  fees
(w.ef 17-
08-2022)
Reimburseme
nt of
0.36
Expenses
Vijuy Ronjan Independen Directors Continuous 14.25 -
t director sitting  fees
Paveet Dhaiya Company Managerial - 0.69 -
Secretary remuneration
(till 02-08-
2022)
Sonia Rakesh Thakur | Company Managerial Continuous 11.17 -
Secretary remuneration
(w.ef 03-
08-2022) Reimburseme
nt of
Expenses
0.12
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Annexure Il
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL
YEAR 2022-23
1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the company: Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited as a responsible
Corporate entity commit to undertake appropriate CSR measures having positive economic, Social,
Environmental Impact to transform lives and to help build more capable and vibrant communities by
integrating business values and strengths.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S.no | Name of Director | Designation No. of meeting held | No. of CSR Committee
during the year attended during the year
1. Mr. Tushar | Chairman and | 2 2
Aggarwal Managing Director
2. Ms. Shruti | Member 2 2
Aggarwal
3. Mr. Member 2 2
Radhakrishnan
lyer

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. www.akaracap.com

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report). Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
{Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any — Not Applicable

S.no | Financial Year Amount available for set -off from | Amount available for set -off for the
Preceding Financial Year for the Financial Year, If any,

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Average Net Profit of Rs. 37,535,699/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | Rs. 7,50,712/-
section 135(5):
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | NIL
activities of the previous -financial years.
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b + 7c) Rs. 7,50,712/-
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7.

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

for

Total Amount Spent
Financial
Year (in Rs. Lakhs)

the

Amount Unspent

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to

section 135(6) section 135(5)
Amount (in Rs. | Date of | Name of | Amount (in Rs. | Date of
Lakhs) transfer Fund Lakhs transfer
Rs. 6,28,298/- (In | NIL NIL Clean Rs. 1,22,414/- | 24" August,
lakhs) Ganga (In Lakhs) 2023
Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(11](2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
)
S. | Nam | Iltem | Local | Location Proje | Amou | Amo | Total Mode of | Mode of
n |e of | from | Area | of the | ct nt unt Amoun | Implement | Implementa
o. | the the (yes/ | Projects Durat | Alloca | spen |t ation tion-
Proje | list of | no) ion ted t in | transfe | Direct Through
cts activi for curre | rred to | (yes/no) Implementa
ties in the nt FY | Unspen tion Agency
Sched Projec | (in t CSR
ule Vii Sta | Distr ts Lakh | Accoun Na | CSR
of the te |ict (in s) t for me | Reg.
Act Lakhs) the No.
project
s as per
section
135(6)
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) | (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. | Name of | Item from | Local Location of | Amoun | Mode of | Mode of
no | the the list of | Area the Projects | t spent | Implementati | Implementatio
Projects activities (yes/n for the | on n- Through
in 0) project | Direct Implementatio
Schedule (in (yes/no) n Agency
Vii of the Lakhs)
Act Stat | Distri State | District
e ct
1 Seminar of | Promoting | Yes New Delhi 3,00,00 | No Ananta Aspen
Kamalnaya | Education 0 Centre - New
n Bajaj Delhi
Fellowship
Class 8 for
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the year
2022-23.

Araku
Haryali
Project

Generatin No

g
Livelihood
for
Farmers
and
Eradicatin
g Hunger

Araku,
Andhra
Pradesh

1,64,14 | No

Naandi
Foundation,
Telengana

Promoting
education
including
special
education
and
employme
nt
enhancing
vocation
skills

Promoting | Yes
education
including
special
education
and
employme
nt
enhancing
vocation

skills

New Delhi

1,64,14 | No

The
Village
Foundation
New Delhi

Design

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads

Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

Nil

(f)

Total
(8b+8c+8d+8e}

amount

spent

for

Financial

Year | Rs. 7,50,712/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any.

S.no

Particular

Amount (in Lakhs)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)

Rs. 7,50,712/-

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Rs. 6,28,298/- (In lakhs)

Excess amount spent for the financial year ((ii)-(i}]

NIL

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous Nil
financial years, if any

NIL

[(iii)-(iv)]

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years

NIL

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S.no.

Preceding
Financial
Year

Total Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR
Account for
the projects

Amount
spent in
reporting
FY

(in Lakhs)

Amount transferred to any
fund specified

under Schedule VII as per
section 135(6), if any

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
Financial
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as per section Name | Amount | Date of | year (in
135(6) of the | (in  Rs | transfer Lakhs)
Fund Lakhs).

NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):

(1) [ (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
S. | Projec | Name FY in which | Project | Total Amount | Cumulativ | Status  of
no |tid of the | the project | Duratio | amount | spent on | e amount | the project
Project | was n allocate | the spent (completed
s commence d for the | project at the end | /
d project in of Undergoing
(in  Rs | reportin | reporting |)
Lakhs). gFY Financial
(in Year (in Rs.
Lakhs) Lakhs)

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset- wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital | NA
asset.

(c) Details of the ent ity or public authority or beneficiary under | NA
whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired NA
(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5). Not Applicable

By the Orders of Board of Directors
For Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Tushar Aggarwal Shruti Aggarwal

(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN: 01587360 DIN: 06867269

Add: 6A/2, Raj Narain Road, Add: 6A/2, Raj Narain Road,
Civil Lines, New Delhi — 110054 Civil Lines, New Delhi - 110054

Date: 14*" August, 2023
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure Il

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Economy and Industry Outlook- Opportunities and Challenges

India witnessed some turbulent times in the past years especially due to outbreak of Covid 19. Banking
industry has showcased its strength by sustaining through these tough times under the guidance of
various directives and policies released by Reserve Bank of India.

Performance of the company is substantially linked to the performance of the overall economy. The
Indian Economy is rebounding well with increasing wages and consumption. Government focus on
capital expenditure will further augment the job opportunities in the country. With the covid years now
hopefully behind us, the services industry is growing seamlessly as well. As per the RBI Monetary Policy,
India will remain the fastest growing economy in the World and grew at 7.0% during FY23. India is bound
to grow towards reaching the landmark GDP of USD 5 Trillion in coming years.

Apart from opportunities, Banking Industry has witnessed challenges as RBI increased the repo rate by
250 basis points in FY23 on the back drop of increasing inflation due to global issues like Ukraine war,
supply chain issues and increasing commodity prices. Liquidity got moderated and lending prices has
gone up. However, India still is a bright spot due to its high population density with most of the
population being young who will be joining the rising middle class. The growing middle class possesses’
high consumption power which will lead to growth in the economy on various fronts. As per the IMF,
India is bound to grow at upwards of 6% for the next few years.

Indian banking industry is welcoming Fintech companies/NBFCs with lot of factors supporting it.
Inclusion of technology in day-to-day lifestyle, Rising wages and spending power, growth in job
opportunities with focus on formal employment, financial inclusion, penetration of Internet etc. Due to
these factors and a large addressable market, substantial chunk of investment capital is flowing into the
Fintech space.

Business Outlook and Performance

Our Company operates in the Financial Services Industry and is registered as an NBFC (Non-Banking
Finance Company). It gives us immense pride to state that we have disbursed INR 4700+ crores since
inception. Primarily, the company is into lending unsecured personal loans to its customers. In FY22-23,
a feat of disbursal of INR 2800+ crores has been achieved. Although Akara is based out of Delhi disbursal
is being done across various cities and states/UT’s of India. Akara has onboarded more than 20 Lacs
customers with monthly active user exceeding 40 Lacs.

Financial and Operational Performance

1. Overall disbursement has gone up by 138% YoY at INR 2800+ crores as on FY23.
AUM of the company increased by 163% at INR 1465+ crores as on FY23.
Disbursed more than 37 Lacs loans since inception keeping average ticket size below INR 60,000
per customer showcasing diversification of portfolio and risk.

4. Raised funds to the tune of On Balance sheet Debt of INR 1100 crores from various Financial
Institutions/Banks keeping liquidity and ALM in perspective.

5. Diversification of borrowings profile as of FY23 achieved to larger extent by onboarding new
lenders across various product like Listed NCD, Unlisted NCD, Commercial Paper, WCDL and
Term Loans. Federal Bank and AU SFB was onboarded during FY23.

6. PAT stood at INR 25.91 crore increasing 296% on YOY basis.
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7. Capital Adequacy stood at 33.92% with Debt to Equity standing at 2.4x.
8. With regards to RBI circular dated Sept 02, 2022 on Digital Lending Guidelines, company is in
full compliance with circular.

9. The Company’s rating was upgraded from ICRA BBB- to ICRA BBB (stable) in October 2022 by
ICRA Limited, which is one of the leading rating agencies.
10. We issued Listed Non-Convertible Debentures on BSE for the first time on December 31, 2022.

Risk Management

ALM Risk

ALM of the company is closely monitored on quarterly basis. Debt Capital Market team focuses on
diversification of liability. Borrowing sources includes ECB, Listed and Unlisted NCD, CP, WCDL, Term
Loan from various Private Banks, NBFC, AMC and DFI’s etc. Tenure of both assets and liability is closely
monitored. DCM team focuses on reducing interest rates, diversifying funding sources, short term and
long-term liquidity.

Credit & Operational Risk

Credit Risk is managed through a robust underwriting framework which leverages application
information, credit bureau and alternate data sources. A combination of rules and predictive modelling
is used for this purpose. The portfolio is monitored on regular basis at segment level to detect emerging
risks and take corrective measures where ever needed. A committee-based approval process is followed
to manage changes with respect to Credit extension policies. Periodic monitoring is also conducted to
detect Operational breakdowns.

IT Security Risk
Company continuously endeavours to work towards risk management pertaining to IT security. Securing

customer data is one of the prime objectives. Company has installed inhouse developed soft diallers at
Collection Agencies which are monitored on regular basis which showcases effort towards data privacy.
Various checks are regularly monitored to control data privacy risk.

Company tracks various aspects of the business operations by having committee like Management
Operations, Audit, Risk Management and CSR. These committee endeavours Board to track and guide
the business activities and mitigate risk.

Awards and Recognition
Akara Group has been awarded with few awards and accolades in last few years:
(a) E4AM IDMA Award for FinFriday Marketing Campaign: Aug 2023

(b) Best Team Project in User Engagement Growth- Fintech: 3" chapter of Technology Excellence
Awards Delhi: Feb 2023

(c) eAMMavericks Awards: Best App Growth 2023: June 203

(d) ‘Appscale Academy’ certification by Google Play and MeitY Startup: Oct 2022

(e) Best Cloud Initiative- Fintech at the 3" Annual BFSI Technology Excellence Awards Program: Apr
2022

Material Development in Human resources

In the last 1 year, HR function has extensively focused on building a high performing culture within the
firm. There were various interventions developed during the year to build a robust system with
transparency in communication firm-wide alongside creating learning & growth opportunities for
employees.
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Some of the key initiatives taken during the year are:

A transparent goal setting process: The functional heads were empowered to build their AOP and drive
their budgets for their respective departments based on the AOPs built by them. These AOPs were then
cascaded to individual wise goals with pre-determined KPIs so that there is a complete transparency in
the performance assessment & evaluation process. The HR function ensured that each new joiner knew
about the expectations from him/her, aligned to his manager, right at the time of on-boarding the
company to mitigate any risk of disengagement and ambiguity in job roles

Established communication forums like Townhalls & Leadership sessions: These interventions ensured
that all employees firm-wide knew about the key developments within the firm across functions. All
efforts were directed to share the vision, mission & values with no barriers of hierarchy, grade,
positioning in the firm. All employees shared a common goal and were encouraged to play their pivotal
role in fulfilling it.

Stash Academy: An in-house learning platform where gainers & trainers are amongst the employees.
Multiple learning programs on themes pertaining to technology, behaviour, functional & general skill &
knowledge enhancement were facilitated throughout the year.

ENPS Survey: Facilitated by a third party to track employee engagement and measure the impact of our
culture initiatives.

Wellness initiatives at workplace: Health Check-up camps, Counselling Programmes & annual health
check-up were conducted at frequent intervals to address the soft issues and to create an inclusive work
culture.

An extensive AOP setting session at an offsite location: A 3 day offsite involving the leadership team
to mutually create and agree upon the firm’s AOP & goals for the current FY.

Pay for Performance Plan: The firm focussed on implementing a pay for performance plan where high
performers were rewarded abundantly, creating & setting up internal benchmarks of performance
within the firm. The bonus schemes permitted employees to earn upto 1x of their fixed pay for
superlative performance levels.

Creating leadership team & strengthening the talent pool: The organization structure evolved during
the year which led to creation of multiple leadership positions. The incumbents of the positions were
hired industry wide from top notch companies enhancing the knowledge pool of the firm. The leaders
were then encouraged to build their own teams to ensure that the function is fully aligned and there is
trust and mutual consensus in the function from day 1.
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SURI & SUDHIR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Members of Mys Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Beport on ihe Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of “Mfs Akara Capital Advisors Private
Limited"(“the Compuny™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as a1 March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Logs (meluding Other Comprehensive Ircome), Cash Flow Siatement and Changes in Equily for the year then
ended and notes to the Financial Statements, ncluding a summery of significant accounting policies and other
explanstory information,

In cur opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act’} in the
WRIMIET 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS")
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
atier accounting principles generally accepled in India. of the state of aftirs of the Company as ot March 31,
2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive meome).ils cash Mows and the changes m equity for the vear
ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in sccondance with 1he Standards on Auditing { 5As) specified under section 1430107} of the
Companies Act, 2013, Cur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Staiements section uf aur report, We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of Chertered Accountants of India
togother with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staiements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2003 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled cur ather ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics, We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficien: and appropoate 10 provide a basis fir cur opinicn on the financial statements,

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thercon

Mhe Company’s board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The ather
informution comprises the infermation included in the Hoard's Repont including Annexures to Board's Report bt
does not include the finencial staetments and our auditer’s report hereon,

Dur opinian on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial seatements. cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in
duing 50, consider whether the other information js mutersally inconsistent with the financiel statements ar our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or wiherwise appears 1o be materially misstared.

If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material musstatement of this other
mtonmation; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Respounsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the marters stated in section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™) with respect (o the preparation of these standalone finaneizl statements that give a true and fair
view of the fimuncial position, financial merdormance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the aceounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate secounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Aet for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregulanities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that we reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation wnd mainenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstternent, whether due to fraud eremor,

In preparing the financial stutements, management is responsible for nssessing the Company's ability to continue
85 & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and wsing the going concern hasis of
accounting unless management either intends wo liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has o realistic
alternative but to do se,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the company’s financial reparting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are 1o obtain reasonsble assurance about whether the financial stalements gs a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due o fiaud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not g guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect & material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or erar
and arc considered material i, individually or in the ageregate, they could reasonably be expecied to infleence the
ecenomic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements.

As pant of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain profesaional
skepticism throughout the andit. W alsa:

*  ldenufy and pssess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedires respansive (o those risks, and obmain audit evidence that is
sufficiemt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk of not deiecting a material
misstitement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional Omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of i termal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit i order to design audit procedures that
Are appropeiate in the cireunstances. Under section 143(3%1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsibie for expressing our opiicn on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such conirols,

*  Evaluate the sppropriatencss of acoounting policies used and the reasonableness of necounting estimates
and related dischosures made by TRAnAgEmEnt.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, bused
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condithons that
may cast sipnificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. [f we canclude that a
material uncertainty oxists, we mre required 1o draw mtEntion m our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtaingd up 1o the date of our suditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Com et .}r:.pntinuu as # going concem.

*  Bvaluate the overall presentation. sirssiure Content ﬂﬁ.\j:c financial stalements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial stater nderlying transactions and events in 1
manner that achieves fair presentation.




Wi communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complisd
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thuught 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other Legal & Regulniory Requirements

| Based on our sudit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule ¥V of the Act ere not
applicable to the company since the company is not a public company a: defined under seetion 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repon) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Acl, we give in the Anmexare A, & stetement on the
miatters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

4. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

4. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of cur audit:

b In our opinion proper books of account as reguired by faw have been kept by the Company so far as
appears rom our examination of those books.

¢. The Standalone Balance Shest, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (Including  Orther
Comprehensive Income], the statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of Cash Flow dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. 1n our opinion, the aforesaid Anancial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
thee el

e, Un the basis of written representations received from the direciors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors s disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appoitied as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f. With respect to the adequicy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Compeny
nnd the eperating effectivencss of such controls, refer to our sepante Report in “Annexure B®. Our report
expresses an uamodified opinion on the adequacy and epersting efféctiveness of the Company's internal
linancial contrals over financial reporting: and

g With respeet o the cther matters included in the Auditor’s Report in necordance with the Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinicn and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to ys;

() The Company as detailed in Note Na3® to the Standalone Financial Statements, has disclosed
the impact of peading litigations on it finencinl position as at 31 March 2023, |

(i) The company had not entered into any | including derivative contracts as on

31 March 2023,

(i) There were no amounts which are requi rred 1o Investor Edueation and &

m—'




Protection Fund by the company during the vear ended 31° March 2023,

(iv)  {2) The management has represented that, to the hest of jts knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the fdccounts, mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in amy
other personis) ar entity(kes), including foreign entities (MIntermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identifiad i &ny manner whatseever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Liltimute Beneficiaries;

(b} The management has represented, that, to the best al its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no fands have been received by the company from any person(s)
ar entityiies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend ar invest in ather
PErSONS or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneliciaries™) or provide any guaranlee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimaze Beneficiarias;
and

vl Based on such sudit procedures that the auditor has considered reasomable and appropriate in the
vircumstances, nothing has come 1o their notice that ivas caused them to believe that the representations
under sub-clause {a) and (&) contain eny material mis-statement

(vi)  The Compuny has not declared or paid any dividend during the Year ended 31" March 2023,

For Suri & Sudhir
Chartered Accountants
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Sudhir Kumar Arapg ./ Date: 20052023
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Annexuare A’ to the Awditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our
report (o the Members of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

1}
{a){A). The company do not possess any property, plant or equipment as on 31° March 2023, Henee pars
(i WA ) is not applicable,

(B}, The company has mamiained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b} The company do not possess any property, plant or equipment as on 31% March 2023, Hence para {i)(b) is
nod applicable,

(&) Since the company is not in the possession of any immovable property henee this cleuse is not applicable.
() The Company has not revalued it"s intangible assets during the year,

(@) Mo proceedings have been initiated during the vear or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023
for holding any benami property under the Benami [ransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
arvd rules made thereunder,

(it}
{a) As the Company does nod possess any Inventory therefore Para (i) do not apply

{b) That the company has sanctioned a working capital limit (WCDL) of Rs 2500 lakhs from financial
institution on the basis of security of current assets ie., book debis of the company and corporate guarantes
by the holding company on 28" February 2023, Quarerly Retums/Statementds, in respect of bock debts have
been filod by the company with the financial institution.

(i)
{a)Since, the principal business of the Company is 1o give loans and hence, elause (iii}a) A} and (iii)(a)(B) are
it applicable

(BIThe loans granted by the company to parties covered under section 189 are repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment. Henee para (iif)(b), is not applicable.

(&) The loans granted by the company to parties covered under section | 49 are repavable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repeyment. Henee para (1)) 15 not applicable.

(d)The loans granted by the company 10 parties covered under section 189 are repayable on demand or without
spectfying any terms or period of repayment. Hence para (iii)d} is not applicable.

(e)Since, the principal businass of the Company is to give loans and hence, clause (fiife) i not applicable.

{f) The company has granted loans that do not carry ﬂﬁx ?Ltjp_trJgaFd repayment terms and are repayable on
demand of which detailz are as under: ;_-,//""" 1:.,'




Annexure ‘A’ to the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our
report o the Members of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

z| Particulars (Amount in TNR Lakhs) All Parties Promotors Related Parties |
& [ Aggregate oulstanding amourtt of loans/advances | 1,06.809.47 Nil G.833.60 '
* | in narre of

i - loans repayable on d::mam;_l

¢| Percentage of loans/advanees in nature of loans to | 100% Nil | 9.20%

i | the total loans | J

Lirwiivnf oo o s Bawe eopaiy prctuaing s drpresr arogions of 5 (03T Lakke oy pa 257 dlaeets 2077

(W) The company has given loans & advances to partics covered under section 185 and 186 as provided in para
(i#1)(f) of the order for its principal business activities. The company has complied with the provisions of
Companies act 2013 in respect Lo this.

(v I our opinicn and sceording to the Information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepled
any eposit or amounis which are deemed to be deposits covered under Sections 73 to 76 af the Companies Act,
2011 3.Henge, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinivn the maintenance of cost records
has not been prescribed for the company by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the
Compinies Act. Hence, reporting under clause ivi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i)

(al In our epinion and according to the information and explanation given 1o us, the company has generally been
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed starutory dues including Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of
provident fund, emplovees state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, Goods & Services Tax (GST), cess and
other statutory dues were in orrears as at 31° March. 2023 for & period of more than six months from the date they
become payable. There are no dues of Geods and service lax, income X, cess and other statutery dues, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(will) There were no ransactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed
a5 Ineome during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 (43 of 1961),

{im)
{8} In our opinicn and according to the information and explanstions given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues 1o a financizl institution or bank.

(B} That no instance or information has come on our records in context o the Company been declared willful
defauler by any bank or financial institution or povernment or any government authority,

(€} In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given to us, the company has ufilized the
money obtained by weay of term loans during the year for thepurposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the infermation and explanations given 1o us, and the @pﬁ;rfﬁmad by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial starements of the company, ot [ thﬂmdg raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company Fo




Annexure 'A’ (o the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Lezal and Regulatory Réquiremenm‘ Section of our
repart to the Members of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limiicd

(8} According 1o the mformation and explanation given to ug, and on overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the company, the company has not taken eny funds from any entity or person on
account of or 1o meet the ohligation of its Associnie or Subsidiary or Joint Venture,

(f} According to the information and explanation given to us, the campany has not roised any loqns during the
year on the pledge of securities held in jts subsidiary.

(x)

#l The Company has not raised muneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (ineluding
debt mstruments) during the vear and hence reporting under clause 3(x) ta} of the Order is not
applicable.

bl According to the information and explanations given the eompany has raised funds by 1ssHing non-
convertible debentures throwgh private placement. The funds have been utilised for the purpose for
which they were mised.

ixi)
() During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepled auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given the details are mentisned in note ne 3B of notes to ncecunts.

(C} As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company
during the vear,

(xii} The Company is nat a Nidhi Company and hence reparting under clanse (xii) of the Order is nol applicable,

(xifi]Based on gudin procedures performed for the purpose of roporting the true and fair view of the financial
stalements and according 1o the information and explanations given by the managemeny, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Aet, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the otes 1o financial statements, as required by the applicable Indian

(xiv)
(a) In our apinion angd based on our exa mination, the company does nol have an intemal audit system and is
ot mequired to have an intemal audic F¥Hem as per provisions of the Companics Aet 2013 as on st

(B} The company did not have an intermal audiy system for the period under audit,
AR Hiin
txv) Based on our audit pro<edures performed fo ﬁﬁas 'ﬁ‘?."(ﬁmﬂjng the trwe and fiir view of the financial
statemenis and according 1o the informatia a {agﬂiq?f_'w'_: given by the manegement, the Company has

not eniered nto non-cash transactions wilh dipe 13 connegted with them,
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Auditers Report

{Referred 1o in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Rehiiremrnts’ Section of onr
report to the Members of Akarg Capital Advisors Private Limited

[xvil
(@) The company is required to hold Certilicate of Registration under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bapk of
India Act 1934, and they hold a Cedificate of Registration under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 934 vide certificats no. RBI Reg No. NBF(C LUN- 1403354 ¢ 16012017,

(b} The Company has a valig Lentificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of [ndia as per the
reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence the company has conducted all Activities with & wvalid
Centificate,

(¢} According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, during the year, the Com pany is not a Core lnvesimen Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank of India and henee clause (xvi) (c) is not applicakle,

{d) The Company is not a Core Investment LCompany (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence clanse (xvilid) is not applicable,

Linancial vear
{xvili} There has been no resignation of the slalutory auditors of the Lompany during the VERT,

(¥ix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dares of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and ayr knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Maragemeni plans and based on our examination of the evidence suppaorting the
assumptions, nothing has come to ogr attention, which eauses us to believe that any matenial uncertainty
ekisls as on the date of the gudi report Indicating thar Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance shect as and when they fall due within & pericd of ang Yyear from the balance
sheet date. We, however, stage that this is not an assurance a5 1o the future viahility of the Company, We
lurther state that our Feporting is based on the fects up 1o the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that al| lisbilities falling due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet
date, will get Cischarged by the Company as and when they fall dye.

(%)

the expiry of the financial Fear as permitted under the second proviso fo sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the Act, has not clapsed till the date of oyr Feport.

(b} There are no LUnspent amounts in respegt of ongoing projects for the tinancial vear ended 3151 Mareh 2023,
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bed) The reporting under elause 3(xxi} of the order is not aFEliceble s respect of audit of standalone financia]
starements of the company. Accordingly, no Comments has been included in respect of said clause under the
repan,
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Anneaure ‘A’ to the Auditors” Report

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” Section of our
report to the Members of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited

For Suri & Sudhir
Chartered Accountants
FRM: (H0601MN

(Partmer)
Membership Number: 0830338

Deate: 200052023
Place: Mew Delhi

UDIN No. 23080338BGUCZCE920



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in pamgraph | (D) under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’® section of our report o
the Membars of Akara Capital Advisers Private Limited of even date)

Heport on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i ) of Sub-section 2 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2003 (* the Act™)

We have audited the nernal foancial controls over financial reporting of Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
(the “Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the imernal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the esseatial
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Finangial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Instinote of Chartered Accountants of India (the “1CAT7), These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal financial controls that were opemting effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, mcluding adherence 1o respective company’s pelicies, the
safepuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
aceounting records, and the timely prepacation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Anditor’s Hesponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Eraneial contrals over financial reporting of
the Company based on our sudit. We condueted our audit in sccordance with the Guidence Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Contrals Owver  Finaneinl  Reporting{theGuidanceMote™ jissuedbythelC AlandtheStandardsonAunditing
preseribed underSection |43 [ 0joftheCompaniesAct, 201 3 totheextentapplicabletoanauditofinternallinancial - controls,
Those Standerds and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obliin reasonable assurance aboul whether adequaie internsl lnancial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and i such controls operated effectively in all material respacts,

Our awdit involves performing procedimes (o obtam audit evidence abont the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of mternal financial controls
aver financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over linancial reporting,
agsessing the risk that a material wenskness exisis, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internul control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstateinent of the financial statements, whether due to froud or esror,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal Financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemnal financial control over financial repaorting is @ process designed to provide
reasonable pssurance regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with genesally accepted accounting principles. A
compény's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedurcs that
(1) pertain 1o the maintenance of reconls that, in reasoneble detail, necurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the essets of the company: (2) provide peasonable assurance that
wansactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepuration of finencial staternents in accardance with
generally accepted accounting prineiples. and thai receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with suthorizations of management amd directars of the company; and (3)
provide regsonable assurance regarding prevention or timely deteclion of unauthorized acquisition, usc,
or disposition of the company’s assets (hal could have a material effect on the financial staiements,

Inhereni Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility ol collsion or improper management override of eonirols, material misstatements due o
error or fraud may eccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal [inancial
controls over financial reporting o future periods are subject to the risk that the interal financinl control
over finencial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Ohpinion

In our epinion, to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financal controls system aver financial
reporting and such iniemal financial controls over financial reparting were operuting effectively as al
March 31, 2023, bused on the intemnal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essentlal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting isseed by the ICAL

For Suri & Sudhir
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000601N i

T 1
5 a* '.-
i

Q ooz v |7}
Sudhir Kumar Arora’ £ - _2_5.,.-"'
{Partner] bl
Membership, No.: 080338

UDIN No 23080338 BGLCZORY2G

o
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Date-20-05-2023
Place- New Delhi
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AKARA CAFITAL ADVISOHS FRIVATE LIMITED

Mutes farming part of the Ind A% NMaaecial gatemenis for thi period amdal March 31, 2023

ATl saneaiies in Eakhs of ¥ anless otherwise ctaged
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AKARA CAFITAL ATVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Mobes Furmisg part of the Ind A5 Mnancid sintements for the periad endid RMarch 3, 2023

(AN anwunts i Lakhs of T galess otherwise sbaded)
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS FRIVATE LIMITED

Motes Torming part af the Ind AS fnancial statements for the peried ended Maveh 30, 1073

(AN amauents in Lakbe of ¥ onless ofherwice ststed)
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ABKARA CAFITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Ind AS fimancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(Al nmounis in Lakhs of ¥ anless otherwise stated)
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ARARA CAFITAL ADVISORS FRIVATE LIMITED

Mot farming part of the Ind AS financinl stobements Tor the period ended March 31, 3023

(AN arssants in Lakhs of ¥ unbess olberwise stated)
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ARKARA CAFITAL ADRVISORS FRIVATE LINMITED
Piotes forming part of the Ind AS financial stetensents for the perled ended Marek 31, 2023
(AH ansnants in Lakhs of T wnkiss atherwie siated)
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes Forming part of the Ind AS finasclad statemests for the period ended March 21, 2013
(Al amonmts in Lekhs of € mnlecs otherwise statedp
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Ind A% financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Lakhs of 2 unless otherwise stated)
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ABARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Petes forming part of the 14! A5 Mimancil statemests for the period enid of Manch 31, 2033

[Nl mieemnds [n Lakhs of T aaless slberwise stated}
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ARKARA CAFITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LINITED
Pepted furmiag part af ihe Inid AS fnsoclsl staoments Toi (ke perknd vwiledl March 31, 2423
LAl armssinias in Lakhs ol £ palos ol ise sisted)
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Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
CIN No.: - UT4110DL2016PTC 290970

I. Cerporate Information

Akara Capiml Advisors Private Limited 'the Convpany™) is o company domiciled in ledia wit jes repbtend office situated o o0, Third
Flaar, Arjun Nagar Kota Mubamkper, Delli-110003. The company was registered oy @ Mon-Deposit isking Mos-Banking Fioancial
Cospany wander section 2514 of the Reserve Bank of India {RI1 Act 1934

e Authorized Share Capital of the company s Rs. #,000000 dividad Taws S0000,00,0000 ordinary equity shares of Rs. 10/~ srrving one
voting rght peor shares atall imes, The Subscribed Share Capital of the comgany is Rs 2705493 divided into 2 M358, eedivary equity
shares of Bz, WV carrying one voling sights per s at-all Limes,

The company & o whally rwned subsidiory of Mars Technnlogies Pte Lod baving o sharcholding of Rs. $7,055.92.00 in e eniine share
capitnl of Akurs Capital Advisors Privale Limited,

2. Iasis of preparation of stamdalose Fnoncial statements

{i} Hatemeni ol compinnee

These stasdalone financial starements {*finencial matemnls’) hove been prepurd s aceordancs with ledian Accouniing Siandards (1nd AR
& per the Companiés {Indan Avcounting Standands) Rules, 2015 notifiod under Sectinn |33 of Companies Act, 2003, fthe * Act'} and othes

relevant provisions ol the AL

Ihe stsdadess finnneial sutsinents were nutarized for jssoe b the Comgany’s Board of Dirgeiars on 299 hay 2023,
Diegails of the Company's aceounting policks are inehided in Wode 3

(i} Finctional snd pressatation currency

[hise stordlnlone firancial stiements are prepared. im MR lakhes, which is the Compnny™s functional and presentalban currency. All ampamas
v buen rounded-aiT 1o e neasest lakhs and two ikecimals theseol éxcept share data and per ghare dain, unless otlkerviss stated

(i) Basis of mpeasurement

Theese stundulone financial statements hove been prepared an the historion cust busis, except for the follemwing irems

Items Meamirement basis
Netdefined bexiefis {nssel)f shiliy Present value of defined benefit obli parinns
Crilser financinl essete and lihilies Auneortized cast

tiv) Ameaded Accounting Standards (Ind AS} and interprotations effective during the vear
o Ind AS 109 Fiaancial Instruments; Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amwndment o bnd A% 10%, provides o gractical cxpraclient fior nssessmcnt of conlsctual cnsh flow pesd, which is one of the crileria
fior heing eligihle to measars a Anonelal msset ot amartieed cost, for (e chunges in the fnancial ssets that Ry Arise N & AU Al Inberest
Raole Betichmark Refarm. An sddilsonn] tempomry excoption from applyving Fedea nccoonting is slso ndded for Intorost Rxte Benchmurk
Relarm,

The amendment t Ind AS 107, clarifies the certain piditional disclosres to be made on scomumt of Inderest Rate Renchmerk Fefoem:

i)the aature and extenl of risks o which the entity is cxposad nrising from lnancia insirements subjedt o inlerest mie benchinark
refirm;

(18] th entily's progress in completing the transition 1o alermative benchmark rutes, umd hinw the entity & nanoging the imngiten:

(i) rhe insmiments exposed to benchinark reform disggregated by sipnificant interest rate benchmark along with gualitiive
mfrieElion abous the Tinancial insinamenrs thas are Y6 1o ransiton i aliemakive benchmark rase:

{iwl L'|Itd'|,gti I entily e rick miandenwnl sirutegy.

e amemdments introdoced o similor praciical expedient in Ind A% 115, Accordingly, while sceosnding for bage pmdifiention g,
remensuning the lease lishility, i case this I required by imerest mite henchmark seform, the lesses will use 3 roe g IBBETTI it tht
Teflects the changes in the interest rite. " !




Akara Capital Advisers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2023
CIN No.: - UT4110DLI0I6PTC290970

b Amendments eonsegquent i lssise oF Conceptual Framework for Financial reporting under Ind A% (Canceptun] Framewnrk)

[} Inel AS 102 Share Based Payments - Amesded the definition of *liabilitis" to present abligaton of the entity o transler an
Gatdmie rosource a5 o resall of pust evenist

tiilind A% 103 Business Combinations - The MCA darified that foe the pumpose of this Ind AS, quirers ure required fo apply the
definitions of an asset and 8 lishility given in the Framework for Preparation sd Presantition of Finangisd Statermente with Indizs
Accounling Standards rafler than the Conceplual Framework,

i) Ind AS 1 Regulatory Defermal Accounts = The amendment added g foatnoie apaina the serm “relinkle’ wsed in the fad AS |14,
The foatnate elarilies tat wnon *feithil represenation” wed in he Concepiugl Framewnek encompasses the main characieristics
that the Framework for Preparation and Presenisdion of Flnancial Siatements with Bidion Acaounling Stundards called
‘reliability”. However, for fe purpose of this Tsd AS, the teom “relinhle” would be bused oa the requirements of [nd AS B,

tiv)  Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lishilities and Contingent Assety = The MCA clarifiod that the definition of ierm “Hability' in
ihis Ind A3 is ot being revised follswing the revision of the definition of liability i the Concepiual Framewark.

[¥] Ind A5 38 Intingile Assets - The MCA clarified ot the definiion of an *asset” in this Ind AS B ol being revised folloadmg the
revision of the definitine of asset in the Coneeplial Framewaork.

tvid Ind AS I Presentation of Flnanclal Stabements: Ind AS B Accounting palicies. Chanpes in Accousting Estimates snd Errors and
Ind A% 34 Interim Financiol Repartinig - The reference 1o 1he Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Finsncial Statements
with Indinn Accounting Standards has bezn substitwled wilh relerence o the Conceptunl Framewark,

The above umendments did nis bave any material impsat on the financial statements of the Company.
(v Use of ectimates and judgemenis

[ preparation of thess fnancinl slatements in conformity wilh recognition and mesuremest principles of Ind A% TEEjuines managemen L
make judgements, estinsales and assumptions that affect the upplication of scspumting policies and the reported amamnts of assets, lihilities,
oo a expenses w well as disclosures. Actunl results may differ from these estimotes.

Estimsges and underlyiag assurnpdinas e revicwed onoan npnkng bisis Bevisions i Bgrounting carlmales are recopnsed in e period in
wlhich ihe timates are revised and @ ooy fisure periode prospectively.

In-particilar, infirmetzon uboul significsar srems of estimation, urserrinty nnd critical judgesients in applying scaunting policies that bave
the inest significant #fFeets on the amoant recognised in the finsncal statements pertaizs t

@l Useful lives and recoveralde amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The: estimated wseful lives and recovershls amounts of preperty; plont and oquipment end inenprble ussets are bessd on estlmates amd
assurnptkons segarding the expected market outlook, expected Tumire cah flows, growth rates, chsolescencs, demand, competition, awd
ko technolopical udvances. The charge in respect of perindic depreciation anorisation is derved hased on an estimate of an gssel’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value o the end of lis life. The Company reviews the ussfisl lives and recoverable asmpunds of
property. péam and squipment and intangible assets ot the end of’ ench reporting pericd.

hi  Dmpairmenst pssessmeni:

Property, plant and equipment, cight-af-use asses and intangible azeets that are subject twdeprecintion’ amortisation are tested for {mpairment
periedically inclioding wher evenls Occur or chanpes in circumistaices mdicate thii the recoveribls amoant of the cugh geneniding unitis less
than iis camying value The recovemable amount of cash genenting umits i higher of valie-in-use and fair valie Vess cost 1o sell. The
caltelation involves use of significant estimates and esmmptions which includes tursover mnd carnings multiples, growth rages and net
marglns wsed o caleudure prajected fuiure cash Tows, risk-adiusied digeount mig, fulure ccenvmic, fair value and masket conditions.

el Ineame taxes:

Recegnition of deferned tax assers! linhilities involves ‘making judeements and estimations ohoot $he usdsilability of fiture sanble profic
againgt which lu loges camial forward can be wied, A deferrad 18% aiget i recognised for unusad tsx kosses and deductible LeTpurery
difterenives, b ihe extent that it is probable that firare wable prafits will be availabie againg which they con be ulilised.

Delemed 14w assets are roviewed o cocly reparting date and ane redused (o (i extent R i is g0 losnger probuble thot ihe relared tax bensdi
will ke realized.

Provisiva for tax liabilities require judgements on (he interectstion of tax lagislasion, developeients in case laws and ihe # '

of npgesls whigh may be sibject 10 significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results miky vary fom expestationg res i
TR hation of deferred by wescts and theretine the tax change in e Staement of Profit 2nd Lo

& m "




Abkara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN No.: - U74110DL2016PTC290970

d) Litigations

From time: a0 timne, the Company s sulsject ta legal procesdings e ultimote sutcams of cach being always subject (o BTy WhCErainties
Enhverent in litigation, A provision for litigation is made when i1 is considered probakie that a payment will be minde ind the smount of the
lois can be rensonably estimated. Significent judgement i made when evaluating, amomg ather fclors, the probabilite of onfavaoursble
ourcome and the ability Lo make a reasoiiable estimaie of the smount of potential lnss, Ligation provisions are reviewed af eoch accounting
periad and revigons made for the changes in facks und circumetances.

i Employec benelil shligatinns:

Employee benefit abligations ars determined wsing actuarial valuations, An nciumrial valustion isvelves making approprile wssumpions tha
may diller fram ncmnl developaents n the fumre, Thess include the determinniion of te dissoimt e, fure salary inerdises and moraling
rafes. D to the complexities invelved in the vilaation and its long-icr nature, 8 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 1o changas
in thiese assumptions. All sssumptions are reviewed m each reposting dute,

(vl Measuremen! of Fair values

A mumber of the Company’s accounting policies snd diecbosures requing dhe meussirement of fir valies, foc both francial and man-financial
assets and labilities. The Compamy has an established control fumesvork with respect ta the measuressng of fir values,

Fuir values are categoriand into differen levels in o fuir valoe Kerarchy based on the inpats used in the vakiathsn fechmiques os follows:

Lesel F: quotad prices {unedjusied) in nctive markets for identicn] azsets or Labiines.

Level 20 inputs other thun quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for tie ssset o linhility, either direetly (ie, as pricest or
indirectly (i, derived frem prices),

Latved 3: inpiis for the sas o lobility that sre nion Buded on observable morked dota (unobservable mpuits]

When measusing the fair sulue of an asser or a lishility, the Compuny uses hservablo markes dita is fir as possibhe, If the Inpers used w

measunt the Liir value of an asset or a lishiliy fll into differer levels of the fair valse hiergrchy, then the fair value messoremen) s
calegoeised in its entirety 1a the same leved of the fair vadue hiemrchy as the lowest level input that is signifkeand fi the enfire messsnement

Tlve Conmpuny recognises mnsfers between levels of the faie value hierarchy ar the eod of the reporting pesiod during wiidh the chanpe has
sacurmed

Further infarmntion sbeud the azsamptions made in mesuring fir values iz included in Mate 46« fnonclal nsiruments.

{¥ii] Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Tighilitics in the Halsnce Sheet based on currenl / rimmcurmens classifioation,
An mset i classified sis gurrond when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) Expocled tn be realised of Intended 0 be sold or consumed in normmal openting svele,

By Heid primarity for the purpese of irading,

) Expected 1o be renlised within twelve months after the reporting pesod, or

d)  Cash or cash equivalent unbess restricted from being exchanped or used to settde o idility for ot eas tweive months after Bie

repting perkl,
Ablother nsxets are clagsiiied & noo-cwrrent,
A liabitiny is classified o5 current when it satisfies any of the falkwing crileria:
) I8 expectod to be ssitled in pomoal cpersling cvele,
By Ivis held peimarily for the purpose of rnding,

¢ lvisdue to Be setthal within twelve months afier the reporting period, o
4] There is no wneonditional right 1o defer the settlement of il Eability fior at beast twelve moaths afer e repiTing period

All wther lishilities ure clissifiad as non-curnent.

All asgets-and lahilities have bren clussifod 15 cument or non- currend g per the Company s eperting cycle and other criteria sot ot in
g H e Companics A, 2013, faced on the nature of products’ services snd the fime between the acquisition
. -La Lentipn in wsh and cash equivalents, the Company e ascertained its operting cyele to be within 17 md

i o= curmeni cleaasification of assets amd llabilitie.

N W o i




Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Notes to standalone lnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN No.: - UT4110DL2Z0LGPTC290970

Ihefisrred tax ngsets aod linbilitics arc dassified as non-currens assets and liilites,
J. Significant accomnting policies
A, Property, plant nnd equipment

(I} Hecopmition spd measurement
lsems of property, plant and squipment fne mensured ot cast, which inchudes copitalized barrpwing osts, kess aecumilaned depreciation and
acviemulatest impairment bsses ifany. Cost of an item of peoperty, plant and equipment compeises its purchase price, ineluding import dutjes

and non-rafindable purchase wwoes, afier deducting wade discounts nand rehates, any directly strributabls cost of bringing the itam 13 1z
werking condition for its intended wse and estimated cost of dismantling and remiving the item and restaring the sitle on which it is eaed

The cost of o seli~constructed item af property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of malerials and direct laboar, any ather costs directly
ufiribmiable w bringing the em o working condition for iis miended pse, and estimted casts of dizmandling and remaving fhe ilem i

restoring the site on which i i locied.

IF significant parts of an item of peoperty, plant and equipment have differem wsefiel lives, then they are avcsented for as FepEsale Hems
Lengr companents) of prigerty, plant snd equipment. All uther repair and maintenance costs s recognised in the stetement of profit and

Bowss s imeurmeal.

Uaims or losses arisiog from e retirement or disposal of a propeny. plud md equipment are detérmined as the difference belwes the nel
dispasal proveds and tho oormving smaoet of e asset and recagmised Bs meosme ar CRpCnse in the statemnend of prodit and loss

(i} Sabseguent expeaditure

Subsequent expenditure is capilalised anly if it is probahile that the fimire soonamic benefits associmed with the expenditure will fow i the
Company.

(i) Depreciation

Dhepreciagion Is calentated on cost of fiems of praperty, plant and equipmsent less their estimated resideal values over e wseful Hves
menticmed in Schedule 11 1 the Companies Act, 2013, using the Seexdght Line Method und is recignisaal in the statement of profit and lass,

Deprectation on additions (disposals) w provided on a pro-rata basis Le. fom (upto) the date on which msset §s rexdy for uss (ispossd of).

B, lnlasgible assets

Intmgible asses ane sell’ genernted und stated at acquisitioe cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulited impuirment lomses, if
any

Amortization method, estimated wzeful life and residual valae

Intangible asscts are amodtieed et sicaighl fine method over the period of their Jife. The amorismion perid, residunl valoe and the
ernnisation mathod are neviewed ot lenst st each balanee sheet date, 17 the expectad uschul lif of the asset & slpaflEcently differert fram
previows estivates, the amoriisution persod i changed accordingly,

Gatins o losscs arising from the retirement or disposal of un intangihle asset are debermined a5 the difference benwesn the net dispasal
procecds and tie carrying amonnt of the asset and recognised as income of expense in the statzment of peafle and less

O Dwtamgible Assets snder Develnpmedl

Thee inbsngible pesets which asé in the process of develksmnent ane recignised as intangibbes wascts urdee development, Once developed ity
ane recoenised a5 intiodhle psséts,

L Cash and eash equivabents

Coaosly il waesh equivalents includes cash in huned, demend deposits with hanks. other shart-tenm highty liguid invesdrsencs with odgizal
maturities of thres manths or less that are readily convertible o knovwn mnounts of casl aisd which are sxhiect mocen insignificant risk of

chanpe=in value

E, Fimantial insiruments

& T




Alara Capital Advisors Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN Now: - UT4110DL2016P TC2H9T)

cxlity. A fEnancial nxset or financial lisbility & indtinlly measured & Ghr valoe phes, for an ilem ot & fuir value through prafit and logs
(FVTPL], transsetion costs that ore dirsetby attr{buteblc (0 its acguisition or [ssue,

Teade receivables and debt sccurities are initially recognised when they sre originated, A1 ether financial assets and Onascial HibiliGes are
initinlly recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the contmctus] provisions of e insrumens,

(i) Claszification and subsequent measurement
Fasangial areatr
U Initiad recognilion. & Mamciml asset is clacsiflad 5 i ured of

Amortized eost

FVORC T — et investment;
FVOIC] - eguity myvestment: or
W IPL

Financial ngsetd e mot reclussified subsequent i thedr initind recognition, excepe i and in the period (he Company ehenges 15 business
o] fof rmmaging finsmcial asieis

A finnncial asser is nvedswned at the smortised vost if both of the following conditicns are mae argl i=no desipnated & & EVTPL:
* b financid assel is hebd within o busines model whose ohjective is to bold sy for collecting conractial cish flows, and

*  the contruciunl femms of the linincal asset give rise on spectiod date vy cash flows that are silely payments of principal and mbenst
[SPEN) en the principal amoont outstoeding.

Un Initlal recognition of oo cquity invesiment thit is nof held for wding, the Company may irevaeably elect to present subsequent chanies
i thee imvestmoznt”s Calr value in OCT (designated a3 FVOCT - equity investments. This election is made on tn bivesimenis by investren

bisi=,

All financinl assers nor chassified as measured st amonised cost or FVOCT 15 deseribed above are menssred at FYTPL. This includes all
derivative linancinl assets. On initind recognition. the Campany may imevousbly designutie 0 finoncial assel that ctherwise mects the
reriremiznts (0 be measured ol wmonised cost oe ot FVOC] as of FYTPL i doing s ofiminmes or significently reduces an wecmnting
miemakch that would otherwis: arise.

Fireameia! wevedn: Buiiness modef arsesmmens

The Company makes an gssessinent of s ihjective of the business model in which u financial msser is beld ata portiolio level because this
hestrefleces the wiy the business is mansged, ond information is provided o munagement. The infarmition considersd melues:

Al toe stabed palickes and objectives for the portfalio and the operation of those palicies in practice. These include wheiher managament's
strilegy [orused on esmning contraclual Istesest income, maintaining & parifcular intersst mte profile, matching the duratian of the
Tinancial assets 1o ghe duration of any related liailities or expected cash cutfows or realising cash flows through the sale of e asets:

by heosw the per fDnmnce of e portfolia is evalusted and neported to the Company's mandgement:
€l thi risks that affect the performance of the business mode] (amd (e Nnaneial assets held within that buskacs riusll  ard bova thase risks

mre g

dl  how managers of the busines are compensated — e.g, whether sompensstion is hused on the fir vahie of the usssts pamiged or the
coniractul cash fows collecied: and

€1 il frequency, vidume and thming of sales of financinl assets in prior perinds, the reasons Tor such ssles expectatinng abeut fulure
sales netivity,

Transfers of financial assew o third parties in franssetions thag do oot gulify for dereenpnition are not considered sales for his pumpose,
wonsisent with the Company”s comdinuing recogidtion of the wsses,

Fimancial nsscts that are keld for wadisg or are mannged and whoss perfiormance is evalusted o & Giir value hasis are measured at FVTPL,

Financinl amsets: Agseszment whether comracual cosh fows wre solely paynents af preircioa amd irteres;

& al this aesessment. “principal” is delined os the Sir valkie of the financial nssel on inflial recopmition. ‘Inberest’ ks d T
o for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal sount autstanding during & _{:._'l, I
Bnpaher basic knding risks wed coss (e.z. ligaldiny risk and admiinismative costs), as well as n profit margio. o

3&@_-%’ o T
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In assessing whotber the contrctsd cash fows are solely payments of priocipel and inferess, fhe Company considiers the contractunl terms
ol the imstrument. This includes nxsessing whether i financial gssel conlains a contreciual term that could change the timing or ameunt ef
contractaal cash flows such rhat it would it moet this condition. Tn making this mgemment, the Campany considers

Al coetagent events that would chaege the amoaunt ar timing of cash Tows-

bl terms that may adjust the contracal coupon rate., inclsdmg variable intensst rate features

€} propaymient sad exlension festure.

d)  terms that limit the Company’s cladm o cash fows framy speci fied ossels (e.g non-recourse Frtunes)
Finaneial areetr: Subsequent meavivement aanet grivet awel fosney

Fimancial aseen ol FVTP

These assets mre subsoquently messurad & fir value, Ne gans and losies, ipcluding any interest of dividend incore, are resagnised in

Halement of profil 2nd lnss,
Feneneital sevets b imoriised eorf

These assets are subsequently measured of amprtlsed cost using the effective interesi method. ‘The amortised sost is reduesd by impaismint
losses. Interest imoome, forelg exchones paing and fosses asd ITpASTIEL are recognised in statement of profic and loss. Hay gain or boss on
derecognition is recagnised i stibement of profit and loss,

Ol fovestmens ar FIOCT

ITese assets are subsecuenthy measured at fair value, Interest income ander the effective inferest methd, lsecipn exchaspe pains and loczes
and impainmienl ere recapnised in stalement of arofit sod Joss, Cither net gainy wnd bosses are recognised in OCL On derecognilion, fins end
Iosszs accamulated in OCH are reglassified to statemenl of provfil and boss,

Feuid feeesiments af FUOTY

These assets are subsquently measured ul fabr value. Divicends are recognised ag income in statement of profit and Ioss unbess the dividend
ahearly represents o recavery of part of the cost of the invesiment. Other ned gains sl Insses are rocogmised in OCT and wre mol roclsiied

to statement of profit and loss,
Femascial Nabifties Clagsification, niesguent mesmranent vnl gring aned insses

Frnancinl lisbilfties are clnssified s meusarad a1 amortised costar PYTPL. A el liabibicy = clmssified as o FYTPL iCE §s chmsifled am
bedd-for-teading, oriiis a derivative of fl & designane d as such on indisl recognition. Firsacial liabilies o 7 IPL are megsgrad at fadr valye
and et guwing wnd Iesses, tichading ury interes tepenss, sre recognised in suilement of profit and |oss, Ocher Mnucial labilties. gre

{id) Derecognition
Fimancin! geser
The Compeny derecognises & finnnclal azset when the contraemal Hizhts b the cash flows from the financial nssel sxpire. o it transfers

rights to receive the contraciel cash Bows 10 8 Larsacion in which substantially all of (Fue risks snd revands aff sramership of the finucial
nsscl e traneferned or in which the company neither riansfions o retilng substantisfly all of the nieks aod rewards of ownership and does

mex retEin control of te Ninaneial asset,

If the Compuny enters into transactions whereby il imusfers aesets recogrised an its halance sheel but reaing sicher ofi ur substantally ali of
the risks and rewards of the tmnsferred assets, the wansfiorred assers are not derecoenised,

Where the Company hes neither sransferred i Fnancial nssel nor relaiss substantially ull risks and rewands of ownership of the finuncisl neser,

the financinl sssed f& derecnmmized if the Compnay has ot etahed contmal of e inuncinl mss. Whene the Company relains control of the
limincinl asset, Use neset is contimed 1o he recogrised 10 the eatent of contimuing involvement in the fnancial et

Fi iriametal fughifiy
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G, o new financlal Habilily bused on the modified ferms is recognisad ol Tir valise The difference between the camying amaant of tha
finamcial Habitity extinguished and the new finarcial labiline with modified tems fs eecognied in sntement of profit ond loss.

{iv) OHisetting

Financial assets und financial liabilities are offect, and the niet nmount aresentei in e halasse sheet when, ind oaly when, the Conspany
currently has o legally enfirceable right t set off the smounts sad & ietends either 1o setile thern o a net basis o tor realise thee assel and

settle the labiiy simulaneoedy,
F. Finsmglal insirumest dassified as Gnoscial lshility

Financial instrimest which nquires the Company to deliver cash or another financial asser, or ofherwise 1o setil it & such a way 1hal &
wioakd be s financial linhility, and where Company does not have an unconditional right 1o avedd such ohligation, ane clnssified i lnancial
lihilsty, Such classification is in suhstance of the contractual arrangement nnd = pir the delmilions of the Hnancial liabilie. Such Financial
MAPUIRENES 2 necagnized as Tinancial Hiobility al the full smaunt, withowt taking inlo nccount tse fiming of the contingent event, This fs 1
per the roles of contingent seitlement provisions. The equity component for such Tnancial fnstrments will be il

Inkial recognition of such financink instrumens & financial liadility will be of fair valee and subscoucet chanpes In fhis value iy recognmed
in profit or foss {i.e FYTIL),

T Impairmest
{l Imprairment of financial asets

The Company recogiises loss allovwance using the expecied eredit loas (ECL) model for the fnmeinl nssets which ace il fuir valued thromgh
profit o loss. Less adlowance for teade receivnbles with me stgnificant fimincing component is mesured o an amount ¢queal o ifdime DCL,
For all financinl sssets with eontractual cash flows oiher than imde recesvable, FCLs are measured af an il equal b the 12-mombk ECL,
indess thers has been a significant increase in erecit risk from Initial recognition in which case those are messured 1 lifstime ECL. The
amourd of ECL {of seversel) that is nequired 1o adiust the loss llowance at (he peparting dase is recognised s an impairment gain or loss in
e Sresdemant of Prodft msd Loss

Measwrement of expected eredit losses

Expected credit losses e a probabiline-weighted estimate of credit kesses, Crodit lossess e mesirad g the present viles of all cash shortills
fi.e. the difference beoween the cash Tows due © the Company in aceordmnce with the cositract and the cash Nows thar the Company CX[LLE
b receive

The Company fisllows “simpfifled approsch” for recognitbon of impainmend los allowance on imde reccivable. Under Se sirnplified approach,
Tt Campany does not trnck changes in credi risk for individenl cosommers. Rather. it recignises lmpedrment boss allowamee based oo lifstine
ECLs ot each roporting date, right from iitiad reesgnition,

The Comipsiny uses n provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowanes on the porttolin of trodo receivables, The provision muirls is
basied on its historicallv observesd defuglt retes and delnys in realisatbons aver the expected lifie of the tude reccivable and i wcljiraied for
Farwand looking estimates. Al every balance sheet date, the historicud chserved definll sate g updated and changes in the forwards-lasking
estimntes ane dndlvind

Frezmiatian of slowanse for expocted craatr Tetves i iz balamoe e

Loss allvwances fivr finoncis] ssets mensured st afonised cost are dediscied from the oo cartying sonount of ihe asses

im) Impairment af non- Neancisl azses

Ihe Company’s non-finamial assets, sither than Inventories nsd defirmed (=x assels are reviewed of cach reporiing date w determine wheikes
there s any indication of impairment. [F any such indication exizls, then the asset's recoverable wrmomt is catinianed,

For impairment festing, meets that do ot gesersde independent cash inflows are grooped tapether into cagh-genoratme units (CGLS)L Each
COU represents the smalles: group aof assets that penerates cash inflows that are largely irdependent of the cash inflows of other gsets o
Ciplls

I recoveralle oot of o CGL (or an iodivicuad ossel) s ihe ligher of its value in use sod 15 fir vale Jess costs we soll, Value in sse s
baged on the estimated fure cash flows, discounted B thoir pressnt value using o pre=taw discounl rate Lhal reflecs cument morket
wisessments of the [ime vilue of money saud the risks specific ro dhe CGU for the xser),
An impairment losz s recognised if the carrving amouant of an asset ar CGL exeoeds (e estimated recpvarable amount, Impaioment losses
are recognised in the statement of profit and Inss. An impadrment kess is revessed 17 1here hos heen o cligngr in the estimabes used 5 d i
itht fecovershle pmoust. An impairment loss 82 reversed unly b the extert that the ass=’s carry e amoust does ool exosed
//am{nghﬂtl-j_hm.mld have been determined net of deprecintion ar amodtisation, if mo impalrement oss had been recognised,
L
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A provision 18 rocognised if, 85 a result of a past event, the Company has 3 present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
rcliahly, und it is prohahlc that an ooiflow of economic benefits will be required 1o setlle the chligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expecied funire cash Nows (representing the best estimme of the expandinune required o senle the present obligation ot the
bnlnrye eheet dste) at & pre-tax rate thad reflects currend ket asscssments of the time value of mooes and the risks specific v the lRabilisy.
he emwinding of the discowst & recognized as Onsnoe cos, Expected Future opersting bosses nre mot provided for,

Centimgent liabiliies

A comlingent liability is.8 possible obligaion that arises om past events whose existence will be confismed by the coonmence or non-
OECUITEE I QNS Or [0 urceain fulure events bevossd the comerel of the Company oF a present obdigation that &= no recognised becaise
i & not probable that an cutflow of resotrees will be reguired W scitle the obligation, A contiogenn abiliyy aleo erises L ouzemely rarg
cases where thers i [ability that canned be recognised because iteonnot be mensred relzably. The Compuny does not recognize & contingen
linbility but discloses s exisience in the standalone financial starsmess.,

Cratingent 1ssets

Contisgent assers e ool pecognised bul diselosed inihe stamdalore Ninencial statemerds when oninlow of eeonomie benefis 5 prokeble,

I. Eevenue recognition

Revemie camprises the fhit value of the consideration received ur receivahie for rendering of services in the ondinary coimse of the Company's
activities. Revemue i recognised o the extent bt 1t i profuhie that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company and the revinue can be
reliably measured, Revense & presented met of renims, trade allowances, discounts, value added toes, poods and service txes [GST],
Revenue is recognited o3 ollows

L Imierest incomse on afl lnaes opio W days 5 recognized under acerual basis. Beyond Uil or in case of my defasli on loan
repayment interest income is recogn lzed only when realiood,
18 Proceszing fees on lonns ane recegiezed on iplront basis in the books of [T Service Provider ag plationm Fees The 1T
servics Company provides & cuskimer inferfacs with Akara Capital Advisors Private Limited).
ML Iothe s the kans Falls due over |50 days, the principal cutstanding and intenss: reccived a= and when are iransferred
iy the bowkcsaf 1T service provider,

. Interest incarne on deposits with banks s recognized on an scerual hisis fking it account the amount outstanding and
nte applizable.
v livterest o venm depisils b been acened on the fime proportbon basis, wing the underlying interest mtes

VI Devidend income is accounted when the right to.receive dividend is cstallished
All nther income ts recognized on an meeranl bisis,

Thee canmpiany has reported accrued imerest inconse on lvans amounting i Rs 838,12 lakhs, The Revenue s recognized for Interest
Accried but oot reczived on Stundard Aswet wp to W dayva till the period ended 31% March 2023,

I, Forelgn curcency lranssctisns

Fozeign curmency imrsactinns ane tanslzied into the fimctional curmency using the exchanpe rates st the datea of the trangactions o an
averupe rbe ifthe average rage approxdmates the wctual mie o the date ol the mmsaction,

Monetary assels and [allitks denominased in foreign currenses are ansdsed imo the functional coreney al e cxchanps e ot the
repoating dele. Non-mansany assets and habilfttes thnt nre measured a1 falr value in @ Rosign cormency ere translated inio the faverlanad

currency sl the exchange mbe when fhe fair vahie weg: detesmined, Mon-monetory nssets and lishilities that are meassired based on
historicnl cost in n foreipn curmiey are tranalaves a the exchange rete ol the dake of (he tFAngactaon

Foredgn cxchonge yoing mnd lomses resulting from the setlement of such tamactions se penerlly pesgiacd in stsament of proff
sl loss,

k: Employee hemefits

Tie Company’s ebligation wwnrds varioss emplogyee benefits b been recopnised as follows:

(i} Short term emplovee bepefing
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obligation can be csliraiad mliably.

(i} Lamg term employes benefits
Dhefined conteibirion plavir

A defised contribution plan 15 a post-employment benefit plan onder which an estity pays fixed contribulions into o separate entity and
will e nar lepal ar comsrctive obligstien o pay further amoanis

Preaddent fiand, employes’s cobe insurmie shenie and Fabour welfare fund are dofived contribution plags. These contributions are
recagmised g5 on expense in the Satement of Profitand Lass during the peried in which the smployes reders e related services.

Definied berafit plony
A defined benefd plan 5 a pod-enaplayment benedit plan olher thas o defined contribaion plan.
The Compasy his defined Benedil plan, Gratuiiy,

The Company’s net obligntion in respect of defined benefit plens is calculbed by estimuting the amount of future beriefit thas emphovess
huwe carmed in the current and prios periods, discounting thal amount and dedwating the fuir valoe of any plan assers, i any.

The calculation of defined becefit obligiies is performed annuslly by a qualified actuary using Bie profected unit credit method.

Remedeurerents of the net defined benefit liability, which compeise sciuorial gains and besses, ane rocignised in other comprebensive
i (OCE). The Company detenmines the net intenest expanse/{income) on the net delived benefit libility for the period by applying
the discount rate used to measuee the Selined benefit obligation st the bepinniag of the annual seriod r e net defined benefit linbilin,
wking info account any changes in the net defined benefi liability during the period & & result of contributions and benefit poyments.
Net intorest expense nnd olher expenses relted to detined benefin plams are recognised in stabement of profit and Joss.

The dizeoumnt rtes wsed for detlerminmg the present valiee of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based o the maket yields
A R PTITHS T Secirilicg asal the balance sheet daie,

When the benefiss of & plan ore changed or when o plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefin thar relates so past service ['pust
servies endt” ar ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curlailment i recognised immeiintely in starement of profit and boss. The
Company recognises gains end Keses on the selilement of a defined benefit plon when the senlement oceis,

(iiij [Hher long term empioves benefits — compensated nhsences

The employees can enrry-forward o portion of the unatilised acenicd compensated absences and otilize it in fiture service perlods or
receive cash comnpersation on temsnstion of employment. Since the compensated ahsences dio not fall die wholly within twelve months
after the eod of the period in which the emplavees render the rebaed service and are absos pot expected o be utilized wholly within
twelve manihsaler e ad of such peried, the henefit is classified a5 a bag-temm employee benalit. The Company records an ohfigstion
for ssch compensted absences in the pesiod in which the employee renders the services that nerense this entitlement. Thie okligstbon
is measured on the basis of independent scusrinl valuntion using the Projected Unit Credin Method. Re-measuremend as a result of
experledoe sdjostments and changes in neturinl sssumpiions ane resognised da ke saement of profit and boss,

I Income fay

Income tax comprises current ind deliared tax, 11 is recopnised in sntement of profit asd loss excent 10 the extent that it relates 1o an
item recognased directly in equity or in other comprehensive ncame.

{i) Curremt tax

Crerrent mx comprises the expecied tax poyable or receivoble on the taanble ineome ar lags For the vear and any adjustment o the tnx
payabde or revervable in respesl of previoos vears. The amoum of Surrent tx reffects the best estimme of the S smount cxpecled o
b patis] o regeived afier considering the encertainty, iCany, related 10 income taxes,

LCUTTENT Sk 28218 And eurrent tax liahifities ore offset only if there i a legally enforosable ghl 1o sel off the reeopnised ameans, and
it is intemabed to realis the sssel and siibe the Halsility an o oo basis or simalianesly,

(i) Dferred rax
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probuobde thal future msabile profits will be availahle agains| wideh they can be peed,

Dleferred eax s measured @ il v rates Boar arg expectal o apply o the perod when Bie axset is realised ar the fizhility &5 seabad,
bused on the laws that have been enacted o subsinively svacted by the répoarting dare.

The measurernemt of defemed tax reflerts the By consequesces that would fllow o the mannes in which the Company expects, o
the reparting dale, fo recover or seille the carrying amaunt of 1 aseels and [Eabbliifes,

Dieferred tax adsets ond labilitics anc offset if there is & legntly enforceable right to offer current tax Habilities and asets. and they
rekare iy income txes levied by the samss fax autbanty on the same tocable stilily. or o differant te enfities, bui they ntend 1o seifle
currerst dus lisbilithes ancl assets on @ net basis o their tax assets wed |asbdities will be realiscd simulizneonsly,

Recugnition of inferest income or expence

et incone or expense is recognised using e effestive interest method. The 'effective ineerest rabs " B Ihe rate that exactly disemenis
estimated firture cash pyyment or recelps through the expectad lile of the firancial insrument w:

= the gross carrsing amount of the Orancial asser: or
= the emortized cost of the Tismcial [Ebilit,

In cabculating inmeress imcome and expense, the effieaiive imerest mee s apiplivd d the gross curying smaunt of The assel {when the
#sst i nod credil-ingpaited) o 10 the omortised cost of e liakitity. However, for financial ssets tat have hecame crediz-impaired
subsequent W inifinl recopnition, nterst neme iscalonleied by applyving the effective interest rmbe tthe monfed cost of the financial
aszel I the asset is 0o longer coodiz-Empaired, then the calculution of intered income revers in the gros: hesis,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shase is calculoled by dividing the nes pratit ar Inss For the year mtributsble 1o couity shareheldors by theweighied
average numher of equity shares outslanding durling the yenr

For the purpose of celewtating diluted eamings per equity share, the net profit or s for the petiod stiributable to equity sharcholdess
and the welghoed averige nimber of shares cutstasding during the pesiod are adjusted for the effects of all dilarive potential equity
shares.

The accpanpunying notes are s integral port of the financal siskemeniz
A5 per owr report-of even dang
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Dear Membears,

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your Director’s take pleasure in prasenting the Directors’ report on the business and operations of the
Company along with summarized financials for the francial Year ended March 31, 2022,

1. Financial Results:
The Company's financial padformance for the linancial Year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized
befow: =

For the year ended March 31, | For the year ended March 31,
Particula E

? s 2022 {in INR) 2021 {in INR)

Total Income B 49,43,17,280.00 21,20,81,896.00
Expendiure 43,61,73,132.00 18,46, 30,62 7.00
Profit/{Loss) befare tax 5,405,95.504.00 2.74.51,269.00
Less: Tax Expenses
Current Tax 1,73,13,251.00 TLR4 520,00
Previous Year Tax = . .00 0.00
Deferred Tax charge (55,64,899.00) 18,56,091.00
Profit .I"I:LI.:IEE:I for the year 4.32.47.152.00 1,84, 1065800
after taxation

2. State of the Company’s Affairs;

Your Company was incorporated an 117 February, 20016 with the Registrar of Companies, Debhi. The
Company is engaged in the activities of Finance and k& registered with Reserve Bank of India as an NBFC
and there is no change in the nature of business of the company during the vear under review.

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, vour Company earned a revenue of INR
49,43,17,280.00 (Rupees Forty Nine Crores Forty Three Lakhs Seventeen Thousand Two Hundred and
Twenty Eight Only} and incurred expenditure of INR 43,61,73,132.00 (Forty-Three Crores Sty One
Lakhs Seventy Three Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-Two Onbyl. Howewer, during the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2021, your Company earned INR 21,20,81,896.00 {Rupees Twenty-0One
Crores Twenty Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Eight Hundred and Minety-5ix onby] and incwrred an
apgregate expenditure of INR 18,46 30,627.00 (Eighteen Crores Forty-Skx Lakhs Thirty Thousand Sk
Hundred and Twenty-Sevin only)

For the financial vear ended March 31, 2022, the company made net profit of INR 3,32 47, 152.00 (Four
Crores Thirty Two Lakbs Forty Seven Thousand One Hundred and Fifty Two Only) and the year ended
31" March, 2021 the company made net profit of INR 1,84, 10,658,00 (One Crore Eighty-Four Lakh Ten
Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Elght Only).

3. Dividend:

Although the Company has earned profit, the Board of Directors of your Company, after considering
holistically the relevant clrcumstances and keeping in view the Company’s Dividend Distribution Palicy,
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AKARA CAPITALADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any dridend for the financial year ended
bdarch 31, 2022,

4. Transfer to Reserves:

During the financial year the Company has carried forward Profit & Loss balance of INR - 4,32,47,152.00
Four Crores Thirty Two Lakhs Forty Seven Thouwsand One Hundred and Fifty Twe Only) - te surplus
during the vear and in accordance with the provision of Section 45-KC of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1534 the company has transferred to statutory Reserve 200 profit after tax ie. an amount of INR
1.09,99,100.00 {Rupees One Crore Nine Lakhs Minety-Nine Thousand Cne Hundred Only)

5. Change in tive nature of business, if amy;
Thare has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during financial year under review.

6. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financlal position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial vear and the date of the report:

There have been no material changes and/or commitments occurred subsequent to the close of the
financial vear of the Company to which the balance sheet relates e, March 31, 2022 and up to the
date of sizning of this report, which might affect the financial position of the Campany.

7. Details of significant a rial order tors or courts or bribunals impacting
tha gaing concern status and company’s operations in fulurs:

There have been no order, whatzoever, passed or issued by any regulstors, courts or tribunals, which
might affect the going concern status and company's operations in future.

8. Risk Management Policy, development and its implermentation;

The Company’s Risk Management Policy with a robust supporting risk management frameawork
facilitates identification and assessment of new risks and review of presently identified risks. The
process is based on identified risks and the risk events or factors which require regular assessment and
guick response. Based on the probability & mpact of the risk;, the requisite controls and action plans
hawve been designed and implemented. The Eey Rek Indicatars hawe been identified to measure the
adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of these, contrals and action plans.

9. Internal Control Systems:

The Compamny’s Inbemal control systems are geared towards ensuring adeguate intemnal controls
commansurate with the size and needs of the business, with the objective of efficient conduct of
pperations through adherence to the Company's policies, Identifying areas of improvement, eviluating
the reliability of Financial Statements, ensuring compliances with applicable faws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets from unautharized use.

10.Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 124(5) of the Companias Act, 2013, with respect to the
Directors” Responsibility Statement, it is beraby canfirmed that:
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a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material depariures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 5o as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

e] the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frawd and other irregularities;

d} the Directors had prepared the anmual accounts on & going concern” basis; and

e} the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adeguate and were operating effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systemns to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

11. Public Deposits:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,

L2 5vatutory Auditors;

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Aoudit -and  Ausditors) Rules, M5 Suri & Sudhir, Chartered Accountants, (FRN D0D&0LN), Delhi were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 years starting from 01/04,/2017 1o
AL/03/2022 in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held In 2017 and thelr term has been
expired, Further, they have given their consent for the re-appointment of another term of 5 years from
the financial year 2022-23 to financial year 2026-27 In the ensuing Annual General Meeting

Board's explanation and Comments on Auditors report; The Motes on Accounts read with the Auditors
Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not require any further comments or explanations as the
Auditor’s Report given by auditors of the Company doesn't contaln any qualification, reservation, or
adverse remarks,

The Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2027 does not refer about
any fraud.

13.Cost Auditor:

Ag per the Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions of mainterance of cost records are
not applicable on the Company for the Financial Year 2032-22,

14.Secretarial Auditor:
The Company was not required to appoint any Secretarial Auditor in terms of the applicable provisions

of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed there under during the
period under review. Therefore, no secretarial audit report s required to be obtained.
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15.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technolomy Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and

outgo:

The disclosure under Section 134(3){m} of the Companies Ack, 2013 read with Companies (&ccounts)

Rules, 2014 relating to foregoing matters are as follows.
a. Conservation of Energy:
Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to
conservation of Energy and technology absorption in the above rules are not applicable,

b. Technology Absorption:
The Company & nat invalwed in any activity refating to technoloay absorption,

t. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo: (in INR)
The Foreign Exchange earmings & outgo during the vear was as follows:

Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21
Forelgn Exchange Income - I .
Foreign Exchange Expenditure | %

16.Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR);

The provisions pertaining to the Corporate Social Responsibifity (“CSR") in terms of the section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corperate Social Rexponsibility Policy] Rules, 2014 were
not applicableto the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

17 . Extract of the Annual Return:

MCA vide Notification dated 05.03.2021 (effective from same date) has substituted Rule 12 of
Companies (Management and Admnistration), Rules, 2014 and have done away with the
requirement of fling the Extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9,

1B.Contracts or Arrangements Made with Related Parties Referred to in Sub-Section (1] of Section
1530l the Act

The Company had entered into the related party contract with EQX Analytics Private Limited i the
garlier vearis). The related party transactions took place at arm's kength basis in the ordinary course of
business, The Contract or arrangements made with related partics as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2003 are furnished in Annexure -1 and Is attached to this Aepart,

19.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees of Investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013;

The Company has not entered into any transaction of or given, whether within the prescribed limit or
bevond the limit, any loan, guarantee or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, no discicsure is required to be made by the Company in this regard.

20.5hare Capital:

Share capital of the Company is INRE 400,00,00,000/- divided into 40,00,00,000 equity shares of INF 10/
each. The Paid-up share capital of the Company is INE 2,11,19,05,1%0/- divided into 21,11,90.519
equity shares of INR 10/- each a5 on 31% March 2022, During the financial year 2021-22, the paid up
capital of the company has been changed and the company obtained the necessary RBI approval.
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Akara Capital Advicors Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Morus Technologies Ple, Lid.
Further, the company has no subsidiary or joint ventures or associate companies.

21.Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

Sweat Equity shares:

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial yvear under review.

tssue of further Share Capital:
The Company has issued 15,21 21 416 equity Shares of INR 10 each during the Financial Year
under review and has Bsued 15,21,21.416 equity shares of INR 10 each to BA/s. Monis

Technologies PTE LTD through Rights lssie.

Buy back of Shares:

During the year under review, the Company has not made any offer to buy back its shares.

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 25 times, The intersening
gap between any bwo board meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013
{"8ct'} and the Articles of Association ["AoA'] of the Company. Proper quorem was present at all the
Board meetings hekd, The Board meetings held during the year are mentioned below

5. | DateoftheBoard | Ma.of Direstors required to aftend the | Mo, of Directors attended the |
No, Meeting B BM

1. | 14th May, 2021 a 3

2. | Z56h une, 2021 a 3

1| 24th July, 2021 1 3 —

4. | 2ist August, 2001 F] A

5 | 0Oth Septernber, 2021 4 e

a, 15th Septembsar, 2021 4 4

7. 24th Saptember, 2021 4 4

8 | 29th September, 2021 | 4 Ta

8, idnd October, 2021 4 4

10. | D2nd November, 2021 | 4 Fl
1L | D3th Nowember, 2021 1 4

12, | 25th November, 2021 | 4 1

13. | O7th December, 2021 | 4 A

14, | 23rd December, 2021 4 a

15, 25th Jamsary, 2032 4 i 1

16. | 03rd February, 2022 4 4
17, | 11th February, 2022 4 1

18. | Z2nd February, 2022 4 4

19, | z4th February, 2022 A .

20, (15t March, 2022 5 5

21, | 08th March, 2022 | & 5

2Z. | 16th March, 2022 5 5 =1 = |

3, 2ind March, 2022 5 5

24. | 29th Masch, 2012 5 5

25 31st March, 2622 5 5
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AKARA CAPITALADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

22.Annual General Meeting/ Extra-Ordinary General Meeting:

During the Fenancial year 203 1-22, Tollowing are the details of the Anneal General Meeting ["AGM™) and
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting {"EGRM"):

sr. Mo | Type off Date of Total Number of | Number of Members
seting AGMS EGM Members present
1 G 8™ September, 2001 | 2 2
2, EGM 25th June, 2021 2 2
3, EGM 28th February, 2022 |2 z
23.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

Board of Directors &5 an 31° March, 20232

The following directors are helding office:

5. | DIN Name Designation Date of
Mo, Appointment
1 01587360 | Mr. Tushar Agganwal Director 11/02/2016
! 03558173 | Mr. Satish Chandra Sinha Director 25/07/2016
3 | 06867269 | Ms, Shruti Aggarwal | Director 11/02/2016
4 01309312 | Mr. Radhakrishnan Ramachandra | Indepandent 03,/02/2021
byer Director
5 09345384 | Mr. Vijuy Ronjan Independent 24f07 /2027
| Director

Key Managerial Personnel

| 5r. PAN Mame Designation Date of
N, Appointrment
I BBXPPEIZOD Paveet Dahiva | Company Secretary I003/2018

M=, Pavest, Company Secretary ot the Company resigned with effact from 1st August, 2022 and bs.
Sonia Thakur was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 03rd August,

022,

During the year under review, Mr, Vijuy Ronjan was appointed as an Addivional Director of the
Company in the Board meeting held on 24" February, 2022 and was regularized in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company dated 28th February, 2022,

25.Managerial Remuneration:

The Company being a private limited company, therefore, the provisions of Rube 5{) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Manageral Personnel) Rules, M4 are not applicable to the
Company,

26.Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal] Act, 2003

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in fine with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women a1 the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal]l Act, 2013, Internal
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Complalnts Committes (ICC) has been setl wp to fedress complaints recered regarding sesual
harassmant.

Following is the summany of sexual harassment complaints recelved and disposed-off during the
flnancial year ended March 31, 2021

#  No. of Complamts recetved : Mil

b Mo, of Complaints disposed-off: Nil

€. Mo of cases pending: Mil

27 Compllance with Secretarial Standare

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating eftectively.

During the year under review the Company have complied all the secretarial standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

28.Declaration of Independent Directors

Thie provisions of Section 149 pertaining to the appomtment of Independent Directors do not apply to
aur Company. However, the Company has appointed Mr, Radhakrishnan yer and Br, Vijuy RBonjan as
the independent Director of the Company and the required declarations have been obtained from
them.

29.Company's Policy relating to Directors Appointment, Payment of Remuneration and Discharge of
their Duties

The provisions of Section 178{1) relating to constitution of Namination and Eemunsration Committes
are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy refating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’ gualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other refated mattess as provided under Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

A0, Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpasd/unctaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apphy.

31.Disclosure of Composition of Audit Committes and Providing Vgl Mechanizm

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
{Meetings of the Board and its Powers] Rules, 2013 js not applicable to the Company,

1. Particulars of Employees

Dwring the year none of the employees are in recetpt of remuneration of more than INA One Crore
and Two Lakhs, or employed for the part of the year under rule 5{2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rubes, 2014

33.Adequacy of Internal Financial Cantrol

The details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statement as mentioned in Annexure of Auditor Report with respect to section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013.
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AKARA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

34.Repistration a5 a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of Indis as 3 Mon-Banking Financial
Institution (Mon-Deposit taking), In terms of provisions of Mon-Banking Feancial (Mon-Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companles Prudentizl Morme [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, the Company Is
categorised a5 a "Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company”, The
Company has not accepted public deposits during the year under review, The company |5 fulfiling all
requirement &5 per the guidelines issued by REI

35. Change of status from NBFC-MD-M51 to NBFC-ND-5I

The Company has crossed the asset size of Rs. 500/- Crores as per the provisional financials
dated 31st March, 2022 and thus, as per the Master Circular DNBR (PD) CC.No.055/03.10.119
J2015-16 dated July 01, 2015 and Hevised Regulatory Framewark for NBFC Circular DNBR [PD)
CC. Mo, 002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 that defines the criteria for NBFC-
MO-51 a5 fallows:

"A non-gepasit taking NBFC with gn asset size of less than Rs, 500 erove as on bolonce sheet
dote might subsequent’y odd on ossets before the next bolence sheet dote due to several
regsons inoluding busingss exponsion plan, 1§ & clorified thot once on NBFC reaches an asset sige
of A5 500 crore or above, {t sholl come wnder the regulatory requivernent for NBFCs-ND-5] as
stoted obaove, despite mot hiving such ossets o5 on the date of lost balance sheet. Therefare, it is
oovised thot oll such non-deposit toking NBFCs moy comply with R8I reguiotions isswed to NBFC-
NO-ET from Tite fo Bime, o8 omnd when they altoin an asset size of Bs, 500 erore, irrespective of
the date on which such size is atfoined. ™

Thus, henceforth our company be desmerd as NBFC-ND-5L

36.Acknowledremeants:

The Directors wish to express thelr gratibede o the business associates, customers, bankers and
agencles of unlon and state government and other stakehodders for their continees supgort and
assistance.
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S
Tushar g Shruti Apgarwa
(Director) [Direnur
DiN: 01587360 DiN: 6867264
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Civil Limes, New Delhi = 110054 Civill Lines, Mew Dekhi - 110054

Date: 17" August, 2022
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure |

Form Mo, ACC-2
{Pursuant to chowse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
[Accounts) Rules, 2014}

Form for dischosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
reated parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 incuding
certaln arm’s langth transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NA

@) Mame{s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b} Mature of contractsfarrangements/transactions:

[c] Duration of the contracts [/ arrangements//transactions:

[d] Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

{e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or fransactions

{f) Bateds) of approval by the Board:

(g} Amount paid as advances, if any;

{h] Date on which the special resolution was passed i general meeting as reguired under first praviso
to section 188:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
1. [a] Mameis| of the related party and nature of relationshig: ECX Analytlcs Private Limited
[Parties having Significant influenca)
(b} Mature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Memorandum of Agreement
{Awvalling the Line of Credit by Akara for meeting the financial requirements and for further
an-lending to the customers as short-term personal loans for salaried individuals and
maka all reazonakle efforts 1o recover the same and repaid to the BEOX Analytles Private
Limited)
ie) Duration of the cantracts [arrangements/transactsons: 36 Months
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the valuee, i any:
Cn Arm Langth Baszis
(e} Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 13" March 2000 (Through Resolution by
Circulation)
if} Amount paid as advances, if any; NIL
2. [a) Name{s) of the related party and nature of relatienship: Ma Shrutl Aggarwal |Director)
[b] Mature of contractsfarrangements/transactions: Remuwneration & Reimbursemant of
Expsrises
{e] Duration of the contracts § arrangements/transactions: Continuous
i1d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any;
A
(e} Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: MIL
3. {a] Mamels) of the relsted party and nsture of relationship: Mr. Satish Chandra Sinha
(Directar)
(b} Mature of contracts/zrrangements/transactions: Director Sitting Fees
ic} Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Continuous
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(d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
Fd
[e] Dateis| of approval by the Board, i any: NA
(f1 Amount paid a5 advances, if any; MIL
4, [a)Mame(s] of the refated party and nature of refationship: Mr, Radhakrishnan (Director)
{b] Mature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sitting Fees
[} Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions; Continuous
{d] Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the valua, if amy:
HA,
{2} Datefs) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
if} Amount pakd as advances, f any: NIL
5. {a) Mame|s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Ms. Paveet (KMP)
(k) Mature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Remuneration
(c] Duration of the contracts / amrangements,/transactions: Continucus
(d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions inchuding the walue, if any:
M
(e] Date{s) of approval by the Board, & any: MA&
[f] Armaunt paid as advances, if any; NIL

Tushar Aggarwal

(Directaor}

DIN: 01537360 DIN: DEAET263

Add: 6AS2, Ra] Marain Road, Add: 682, Raj Narain Road,
Civil Lines, Mew Delhi = 110054 Ciwvil Lines, New Delhi - 110054

Date: 17th August, 2022
Place: Newr Delhi
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Personal Loan Policy

(Version 3.0)



Personal loans are unsecured instalment loans for any declared legal purpose. The personal
loan will be equal instalment amortizing loans with tenor between 1 month to 4 years with
the loan amount ranging from INR 1K to INR 1000K.

Personal loans will be targeted primarily to salaried segment. The customer is required to
read and sign a specific declaration agreeing to all the terms and condition of this program

Parameters Norms
Type of Loan Personal Loans
Loan Purpose includes
*  Wedding
* Holidays
Purpose * Paying college fee or for professional courses
* Renovation of house
* Debt Consolidation
* Shopping etc.,
Age Norms Minimum — 18 years

Maximum — 59 Years

Customer Profile

Salaried/Self Employed

Minimum Income Norms

Annual Household Income greater than 3 lakhs.

Loan Amount

Minimum Loan Amount — INR. 1K
Maximum Loan Amount — INR. 1000K

Loan Tenor

Minimum Tenor — 1 Months
Maximum Tenor — 4 Years

Locations

PAN India*

*operational city varies based on customer default basis

Bureau Norms

* Score* >= 675. Specific criteria for NTC.

* 30+, 60+ and 90+ DPD, Overdue/ written off,
Enquiries across various tradelines over different
time frame as reflected in Bureau.

e * Cut off may vary over time based on portfolio
analysis. Changes get duly approved by relevant
committee.

Repayment Mode

NACH, Online Payments etc. depending on the product
construct.




Banking

Banking to be taken through Perfios/Account Aggregator
(‘AA’) in certain segments.

Verifications & Checks

OKYC/CKYC through UIDAL
PAN validation through NSDL
Bank account validation

OTP Validation of Phone number

Loan Eligibility

Limit assignment basis one or more of the below

Multiplier based on existing eligible tradelines in
Bureau

Grid based on proprietary scores as well as Bureau
Score

FOIR for Banking segment customers

Bank account conduct

Latest 3 months of statement required

Conditions basis factors such as total credit to debit
ratio, minimum balance, etc.

Average bank balance is calculated as an average of
balances on 1%, 15™ and 25th day of each month.
(This criteria to be used only wherever its
applicable/in force)

Ownership Proof

*Currently we are not taking any specific ownership
proof

Documents Requirement

Below listed documents are currently required to process the loan for the customer*

* Photo ID Proof (As per the Annexure I).

* Selfie to Uploaded in customer application form

* ECS Form / NACH Form/ Online Nach

* Agreement duly filled and signed by the customer.

All the above mentioned documents from the customer to be digitally collected during
customer’s online on-boarding journey.

*Document requirement may change over time. Changes are duly approved through

relevant committee




Operations checklist (may vary across products)

- KYC documents as per RBI norms or Photo identification document can be
PAN/OKYC.

- Selfie

- Salary slips for last 3 months (applicable in some segment)

- Proof of employment (applicable in some segment)

- DOB to be as per the above documents

- Nach amount is taken for 1.5 times maximum LOC amount

Review Mechanism

Regular reporting and review of the portfolio will be done to understand the distribution
mix, portfolio performance and delinquency etc.

Early Warning Triggers

Parameters Thresholds
30+ DPD 5.00%

90+ DPD 4.00%

Net Credit Loss 4.00%

Necessary amendments towards the policy to be taken in case the above triggers are breach.



ANNEXURE I: KYC CHECKLIST

ID Address | Signature
il' Description Proof | Proof | Proof
0.
Applicability (Y/N)
PAN Card Y N Y
2 UID Certificate (Aadhar copy or OKYC) Y Y N

*Changes done in physical documentation with transition to complete digital journey
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DEBENMTLMLE TRUSTEE AiGREEMENT
This debeniure trustes agrecment | apreertent") i rmade at Mew Celhi oa Febroam 11, 2025, by ane beoween,

AKARA CAPITAL ADWVISORE PRAFATE LIMITED, & compary Incarporaledund=r ‘hes Companies Aol 3213 with TN
U lIOD_20IEFTCIDCETO and hawing it registered office 2t the B0 SECOND FLOOR, AZIUN MASARE KOTLA
MUBSRAK PUR bA HIW DELHE Marth East DL 110333 [N {hersinaMar referras 1o a5 (he "Company”, which
caprestion shall, unless il be reprgnant w3 the subject or conioyd thereal, b deerned to meen and include it
successors and permitied asclgns] of (he FIRST F&AT.;

AND

BEACOM TRLETEESHIF LIMITED, & company incursorabed unper the Cpmpanlas Act, 2013 with Cits
LMOOMH2ALSPLEZY12EE, having lks reglsteeed ofGce at 5W, S5 Flaar, The Metrcpalijan, Sancra Kurla
Curnphea, Batdsa (Easih Muomkai, Mumban City kanarashtra 400051 Indis and acung Wmesogh s offioe af 715,
Tth #loer, Haurang Hedse Bailding 24, Kaslurba Sandhi Marg, Méw Celbl - 113001 (herginafter referred ta a5
the “Debenture Trustes™ which mepression shall, unless |3 be rapugnant te the subject &f conlkxl tharaof, ke
deerriesd ba reean and fndude its sucogsisors angd permitted assigns] of 1he SECCHD PART.

[The Company and the Debenture Trustee are herematier collectively rederred to a5 the “Pares” and
individublly 35 3 "Porty™)

BRCHGHOLIMD:

s The Comgary, pursuant 1 the authority granied by the resalution of s Loard of directars passed at
i mesting held on Fabrwar, 11, 2035 pader seaiand 271 &0d 179943 of the Companes &ct, 2013 and
specal resolution passed by the sharshebers of ke Ceapany under Secticn 181{1](a} ard Sect on 180
[Llel af the Comparniss dit, 2013 on Mavernoer 14, 2004, propases 10 isswee up 1o 3500 (Taree Thopsand
Fesp Hundred) senmiof, escred, (ated. Lied, iransferabla, redreenable non-corvedtiole debammored oFf
the lace value af INR 1,030,000, {ind-an Rupees Onea Lakh Caly) 23cl aggregating tr IME, 24 D000, D00 -
[Indiam Fupecs Threey-Five Crares Orky) (“NCDE") “Owberurads]'] comprising of:

d. o base isue af 2000 (Two Thowsand] senicr, secured, retad, lised, trancfarable, redeessble none
conwertible deseniurms of the lace value of [MR 7 0000 {Indian Rupees Cne Lakh Dnly] ®ah
aggregaling to MR 20,00,00,030/- {luclian Pumee= Twealy Crorgs Cob);

b a gréen shoe upbien of up b 15CO (One Thawsand Mee Honde=d] senior, secured, raced, livted,
sranslerable, rednermabla nonscoryerlinle debentures ¢ the face value of INR 2000043 dndign
Rupees ONE Lakh Cnly) eacl spepegating 1o INF1S, 00, 00,030y [ ndian Aupesc = Ifieen Cronas Only)
"Green Shoe Grthon®):

ior cash at per on private plazement basiz), i dernaterialifed Foerm ko certain identfied inwestors on a
grivate placement basis in accordance wilh ke prowisesns of The Comgpanies Aol 2013, Securilies
Eschange Board of India |ebeniere Trudtees] Aegulations, 1593 | eabeniure Truskes Regu lations '],
a5 amended [Toem time (3 |iree. The DebeTeres may be listed on tha wholesabe debt markaet coprmant
o' tha BSE Limited in acsordance wilh tise Securities Exchanpe Board of lAdia {Isswee and Listing af Man-
Conyertibde Seterities] Regolations, (001 [*SEE BES Listing Regulatlens”], a2 smended rom bime to
fime and Secarities and Exchange Buaid ol India (Listing Oblizations and DHsClosure Requlfements|
AagalByigns, 3015 a5 amendes from time =0 ome,

B. Pursuard to |he Comaanies Acl, 2003, the Comparny 15 reguired to dppeint & debaniure trustes for the
berelit al the debenturs hnldess and the debenlure trusiee shall ac as per the peovisions of 1the
Debernmure Trostee Reguldtions, Acmorcinghy. the Company has approached BEACOMN TRAWSTEESHIF
LIMILTED §c act 2 the Jdeeentura wustee on Behalf of 2rd for the benefit of o holdars of tre
Deberluies ['Oebsnhere Holdars"] and BEACGHN FRUSTEESHIF UMIED has agie=d to art as the
dabeniure trastes for Lie benelic af Detenture Holders, on Lbe torms and conditions agreed vgan and

Mg 0P
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hereinaflar nel md, Thn [ebenture Trosiee o regisiered with the Seceitles Exchange Beard of India
{"SEEH"} a5 debenture trysles nader the e bemture Trootes Regplseidmnd,

The cataled Lerrng 2rd condillons am relation Lo the righls, dolies @ nd chlgations of the PBebeniure
Truslar and the lerme and condiligns o the Bebeiuces, chall be rore spenfically sar cut in the
debenlure [rust deet] "Deed™) 16 be enilered inta by [he Company and The Nebentore Tnsies,

The Paries hawe ogresc ic gnied into 0 Agreenenl 1o record the terms of appointmernt of the
Crebetare Trasice.

MNOAW [T 15 AGREED BY AND AETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOd LS

OFERATIVE TERMS:

DEFINITHIMS

Unless o hergerse defan ed herain, Caputalesed [errms detined and referenc @8 consiraed in the Ceed shall

have the same mepning and censiraction when wsed i this Agreemens. In1his Agreement. the
feldlopng terma have tha fedlowing mesringt!

“Doebrentuee Haltbera® has bhe mephihg ederibed 100 m Becital B abgue;

“Dreesd™ 2125 Lhe meening aacribed Lot in Bezitel © abave;

“Debenlwe Trusies FI.:pinu'nns" hies The medning wscribed Lot in Becidal & abcwe;
"Debenbrefs)® has the rneaning ascribed La il in Recital & abowes;

“Ditdosure Documents” means, callecieely, the ganeml Information docoment 1"G|l:l":| ard the
rederant bey informatisn document [KID°] sl priva e placaehent offes cusn application lelker as issued
by the Compary in respect of the Cebentures.

“Hypothecatad Bssebs” shall hawe the meaning prowided 1wt in e Debentcre Trust Oe=ed:

“Inlormathon DEHEY" means the Hational E-Suver wance Sevices Limiles (MeS1L) or any otber eniiy

registered 3% 2~ mformation Wiy snoor the Insolvency and Bankmupboy Beard of Indid (Infarmation
wiilitiesh Aegulations, 2013;

“LOOR Regulatione™ shall mran SERI Listing fbligatiors and Qisclozure Keguiremants) Regulations,
2045,

“'Mestes Circltilar for Debeniure Trustee” <hall Aean “Waster Sircolar lor Debencdoce Trostees ™ issyed
wide cirgular g, AEEYHOWVODHSPoD S FICIA2024 /46 dated May 16, 2024 and g amended from tirne
to timr

“Wlasker Clreular lor Cebentured’’ reans e cdtolar itioed by SCBE besring the relerence number
SE B HCOOHS PoL L FS IR 2020 0 dated My 23, 7024 on Macter Circular for issue and hating of
MNgn-roneertible Seourities, Secyritised Qb [nsiremants, decurlty Receigts, Municlgal bebt Seoueiclas
aned Commerceal Paper®, e smended, modified, supplemanied ar restated From time 1o Hme:

“Felevank Liws” shall riesn sll saplicsble 23aiutés, enkiiments ar acls ol any legidative booy in India,
lows, cedlmances, rulee, bye-lawes, reguleneas, nolilietiant, guideling: poicies, directions, dirgglives
angl préars oF any povernmantal or regulatory aatherity and any moedificauans o re-ERaCirs2ns
thergod:

"SEEN" has the meaning azribed to it in Recita| B abawe:
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"SER| Lniad Debeniwres Jirculars and Eegulations”’ mezas, calleciivaly, B aster Circular Tor Gebeniure
Trawslaa, the RAacter Circular fer Debentures, SEBI NCS Regulations and the LODH Regulaueas (b the
erlenl applicablep;

"SEEH MCS Licting Repuldations” has the oeeaning ascnbed Lot in Recital A& aboea:
APPCANTRIENT OF TRLETEE, AOLES AME RESFORNEISIUTIES

a.  Th=Cormpany hareby appeini BEACON TRUSTEESHIP UMITED a4 Lhe debenture tirusiee on behall
af and dor Lhe banefil al the Jesestare Hobders for ine Dabentores to be issoeed 3y the Sormpany
and the Degontyre Frustees hereby agreas tnoact as debentwre irustee for the benefit of he
DEberiture Holdes s. The Carnpany Shall pay 1o the ebenlure Trusles sobsng as they hold the oifice
of the Qabenture Trustee, remuneraten for ther seraces in acoorZancs ‘with she fea latter beasing
red ree: BRIGEACL ARALRAS 3425005 7 ? daled February % 2025 as may he aranded fram times
2 wme and, 1 additien to 2l legal, ravellng and ctner cosis, harges and scpenses will prior
inl|matlon ta the Company subject 10 cap a5 sialad in thls apreemeant) which 1he Cebenture
Trustes gr Lheir edficers, BINpHC s o Agemts may incur in celalicn 1o eveculicn al the Oeed.

B The Corpany agresst and undertakeas b comply wilh Lhe provisicns of SEB| [Debeniure Truskees)
Azgubabions, 1793, the Tompanles Act, 2013, the SZA Y5 Liskeng Nagulancn, a5 amended rom
time Lo Wime anc Secorities and Exchenpe Dosrd ol Indis {Listing Obligations and Disclnsore
Aaqulremenis] kegulations, 2015 a5 amenckad Tom time bo fme anc guidel nes of CTher regulatory
authorites asw may be applcsble frome bme (o dime in respect of S5uance and allotmens of
Ciebrures bl redemiplion ahd sgreed to furnich e The Debeatag Trosies sush infarmatizn i
—erms of the same on F-EE'.J'EF basic and as may B ragquested Dy 1ha Dptkenture Troslee.

. The Comparsy shall create Gret ranking exdusee cnarge over the Bypothecaled Assets by entering
im>a Ceed ol Hypeolhecalion prior o 1the Deemes Dale ol Aliotment ard in any case priar ba listing
ol debeatLrer,

d.  Furcher, the Carmpany shall gegsate the Dribentyrs Trust deed prior fo making a1 application fer
ihe bsurg of tre Debentures in Forr 3H.12 specified undar the Compames {5hare Capical and
Qcbentares| dules, 1074 or a5 roar therpte 85 possiglo in Favowr of the Jebaniure Trustees. Such
irues deed shal consst ol Dwe parls!

& PAi1 A CBREAIniAg AIULAM Standad inforrmibtien pecldining 12 the debt issue;
k. Parl B containing J81ails speific to 1he g artoul ar delit issus,

@, Ifthe Company fails to esscute the Oebenture Trust Deed within tie pediod specified. witnour
oo ddace t2 3ay liakildy arsag on account af wwlatien of the prowsions of the Companles Ack
A1 3 SEEL NS Listing Rrgulalinn, The Company shall alsn pay inlarecl af at beast 2% (bwo percend)
pear anfube of Swcl othes rate, a5 specilied by Lhe SEBI Lo ihe Ozbestore Holders, over snd sbowve
Ihe agread coupnn rala of the Debenlures, Gl the pracution gl the eberiwre Ires; Deed,

f. The Coempany shall ohoof pros 1o Ehe dele af eaecution of Debertors Trost Daed, pravide to |he
Dsberture Trostee, the bank account deta-ds from whicn ihe Company giosases w make Lhe
paymenl of Débenturg quistandings and giher Quistanding Due. Further, the Company hereby
i elakes thal it Suall preawibaon ite e ebeniurs Trodiee Lo obtainimfarmalion in respect = e
payment of such Deoanture Culstandings from tha re levand bank.

£  Doosmenid reqguired o be whbmitk=d prior @ or simulBnesusdy with exeootion of Bhis
AR mant:

Along with execution af 1 Agreement the Campany shall geovide @2gquidies anlomation and
geruements 19 the sabsfaction o (e Getensure Trustes for carrying ot the regulslte dee diligence
as rtquir'l:d in lzrms= of the rebevant Lawrs including in connedicn with werificaticn of the security
J contractual comionts and the requiced geoar coved for The Debpanrres, wnick is undertacen by
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the Comparey 1 be suamitied smultaneously with of price 1o Lne sieculizn of this Agreement.
The company shall provide ndarmation and dacuments 16 the estent applicatle s set oul in
Annesure A yerebn,

h.  Terms of carmying cul due &l penes:

i TA¢ Dehentwre Trosles, ithes 1hrouph itsell ar g agents fadwisarsfcensultants, =hall
carry oui reguisile diligence sa werify the scaiue of eéncurrbrance and valuaien of she
assets i applicablef and whether sll peerrissicns or consents (IF ary) as may Be reqiced
(o create The securily a5 stipulated nike Dcbaure Docement and the Relevant Lavws,
has bean obrainegs. For 154 purpose of carrying eut the sue difigerce as required in termy
of the Felewant Laws. 1he Debenfose Trusiee, sither Ihrough alsell ar abs agents
facvsordfionsuliants, shall hawe the power 10 gaaneue the books of aocount of the
Company and v hae (he Campany' s a%4ets inspocted by its offcers andfor axteraal
auditers f walucrs / cansullants f lawyers f technicsl eipert fmanagement consuiants
dpponted By e [ebeature Trustee. Prinr to appaonersent ol any  agents
fadwisorsfcansulta~ts, Lhe rebhemure Toostee shall ohtain necessary confirmation frosm
the sa'd Jgents) dovisory! consytants that they do ot heve any confict-cf-inkerest in
conducting the diligence under 1he fransactian:

ii.  The Compary thall provide all assisiance ta she Debenlure Trusiee to enable werification
of the astate far seeuricg the Debentures 3 areg rogistered / discloses:

i, The Company Shall ErfZure "hat it provides and help te procdre sl inforematian,
represeriathons, confrmatiers and disclosures as mpy be requered by the Debepoure
Trustea la carry et the requinte diliperce In conmestionwilh the issuance amd alletrent
of the Debentures, in & doacance wilh Lhe Belevant Lawe: and 'moorder bo ersune effcient
recording of details regarding creansn of securivy and menitaring of covenants wa the
systerm hosted by Depositorees uang the distniouled (adger tethnology [YOUT"), wvariaos
stakehclders, indaEng 1:suer and Dehenturs Trosiec shall ensurs thar Ehep are in
corrglisnce of Chapler 18 of the Deberture Trustes basser Cireylar angd varlogs circulars
iSsued in respecl of 1he DLT system issued by SESI Tram i 10 Cirme.

i, The Company Shail pay (o ihe Delenture Trustee oo long as ihay nedd the office ot (e Desenturg
Truskee, rermuneration far their services a5 Oebendure Truster in additlon to allizgal, ravellng and
ot her casts, charges and evpenzas which the Debantre Trustes or thpir officers, emplogess o
AgEArs nkay icur in relution 1o execatian of tha Debenture Trust Ceed and all oter documeants
cracutedfto be execuied to gve effect baihe creatian af secwrity for sacunng the Debentures and
such any nlher akpenses ke adwe tlee ment, nokeces, leters wy debeniure holders, and addiional
arofessional Peesfeapenies that would be incurred i cose of defaclt of peyment, The
remuneration i the Debeniure Truste: shall re in dcoovdancn with the fap letier bearing red as.
6383 N 24-25¢DEES 57T dated Felbruary 05, 2075, &3 may be amended From time te time.

i+ Imaddifign |¢ the documerns to be areyided crder he erees of the Debheniprse Inget Deed, the
Carrpany shall entgr-alia furapshfshall have furnished to the Cebenture Trastes the Tollpwing
dacamernta: -
1. td=rnorandum and Anicles of Association of the Corpany;
ii DHsciesure OoCumens;
iil. nEreement wit~ the Remstrar toisswe the Debeniores;

e, Lerters from Rating Agendies about ratingd;

, A return of allztment foled with the regiirar af companies [Form 46-FA5 3 within 15
{Ti*zeen] calendar days from the Dpemed date JIBbmen;
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o comedele record af private placsnsent et rocde by the Company JForm Mp-FAT 5]
wiThin L5 colender (fitte 2 a] days from the Deemed date al Alkaoenl

AT gearch Be part;
_ist of receivakbles proposed to be hypotheraied;

Yecmcgary Corgdiale autharizations incl.:devig the baard resalulen and/or sharshalder
rps@luhen for allotrment af Debeniures:

sropfof Credit / Dispakeh of Debesrlore Certificales;

copy of [35t 3 [Lhree] weary’ Audined Annual Reports:;

Copy of Latest Audied | Limited Review Hall Yeorty Consclidated [wherayer geailakple) and
Stendalane Findngaal Informaiion (Profit B Loss statemert, Balamee Shee? o-d Cash Flaw
staterant] ard 30ditor qualificakons, i any;

Debeplure Trust Desd;

Thiz Agresmeant;

RO Cerbificube;

Secariby ) Transaction Pogurmend s;

ConfirmalionsFroofs of payment ol in eres; and principal mads 10 the Debeature Hokders
on dae dates;

Statutory Audizars' Certificale for millzetéon of fundsfissue proceeds from 1he
Dehentures;

statutary awditorfindepancdent chartered acceimland cedificaie 27 maintenance of
Stipulated Secozily Cowver, including complianoe wih the covenzrl af 1the Debentoerg
Trust Deed ax requirgd unger the SEQ) Listing Chligations and Dlsdosare Reguirements
Aogulatizns in respect of 1he Debantures valustion report for the meeaable: assobe (33
applicable] in each Instance. within such siemedires at may be preseribed by The SEB Irom
1Me [a L,

Penodical separts o hall yearly, quarterly snd annuad basis;

Beneliclary Fatilion Reparts;

Dety'ld af the depositpny with whem the Doebentures are held In dematerialised larm;
Olfer letber issed by the Company pursuant o the provisions of the &ct;

Such nther documants as may ke reasonably rec wirss by 1@ Deseniure Trustee

CHG % or any madificanien made thereunder.

Cogbals of the recoveny tapemies lund crested by the Campany in berrs of The Mactes
Cirgular for Depentere Tresee;

Infzrmation o be supmitted to 1he Stack Esehanges &% required by the SEBI Debt Listing

agre=menl and SERI (Rizting Shligaiicns and Ciscloser Aequirerern| Regulalion X315 as
amendad 'rgm alme e L, within the timalings a5 manticned 10 the Hegelaoon;
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Kxwiii. In prinople apErowal for hegirg of MCDS Froem Steck Excinange;
zEik. acknowlmlgemen| of filing the Dlscioiuse ecment with the Stock Exchange|s);
axk.  Listing permizsion from the Stock Exchange; and

L3100 Luck cingr doguments a5 may ke reasonazly -equired oy 1he Debamtore Trodles under
e Compkiance checklist Ee=aainyg relerence numbes. SH4EATLNGPRSZN.2E dated
Fobruany L6, 2k,

mformatian Accuracy and Sterame:

i The Cormpany declares chat the Infermation arl data furnizhed oy ke Company Er he
Dbt e Trosies B frue and correct,

i The Company ~ondizms that the requesite glsolotures made in the Ditzlesure Dacsznents
aree frue vned coarecl;

A Al discloswres made i the Ciedosure DadurmEns wilh feSgest be ereation of aecurity are
In ccnfirnation with the elaeses af ik Agreement; 3nd

i The Company undrrtakes and acknowledges thak the Cebenufe Truites and any ather
du tharised agency rmdy e, proceas the informatian and data disclosed 10 1he Debenure
Trustee in the manner as deeened it By Lhedn i relation o the purpogse of the dus
diligents 1o be underlaken in relaticn to ihe isseance of the Cebentuwres.

Tl Camipahy canfitmg that all nesgssary disclosures will ke mada In e Declosure Docurmene
imclucing bug agt lmited 1 stacuneny amd Srher fégulblaty didcledures.

| g Frustees, “Ipse Tacto” oo not have the abligations of 3 bomower or 2 princiogl debior or a
Ewarankor a5 ba the menles paddfnvestad o lnvestors for the debentures/Bonds

The Company herathy declares and confirss vak it e goven an crderaking in the offior dacpment
Lhat the zzsglz onwhich the charge izgreated [s free frnm encambrerdces.

The Company hereby declares and confimmes that she Campany or the gerson in ¢anlrdd of the
Carmpany, of its promater has not been restrained or grombated or debarred by e Securities
Exchange Board of indla |*SEBC | Frord acccsing ik Secwities rnarke] or deaking in serurnfes The
Carnpary béreby turther declares and confirms 1hat, as on ibe date o4 \his bgreeiment, and the
date of Filing the Disslosure Document, it & an cligishe ssuer’ In scoordance with Regulatiss 51
of the SEBI [issue and Listing &1 ¥ an-voreerlible Securitias) Rrgulation, 2221

The “ompany Bereby agrefs and underaks 1o pay all stamp culy charges wikh respact to 1he
Transaction Docurments.

The Comaany shall, pay on demeand, all actual cosis and expenses {rclading Tegal faech In
canncation with the preparation, negotialion ol or =ntry inle this Agseemen! and/or any
am#ndiment of, supolement 0 or waiver in respect of Ehis Sgreement, agaire: submistion af lhe
requisike supportitg documents. Spark fram the Qebentyre Toyster fees, the Comaany sihall, froem
time o timae, make papment T3 rarburse 1the Deleniore Trusles in respect o° )l reasananle
erpeiaes and out-of-packel cny s incierred by tha Debenure Trostes. The Cempady sl-all Jompely
pay, and in any evenl befoie a-y inte-=sl or peneliy becomes payable, any stamp, dn.:uﬂentar.l,
regisiraiiom oF sirmilar 132 payaale m eanmectian Witk the entry a1, registralion, pedormance,
enforrement or gdmissikilicy in eyidence of this Agreement and/of any such smendment,
supplerient o Wedver. Exeepd in ebze of orzurrgnge of an Evant of Deraull, all cosis moormred Ly the
Cebant.re Trustee durag the kenar of the Debentured shall be capped @1 IWE 500000, Any cosls
incurted during the tenor cver and abaws MR 50,000 ather 11an &5 slated abare shall be fcurred
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zubject 1o sgregment wath the Company and shall be reimblrsed subject o prowviding pracl of such
coesls rourred,

r. &l gther tee rignis and obligations oF the Debenture Trustze ingluding (e lepms of 3peonLment
af the Mebanture Trustes shall be a5 set out in fhe Dead eraered of 10 Be entsted i no Bebwasn
the Sormpany aned the Debewlare Trostee.

s.  The Cempany shall provide all astgtance e the Oebaniore Trustee, a5 may be required oy if, ta
carry quk the necessany due diligence and monitor the sacurity cover in the manre=r 2z mey b2
tpecilies by SZE1 o, Lime 1o tims. indhis régard, n gocordz roe wiih Ene SERL Dementure Trls[es

Crcwlar ard such other releva] dicula s s mey be issusd ar amended by 5820 with resgect g
lisled nan-conwertible demeniures (55 ances

t. The Company shall carmpdy il SE20 Listed Detentwres Circdars and Regolabions es applicable
during 1he renar ab the Gebeniures.

O Itderiby

The Carrpany shall, caommencng fram the Desmed Date ar &llorsens ontd e Final SeLtlement
Ciate, within 10 {1=n) Shys of demand, irdemnify the Debentore Holders and Debenture Trosies
frafm Lirce 10 tme, againse any and all kssec, Tiabdlities, ubligations, damages, judgmenis costs,
expeaset jncluding, widhout limitatlan, adwisors’ fees), Slaing, fioes, penaliées, proceedings,
actigng or demands, o any kind ar adture incored by the Oebsniurs TrostesfIsbens pre Helders
AL B result of

#| oorurrense of any Evenit of Delauln; or

b1 any dmmand for any stamp duky, regictratian fee or amy orer dity, Fes, eati, or imports
recefved fram dny Sowverminenlel Sulharily in calation to the transachicns canlemplaled
under the Trarmsactian Doeurmenid fife Lding witkut lirmitation, any Femand Irom stamp
duty erising cames 4y Transction Doy Tent hac Been taksn of has been recaived
[whether by way o lacsirvile. pholocopy or glectranic rgcerdhin any state othe: than Lhe
ctate dnwehic~ It has been executad ac 3 rasull of ery sctan pare o che Company; ard

L1 u'wilure by the Company to pay any amaunt due wndor any Transacien Bocument om (s due
daie.

¥.  Mehbange o madifization of this Agreamant snall ke validunless the zame shall ke v writing ans
slgned by the Parties heresz, provided howeve thal Uie Debenture Trusiee thall not apree e any
amcndment o this fgreament which 15 Nkel to adwersely affect the righns of the Debenture
Haldetrs, wilhioul the consent of she Drebentore Helders in she manner ac stipolated wnder Lhe
Debeatere Trwst Geed.

va, The Compamy further confirms that:

i. Al covennnls propoed to ke inglpged in the Debeniure Trod Desd dincluding any side
lerter, accelerated paymen slause, fess charged by e deberture irusiee, gic b ang the
Qoo of Amendment gra diselosad In s hosure Dooument;

il Arreass ai o rstalments of snnual service charges, iF any, and) or dalay in rejmburseme s
o ooit, charges and espenses shall canry inte-est ak the rate of L83 (Sialoen percent) per
annur e applicanke inteest ate under MSRE Sct, whicnewsr is higher, from the date of
Eall Gl the dale of actwal gayreent which shall be payable on U'e Toating of ~vnpound
mteres! with quarterly rests.

ii.  Terme and conditlors of this Agreemant incluzing lees chasged by 1re Jebkenture Trostes
and process of due diligeree carnad put by Gebenture frystes chall 3 disclosed under
the Disclesurs Dacrments;
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3.2

The [mbenture Trustee shall rake the ~equired lings 1o the Central Regmtry of
Securibization Mides Reconstruclion and Securiby Interest of Indla " CERSAY wilkin Lhe
time perind prewmiced under applieable Law. The Carmpaty will provide gl] [nfprmation
dned anzistences Thel 1he Cgbenture Trustes may reguire in reladon 1o any Flings to be
rvaele with the CERZA o enablz the Debenture “rustee 1o make ine fetu red 17ings o L
CERSAI withir the time pened precosited uhdar A< &vant Laws; and

The Compary shall, ta the sstent apglicable snd required under relevand Laws, ansprg
dand pracare the carnglition of gll releeant fTlings regquired ta be meds with sny
Infarmation Uedlcy v accordance with Lhe §indian| nsolvency and Barkruptcr Coda, 2016
and Bny gther rudes and rogulatians made Lheseunder fréan lime Lo time.

Ry SCELILARE CiLis

Govemlng Law

This Agresment and Lhe rights and ghligations ¢! the Parties khereunder shall b= governed by and
construes o5 por baws (m ndia, withaol reference 2oi1s canflics of law pringiples.

JurisdicHomn

{a)

{e}

fcl

{d)

(e}

The Compary Jgrees that the ocorts and Lribunaks at Defhd shat have exclusive purisdicticn be
seltle any disputes whigh may anse aul &f &4 in coasnection with < Agreement and 1hat
accard ingly any Suil, aclicn or proceadings (fogsiher eefamed Lo as "Pracessing” | arlsing aul
af o i cannection with this Agsesmeani may be begazghl in such courts or the rlbunals and
1he Compary irrcvocably siebmiks to and accepks for dself and in respect of it progerty,
geherally &nd unconditionally_ the jurisdizlipon ar chose courts ar triounaks.

“heé Comnpary irrewceably waives gny ciyection mpw o in fasere, boehe [aglng of the venpg of
a0y Froceedags in Lhe Courts andd tribunals at Celhi and any claim that any sech Pracepsings
fave been Lroughl in an ingonyenien] forpem and Further prrevoestly s gree that a jpdgment in
ary Froceedings brough® in the courts and tribunals at Delhl shall te cancluside and Likdling
upen them ang may be enfarced (m the 2eored &1 Bny othar jurisdichion, [subjcci 1o the lawe of
such jurisdiciisng by 3 suit upen such judpreent, 2 ceruties eapy of which shall be conrlusue
evidencs of such judgment, cr in any clher manner praviced By land.

Al hing comlained in this Jlause 3, shall limit any right of she Tros.es e @ke Srocesdings i
any other court or trlbunal ol competsnt jumisdiction, ner shall the taking of Proceedings in
ane or mora juris@ctiens preciude the taking of Préceedingt in any olher jurisdicion whather
woncurrently or et and the Comaany irevocably sulahints to and accepts Toe Lsel and in
respect of -ts groperty, generally and uncgnditiznally, the (urisdictien of sieh court er Erlbunal,
and the Company irfeyacably walvgs any obgection I8 may hawe now ar i@ e uture Lo tne
ying &f the vende ol any Prococdmes and any lains 1hae any sueh Preceadings have keea
orought sm an iRcaramient Paum.

The Compary hefery consents generally in respect of any Proceedings ariing oul of of in
COINECCN Wil 1he Agreement Lo the giving «f any relief g tme Issue of any process in
canecyon with such Froceedings including, withaul lirrite Lion, the fraking, enfarcement ar
ekecution against apy property whatsoeear firretpective 31 IS Lid &0 intended use| of any
a-der or judgrmen! wihidy may b= made or grven insech Procesd Ings.

T The ealewl thal 1'e Company may inany jurisdickicn clalm for itsel” o s 35005 imrmunily
from suit, execution, attachenenl Avhether in aid oF gxecglion, befare judgement or aherwise|
orather Ipgal eeress and fo the aetent that In amy such junEdicnion Uer e inay bp gbiributen
Lo ir58l [ ariLs asserd such immunity {sshether or not claimed], she Company herety irreuseably
agrees mottaclaim and hedeby irevachBly vwives such i.-nrnuni'r,- Enrrmn,rirre-.rccahl-,- Apraes
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tnat, shovkd any party take 2ny proceedings anywhere, ne Imme ity ko™ hose proceedings,
fram atzachment af thedr assews or from eseeotion of judlgment shall bs claimed by them or
with respect Lo Their ass¢l5. The Company isrevocably agrees that f aad ns aseeds sre,. and
shall ke, subject to such proceedings_ atachment,

ifi Any disputes, differences between the Company and the Debenture Trostes (actirg fo- ilseli
and in s jndnrdugl capacity] and arising Ut of or im connectlan wath the actvities of the
Depafture Trustee in the securities marked |acking For itself and Imis inddyidual capacity] skall
be settled 1hesugh ary dispule resduticn mechanian and proc=dures specifi=d by SEEI in
sroordaece with the Securities and Ecchange Baard of Indla [Ahernative Clspuele Resolutian
mechanismllamendrment p Regulations, 2023 [“SEHADR Procedures™). iTthe rezolution of the
Qlspute threugh the SEBI DR Procedures 15 mandatary uhder Applicable S, o Spplicibls tc
tha Paried under applicalde Law in connection with tha Issue, The Paries farther apras tat,
naihing contained i this Clause 3 shalllimit ary righl o the Ceben lure Trostee to bring in pny
action againzl 1he Compeny inany other court or tribenal of compacem |urisdoTion nar 4hall
ehe eaking of suwh 3l Jnore o Froe e jusisdictians preciude the takicg of such aclion in ary
diher juriseeclion whether concurrently or nat and the Campaty irrevocable submins (o and

accepls foa itsell and inrespect of is property, generally and unceaditionaly, the Jurisdictian
ol suck courl o bl bural

(g Eave and excepl far the dispules SHerences betwesn the Compary and Lhe Gebeniere
Trustee ansing qui 2P or in connection with the aciikies of ne Debenture Trosles in the
seCurines market as provided inClause 3.2 |7] above, Lhe cours and fribunals a; the Delhi shall
have prdusive junisdlction e settle any dispate arding ol =7 or in coonegiean with the
Tramzaclion Documants (including a dispute regarding the eastence, calidny ar 1ereminETian of
thes sgreemenly and the Cebentuies, and thal azcordingly ary suik, action or procesdings
rising gul gf or in comection with the Tran:acoon Qocwments endfar the Debeniurds may
be broaght in such courts and kreennals,

Caumlerparts

This Agreemert may be ckeouted in any numeer of countarpans and by dif'erenl parties herels in
Separage Counlerparit, 2xt0 ol which when so eeecuted shall ke deemed to be w@noarlglnal and ab af
which taken bgether shall canatilule sne and the =ame agreesmen<

Eblective Date

Thic Agreesient shall be effeciive un vnd rom the date firek hereanabove waitten and shall be in Farce
till gl quistanding amounts in respect of the Delent es have been llly paid o the Deleniore Holdess,

Motlees

Unless eheswnse pronced herein, 3l nolices or olher communicalions 12 ke gyen shall be mace in
winting and by Ietler, e-rail or facsingle lransmis=ion |save as othe-wiss stales) and hall be degmed
1 be duly giwen or marde, in the case ol persznal delivary, When dellvered; @ tRe case ol 2-mail when
veveived: in e core of Iscsimile Iransmission, provided shat the sender has rece'ved a receipn
inoicaling proper transmission, when dispathed, o, o The ease ol 8 kier, 2 [Twop BuZiness Cays after
brng deposited in the poct dby repstered Sest, wlth acknowl edgRaene doe), postage prepaid, 1o such
parly ot its sddre=s, €-mal address grragsimile numéker specified hereim oF ab sudh otfer address, e-
mzd| gddress or facslmdle nemier as sueh party rmay hecer'eer specify For sych purpases to the othar by
nplice inowriting,

a.  Inkhe case af noweeas to be faaeed Ey either ke Company gr Lhe rebeniore Trustes, the came
shall ke sort to the Debenlure Holders witlh & copy b0 the other parky as the cose may he.

L. The particulars af each =arsy for the poiposes of $&ivirg noluices shall be ax foliows;

e
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Incease of Compary-

AL LEnfion ¢ Asopunts Depastment

Alegad 1 Bdl, Second Floor, Axun Nagar Betla Mubarak Fur, Mews Delhi,

Martk Bast, DL 123003, K

Evricait’ ; accounlsifskEsnhn rom

In_case of Debenhire Tnusies:

AefEntion L Bdr Kaustublb Eulkarne
Afdress - 8\ 5" Flaar, The Metropoliten, Bandra Kurla Crompley, Bandra
iEaze), Muwrnbai 400 051
crgil ! cernpidncedy beaconlrustes, co jn
45 conflicks
a The mrovislons concaned e this Agreernent sholl be read topelher with the prodisione
corta'ngd in the Disclpsure Goruments and the cllwr Transactian Dsoumenss.
b.

Ir £5se of any intonsRbgney belwaan the previsions Lontained in his Agreement or those af

any Disclosure tacdrments or any ot ber Transaction Dooument, the provisions cantained in the
Ceed shglh preyal,

Aneationpily left dlenk; apesiere page falons]
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SIGHATURE PASE

IN W TNESS WHEAEDF the Dezoniyre Trauster and the Cormpany have caused these pres=nts and he
cuglicane thergof 1o ke saeculed by their setharised nfficial on the day, month and yage fre abonye
weritker a5 hereinbelore agpearing.

SIGHED &HD DELIVTALTD 17

AEARA CAPITAL ADNISDRS PRIWATE
LIRITED £he walFin named Company

By the hand of 115 gut1osized slicial

_ maLf



SIGMED ARD DFELIVERED LY

Far 8 -
BEATON TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED the macon Fouzieeshrp Limiled
wlekeit namead Deenture Trusle= \\
oy khe hand of 1§65 autharized alflcal .
Authinis¥d Signaiery

:é-."-ujfp-l{g }_'.Ll.l Jn'—f'!\
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Anasacre A

Infarmation documants te ba provided by the Biuer Company, prlor to edtering inlo the
Agreatienl, 0 the exent applicalc;

. Mo

Inlaermaklony Doeurien ts

Detsils of infprmation in relation @ the assels an whach charpe is propesed to oe crealed
inchding;
ta}  Detads of reccivabibes Forming pars o Hypothecared dssess;

[k Copy of evidence of regsiration Registrar of Cumpanias,

An underaking confinming that all the informatien provided to Bes Frosee are troe and Lorraect
and the treter muy in god failth rely upon and shall not be Lable far acong or refraning from.
asting wpan such infoemation furnisked Eo it wmler this Apresmenl.

Ay ather inlemation, docyments or feecids requlred by Debenture Trustee wlth regard 1o
Cred [ Of Seculity and perfes'on ol secarity.




